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1 MEETING OPENING
1.1 TEMPORARY CHAIRPERSON

MINUTE 1164

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Loi Truong

That Councillor Youhorn Chea be elected temporary chair for the duration of the meeting.

CARRIED

1.2 ATTENDANCE
Apologies

Cr Roz Blades AM
Cr Angela Long (LOA)
Cr Jim Memeti

1.3 OFFERING OF PRAYER

All present remained standing as Venerable Shantha Wimala from the Dhamma Sarana Buddhist
Temple, Keysborough, a member of the Greater Dandenong Interfaith Network, read the opening
prayer:

" Through the power of all good deeds, may all of you be well and happy. To the power of his

great teachings the Dhamma, may all of you be well and happy. Through the power of all his

noble disciples, may all of you always be well and happy. Wish you all the best and good luck.
Thank you very much. "
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1.4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Ordinary Meeting of Council held 9 September 2019.

Recommendation

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held 9 September 2019 be confirmed.
MINUTE 1165

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That the minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held 9 September 2019 be confirmed.
CARRIED
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1.5 ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL

The following assemblies of Council occurred in the period 15 August & 20 August to 3 September

2019:
Date Meeting Type Councillors Councillors Topics Discussed &
Attending Absent Disclosures of Conflict of
Interest
15/08/19 Submission Youhorn Chea, - Submission Hearing —
Hearing — Matthew Kirwan, Meeting Procedure Local Law
Meeting Zaynoun Review meeting.
Procedure Melhem (part),
Local Law Sean O'Reilly,
Review Maria Sampey,
Sophie Tan
26/08/19 Pre-Council Tim Dark (part), Apologies — - Council submission on
Meeting Matthew Kirwan, Roz Blades preliminary options presented
Zaynoun AM, Youhorn by the Victorian Electoral
Melhem (part), Chea, Angela = Commission for the Greater
Jim Memeti, Long, Maria Dandenong Electoral
Sean O'Reilly, Sampey Representation Review.
Sophie Tan - Current investigations into
(part), Loi allegations pertaining to the
Truong Noble Park Community

Centre.

- Lions Club Summer Festival
event negotiations.

- Agenda items for the
Council Meeting of 26 August
2019.
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1.5 ASSEMBLIES OF COUNCIL (Cont.)

Date Meeting Type Councillors Councillors Topics Discussed &
Attending Absent Disclosures of Conflict of
Interest
30/08/19 Audit Advisory Matthew Kirwan Apologies - - Audit Advisory Committee
Committee Roz Blades, Meeting

Maria Sampey

02/09/19 Councillor Youhorn Chea, Apologies —
Briefing Tim Dark (part), Roz Blades

Session Matthew Kirwan, AM, Angela

Zaynoun Long, Maria

Melhem, Jim Sampey, Loi
Memeti, Sean Truong
O’Reilly, Sophie

Tan

- Dandenong Market Pty Ltd
Annual Report (Cr Jim
Memeti disclosed a conflict of
interest in this item. He
stayed during the
presentation but left the
meeting for discussion and
question time).

- Audit Advisory Committee
Annual Report — held over.

- Updates on VEC’s Electoral
Representation Review and
current service contract
dispute. — Dandenong Library
meeting space and booking
processes.

- Recent advocacy meetings
between council officers and
the Minister for Priority
Precincts and Minister for
Jobs, Innovation and
Trade/Tourism, Sport and
Major Events.

- Meeting Procedure Local
Law Review 2019.

- Agenda items for the
Council Meeting of 9
September 2019.

Recommendation

That the assemblies of Council listed above be noted.
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MINUTE 1166

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Sophie Tan

That the assemblies of Council listed above be noted.

CARRIED

1.6 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Nil.
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2 OFFICERS' REPORTS
2.1 DOCUMENTS FOR TABLING
2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters

File Id:

Responsible Officer:

Attachments:

gA228025
Director Corporate Services

Petitions and Joint Letters

Report Summary

Council receives a number of petitions and joint letters on a regular basis that deal with a variety of

issues which have an impact upon the City.

Issues raised by petitions and joint letters will be investigated and reported back to Council if required.

A table containing all details relevant to current petitions and joint letters is provided in Attachment

1. ltincludes:
1. the full text of any petitions or joint letters received;
2. petitions or joint letters still being considered for Council response as pending a final

response along with the date they were received; and

3. the final complete response to any outstanding petition or joint letter previously tabled
along with the full text of the original petition or joint letter and the date it was responded

to.

Note: On occasions, submissions are received that are addressed to Councillors which
do not qualify as petitions or joint letters under Council’s current Meeting Procedure

Local Law. These are also tabled.
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2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

Petitions and Joint Letters Tabled

Council received one new petition, no joint letters, no submissions and two (2) petition updates prior
to the Council Meeting of 9 September 2019.

e  Apetition has been received via change.org from 982 signatories (at time of printing) requesting
the Easternats be returned to Sandown Park Raceway. This petition has been forwarded to the
relevant Council Business Unit/s for consideration.

N.B: Where relevant, a summary of the progress of ongoing change.org petitions and any
other relevant petitions/joint letters/submissions will be provided in the attachment to this
report.

Recommendation

That the listed items detailed in Attachment 1 and the current status of each, be received and
noted.

MINUTE 1167

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Matthew Kirwan

That the listed items detailed in Attachment 1 and the current status of each, be received and
noted.

CARRIED
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2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

DOCUMENTS FOR TABLING

PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

ATTACHMENT 1

PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

PAGES 6 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 1000.
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2.1.1 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 1000.

20244



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2 STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS
2.21 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application

PLN19/0061)
File 1d: 296615
Responsible Officer: Director City Planning Design & Amenity
Attachments: Submitted Plans

Management Plan
Location of Objectors

Application Summary

Applicant: Dimitrovici Pty Ltd

Proposal: The use and development of the land for a rooming house
Zone: Residential Growth Zone — Schedule 1

Overlay: No overlays applicable

Ward: Red Gum

This application has been brought before the Council because it has received three (3) objections
during the advertising process.

The application proposes the use and development of the land for a rooming house. A permit is
required pursuant to Clause 32.07-1 and Clause 32.07-8 (RGZ1) of the Greater Dandenong Planning
Scheme for the use and development of the land for a rooming house.

The use and development of the land for a rooming house applies specifically to the existing Building
1. Building 1 is already utilised as a rooming house, with nine (9) bedrooms (rooming houses with
no more than nine (9) bedrooms do not require a planning permit). The reason for this planning
application is it is now proposed to alter the existing storage room into a bedroom, resulting in ten
(10) bedrooms within the building, and therefore triggering a planning permit. It is noted that there
is a further building on the lot (Building 2), however this does not form part of the ‘planning unit’ to
be assessed. The term ‘planning unit’ is one often utilised by VCAT and can refer to part of one lot,
or a number of lots. Council is required to assess the ‘planning unit’. Furthermore, a planning permit
for subdivision has been issued to create individual Titles for these buildings. As such, Building 2 is
not to be assessed as part of this application.
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application PLN19/0061)
(Cont.)

Objectors Summary

The application was advertised to the surrounding area through the erection of a notice on-site notices
and the mailing of notices to adjoining and surrounding owners and occupiers. Three (3) objections
were received to the application. Issues raised generally relate to matters of:

e  Anti-social behaviour.
° Noise and offsite amenity impacts.
e  Car parking and congestion.

Assessment Summary

The proposed land use and development has been assessed against the relevant requirements of
the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme and is considered appropriate to the site and building in
which it is located.

The use is well-located within proximity to the Central Dandenong Activity Centre, improving access
to nearby services and community facilities, improving sustainable transportation options and providing
potential employment opportunities.

With appropriate planning permit conditions and ongoing site management, the proposed use and
development will have minimal offsite amenity impacts to adjoining and surrounding residents.

Recommendation Summary

As assessed, the proposal is consistent with and appropriately responds to the provisions of the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme with this report recommending that the application be supported
and that a Notice of Decisionto Grant a Planning Permit (which provides appeal rights to objectors)
be issued containing the conditions as set out in the recommendation.
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application PLN19/0061)
(Cont.)

Subject Site and Surrounds
Subject Site

The subiject site is rectangular in shape and affords north-south orientation.

The subiject site is developed with two (2) double storey buildings. Building 1 currently contains
nine (9) bedrooms, and as discussed above is the only building subject to this application.

The design of the buildings is typical of the substantial change area with large first floor footprints
resulting in sheer wall across each interface. However, there is significant separation between
the first floors of each building.

The site is currently accessed via an existing crossover to the western side of the frontage.
The site is currently devoid of any vegetation.

Surrounding Area

The subject site is located within the Residential Growth Zone on the periphery of the Central
Dandenong Activity Centre. To the rear of the site, the land transitions to the General Residential
Zone.

The wider residential area is developed with a mixture of multi-dwelling developments and
commercial land uses including a service station, medical centre and fast food premises.

Multi-dwelling developments in the immediate area are typically of a higher density either
apartment style or attached townhouses.

The site has access to numerous community and commercial facilities including the Dandenong
Plaza and a variety of other retail premises in the Central Dandenong Activity Centre.

The site has access to numerous public transportation options being in close proximity to the
Dandenong Railway Station and the Stud Road bus network.
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application PLN19/0061)
(Cont.)

Locality Plan

R

o'}

Background
Previous Applications

A search of Council records revealed that Council has previously considered the following planning
applications for the site:

e PLN12/0612: Planning permit approved on 23/09/2013 for the construction of a three storey
building comprising eleven (11) dwellings. The permit has since expired.

e  PLN15/0612: Planning application refused on 27/04/2016 for the construction of two (2) double
storey dwellings.

e PLN17/0619: Planning permit approved on 27/02/2018 for the development of the land for a
second dwelling.

e  PLN19/0213: Planning permit approved on 25/06/2019 for the subdivision of the land into two
(2) lots.
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Proposal

The application proposes the use and development of the land for a rooming house. Details of the
use are as follows:

e  The use will be contained within the existing building 1. As described above, both buildings are
existing on the site however the proposed use is specific to dwelling 1 only.

e  The proposed use will include the internal rearrangement of the ground floor storage room into
proposed bedroom 10 (thus triggering the use of the land for a rooming house).

e  The bedrooms will then be leased out independently with other internal and external common
areas shared amongst the residents.

e A maximum of 10 occupants will occupy the rooming house.

e  The development works proposed relate to the removal and replacement of the external storage
room (proposed bedroom 10) door with additional brick work.

A copy of the submitted plans is included as Attachment 1 and a copy of house rules is included as
Attachment 2.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications

No financial resources are impacted by this report.

Planning Scheme and Policy Frameworks

Pursuant to the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, a planning permit is required pursuant to:

e  Clause 32.07-2: A permit is required to use the land for a rooming house.

e  Clause 32.07-8: A permit is required to construct a building or construct or carry out works for
a use in Section 2 of Clause 32.07-2.

The relevant controls and policies are as follows:

Zoning Controls

The subject site is located in a Residential Growth Zone Schedule 1 (RGZ1), as is the surrounding
area.

The purpose of the RGZ1 outlined at Clause 32.07 is:

° To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy Statement and the Planning Policy Framework.
e To provide housing at increased densities in buildings up to and including four storey buildings.
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° To encourage a diversity of housing types in locations offering good access to services and
transport including activity centres and town centres.

° To encourage a scale of development that provides a transition between areas of more intensive
use and development and other residential areas.

° To ensure residential development achieves design objectives specified in a schedule to this
zone.

o To allow educational, recreational, religious, community and a limited range of other
non-residential uses to serve local community needs in appropriate locations.

Pursuant to Clause 32.07-2 (RGZ1), a permit is required to use the land for a rooming house.

Overlay Controls

No overlays affect the subject site or surrounding area.

Planning Policy Framework

The Planning Policy Framework provides a context for spatial planning and decision making by
planning and responsible authorities. The Planning Policy Framework is dynamic and will be built
upon as planning policy is developed and refined, and changed as the needs of the community
change.

The Planning Policy Framework seeks to ensure that the objectives of planning in Victoria (as set
out in section 4 of the Act) are fostered through appropriate land use and development planning
policies and practices that integrate relevant environmental, social and economic factors in the
interests of net community benefit and sustainable development. The following Clauses are of
relevance to this application:

Settlement (Clause 11.01-1R)

Settlement is outlined at Clause 11.01-1R. Objectives of this Clause include:

° To promote the sustainable growth of development of Victoria and deliver choice and opportunity
for all Victorians through a network of settlements.

Activity Centres (Clause 11.03-1R)

Activity centres is outlined at Clause 11.03-1R. Objectives of this Clause include:

° To encourage the concertation of major retail, residential, commercial, administrative,
entertainment and cultural developments into activity centres that are highly accessible to the
community.

Integrated Housing (Clause 16.01-1S)

Integrated housing is outlined at Clause 16.01-1S. Objectives of this Clause include:

° To promote a housing market that meets community needs.
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Housing Diversity (Clause 16.01-3S)

Housing diversity is outlined at Clause 16.01-3S. Objectives of this Clause include:
° To provide for a range of housing types to meet diverse needs.

Land Use and Transport Planning (Clause 18.01-1S)

Land use and transport planning is outlined at Clause 18.01-1S. Objectives of this Clause include:
° To create a safe and sustainable transport system by integrating land use and transport.

Local Planning Policy Framework

The Local Planning Policy Framework (LPPF) includes the Municipal Strategic Statement (MSS) and
Local Policies.

The MSS is contained within Clause 21 of the Scheme. The MSS at Clause 21.02 focuses on the
Municipal Profile, within which the following is noted:

° There is considerable diversity within Greater Dandenong’s housing stock. Most housing stock
is between 30 to 50 years old, though there are some areas with dwellings in excess of 100
years old. Areas of newer housing are located in the north-east and central southern areas, with
in-fill development occurring across the municipality (Clause 21.02-3).

e  Higher density housing is generally located in proximity to railway stations and major shopping
centres, in particular in central Dandenong (Clause 21.02-3).

° Whilst there is a clear pre-dominance of single detached dwellings, there are a range of other
types of dwellings including dual occupancies, villa-units, town houses and apartments. The
highest concentration of older villa units and apartments and more recent multi-unit
redevelopments have occurred around central Dandenong, Springvale and Noble Park activity
centres (Clause 21.02-4).

° With diverse cultural groups that call Greater Dandenong home, there are certain distinct precincts
that are emerging that have their own character. Their built form is characterised by buildings
with flat unarticulated facades, prominent balconies, limited frontage/side setbacks, limited or
no landscaping (Clause 21.02-4).

A Vision for Greater Dandenong is outlined at Clause 21.03. The vision is that Greater Dandenong
will be a municipality where housing diversity and choice is promoted in its various attractive
neighbourhoods.

The objectives and strategies of the MSS are under four (4) main themes including: land use; built
form; open space and natural environment; and, infrastructure and transportation (considered
individually under Clauses 21.04 to 21.07).
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Land Use (Clause 21.04)

Land use is outlined at Clause 21.04. Relevant objectives of this Clause pertaining to housing and
community include:

° To encourage and facilitate a wide range of housing types and styles which increase diversity
and cater for the changing needs of households.

° To accommodate an increase in resident population of 15000 in central Dandenong and its
periphery by the year 2015.

° To optimise residential consolidation around activity centres/transport nodes, and more efficient
use of existing urban infrastructure.

° To protect the amenity of residential areas adjacent to particular uses and protect sensitive
particular uses from residential development.

° To improve access to affordable and appropriate housing.

Built Form (Clause 21.05)

Built form is outlined at Clause 21.05. Relevant objectives of this Clause include:

° To facilitate high quality building design and architecture.

° To facilitate high quality development, which has regard for the surrounding environment and
built form.

Infrastructure and Transportation (Clause 21.07)

Infrastructure and transportation is outlined at Clause 21.07. Objectives of this Clause include:

° To increase the use of public transport.

° To integrate transport and land use.

e  To promote and facilitate walking and cycling.

° To promote significant modal shift away from the car.

° To protect residential and other sensitive uses from adverse impacts of vehicular traffic.

Particular Provisions

Car Parking (Clause 52.06)

The purposes of this provision, Clause 52.06, are:

° To ensure that car parking is provided in accordance with the State Planning Policy Framework
and Local Planning Policy Framework.

° To ensure the provision of an appropriate number of car parking spaces having regard to the
demand likely to be generated, the activities on the land and the nature of the locality.

° To support sustainable transport alternatives to the motor car.

° To promote the efficient use of car parking spaces through the consolidation of car parking
facilities.

20252



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application PLN19/0061)
(Cont.)

e To ensure that car parking does not adversely affect the amenity of the locality.

° To ensure that the design and location of car parking is of a high standard, creates a safe
environment for users and enables easy and efficient use.

Clause 52.06-2 notes that a new use must not commence or the floor area of an existing use must
not be increased until the required car spaces have been provided on the land.

The required spaces are identified in the table to Clause 52.06-5. Clause 52.06-3 further notes that
a permit may be granted to reduce or waive the number of car spaces required by the table.

The table at Clause 52.06-5 notes that a rooming house requires one (1) car parking spaces to each
four (4) bedrooms.

Car parking is to be designed and constructed in accordance with the requirements of Clause 52.06-9
of the Scheme.

Rooming House (Clause 52.23)

The purposes of this provision, Clause 52.23, is:
° To facilitate the establishment of domestic-scale rooming houses.

Clause 52.23 provides a number of use and buildings and works exemptions for rooming houses. As
the existing building will propose more than 9 bedrooms on the site, the use exemption does not
apply and a permit is required for the use of land for a rooming house.

As the use is proposed within an existing building, there are no buildings and works proposed as part
of this application.

General Provisions

Clause 65 — Decision Guidelines needs to be considered, as is the case with all applications. For
this application the requirements of Clause 65.01 for the approval of an application or plan is of
relevance. This Clause outlines the requirements that the responsible authority must consider when
determining the application.

Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives, Strategies and Plans

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. In accordance with the commitment in Council’'s Annual Plan, all applications are
considered on their merits.

Diversity (Access & Equity)

It is not considered that the proposal raises any diversity issues affecting the planning assessment
of this application.
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Community Safety

It is considered that there would be no adverse community safety implications in permitting the
proposal.

Safe Design Guidelines

Consideration of the relevant requirements of these Guidelines has been undertaken within the
Assessment of this application.

Referrals

The application was not required to be referred to any external referral authorities pursuant to Section
55 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

Internal

The application was internally referred with the following comments relevant:

Internal Department Comments

Transport Planning No objection

Waste and Cleansing Amended WMP required
Advertising

The application has been advertised pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987, by:

e  Sending notices to the owners and occupiers of adjoining land.
e Placing a sign on the site facing Clow Street.

The notification has been carried out correctly and a statutory declaration was received on 27/05/2019.
Council has received three (3) Objectors1objections to date.
Consultation

A consultative meeting was held on ConsultDate13/06/2019 with objectors and Council representatives
in attendance. Whilst the issues were discussed at length there was no resolution and the objections
stand as received.
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Summary of Grounds of Submissions/Objections
The objections are summarised below (bold), followed by the Town Planner’s Response (in italics).
Anti-social behaviour

Concerns have been raised regarding anti-social behaviour of future occupants. The behaviour of
the future occupants of the building is not a planning consideration. The proposed use is a residential
use and is located within a residential area.

Noise and offsite amenity impacts

Concerns have been raised regarding offsite amenity impacts from noise, cigarette smoke, light,
music vibration and the like. Conditions can be imposed on any permit issued to manage such offsite
impacts, with the addition of an endorsed management plan.

Car parking and congestion

Concerns have been raised regarding the lack of on-site car parking. The proposal complies with the
provisions of Clause 52.06-5 with two (2) car parking spaces provided for the rooming house.

Assessment
Use

This application is for the use and development of part of the land for a rooming house. The use
component of this application is triggered by the internal rearrangement of the existing storage room
to introduce a tenth bedroom. It is important to note that the rooming house use already exists on
site, however a planning permit was not required for this given the current operation has no more
than nine (9) bedrooms in each building. As such, the key consideration for this proposal is the
expansion of the use to include an additional bedroom. If this planning permit application were to be
refused, it would not result in the closure of the rooming house use, and rather only prevent the
introduction of the tenth bedroom into this building.

The addition of one (1) bedroom in this existing rooming house is likely to have minimal impact on
the amenity of the surrounding area and is not considered to result in the use becoming unacceptable
in the surrounding context, given the relatively minor nature of this.

In terms of the broader existing use, the use has been in operation on this site since July 2017, with
no registered complaints received in relation to it. The subject site is located within an established
residential area and is well suited for the rooming house use given that the site is located on the
peripheries of Central Dandenong and within easy walking distance of many community facilities and
public transport options, as required by the objective of Clause 16.01-2S - Location of residential
development.
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The proposal also seeks to reduce pressure on the urban fringe by providing new housing availabilities
and opportunities within an established urban area with good access to services, jobs and transport,
thereby ensuring that the housing required for the growing population is facilitated in accordance with
the strategies of Clause 16.01-2S - Location of residential development. The proposal also provides
housing choice and affordable options that meet the needs of the community, in accordance with
Clause 16.01-3S - Housing diversity and Clause 16.01-4S - Housing affordability.

In addition, the proposal meets the objectives and strategies in Clause 21.04 Land Use in encouraging
a mix of housing type and style, improving access to affordable and appropriate housing and improving
access and use of a major activity centre.

The use also plays an important role in assisting with the homelessness issue across the municipality
and wider region. Homelessness is a significant social issue, and it is vital that uses such as that
proposed are supported in appropriate locations to provide housing opportunities and reduce
homelessness.

With regard to objectors concerns, any permit granted will have appropriate planning permit conditions
to limit offsite amenity impacts, with ongoing management of the use to be in accordance with the
management plan submitted as part of the application.

A waste management plan has been submitted with the application and deemed adequate with
respect to waste rates, number of bins and bin location. The rates have been estimated in accordance
with Sustainability Victoria guidelines based on City of Melbourne — Guidelines for preparing a waste
management plan, 2015 which is considered best practice, however Council’s Waste and Cleansing
department have recommended greater bin sizes as permit conditions (Condition 2).

Whilst the bins will be located within the site frontage, this is considered to be an acceptable location
as there is no access between the rear yard and the garage. A permit condition will require the bins
to be shown within the frontage and appropriately screened (Condition 1.1). Kerbside collection is
considered to be adequate and approved by Council’'s Waste and Cleansing department subject to
the conditions discussed above.

Landscaping treatment of the building remains enforceable under the previous Planning Permit
PLN17/0619, with canopy planting required within the rear secluded private open space areas to
improve visual screening of works.

Development

The development works proposed is simply the removal and replacement of the external storage
room (proposed bedroom 10) door with additional brick work. This is to improve privacy to the proposed
bedroom 10 and reduce any internal amenity impacts from the shared areas. The works will not be
visible from the streetscape and will provide a consistent materiality across the site and as such is
considered to have minimum impact.
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Car parking

Pursuant to the table at Clause 52.06-5, a rooming house requires one (1) car parking spaces to
each four (4) bedrooms. As the proposal has a total of ten (10) bedrooms, two (2) car parking spaces
are required and two (2) car parking spaces have been provided within a double garage.

The application was referred to Council’s Transport Planning department who have not raised concern
with the application. All Clause 52.06-9 design standards for accessway and parking space designs
have been assessed under the previous Planning Permit PLN17/0619 and not of relevance to this
application.

Conclusion

The application has been assessed against the relevant requirements of the Greater Dandenong
Planning Scheme and is considered appropriate to the site in which it is located.

Recommendation

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as 77 Clow Street DANDENONG VIC 3175 (Lot 1 TP 090445P) (Part) for
the use of part of the land for a rooming house in accordance with the plans submitted with
the application subject to the following conditions:

1. Before the use starts, amended plans to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority
must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The amended
plans must be drawn to scale with dimensions. The amended plans must be generally
in accordance with the plans submitted and assessed with the application but
modified to show:

1.1. Rubbish and recycling bins relocated to the site frontage in accordance
with the approved Waste Management Plan. Bin areas must be appropriately
screened with a minimum 1.6 metre high enclosing fence to match the
existing front fence of the site.

When approved, these plans will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

2. Before the approved use is occupied, a Waste Management Plan (WMP) to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted to an approved by the
Responsible Authority. The WMP must include details of the collection and disposal
of waste and recyclables associated with the land to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority. The WMP must provide for the following:

21. Putrescible (red) bins to be increased in volume to 240L with three (3) bins
for building 1 and two (2) bins for building 2.

2.2. Recycling (yellow) bins to have three (3) bins for building 1 and two (2) bins
for building 2.
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When approved, the WMP will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

3. The provisions, requirements and recommendations of the endorsed WMP must be
implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority

4. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the use as shown
on the endorsed plans must not be altered without the written consent of the
Responsible Authority

5. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the approved
use must not commence until all conditions of this permit have been complied with.

6. Before the approved use commences, the building must be provided with external
lighting capable of illuminating access to the garage and pedestrian walkway.
Lighting must be located, directed and shielded to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority so as to prevent any adverse effect outside the land

7. The number of persons residing within the building must not exceed ten (10) persons,
except with the further written consent of the Responsible Authority.

8. Car spaces must not be used for any other purpose other than the parking of vehicles
in association with residents of and visitors to the land, to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority. Cars must not be parked on the land other than in one of
the car spaces shown on the endorsed plans.

9. The use must operate in accordance with the endorsed management plan, except
with the further written consent of the Responsible Authority.

10. The amenity of the area must not be detrimentally affected by the use of land ,
including through the:

10.1. Appearance of any building, works or materials.

10.2. Emission of noise, artificial light, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, dust, waste
water, waste products.

10.3.  Adverse behaviour of residents to or from the land, or
10.4. In any other way.
1. This permit will expire if one of the following circumstances applies:
11. The use does not start within two (2) years of the date of this permit, or
11.2. The use is discontinued for a period of two (2) years.

The Responsible Authority may extend the periods referred to if a request is made
in writing before the permit expires or within six (6) months afterwards.
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Notes:

A Building Approval may be required prior to the commencement of the approved
use. This planning permit does not constitute any building approval
Prior to the commencement of the use, the building must comply with the Building
Regulations to enable use as a ‘rooming house’, Public Health and Wellbeing
Regulations 2009 and be registered as a ‘rooming house’ by the Responsible
Authority.
A licence is required prior to the commencement of the approved use.
The operator must comply with minimum standards set out in the Residential
Tenancies (Rooming House Standards) Regulations 2012.

MINUTE 1168

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as 77 Clow Street DANDENONG VIC 3175 (Lot 1 TP 090445P) (Part) for
the use of part of the land for a rooming house in accordance with the plans submitted with
the application subject to the following conditions:

1. Before the use starts, amended plans to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority
must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The amended
plans must be drawn to scale with dimensions. The amended plans must be generally
in accordance with the plans submitted and assessed with the application but
modified to show:

1.1. Rubbish and recycling bins relocated to the site frontage in accordance
with the approved Waste Management Plan. Bin areas must be appropriately
screened with a minimum 1.6 metre high enclosing fence to match the
existing front fence of the site.

When approved, these plans will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

2. Before the approved use is occupied, a Waste Management Plan (WMP) to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted to an approved by the
Responsible Authority. The WMP must include details of the collection and disposal
of waste and recyclables associated with the land to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority. The WMP must provide for the following:

21. Putrescible (red) bins to be increased in volume to 240L with three (3) bins
for building 1 and two (2) bins for building 2.
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2.2, Recycling (yellow) bins to have three (3) bins for building 1 and two (2) bins
for building 2.

When approved, the WMP will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

3. The provisions, requirements and recommendations of the endorsed WMP must be
implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority

4. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the use as shown
on the endorsed plans must not be altered without the written consent of the
Responsible Authority

5. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the approved
use must not commence until all conditions of this permit have been complied with.

6. Before the approved use commences, the building must be provided with external
lighting capable of illuminating access to the garage and pedestrian walkway.
Lighting must be located, directed and shielded to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority so as to prevent any adverse effect outside the land

7. The number of persons residing within the building must not exceed ten (10) persons,
except with the further written consent of the Responsible Authority.

8. Car spaces must not be used for any other purpose other than the parking of vehicles
in association with residents of and visitors to the land, to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority. Cars must not be parked on the land other than in one of
the car spaces shown on the endorsed plans.

9. The use must operate in accordance with the endorsed management plan, except
with the further written consent of the Responsible Authority.

10. The amenity of the area must not be detrimentally affected by the use of land ,
including through the:

10.1. Appearance of any building, works or materials.

10.2. Emission of noise, artificial light, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, dust, waste
water, waste products.

10.3. Adverse behaviour of residents to or from the land, or
10.4. In any other way.
1. This permit will expire if one of the following circumstances applies:
1.1. The use does not start within two (2) years of the date of this permit, or

11.2. The use is discontinued for a period of two (2) years.
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The Responsible Authority may extend the periods referred to if a request is made
in writing before the permit expires or within six (6) months afterwards.
Notes:

A Building Approval may be required prior to the commencement of the approved
use. This planning permit does not constitute any building approval

Prior to the commencement of the use, the building must comply with the Building
Regulations to enable use as a ‘rooming house’, Public Health and Wellbeing
Regulations 2009 and be registered as a ‘rooming house’ by the Responsible
Authority.

A licence is required prior to the commencement of the approved use.

The operator must comply with minimum standards set out in the Residential
Tenancies (Rooming House Standards) Regulations 2012.

CARRIED
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STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 77 CLOW STREET, DANDENONG
(PLANNING APPLICATION PLN19/0061)

ATTACHMENT 1

SUBMITTED PLANS

PAGES 4 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application PLN19/0061)
(Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 77 CLOW STREET, DANDENONG
(PLANNING APPLICATION PLN19/0061)

ATTACHMENT 2

MANAGEMENT PLAN

PAGES 3 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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(Cont.)

This decument has been copied and made
available for the purpose of the planning process
as set out in the Planning and Environment Act 1987
The information must not be used for any other
purpose, By taking a copy of this documeant
you acknowledge and agree that you wall only
use the decument for the purpose specified above
and that any dissemination, distribution or copying
of this document is strictly prohibited.

House Rules applied for a rooming house

- Keep common areas clean & clear at all times.

- Any spills to be deaned up immediately/ or contack
requirements.

- All rubbish to be disposed of as soon as possible, or management will dispose.

- Any faults/ damage to be reported to the site manager as soon as possible.

- Keep commaon room windows closed if the area is being unoccupied

- Keep kitchen area clean at all times to aveid any potential future hazards.

- Turn off all ovens, stoves to avoid any potential hazards as soon as operation has been
completed.

- Wipe all dirty/ muddy feet/ shoes at the door matt to keep the common area as clean as
possible.

- NOQ Smoking in any of the buildings.

- Clothes are to be immediately taken out of the washing machine/ laundry area as soon as
washing is complete to avoid any issues with occupants of the building.

- Clothes are to be immediately taken off the clothes lines as soon as the clothing is dry to
avoid any issues with occupants of the building.

- Fridge is to be maintained at a reasonable level, any old/ smelly items will be removed by
management.

- Front Entry door is to be locked at all times unless accupants are entering and existing the
building.

- Anything left in the common area by occupants will be removed by management to avoid
any hazard in the future.

Nominated use of outdoor areas

The outdoor areas for each unit will be used as a commaon area for all occupants of the building
where there is potential to take advantage of the areas and enjoy the daylight which is provided.

Procedure for emergency calls to owner's/ site managers to adjoining
neighbours

We will provide all adjoining neighbours with a card which will have the contact details of the site
manager detailed, which they can call at any time for any issues which may arise in the future. It is

also possible a sign to be placed to the front of Unit 1 or 2 to detzil any emergency contact details
which may be required in case of an emergency.

Contact Person of the person responsible for the management of the site.

At the stage, the owner of the site Stefan Dimitrovici of 12 Frangipani Close, Endeavour Hills will be
responsible for any on site management. His mobile number is 0412 878 999.

Stefan will be organised a real estate agent company to be responsible for the management of the
site once the construction is complete.
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This document has been copied and made
available for the purpose of the planning process
as set out in the Planning and Environment Act 1987
The information must not be used for any other
purpose, By taking a copy of this documeant
Management of the premises, internal & exte I gﬁﬁfﬂﬁ%ﬂ%gﬁ mﬁfot:: L;::_iméz?gm

houses, waste management arrangements, theawaifagemedistofionisitalieaibution or copying
parking and the huilding & Iandscaping maint ngnpnof this document is strictly prohibited.

The issues which have been raised for the above will all be managed by a real estate company, who
do this on a regular basis. Any on site issues, and management will be thoroughly controlled by the
firm and the owner Stefan will be overlooking the site in case the standard of the maintenance is not
appropriate.

Proposed maximum numbers of residents

A total of 10 occupants will be occupying the rooming house.
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2.2.1 Town Planning Application - No. 77 Clow Street, Dandenong (Planning Application PLN19/0061)
(Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 77 CLOW STREET, DANDENONG
(PLANNING APPLICATION PLN19/0061)

ATTACHMENT 3

LOCATION OF OBJECTORS

PAGES 2 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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(Cont.)

Subject site

Location of objectors
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2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South
(Planning Application No. PLN16/0380.01)

File 1d: 466530
Responsible Officer: Director City Planning, Design and Amenity
Attachments: Submitted Plans

Location of Objections
Existing permit

Survey Plan
Application Summary
Applicant: Maple Media
Proposal: Amendment to Planning Permit PLN16/0380 to amend the
previously endorsed plans (relocation of sign)
Zone: Industrial 1 Zone
Overlay: No overlays applicable
Ward: Red Gum

This application was originally brought before the Council because it had received two (2) objections
during the advertising process. At the Council meeting of 26 November 2018, a decision was made
to defer the application until a later date to confirm that the sign did not overhang the neighbouring
buildings.

This application is therefore brought again before the Council as a result of the previous deferment,
with a decision now to be made based on new information, being a site survey submitted by the
applicant.

Planning Permit PLN16/0380 was issued by order of the VCAT, with a permit granted on 28/07/2017
for the display of a flood lit, major promotional sky sign. Plans were subsequently endorsed to the
permit on the same date.

The applicant has applied for an amendment to Planning Permit PLN16/0380 under Section 72 of
the Planning and Environment Act 1987. Pursuant to Section 72(1) a person who is entitled to use
or develop land in accordance with a permit may apply to the responsible authority for an amendment
to the permit.

Pursuant to Section 73(1) and (1)(a)an amendment to the permit is treated as if the application were
an application for a permit. As such, all third party rights apply.
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Specifically, the amendment application seeks the following:

e  The relocation of the floodlit major promotional sky sign approximately 30m to the east of the
original location.

Objectors Summary

The application was advertised to the surrounding area through the mailing of notices to adjoining
and surrounding owners and occupiers. Two (2) objections were received to the application. Issues
raised generally relate to matters of:

e  Overshadowing of solar panels;
e  Weather damage; and
e  Unstable footings.

Assessment Summary

The key issue in relation to this application is the retrospective relocation of the major promotional
sky sign. The sign was erroneously erected approximately 30m to the east of the original permitted
location.

This assessment relates to the appropriateness of the relocation and whether compliance with the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme has been achieved. The sign was originally approved by order
of the Tribunal, stating in support of the proposal at Paragraph 4 that:

° “The proposal is generally consistent with the policy directions for the subject site;

° The proposed impact of the sign will be acceptable, particularly as | have required the removal
of the three existing signage structures; and

° Given VicRoads’ consent to the proposal, the sign’s limited illumination and its position on the
site, | am satisfied that the proposal is unlikely to conflict with the existing road signage and
generate unacceptable road safety concerns.”

Whilst the sign was constructed in the incorrect location, there has been no alteration to the signage
design or type. Ultimately, the relocation does not represent a drastic change to the previous approval,
and the proposal maintains consistency with the relevant provisions of the Greater Dandenong
Planning Scheme, and the previous VCAT decision.

The objectors concerns have been considered as part of the application and assessed further below.
Recommendation Summary

As assessed, the proposal is consistent with and appropriately responds to the provisions of the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme. The proposal appropriately responds to strategic policy for
commercial/industrial land uses with this report recommending that the application be supported, and
that a Notice of Decision (which provides appeal rights to objectors) to Grant an Amended Permit
be issued containing the conditions as set out in the recommendation.
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2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South (Planning
Application No. PLN16/0380.01) (Cont.)

Subject Site and Surrounds
Subject Site

e The subject site is located at the south east corner of the intersection at Frankston-Dandenong
Road and the Dandenong Bypass. It is known as the ‘Home Quarter Dandenong’ and contains
a number of large homemaker style stores, and a number of signs including three 9 metre high
billboard signs, a 14 metre pylon sign as well as other business identification signage. There
are three empty structures for signage along the Dandenong Bypass frontage of the site.

Surrounding Area

e  The surrounding area is located within the Industrial 1 Zone and characteristic by a mixture of
industrial land uses as well as restricted retail land uses primarily along Frankston-Dandenong
Road.

e The site has access to a number of major arterial roads, with direct links to the EastLink Freeway,
South Gippsland Highway and the Princes Highway.

Locality Plan

o
ﬂ::’
o

2=

25 W12

Glomar ¢y

* Proposed sign location

* Previously approved
sign location
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2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South (Planning
Application No. PLN16/0380.01) (Cont.)

Background
Previous Applications

A search of Council records revealed that Council has previously considered the following planning
applications for the site:

e  PLN12/0336: Planning permit approved on 10/01/2014 for the creation of an easement.

e  PLN13/0238: Planning permit approved on 10/01/2014 for the subdivision of land into two (2)
lots.

e PLN15/0687 (and .O1iteration): Amended planning permit approved on 27/06/2018 for signage.

e  PLN16/0380: Planning permit approved by VCAT on 28/07/2017 for the display of a flood lit,
major promotional sky sign.

Looking specifically at the original signage application PLN16/0380, Council originally sought
the refusal of the application on grounds of urban design, visual amenity impacts and visual
clutter and failing to comply with policy provisions.

The applicant initiated VCAT proceedings, with an initiating order received on 18/01/2017, and
a hearing date set for 28/06/2017. As noted above, the Tribunal, stated in support of the proposal
at Paragraph 4 that:

° “The proposal is generally consistent with the policy directions for the subject site;

° The proposed impact of the sign will be acceptable, particularly as | have required the removal
of the three existing signage structures; and

° Given VicRoads’ consent to the proposal, the sign’s limited illumination and its position on the
site, | am satisfied that the proposal is unlikely to conflict with the existing road signage and
generate unacceptable road safety concerns.”

e  The applicant then sought to apply under ‘secondary consent’ to amend the location of the sign
when it was established that it was constructed in the incorrect location. Officers did not support
the submission of an application under ‘secondary consent’ as the proposal was deemed to be
of ‘significant consequence’ to warrant a formal planning permit amendment process. The
applicant subsequently submitted the application subject of this report.

Proposal

The application proposes to Amend Planning Permit PLN17/0106 under Section 72 of the Planning
and Environment Act 1987, by way of the following:

Amendment to Endorsed Plans

The applicant seeks to amend the previously endorsed plans to relocate the floodlit major promotional
sky sign approximately 30m to the east of the approved location. No reason as to why the sign was
repositioned incorrectly has been provided by the applicant.
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The relocation also varies the previously approved minimum setback of 4.5m (which was to 7/28
Johnston Court), with new minimum setbacks to the sites southern boundary. These are nominated
below (based on the submitted Survey Plan):

e  Western panel:

o  Top of sign: Located on the title boundary
o  Bottom of sign: Setback 0.03m from the title boundary

° Eastern panel:

o  Top of sign: Setback 0.05m from the title boundary
o  Bottom of sign: Setback 0.09m from the title boundary.

It is important to note that there is a small common property area maintained between the buildings
on Plan of Subdivision 529916W and the respective northern boundary. This is clearly demonstrated
below on within the Plan of Subdivision with a setback of 0.08m maintained between the building and
the northern boundary:

PTIO 272 5
F8m?

In addition to the above, the sign will maintain its approved height and width, with the following
dimensions outlined:

e Pole height: 15.65m
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e  Sign face: 18.99m x 4.75m
e  Width between sign boards: 10m and 13.5m with floodlights included

Based on the survey plan submitted with the application under Attachment 1 and 4 it is noted that
the sign is not located over the airspace of any other private property boundary.

A copy of the submitted plans is included as Attachment 1 and 4.
Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
No financial resources are impacted by this report.
Planning Scheme and Policy Frameworks

The applicant has applied for an amendment to Planning Permit PLN17/0106 under Section 72 of
the Planning and Environment Act 1987. Pursuant to Section 72(1) a person who is entitled to use
or develop land in accordance with a permit may apply to the responsible authority for an amendment
to the permit.

The relevant controls and policies are as follows:
Zoning Controls
Industrial 1 Zone

The subject site is located within the Industrial 1 Zone, as is the surrounding area. Pursuant to Clause
33.01-5, advertising requirements are set out in Clause 52.05 and described as Category 2 — Office
and industrial (low limitation).

Overlay Controls
Special Building Overlay

The subject site is affected by the Special Building Overlay. However, the specific location of the sign
is outside of the Special Building Overlay area and as such no further consideration necessary.

Planning Policy Framework
Clause 15.01-1S Urban design

Objective:

° To create urban environments that are safe, healthy, functional and enjoyable and that contribute
to a sense of place and cultural identity.
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Strategies:

e  Ensure that development, including signs, minimises detrimental impacts on amenity, on the
natural and built environment and on the safety and efficiency of roads.

Local Planning Policy Framework

Clause 21.05-1 Urban design, character, streetscapes and landscapes
Objective:

° To ensure a co-ordinated approach to sign design and placements, in commercial, industrial,
residential areas and along road corridors.

Strategies

e  Ensure that the design and placement of new signs considers the cumulative impact of existing
signs on the host building, adjoining buildings and the streetscape.

e  Encourage signs in appropriate areas to include English and one other language reflecting the
cultural aspect of the locality.

e  Ensure major promotion and sky signs along road corridors are appropriately spaced so as not
to dominate the overall setting and to minimise impact on viewing corridors/major view lines.

e  Ensure signs in residential areas do not dominate the building, the site and the streetscape.
Clause 22.11 Advertising Signs
Objectives:

° To ensure that signs are designed, positions and displayed in an appropriate and attractive
manner.

° To encourage signs that make a positive contribution to both the day and night time character
of activity centres.

° To improve the appearance of identified gateway locations across the municipality through the
effective, sensitive display of signs and the avoidance of proliferation of signs and visual clutter.

Clause 22.11-3.5 Promotion and major promotion signs within 60m of arterial roads and
freeways

There are commercial pressures for the erection of major promotion signs along arterial roads,
including freeways, which criss-cross the City of Greater Dandenong. These arterial roads in many
instances provide for many people the first impression of the municipality. It is important that the
desire to take advantage of the increased viewing opportunities from these roads and gateway
locations is balanced with the need to ensure that there is in place clear guidance with regards to
sign location and the design elements that need to be incorporated signs.

° Strongly discourage promotion, major promotion and sky signs along freeways.
° The facade of a building can display either a business identification sign or a promotion sign.
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e  Signs including sky signs are located/sited in industrial/commercial zones only where it can be
demonstrated that signs are spaced at sufficient distance (minimum 1 kilometre spacing) to
ensure that they do not dominate the overall setting.

e  Discourage buntings.

e  Adhere to the Signage Guidelines contained within the City of Greater Dandenong Gateways
Strategy, December 2011.

Particular Provisions
Clause 52.05 Signs

The subject site is located within a Category 2 — Office and industrial area (low limitation) pursuant
to Clause 52.05-12. The purpose of Clause 52.05-12 is:

° To provide for adequate identification signs and signs that are appropriate to office and industrial
areas.

A permit is required under Clause 52.05-12 to display a flood lit major promotional sky sign.
General Provisions

Clause 65 — Decision Guidelines needs to be considered, as is the case with all applications. For this
application the requirements of Clause 65.01 for the approval of an application or plan is of relevance.
This Clause outlines the requirements that the responsible authority must consider when determining
the application.

Restrictive Covenants

A S173 agreement/covenant is registered on the title to this property. This restriction relates to the
management and maintenance of the turbine tower on the land. The proposal is not contrary to this
restriction.

Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives, Strategies and Plans

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. In accordance with the commitment in Council’s Annual Plan, all applications are
considered on their merits.

Diversity (Access & Equity)

It is not considered that the proposal raises any diversity issues affecting the planning assessment
of this application.

Community Safety

It is considered that there would be no adverse community safety implications in permitting the
proposal.
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Safe Design Guidelines

Consideration of the relevant requirements of these Guidelines has been undertaken within the
Assessment of this application.

Referrals
External

Pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987, the application was externally
referred to:

e VicRoads: No objection to grant of permit with conditions requested (same conditions as original
approval, which are already imposed to the permit)

Internal

The application was not required to be internally referred, however Council officers have received
verbal confirmation from the Building department indicating that structurally, there are no concerns
with the sign.

Advertising

The application has been advertised pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987, by:

e Sending notices to the owners and occupiers of adjoining land.

The notification has been carried out correctly.

Council has received (2) objections to date.

The location of the objectors is shown in Attachment 2.

Consultation

A consultation meeting was not required to be held.

Summary of Grounds of Objections

The objections are summarised below (bold), followed by the Town Planner’s Response (in italics).
e Overshadowing of solar panels

The objectors have raised concerns that the sign would overshadow the existing panels present at
5/28 Johnston Court and any future panels present at 7/28 Johnston Court. A review of the shadow
diagrams prepared identifies that no overshadowing would occur of the existing solar panels. When
assessing overshadowing impacts, Council officers must only rely on existing built structures —
including solar panels — and not what may potentially occur in the future.
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e  Weather damage

The objector has raised concerns that the during wet weather events, runoff from the sign is
constraining site services, and further damaging the soil integrity of the site and surrounds. Photographs
have been provided by the objector to demonstrate the extent of runoff affecting the property and
land below the sign. Council officers have reviewed the plans and find that a gutter system would be
appropriate to manage any potential runoff from the sign, with conditions of permit requiring the
provision of said system.

e Unstable footings

The objectors have raised concerns regarding the nearby soil integrity of the site and surrounds,
stating that the nearby earth is unstable and has been for a number of years. As a result, the
construction of the sign would further destabilise the earth, with potential for the sign to collapse. No
evidence has been provided to demonstrate this claim, and as such it remains unsubstantiated, noting
that Council’s Building Department have confirmed verbally that the sign is structurally acceptable.

The applicant has submitted a Certificate of Compliance, demonstrating that the sign structure complies
with the provisions of Building Act 1993, and the provisions of performance regulations P2.1 Vol 2 /
BP1.1 & BP1.2 of the National Construction Code 2016 and with the relevant Australian Standards.

It is also important to note that structural integrity is not a planning consideration, and rather a matter
to be considered under the Building Regulations, which is discussed above.

Assessment

The proposed amendments have been assessed against the relevant provisions of the Greater
Dandenong Planning Scheme, including the purpose and intent of the Industrial 1 Zone, the Planning
Policy Framework, Local Planning Policy Framework and the particular provisions for Signs.

Council officers find that the proposed amendment is acceptable and would not result in any further
impact to the amenity of adjoining or surrounding land. Council officers highlight that this amendment
only relates to the relocation of the sign, with the structure itself being previously approved by VCAT.
Council must consider previous VCAT decisions in determining relevant applications.

An assessment of the amendment to the endorsed plans is provided below:
Amendment to Endorsed Plans

The applicant seeks to amend the previously endorsed plans to relocate the floodlit major promotional
sky sign approximately 30m to the east of the approved location.
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As described above, the relocation also varies the previously approved minimum setback of 4.5m
(which was to 7/28 Johnston Court), with new minimum setbacks to the site’s southern boundary.
These are nominated below (based on the submitted Survey Plan):

e  Western panel:

o  Top of sign: Located on the title boundary
o  Bottom of sign: Setback 0.03m to the title boundary

° Eastern panel:

o  Top of sign: Setback 0.05m to the title boundary
o  Bottom of sign: Setback 0.09m to the title boundary.

It is important to note that pursuant to Maple Media Pty Ltd v Greater Dandenong CC [2017] VCAT
1135, member Paterson put forward three key issues in relation to the hearing:

e Is the proposal consistent with State and Local Planning Policy?
e  Will the proposal create an unacceptable visual impact in the public realm?
e  Will the proposal cause confusion with the existing road signage?

This assessment seeks to answer the same three questions with regard to the relocated sign. These
are nominated as follows:

e  Will the relocated sign maintain consistency with the provisions of the Greater Dandenong
Planning Scheme?

e  Will the relocated sign results in any further impacts to the site or surrounds?
e  Will the relocated sign result in any further road or traffic concerns?

Council officers have reviewed the relevant materials submitted and respond positively to these
questions.

Consistency with the provisions of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme

Firstly, it is important to note that a number of state wide Planning Scheme Amendments (PSAs)
have been implemented into the Planning Scheme since the lodgement of this amendment application.
These PSA's do notimpact the proposal, and rather they make administrative modifications to Clause
names and numbers. The policy remains substantially the same.

Member Paterson noted in the approval of the sign that “the proposal is generally consistent with the
policy directions for the subject site”. Expanding on this, the Member noted that there is State (now
just Planning Policy Framework or PPF) and Local policy support for major promotional signs in this
location, and relevantly, at Paragraphs 9 and 10:
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“The policy states that major promotion signs should only be located within the industrial and
commercial areas of the municipality and spaced at a distance of at least one kilometre to ensure
that they do not dominate the overall setting. The proposal to erect a major promotion sign on this
site is generally consistent with these policy directions as the site is located within an industrial
zone and there are no other major promotion signs within one kilometre of the site.

Whilst policy supports the placement of a major promotion sign in this location, care needs to be
taken to ensure that the design of the sign is an acceptable response to the public realm, particularly
as State and local planning policy seek to improve the overall image of the industrial area”.

In addition, the revised setback is considered to be adequate, given that it is not located over any
other private property. Whilst the proposed setbacks as demonstrated within the survey plan were
not considered by the Tribunal, the merits of the decision still apply, noting that the sign is located at
the rear of these properties to avoid any visual amenity impacts, and would not significantly alter the
way in which it is viewed upon the streetscape, thus avoiding any visual dominance.

Given that there has been no material change in policy within the PPF or LPPF, and the proposed
amendment is for a relocation of approximately 30m with a revised setback being on the boundary,
it is considered that the relocation of the sign still maintains benefit from the policy provisions, and
the amendment on policy grounds is recommended for support.

Amenity impacts to the site and surrounds

Member Paterson noted in the approval of the sign that “the proposed impact of the sign will be
acceptable, particularly as | have required the removal of the three existing signage structures”.
Council officers wish to note that the three existing signage structures being referred too were three
(3) v-frame panel signs, evenly spread across the Dandenong Bypass interface, affording a maximum
height of 9m. Member Paterson found that if the v-frame signs were to be used for advertising
purposes, the addition of the proposed sign would result in an excessive amount of advertising on
the land, resulting in visual clutter and as such should be removed.

Further expanding on the statement above, the Member noted that the sign is located in an area with
large industrial buildings and wide arterial roads. The Member found at Paragraph 13 that:

“The context of this site may accommodate a large major promotion sign without detracting from
the overall visual appearance of the industrial precinct”.

Given the existing three (3) v-frame panel signs have now been removed (at the direction of the
Tribunal), and the as constructed location of the sign maintains an almost like-for-like site context,
Council officers find that the impact to amenity is limited, and the sign would not affect the character
of the streetscape or any nearby built form.

However, objections have been raised (as discussed above) which relate to overshadowing of solar
panels on the building at 5/28 Johnston Court. This is a matter relating to amenity impacts of energy
efficiency.
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Whilst these concerns have been raised, a review of the shadow diagrams demonstrates that the
extent of shadowing of the sign on the building is minimal and does not impact any solar panels
attached to the building. All solar panels have been identified as being located to the front section of
the roof of the building.

Furthermore, concerns raised regarding stormwater runoff impacts are considered to be legitimate
amenity impacts due to the relocation of the sign and the position of the sign with respect to the
abutting title boundary. If the sign was correctly setback and located in its original position it is likely
that runoff would not be problematic and result in an extra burden on the abutting buildings drainage
and stormwater treatment infrastructure.

During a significant weather event, stormwater runoff from the sign is forced onto the building’s roof
and has the potential to impact on the drainage infrastructure. In addition, the increased volume from
the sign diverts runoff into the ground, which has been described by objectors as being in poor
condition. There is a level of uncertainty regarding the increased runoff from the site and the potential
long-term effects it may have on the abutting building. As such, conditions of permit will require the
provision of a guttering system to be applied to minimise any runoff onto the building.

The remaining claims with respect to footings concerns are outside of the scope of considerations
for a planning application.

It is considered that the relocation of the sign still maintains benefit from site context, and the
amendment on amenity grounds is recommended for support.

Road and traffic concerns

The original application and this amendment application were both referred to VicRoads pursuant to
Section 52 of the Act for comment only. In each instance, VicRoads did not object to the proposal
subject to the same standard conditions. Member Paterson noted in the approval at Paragraph 21
that “whilst it is an extremely large sign, | am satisfied it should not unreasonably distract motorists”

Whilst the sign has been relocated approximately 30m to the west, the context remains almost
like-for-like when considering its proximity to the Dandenong Bypass and nearby VicRoads directional
signage.

With appropriate permit conditions to ensure that signage does not dazzle or distract drivers due to
its colouring and to maintain a luminance no greater than 0.25 cd/m?,Council officers are comfortable
that the sign will not impact road safety.

Conclusion

As discussed within the Assessment section of this report, the amendment seeks to amend the
previously endorsed plans, with no further changes required. Overall Council officers find that the
proposal complies with the relevant provisions of the Planning Scheme with the following
recommendations outlined below.
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Recommendation

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as1/55-67 Frankston — Dandenong Road, DANDENONG SOUTH the
display of a flood lit, major promotional sky sign in accordance with the endorsed plans in
accordance with the plans submitted with the application subject to the following conditions:

1.

Within one (1) month of the date of the amended permit, amended plans to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted to and approved by
the Responsible Authority. The amended plans must be drawn to scale with
dimensions. The amended plans must be generally in accordance with the plans
submitted and assessed with the application but modified to show:

(a) A guttering system located to the bottom railing of the signage structure
on each panel ensuring runoff is diverted away from the southern boundary.

(b) Amended site plan to accord with land survey plan dated 27 April 2019.
All to the satisfaction of the Responsibility Authority.

Within two (2) months of the date of the issue of the amended endorsed plans, the
guttering system as required by condition 1(a) must be fully installed to the
satisfaction of the responsible authority.

The location, type and dimensions of the sign, including the words, colours and
supporting structure shown on the endorsed plan/s must not be altered without the
consent of the responsible authority.

Prior to the erection and display of the major promotion sign, the three existing
signage structures facing the Dandenong Bypass must be removed to the satisfaction
of the responsible authority.

Prior to the erection and display of the major promotion sign planning permit
PLN10/0486 issued by the responsible authority on 17 May 2011 must be amended
to remove reference to the three existing signage structures.

The signage must not:
(a) Dazzle or distract drivers due to its colouring.

(b) Be able to be mistaken for a traffic signal because it has, for example similar
colours, red circles, octagons, crosses or triangles.

(c) Be able to be mistaken as an instruction to drivers.

The approved sign must not be animated in part or whole and flashing, intermittent
or moving light/s must not be displayed.
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8. The intensity of the light in the signage must be limited so as not to cause glare or
distraction to motorists or other persons or loss of amenity in the surrounding area,
to the satisfaction of the responsible authority.

9. Bunting, streamers, flags, windvanes or similar material must not be displayed
except with the prior written consent of the responsible authority.

10 The sign and supporting structure must be constructed and maintained to the
satisfaction of the Responsible authority.

1. The luminance of the advertising sign must be such that it does not give a veiling
luminance to the driver of greater than 0.25 cd/m? throughout the driver’s approach
to the advertising sign.

12. This permit expires fifteen (15) years after the date it is issued.

Note
This Permit has been issued at the direction of the Victorian Civil and Administrative
Tribunal - Order dated 27 June 2017.

MINUTE 1169

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as1/55-67 Frankston — Dandenong Road, DANDENONG SOUTH the
display of a flood lit, major promotional sky sign in accordance with the endorsed plans in
accordance with the plans submitted with the application subject to the following conditions:

1.

Within one (1) month of the date of the amended permit, amended plans to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted to and approved by
the Responsible Authority. The amended plans must be drawn to scale with
dimensions. The amended plans must be generally in accordance with the plans
submitted and assessed with the application but modified to show:

(a) A guttering system located to the bottom railing of the signage structure
on each panel ensuring runoff is diverted away from the southern boundary.

(b) Amended site plan to accord with land survey plan dated 27 April 2019.
All to the satisfaction of the Responsibility Authority.

Within two (2) months of the date of the issue of the amended endorsed plans, the
guttering system as required by condition 1(a) must be fully installed to the
satisfaction of the responsible authority.
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10

11.

The location, type and dimensions of the sign, including the words, colours and
supporting structure shown on the endorsed plan/s must not be altered without the
consent of the responsible authority.

Prior to the erection and display of the major promotion sign, the three existing
signage structures facing the Dandenong Bypass must be removed to the satisfaction
of the responsible authority.

Prior to the erection and display of the major promotion sign planning permit
PLN10/0486 issued by the responsible authority on 17 May 2011 must be amended
to remove reference to the three existing signage structures.

The signage must not:
(a) Dazzle or distract drivers due to its colouring.

(b) Be able to be mistaken for a traffic signal because it has, for example similar
colours, red circles, octagons, crosses or triangles.

(c) Be able to be mistaken as an instruction to drivers.

The approved sign must not be animated in part or whole and flashing, intermittent
or moving light/s must not be displayed.

The intensity of the light in the signage must be limited so as not to cause glare or
distraction to motorists or other persons or loss of amenity in the surrounding area,
to the satisfaction of the responsible authority.

Bunting, streamers, flags, windvanes or similar material must not be displayed
except with the prior written consent of the responsible authority.

The sign and supporting structure must be constructed and maintained to the
satisfaction of the Responsible authority.

The luminance of the advertising sigh must be such that it does not give a veiling
luminance to the driver of greater than 0.25 cd/m? throughout the driver’s approach
to the advertising sign.

This permit expires fifteen (15) years after the date it is issued.

This Permit has been issued at the direction of the Victorian Civil and Administrative
Tribunal - Order dated 27 June 2017.

CARRIED
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SUBMITTED PLANS

PAGES 4 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.

20287



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South (Planning

Application No. PLN16/0380.01) (Cont.)

S0dL
“oN Supmerg

€V @ STMVA
aeas

(D1L¥LS) W SL% X W 66'8T
a5

sL1e
pnos Suouspueg
Py Suouspurq ueIS ULl £3-55/T

uopeEaoT udis san

000T 566 (£0)°L
DL 'ETOE Wi[Eg Py FSIOURUM 6T

eipapy a[de

eipaw d)dew

BOUNDARY

0051 TIVLAA NV1d
SHANLOMYLS DNILSIX

!

umr ppg°ol

i 005's

JOVWd NOIS qaxId
ONLLHOIT QI THeM 07

W gER'E T

(150d) W 9oL

AOVd NOIS aIX1d

W QI8

AMVANNO4

@ HNONAANVA NOLSHNVYU:
L9-SS/T

LSVH ONIMOOTHALLOHdSHdd

BIOT/60/0) ANssT o]

s1eq | smey sduery | QD | Qs

AJOLSIH NOISIATH

=== et
= ==t I e W
Jqoz.Jou

00ST:1 NVId NOLLYDO'T

LiN0J NOLSNHO[

FRANKSTON DANDENONG ROAD

T T~ SSVdAS snonzagyg

LSHM HLOOS ONDIOOT TVIHIY

Bt o AT ST

anoge poyveds esodind ey Joj Juswnsop ayj esn
Ajue s nok jewy saiBe pue aBpajmouae nod
uslnaop sy jo Adoa & Bupyjel Ag ‘ssodind

NOLLIVOOT. LTINS INTFIINO

20288



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South (Planning

Application No. PLN16/0380.01) (Cont.)

0L
‘o Surmelg

EVB0STT
aeag

SNOLLVATTE
apuL Sumeag

(D1I¥LS) W 5L X W 66°'8T
amis

SLTE
mnos Suouapueq
Py SuouspuE( UCISYURL] £9-55/T

wonEaoT ufis men

0007 se#6 (E0):L
14 ‘ETOE WiMIPS Py 3S10U0MUM 6.7

erpa o[dew

eipaw 3)dew

S10T/60/90 ANSSI 2

a1eq | amrey 28wenD | QU |Qlasy

AMOLSIH NOISIATH

_ 0STT NOLLVAATH LSIM

ww gooT

7w gpe

J0W4 N9IS DLIVLS ww 5L
—+
4 |
W 066'91 _Tmzi AdVANNog
i
T T T T T T T T T T T
T T T T T T 1 T T T T
U 000'0T
_— T T T e |
L e
L ]
SLHOTT QITHEM OTT
W Q5L ¥
J0Vd NDIS DILVLS
J0VE NOIS DLLVLS

ww goo‘otT

L

0ST*T NOLLVAYTH LSVd

SIHOTTQITHEMOZT X S

wwooe 7

w05 L%

— ONILIDIS ONOZd0T0D

J0V4 N9IS JLIV1S

INIT AVANNog —
i

i 066'81

NOLIVOOT.LIING INTIIND

“penqiyosd AoIs 1 jUBUN20P SIU) J0
Buiddon Jo uoinguisip ‘uoeUiwSsSIp Aue Jeu) pue
anoge payineds asodind auy Joj Juswinoop ayy asn

Auo [ nof Jew aa.5e pue sbpamouoe nok
JusLn20p siu) jo Aded e Buje) Ag “esodind

20289



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South (Planning

Application No. PLN16/0380.01) (Cont.)

£0dL
“oN Sursesq

aeag

AANLSNOS
L Sumeaq

(D1LVLS) W SL% X W 66'8T
|mg

SLTE
pnos Suouspueg
p¥ Suouspueq uOIS{URL] L9-55/T

wonEaa udis man

000T S6+6 (£0)°L
1A '£TOE WiM(EE Py SSIOUSIIM 64T

eipay a[dep

elpaw a)dew

B102/60/90] ANSST 2

ajeq | awrey 25wWew) | @YD | @lAeY

AHOLSIH NOISIATYH

YTAWH.LAAS TT WATT

TIIWHLAES 7T ‘Nd€E

YIGWALJAS TT WV6

EmE._._ouu siu) Jo Adoo e Bunyey Ag “ssodind

20290



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.2 Town Planning Application - No. 1/55-67 Frankston-Dandenong Road, Dandenong South (Planning
Application No. PLN16/0380.01) (Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 1/55-67 FRANKSTON-DANDENONG
ROAD (PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN16/0380.01)

ATTACHMENT 2

LOCATION OF OBJECTORS

PAGES 2 (including cover)
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Approximate location of

sign

Johnste!

Location of objectors

*
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PLAN N IN G Permit No.: PLN16/0380

Planning Scheme: Greater Dandenong

P E RMIT Planning Scheme

Responsible Authority: Greater Dandenong
City Council

ADDRESS OF THE LAND: 1/55-67 Frankston Dandenong Road DANDENONG
SOUTH VIC 31756
{Lot 1 PS 712733 Vol 11559 Fol 764)

THE PERMIT ALLOWS: The permit allows the display of a flood lit, major
promotional sky sign in accordance with the

endorsed plans

THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS APPLY TO THIS PERMIT:

1 The location, type and dimensions of the sign, including the words, colours and supporting
structure shown on the endorsed plan/s must not be altered without the consent of the
responsible authority,

2 Priar to the eraction and display of the major promotion sign, the three existing signage
structures facing the Dandenong Bypass must be removed to the satisfaction of the
responsible authority.

3 Prior to the erection and display of the major promotion sign planning permit PLN10/0486
issued by the responsible authority on 17 May 2011 must be amended to remove reference
to the three existing signage structures.

4 The signage must not:
{a) Dazzle or distract drivers due to its colouring.

(b) Be able to be mistaken for a traffic signal because it has, for example similar colours,
red circles, octagons, crosses or triangles

(c) Be able to be mistaken as an instruction to drivers.

&  The approved sign must not be animated in part or whole and flashing, intermittent or
moving light’s must not be displayed.

5 The intensity of the light in the signage must be limited so as not to cause glare or distraction
to motorists or other persons or loss of amenity in the surrounding area, to the satisfaction of
the responsible authority.

7 Bunting, streamers, flags, windvanes or similar material must not be displayed except with
the prior written consent of the responsible authority.

Continued...

Signature for and on behalf )
Date Issued_ 28 July 2017 of the Responsible Authority

Flanning and Enviranmeant Ragulations 2015 Form 4
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PLANMING PERMIT NO, PLN16/0380

Conditions Continued

B8 The sign and supporting structure must be constructed and maintained to the satisfaction of
the Responsible authority.

g The luminance of the advertising sign must be such that it does not give a vedling luminance
to the driver, of greater than 0.25 cd/m?, throughout the driver's approach to the advertising
sign

10 This parmit expires fifteen (15) years after the date it is issusd.

Note

This Permit has been issued at the direction of the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal -
Order dated 27 June 2017,

End of Permit Conditions
Please check with the responsible authority that this permit is the current permit and can be acted
upon.

Signature for and on behalf é‘L———‘_\

Date lssued_ 28 July 2017 of the Responsible Authority

Planning and Enviranment Regulations 2018 Form 4
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2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No.

PLN19/0030)

File Id:
Responsible Officer:

Attachments:

324440
Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Submitted Plans

Location of Objectors
Clause 22.09 Assessment
Clause 52.06 Assessment
Clause 55 Assessment

Application Summary

Applicant:
Proposal:
Zone:
Overlay:

Ward:

3D Design Group

Development of the land for three (3) double storey dwellings
General Residential Zone 1

No overlays apply to the subject site

Red Gum

The application proposes the development of the land for three (3) double storey buildings. A permit
is required pursuant to Clause 32.08-6 of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme to construct two

or more dwellings on a lot.

This application is being brought to Council as six (6) objections were received.

Objectors Summary

The application was advertised to the surrounding area through the erection of a notice on-site and
the mailing of notices to adjoining and surrounding owners and occupiers. Six (6) objections were
received to the application. Issues raised generally relate to matters of:

Noise.

Parking/Traffic impacts;
Loss of privacy due to overlooking;
Overshadowing; and
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Assessment Summary

The site is located within an established residential area and is well suited for medium density housing
given that the site is zoned for incremental change. The proposal seeks to provide a medium density
development which is generally consistent with the emerging pattern of development and the
surrounding neighbourhood character. It is noted that the development complies with all the design
principles, as demonstrated in the attachments outlined in this report.

The developments compliance with Clause 55 demonstrates that the proposal is an appropriate
design response to the site’s context and is respectful of the existing neighbourhood character whilst
contributing to the preferred neighbourhood character envisaged by Clause 22.09.

Recommendation Summary

As assessed, the proposal is consistent with and appropriately responds to the provisions of the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme. The proposal appropriately responds to strategic policy for
residential development in the area with this report recommending that the application be supported,
and a Notice of Decision (which provides appeal rights to objectors) to grant a permit be issued
containing the conditions as set out in the recommendation.
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Subject Site and Surrounds
Subject Site

The subject site is located on the eastern side of The Glade, in Dandenong, 30m to the south of the
intersection with Wedge Street. It is rectangular in shape, is oriented west-east and has an upwards
slope of approximately 1.2m from the front to the rear of the site. It has a western frontage of 15.35m
to The Glade, a northern side boundary of 51.5m, an eastern rear boundary of 15.29m and a southern
side boundary of 52.78m, giving the site an area of 797m?2. There are no easements on the subject
site. The site is currently occupied by an existing single storey brick veneer dwelling. The site is
currently accessed via an existing crossover on the southern side of the western frontage. There is
no significant vegetation on the subject site.

Surrounding Area

The subject site is located in a residential area of Dandenong which is bounded by McCrae Street to
the west, Foster Street/Stud Road/Clow Street to the north, and Dandenong Creek to the east and
south. St Johns Regional College is located approximately 115m to the north-east. St Mary’s Primary
School is located 305m to the north-west. Bus routes 828, 844 and 893 run along McCrae Street
approximately 260m south-west of the subject site. The Dandenong CAD is located approximately
730m to the north-west.

Aerial Photo
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Background
Previous Applications

A search of Council records revealed no previous planning applications have been considered for
the subject site.

Proposal

The application proposes the development of the land for three (3) double storey dwellings as follows:

Type of proposal Multi dwellings

Number of dwellings | Three (3)

Number of bedrooms | Dwelling 1 — 3

per dwelling
Dwelling 2 - 3
Dwelling 3 -3
Levels Double storey
Height 7.2 metres
Orientated to Dwelling 1 — The Glade / Dwellings 2 and 3 — Shared driveway

External materials Brick at ground floor level and a combination of rendered and panel cladding
at first floor level

Set backs Ground Floor

Dwelling 1 — 7.5m front (western) setback, 2m north (side) setback and 4m
south (side) setback

Dwelling 2 — 1.2m north (side) setback and 4.92m south (side) setback

Dwelling 3 — 1.5m north (side) setback, 2.84m east (rear) setback and 3.5m
southern (side) setback

First Floor

Dwelling 1 —2.1m side (northern) setback and 4.6m side (southern) setback
and 5.6m side (southern) setback

Dwelling 2 — 2.1m side (northern) setback and

Dwelling 3 — 2.1m side (northern) setback, 3.6m rear (eastern) setback and
3.2m side (southern) setback.
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Open space type Dwelling 1 — 85.89m? front yard + 48.2m? backyard
Dwelling 2 — 52.33m? backyard

Dwelling 3 — 54.2m? backyard

Number of Car | Six (6)
parking Spaces
provided

Number of Car | Six (6)
parking Spaces
required

Type of car parking | Dwellings 1 and 2 — Double garage each

Dwelling 3 — Single garage with tandem car space in front

Access Existing access located to the south of the development is to be retained
Connects to The Glade to the west

Minimum width is 3 metres

Front Fence No front fence is proposed

A copy of the submitted plans is included as Attachment 1.
Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

All matters relevant to the Victorian Human Rights Charter have been considered in the preparation
of this report and are consistent with the standards set by the Charter.

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications

No financial resources are impacted by this report.

Planning Scheme and Policy Frameworks

Pursuant to the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, a planning permit is required:

° Pursuant to Clause 32.08-6 to construct two or more dwellings on a lot in a General Residential
Zone.
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The relevant controls and policies are as follows:

Zoning Controls

The subject site is located in a General Residential Zone Schedule 1, as is the surrounding area.
The purpose of the General Residential Zone outlined at Clause 32.08 is:

° To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy Statement and the Planning Policy Framework.
° To encourage development that respects the neighbourhood character of the area.

° To encourage a diversity of housing types and housing growth particularly in locations offering
good access to services and transport.

° To allow educational, recreational, religious, community and a limited range of other
non-residential uses to serve local community needs in appropriate locations.

Pursuant to Clause 32.08-6, a permit is required to construct two or more dwellings on a lot.
Overlay Controls

No overlays affect the subject site.

Planning Policy Framework

The objectives of Planning in Victoria are outlined in Section 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 as:

(a) To provide for the fair, orderly, economic and sustainable use, and development of land.

(b) To provide for the protection of natural and man-made resources and the maintenance of ecological
processes and genetic diversity.

(c) To secure a pleasant, efficient and safe working, living and recreational environment for all
Victorians and visitors to Victoria.

(d) To conserve and enhance those buildings, areas or other places which are of scientific, aesthetic,
architectural or historical interest, or otherwise of special cultural value.

(e) To protect public utilities and other facilities for the benefit of the community.

(f) To facilitate development in accordance with the objectives set out in paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d)
and (e).

(fa) to facilitate the provision of affordable housing in Victoria.
(g) To balance the present and future interests of all Victorians.

In order to achieve those objectives, there are a number of more specific objectives contained within
the Planning Policy Framework that need to be considered under this application.
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Settlement (Clause 11)

Settlement is outlined at Clause 11, with Clause 11.02-1S relating to Supply of Urban Land. The
objective of this Clause is:

) To ensure a sufficient supply of land is available for residential, commercial, retail, industrial,
recreational, institutional and other community uses.

Built Environment and Heritage (Clause 15)

Planning should promote excellence in the built environment and create places that:

e  Are enjoyable, engaging and comfortable to be in.

e  Accommodate people of abilities, ages and cultures.

° Contribute positively to local character and sense of place.

e  Reflect the particular characteristics and cultural identity of the community.
e  Enhance the function, amenity and safety of the public realm.

Housing (Clause 16)

Clause 16 — Housing — contains the following relevant objectives:

e  Planning should provide for housing diversity, and ensure the efficient provision of supporting
infrastructure.

e Planning should ensure the long term sustainability of new housing, including access to services,
walkability to activity centres, public transport, schools and open space.

e  Planning for housing should include the provision of land for more affordable housing.
Clause 16.01-3S — Housing Diversity — contains the following strategies:

e  Ensure housing stock matches changing demand by widening housing choice.
° Facilitate diverse housing that offers choice and meets changing household needs through:

o A mix of housing types.
o  Adaptable internal dwelling design.
o Universal design.

e  Encourage the development of well-design medium-density housing that:

o  Respects the neighbourhood character.

o Improves housing choice.

o  Makes better use of existing infrastructure.
o  Improves energy efficiency of housing.
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° Support opportunities for a range of income groups to choose housing in well serviced locations.

e  Ensure planning for growth areas provides for a mix of housing types through a variety of lot
sizes, including higher housing densities in and around activity centres.

Clause 18 — Transport

Clause 18.01-1S - Land use and transport planning — contains the following relevant strategies:
e  Plan urban development to make jobs and community services more accessible by:

o  Ensuring equitable access is provided to developments in accordance with forecast demand,
taking advantage of all available modes of transport and to minimise adverse impacts on
existing transport networks and the amenity of surrounding areas.

Local Planning Policy Framework

The Local Planning Policy Framework (LPPF) includes the Municipal Strategic Statement (MSS) and
Local Policies.

The MSS is contained within Clause 21 of the Scheme. The MSS at Clause 21.02 focuses on the
Municipal Profile, within which the following is noted:

° There is considerable diversity within Greater Dandenong’s housing stock. Most housing stock
is aged between 30 to 50 years old, though there are some areas with dwellings in excess of
100 years old. Areas of newer housing are located in the north-east and central-southern areas,
with in-fill development occurring across the municipality (Clause 21.02-3).

e Higher density housing is generally located in proximity to railway stations and major shopping
centres, in particular in central Dandenong (Clause 21.02-3).

° Whilst there is a clear pre-dominance of single detached dwellings, there are a range of other
types of dwellings including dual occupancies, villa-units, town houses and apartments. The
highest concentration of older villa units and apartments and more recent multi-unit
redevelopments have occurred around central Dandenong, Springvale and Noble Park activity
centres (Clause 21.02-4).

° With diverse cultural groups that call Greater Dandenong home, there are certain distinct precincts
that are emerging that have their own character. Their built form is characterised by buildings
with flat unarticulated facades, prominent balconies, limited frontage/side setbacks, limited or
no landscaping (Clause 21.02-4).

A Vision for Greater Dandenong is outlined at Clause 21.03. The vision is that Greater Dandenong
will be a municipality where housing diversity and choice is promoted in its various attractive
neighbourhoods.
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The objectives and strategies of the MSS are under four (4) main themes including: land use; built
form; open space and natural environment; and, infrastructure and transportation (considered
individually under Clauses 21.04 to 21.07). Of particular relevance to this application are Clauses
21.04 — Land Use and 21.05 — Built Form:

Clause 21.04-1 Housing and community

° Greater Dandenong’s population is expected to rise by 22 percent, from 147,000 to 179,000 in
the decade to 2024, placing pressure on transport networks, infrastructure, services and public
open space.

e  Approximately 9,950 new households will need to be accommodated across the municipality by
2024 (Greater Dandenong Housing Strategy 2014-2024).

e  Supporting urban consolidation and providing housing in existing areas close to activity centres
means that people do not need to travel as far to work, shop or to take part in sports/leisure
activities thus reducing the environmental impacts of transport.

° Increases in housing density must be balanced by adequate provision of open space, good
urban design and improvements to the public realm.

e  Encourage the provision of housing that is adaptable to support the needs of the changing needs
of present and future residents.

e  Encourage innovative redevelopment and renewal of deteriorating housing stock and older styled
higher-density apartments and multi-unit developments.

e  Encourage new residential development that incorporates adequate space for the planting and
the long term viability and safe retention of canopy trees.

e  Respect the valued, existing neighbourhood character within incremental and minimal change
areas.

e  Requiring medium-density developments to be site and locality responsive and to respect existing
and proposed neighbourhood character.

Clause 21.05-1 — Urban design, character, streetscapes and landscapes — contains the following
relevant objectives and strategies:

° To facilitate high quality building design and architecture.

o  Ensure building design is consistent with the identified future character of an area and fully
integrates with surrounding environment.

o  Encourage high standards of building design and architecture, which allows for flexibility
and adaptation in use.

o  Encourage innovative architecture and building design.

o  Encourage development to incorporate sustainable design elements that enhance occupant
comfort and environmental performance.

° To facilitate high quality development, which has regard for the surrounding environment and
built form.
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o  Promote views of high quality landscapes and pleasing vistas from both the public and
private realm.

o  Promote all aspects of character — physical, environmental, social and cultural.
o  Encourage planting and landscape themes, which complement and improve the environment.
o  Encourage developments to provide for canopy trees.

o  Recognising valued existing neighbourhood character and promoting identified future
character as defined in the Residential Development and Neighbourhood Character Policy
at Clause 22.09.

To protect and improve streetscapes

o  Ensure that new developments improve streetscapes through generous landscape setbacks
and canopy tree planting.

o  Ensure landscaping within private property that complements and improves the streetscapes
and landscaping of public areas.

To ensure landscaping that enhances the built environment

o  Encourage new developments to establish a landscape setting, which reflects the local and
wider landscape character.

o  Encourage landscaping that integrates canopy trees and an appropriate mix of shrubs and
ground covers and complements and integrates with existing or proposed landscaping in
public areas.

Clause 22.09 — Residential Development & Neighbourhood Character Policy — contains the following
objectives at Clause 22.09-2:

To guide the location and design of different types of residential development within Greater
Dandenong, having regard to State and local planning policies, while respecting the valued
characteristics and identified future character of residential neighbourhoods.

To ensure that new residential development is consistent with the identified future character and
preferred built form envisaged for the three Future Change Areas.

To provide certainty about which areas are identified for, or protected from, increased residential
development consistent with the purpose of the applicable zone.

To facilitate high quality, well designed residential development and on-site landscaping.

To promote a range of housing types to accommodate the future needs of the municipality’s
changing population.

To ensure that residential development uses innovative, responsive and functional siting and
design solutions that:

o Achieve high quality internal amenity and private open space outcomes for future residents;

20307



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

o  Make a positive contribution to the streetscape through quality design, contextual
responsiveness and visual interest;

o  Promote public realm safety by maximising passive surveillance.

o  Demonstrate responsiveness to the site, adjoining interfaces, streetscape and landscape
context;

o  Respect the amenity of adjoining residents and the reasonable development potential of
adjoining propetrties;
o  Achieve environmentally sustainable design outcomes;

o  Use quality, durable building materials that are integrated into the overall building form and
facade; and

o Minimise the visual dominance of vehicle accessways and storage facilities, such as garages,
car ports and basement entrances.

Clause 22.09-3.1 (Design Principles) provides design principles, which apply to all Future
Change Areas.

Clause 22.09-3.3 (Incremental Change Areas) provides design principles, some of which
also relate to the variances to the requirements of standards to Clause 55 under the
schedule to the General Residential Zone. The guidelines are as follows:

e  Preferred housing type — The preferred housing type for the Incremental Change Area is medium
density.

e  Building Height — The preferred maximum building height for land within the GRZ1 and GRZ2
is up to 2 storeys, including ground level.

e [andscaping — Residential development should use landscaping to create a landscaped character,
particularly canopy trees in front and rear gardens; and to protect the outlook of adjoining
properties.

° Setbacks, front boundary and width — Parking, paving and car access within the front boundary
setback should be limited in order to maximise the opportunity for soft landscaping and prevent
the over dominance of carport and garages in the street.

e  Private Open Space — Residential development should provide secluded private open space at
the side or rear of each dwelling to avoid the need for excessive screening or high front fencing.

e  Bulk — Residential development should:

o  Ensure that the built form respects the scale of existing prevailing built form character and
responds to site circumstances and streetscape;

o  Provide separation between dwellings at upper level;
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o  Retain spines of open space at the rear of properties to maximise landscaping opportunities
and protect private secluded open space;

o  Position more intense and higher elements of built form towards the front and centre of a
site, transitioning to single storey elements to the rear of the lot.

The rearmost dwelling on a lot should be single storey to ensure the identified future character
of the area and the amenity of adjoining properties is respected by maximising landscaping
opportunities and protecting adjoining private secluded open space.

Two storey dwellings to the rear of a lot may be considered where:

o The visual impact of the building bulk does not adversely affect the identified future character

of the area;

o  Overlooking and/or overshadowing does not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring
properties;

o The building bulk does not adversely affect the planting and future growth of canopy trees
to maturity;

o Sufficient side and rear boundary landscaping can be provided to screen adjoining properties;
) Upper storey components are well recessed from adjoining sensitive interfaces.

Residential development should be well articulated through the use of contrast, texture, variation
in forms, materials and colours.

An assessment against Clause 22.09 is included as Attachment 3 to this report.

Particular Provisions

Car Parking (Clause 52.06)

The purposes of this provision, Clause 52.06, are:

To ensure that car parking is provided in accordance with the Municipal Planning Strategy and
the Planning Policy Framework.

To ensure the provision of an appropriate number of car parking spaces having regard to the
demand likely to be generated, the activities on the land and the nature of the locality.

To support sustainable transport alternatives to the motor car.

To promote the efficient use of car parking spaces through the consolidation of car parking
facilities.

To ensure that car parking does not adversely affect the amenity of the locality.

To ensure that the design and location of car parking is of a high standard, creates a safe
environment for users and enables easy and efficient use.

Clause 52.06-2 notes that a new use must not commence or the floor area of an existing use must
not be increased until the required car spaces have been provided on the land.
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The required spaces are identified in the table to Clause 52.06-5. Clause 52.06-3 further notes that
a permit may be granted to reduce or waive the number of car spaces required by the table.

The table at Clause 52.06-5 notes that a dwelling with 1 or 2 bedrooms requires 1 car space and a
dwelling with 3 or more bedrooms requires 2 spaces to each dwelling. 1 visitor car space is required
for visitors to every 5 dwellings for developments of 5 or more dwellings.

Car parking is to be designed and constructed in accordance with the requirements of Clause 52.06-9
and 52.06-11 of the Scheme.

An assessment against Clause 52.06 is included as Attachment 4 to this report.

Two or more dwellings on a lot and residential buildings (Clause 55)

Pursuant to Clause 55 of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, the provisions of this Clause
apply to an application:

e  To construct two or more dwellings on a lot.
The purposes of this clause are:

° To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework.

° To achieve residential development that respects the existing neighbourhood character or which
contributes to a preferred neighbourhood character.

e Toencourage residential development that provides reasonable standards of amenity for existing
and new residents.

° To encourage residential development that is responsive to the site and the neighbourhood.
A development:

e  Must meet all of the objectives of this clause.
) Should meet all of the standards of this clause.

If a zone or a schedule to a zone specifies a requirement of a standard different from a requirement
set out in this clause, the requirement in the zone or a schedule to the zone applies.

An assessment against Clause 55 is included as Attachment 5 to this report.
General Provisions

Clause 65 — Decision Guidelines needs to be considered, as is the case with all applications. For this
application the requirements of Clause 65.01 for the approval of an application or plan is of relevance.
This Clause outlines the requirements that the responsible authority must consider when determining
the application.
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Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives, Strategies and Plans

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. In accordance with the commitment in Council’s Annual Plan, all applications are
considered on their merits.

Diversity (Access & Equity)

It is not considered that the proposal raises any diversity issues affecting the planning assessment
of this application.

Community Safety

It is considered that there would be no adverse community safety implications in permitting the
proposal.

Safe Design Guidelines

Consideration of the relevant requirements of these Guidelines has been undertaken within the
Assessment of this application.

Referrals
External

The application was not required to be referred to any external referral authorities pursuant to Section
55 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

Internal

The application was internally referred to the following Council departments for their consideration.
The comments provided will be considered in the assessment of the application.

Internal Referrals

Civil Development No objections, subject to conditions on permit

(see Conditions 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13 and 14)

ESD/Sustainability No objections, subject to conditions on permit

(see Conditions 1.7 and 3)

Transport Planning No objections, subject to a condition on permit

(see Condition 1.1)
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Parking Management No concerns.

Advertising

The application has been advertised pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987, by:

e  Sending notices to the owners and occupiers of adjoining and surrounding land.
e Placing a sign on site facing The Glade.

The natification has been carried out correctly.

Council has received Objectors1six (6) objections to the application.
The location of the objectors is shown in Attachment 2.
Consultation

A consultative meeting was held on 20/06/2019 with the applicant, objectors, Council officers and a
Councillor in attendance. The issues were discussed at length and there was no resolution and the
objections stand as received.

Summary of Grounds of Submissions/Objections
The objections are summarised below (bold), followed by the Town Planner’s Response (in italics).
e Parkingl/traffic impacts — Lack of visitor car parking

Pursuant to Table 1 to Clause 52.06-5, on site visitor car parking is required at a rate of 1 visitor
car space to every 5 dwellings for a development of 5 or more dwellings. As the proposed
development is for only 3 dwellings an onsite visitor car space is not required. In addition, each
dwelling is provided with two onsite parking spaces, which complies with the requirements of
Planning Scheme.

° Loss of privacy due to overlooking

The application does not propose any balconies for any of the dwellings, however there are
windows on the upper floor to each dwelling. Standard B22 of Clause 55.04-6 (Overlooking
objective) notes that a habitable room window should be located and designed to avoid direct
views into the secluded private open space of an existing dwelling within a horizontal distance
of 9 metres.

All habitable room windows on the upper floor elevations would be appropriately screened or
would have minimum sill heights of at least 1.7m above finished floor level. As such, there is
no unacceptable overlooking from the proposed development to the objector’s property under
Standard B22 of Clause 55.04-6.
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e Overshadowing

A review of the shadow diagrams provided shows that, given the subject site is located to the
south-east of the objector’s property, they will not be overshadowed by the proposed development
at 9am, 10am or 3pm at the Spring Equinox pursuant to Standard B21 of Clause 55.04-5.

) Noise

There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed development would result in a level of noise
greater than normal for a residential area.

Assessment

The subject site is located within an established residential area and is well suited for the development
of medium density housing given that the site is located within easy walking distance of many
community facilities and public transport. The proposal also seeks to reduce pressure on the urban
fringe by providing three (3) dwellings where previously one (1) existed through the redevelopment
of the site, thereby ensuring that the housing required for the growing population is facilitated.

As required by the General Residential Zone that applies to this site, the proposed development has
been assessed against the provisions of Clause 55 (full assessment attached as attachment 5) of
the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme and the Schedule 1 to the General Residential Zone. The
proposed development has also been assessed against Clause 52.06 (full assessment in attachment
4) and Clause 22.09 (full assessment attached as attachment 3) of the Greater Dandenong Planning
Scheme. The proposal complies with all requirements of these clauses except in the instances detailed
below, where variations or conditions are required.

Use

As outlined in Clause 32.08-2 (General Residential Zone), a dwelling is listed as a Section 1 use,
and a planning permit is not required for the use of the proposal. However, a planning permit is
required for the buildings and works, which is discussed below.

Development
Planning Policy Framework / Local Planning Policy Framework

In considering the Planning Policy Framework and the Local Planning Policy Framework, Council
can establish that an acceptable proposal will be guided by:

) Clause 55 Two or more dwellings on a lot; and
e  Clause 22.09 Residential Developmentand Neighbourhood Character.

Each of these Clauses ensure that Council facilitates the orderly development of urban areas, which
is a specific objective of Clause 11.02 Settlement.

The objectives of Clause 15.01-1S Urban Design, Clause 15.01-2S Building Design and Clause
21.05-1 Built Form outline the key considerations in which a development must respond to urban
design, character, streetscapes and landscape issues.
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It is considered that the proposed design response respects the preferred neighbourhood character
of the incremental change area by providing a medium density housing typology.

The proposal is of a high quality urban design, with physical recession, articulation, varied use of
materials, textures and other visual interest.

The overall layout allows space for acceptable landscaping treatments such as a significant canopy
tree and shrubbery plantings within well-proportioned setback areas to allow growth to maturity.

The proposal is also located within an area subject to incremental change with other multi-unit
developments of a similar scale and massing being found within the surrounding residential area.
The proposal’s compliance with Clause 22.09 and Clause 55 (subject to conditions) ensures that the
development would achieve the objectives set out in Clause 15.01 and Clause 21.05-1.

As such, Council officers recommend that the application be approved subject to planning permit
conditions as necessary.

Clause 22.09 Assessment

An assessment against the design principles of Clause 22.09 is included at Attachment 3 of this
report. This proposal provides a design response which is consistent with the preferred character
envisaged by Clause 22.09, and is considered to comply with the requirements of this clause, except
in the following instances:

Clause 22.09-3.3 Design principles for Incremental Change Areas — General Residential Zone - Bulk
and Built Form:

This clause outlines a preference for single storey dwellings at the rear of the sites in the incremental
change area. However, it goes on to state that two storey dwellings to the rear of a lot may be
considered where:

e  The visual impact of the building bulk does not adversely affect the identified future character
of the area;

e  Overlooking and/or overshadowing does not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring
properties;
e  The building bulk does not adversely affect the planting and future growth of canopy trees;

e Sufficient side and rear boundary landscaping can be provided to screen adjoining properties;
and

e  Upper storey components are well recessed from adjoining sensitive interfaces.

While Dwelling 3 would be double storey dwelling, the proposal is considered acceptable in this
instance. Good side and rear setbacks are proposed for Dwelling 3 which would be well recessed
from adjoining sensitive interfaces to allow for substantial landscaping to lessen the appearance of
visual bulk to adjoining properties.
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There would be no overlooking from any upper level habitable room windows of Dwelling 3, and it
would not overshadow adjoining properties to any significant extent. The dwelling would also be well
articulated and utilises differing materials to soften its impact.

Clause 55 Assessment

The proposal is considered to comply with the requirements of this Clause, except in the following
instances:

Clause 55.04-6 Standard B22 — Overlooking objectives

Relevant objective: “To limit views into existing secluded private open space and habitable room
windows”.

Clause 55.04-7 Standard B23 — Internal views objectives

Relevant objective: “To limit views into the secluded private open space and habitable room windows
of dwellings and residential buildings within a development.

Conditions 1.2, 1.3 and 1.4 require some additional measures to upper level windows of Dwellings
2 and 3 to minimise the potential for internal and external overlooking from the proposed development,
and to ensure compliance with these clauses.

Car Parking

The proposal is considered to comply with the requirements of Clause 52.06 with respect to the
number of car parking spaces required (Clause 52.06-5) and design standard of car parking (Clause
52.06-9).

Aboriginal Cultural Heritage
The subject site is within an area of Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Sensitivity.

A Cultural Heritage Management Plan is not required as the proposed development is exempt under
Regulation 10 of the Aboriginal Heritage Regulations 2018.

The construction of 3 or more dwellings on a lot is an exempt activity as the lot is not within 200m of
the coastal waters of Victoria, any sea within the limits of Victoria or the Murray River and the lot is
less than 0.11 hectares (or 1,100m?) in size being only 0.0797 hectares or 797m>.

Environmentally Sustainable Development

A Built Environment Sustainability Scorecard (BESS) assessment has been submitted with the
application. A BESS score of 52% would be achieved by the proposed development which exceeds
the best practice requirement of 50%.
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Conclusion

The proposal is consistent with the provisions of the Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme, including
the zoning requirements, local policy direction, application of Clauses 22.09, 52.06 and 55, and the
decision guidelines of Clause 65.

Recommendation

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong for the ‘Development of the land for
three (3) double storey dwellings’ in accordance with the plans submitted with the application
subject to the following conditions:

1. Before the development starts, amended plans to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The
amended plans must be drawn to scale with dimensions and 3 copies must be
provided. The amended plans must be generally in accordance with the plans
submitted and assessed with the application but modified to show:

1.1. A notation stating that letterboxes and all other structures (including visually
obstructive fencing and landscaping) must be constructed to a maximum
height of 900mm or relocated clear of a splayed area (2m x 2.5m) along the
frontage road at access points in accordance with Clause 52.06-9 of the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme.

1.2. Dwelling 2’s northeast-facing upper level Bedroom 2 window provided with
measures to prevent overlooking up to 1.7m above finished floor level.

1.3. Dwelling 3’s southwest-facing upper level stairwell window provided with
a minimum sill height of 1.7m above finished floor level.

1.4. Dwelling 3’s northeast-facing upper level bedroom windows to have
minimum sill heights of 1.7m above finished floor level.

1.5 Dwelling 3’s northwest-facing upper level stairwell window to be deleted.

1.6 All fence toppers indicated on overlooking diagrams to be shown on all
relevant plans.

1.7. Initiatives (where applicable) contained within the approved Built
Environment Sustainability Scorecard (BESS) assessment.

1.8. A revised landscape plan in accordance with Condition 2.
When approved, these plans will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

2. Prior to the endorsement of the plans under Condition 1, before the approved
development starts, and before any trees or vegetation are removed, a revised
landscape plan to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted
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to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The revised landscape plan must be
prepared by a person or firm with suitable qualifications to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority and drawn to scale with dimensions provided. The revised
landscape plan must show:

2.1. plans to accord with Condition 1 of this permit;

2.2. the site at a scale of 1:100/200, including site boundaries, existing and
proposed buildings, neighbouring buildings, car parking, access and exit
points, indicative topography and spot levels at the site corners, existing
and proposed vegetation, nature strip trees, easements and landscape
setbacks;

2.3. details of the proposed layout, type and height of fencing;

24, legend of all plant types, surfaces, materials and landscape items to be
used;
2.5. a plant schedule giving a description of botanical name, common name,

mature height and spread, pot size, purchase height (if a tree) and individual
plant quantities;

2.6. at least one (1) advanced canopy tree with a minimum planting height of
1.5 metres within the rear secluded open space areas of each dwelling;

2.7. improved landscaping to the front of Dwelling 1, including at least one (1)
advanced canopy tree with a planting height of 1.5 metres.

When approved, the revised landscape plan will be endorsed and will form part of
this permit.

The provisions, recommendations and requirements of the revised landscape plan
must be implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

3. Prior to the endorsement of the plans under Conditions 1 and 2, a revised
Assessment of the development using the Built Environment Sustainability Scorecard
must be submitted to address the following:

3.1 A revised energy section that includes the following:

3.1.1. Nominated heating and cooling figures (mj/m?) based on the
preliminary energy rating for the development.

3.1.2. Revised star ratings relevant to a ducted heating and cooling
system.

3.1.3. Submission of a preliminary energy rating assessment for a sample
dwelling (unit 1).
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3.2. A revised water section that includes the following:
3.21. Specified rainwater tank capacity consistent with the plans.
All works must be undertaken in accordance with the approved BESS

assessment to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. No alterations to the
measures contained within the approved BESS assessment can occur without
written consent from the responsible authority.

4. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the layout of the
land and the size, design and location of the buildings and works permitted must
always accord with the endorsed plan and must not be altered or modified.

5. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the approved
dwellings must not be occupied until all buildings and works and the conditions of
this permit have been complied with.

6. Provision must be made for the drainage for proposed development including
landscaped and paved areas, all to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

7. The connection of the internal drainage infrastructure to the Legal Point of Discharge
(LPD) must be to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority..

8. Collected stormwater must be retained onsite and discharged into the drainage
system at pre development peak discharge rates as stated in the LPD approval letter.

9. Approval of drainage plan including any retention system within the property
boundary is required.

10. Prior to the drainage plans being approved, a plan checking fee of 0.75% and
supervision fee of 2.5% of the estimated cost of works is to be paid to Council

1. Before the approved dwellings are occupied, all piping and ducting above the ground
floor storey of the dwellings, except downpipes, must be concealed to the satisfaction
of the Responsible Authority.

12. Access to the site and any associated roadwork must be constructed, all to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. Note all existing vehicle crossing will
need to be removed and reinstated with kerb in accordance with Council Standards.

13. Any works undertaken with the road reservation and easements will require the
developer to obtain a Civil Works Permit from Council.

14. Prior to works commencing the developer will need to obtain an Asset Protection
Permit from Council.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, floor levels
shown on the endorsed plan/s must not be altered or modified.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, the development must be provided
with external lighting capable of illuminating access to each garage, car parking
space and pedestrian walkway. Lighting must be located, directed and shielded to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority so as to prevent any adverse effect
outside the land.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, the obscure glazing to the windows
shown on the endorsed plans must be provided through frosted glass or similarly
treated glass. Adhesive film or similar removable material must not be used.

All glazing must at all times be maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

Before the approved dwellings are occupied, all boundary walls in the development
must be constructed, cleaned and finished to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

This permit will expire if:-

19.1. The development or any stage of it does not start within two (2) years of
the date of this permit, or

19.2 The development or any stage of it is not completed within four (4) years
of the date of this permit.

Before the permit expires or within six (6) months afterwards the owner or occupier
of the land may in writing request the Responsible Authority to extend the expiry
date.

The owner or occupier of the land may in writing request the Responsible Authority
to extend the expiry date to complete the development or a stage of the development
if:

a) the request for the extension is made within twelve (12) months after the
permit expires; and

b) the development or stage started lawfully before the permit expired.

Permit Notes:

m A Building Approval is required prior to the commencement of the approved
development. This planning permit does not constitute any building approval.

= Approval of any retention system within the property boundary is required by the relevant
building surveyor.
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] Before commencement of the development occurs, the applicant should contact the
City of Greater Dandenong’s Civil Development and Design Unit regarding legal point
of discharge, new crossings, building over easements, etc.

m  As this is an established site, the proposed internal drainage should be connected to
the existing legal point of discharge. The applicant may apply for local drainage
information, if available; otherwise on site verification should be undertaken by the
applicant.

s A Vehicle Crossing Permit must be obtained from Council for all vehicular crossings
prior to construction of the crossings. You may be required to apply for a Asset
Protection Permit from Council’s engineering services. Queries regarding engineering
requirements can be directed to Council’s general phone number on 8571 1000.

= No buildings or works shall be constructed over any easement without the written
consent of the relevant authorities.

This permit has been granted on the basis that consent to build over any easement will
be obtained from the relevant authority. If consent is not able to be obtained, the
development plan will be required to be amended.

An application must be made with Council’s Parks Department for any street tree
removal. Street trees must only be removed by or under the supervision of the Council.
Prior to removal of any street tree the replacement cost must be paid to Council.

MINUTE 1170

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Zaynoun Melhem

That Council resolves to issue a Notice of Decision to grant a permit in respect of the land
known and described as No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong for the ‘Development of the land for
three (3) double storey dwellings’ in accordance with the plans submitted with the application
subject to the following conditions:

1. Before the development starts, amended plans to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The
amended plans must be drawn to scale with dimensions and 3 copies must be
provided. The amended plans must be generally in accordance with the plans
submitted and assessed with the application but modified to show:

1.1. A notation stating that letterboxes and all other structures (including visually
obstructive fencing and landscaping) must be constructed to a maximum
height of 900mm or relocated clear of a splayed area (2m x 2.5m) along the
frontage road at access points in accordance with Clause 52.06-9 of the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme.
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1.2. Dwelling 2’s northeast-facing upper level Bedroom 2 window provided with
measures to prevent overlooking up to 1.7m above finished floor level.

1.3. Dwelling 3’s southwest-facing upper level stairwell window provided with
a minimum sill height of 1.7m above finished floor level.

1.4. Dwelling 3’s northeast-facing upper level bedroom windows to have
minimum sill heights of 1.7m above finished floor level.

1.5 Dwelling 3’s northwest-facing upper level stairwell window to be deleted.

1.6 All fence toppers indicated on overlooking diagrams to be shown on all
relevant plans.

1.7. Initiatives (where applicable) contained within the approved Built
Environment Sustainability Scorecard (BESS) assessment.

1.8. A revised landscape plan in accordance with Condition 2.

When approved, these plans will be endorsed and will form part of this permit.

2. Prior to the endorsement of the plans under Condition 1, before the approved

development starts, and before any trees or vegetation are removed, a revised
landscape plan to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority must be submitted
to and approved by the Responsible Authority. The revised landscape plan must be
prepared by a person or firm with suitable qualifications to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority and drawn to scale with dimensions provided. The revised
landscape plan must show:

2.1.
2.2,

2.3.
2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

plans to accord with Condition 1 of this permit;

the site at a scale of 1:100/200, including site boundaries, existing and
proposed buildings, neighbouring buildings, car parking, access and exit
points, indicative topography and spot levels at the site corners, existing
and proposed vegetation, nature strip trees, easements and landscape
setbacks;

details of the proposed layout, type and height of fencing;

legend of all plant types, surfaces, materials and landscape items to be
used;

a plant schedule giving a description of botanical name, common name,
mature height and spread, pot size, purchase height (if a tree) and individual
plant quantities;

at least one (1) advanced canopy tree with a minimum planting height of
1.5 metres within the rear secluded open space areas of each dwelling;
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2.7. improved landscaping to the front of Dwelling 1, including at least one (1)
advanced canopy tree with a planting height of 1.5 metres.

When approved, the revised landscape plan will be endorsed and will form part of
this permit.

The provisions, recommendations and requirements of the revised landscape plan
must be implemented and complied with to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

3. Prior to the endorsement of the plans under Conditions 1 and 2, a revised
Assessment of the development using the Built Environment Sustainability Scorecard
must be submitted to address the following:

3.1 A revised energy section that includes the following:

3.1.1. Nominated heating and cooling figures (mj/m?) based on the
preliminary energy rating for the development.

3.1.2. Revised star ratings relevant to a ducted heating and cooling
system.

3.1.3. Submission of a preliminary energy rating assessment for a sample
dwelling (unit 1).

3.2 A revised water section that includes the following:
3.21. Specified rainwater tank capacity consistent with the plans.
All works must be undertaken in accordance with the approved BESS

assessment to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. No alterations to the
measures contained within the approved BESS assessment can occur without
written consent from the responsible authority.

4. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the layout of the
land and the size, design and location of the buildings and works permitted must
always accord with the endorsed plan and must not be altered or modified.

5. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the approved
dwellings must not be occupied until all buildings and works and the conditions of
this permit have been complied with.

6. Provision must be made for the drainage for proposed development including
landscaped and paved areas, all to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

7. The connection of the internal drainage infrastructure to the Legal Point of Discharge
(LPD) must be to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority..
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8. Collected stormwater must be retained onsite and discharged into the drainage
system at pre development peak discharge rates as stated in the LPD approval letter.

9. Approval of drainage plan including any retention system within the property
boundary is required.

10. Prior to the drainage plans being approved, a plan checking fee of 0.75% and
supervision fee of 2.5% of the estimated cost of works is to be paid to Council

1. Before the approved dwellings are occupied, all piping and ducting above the ground
floor storey of the dwellings, except downpipes, must be concealed to the satisfaction
of the Responsible Authority.

12. Access to the site and any associated roadwork must be constructed, all to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. Note all existing vehicle crossing will
need to be removed and reinstated with kerb in accordance with Council Standards.

13. Any works undertaken with the road reservation and easements will require the
developer to obtain a Civil Works Permit from Council.

14. Prior to works commencing the developer will need to obtain an Asset Protection
Permit from Council.

15. Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, floor levels
shown on the endorsed plan/s must not be altered or modified.

16. Before the approved dwellings are occupied, the development must be provided
with external lighting capable of illuminating access to each garage, car parking
space and pedestrian walkway. Lighting must be located, directed and shielded to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority so as to prevent any adverse effect
outside the land.

17. Before the approved dwellings are occupied, the obscure glazing to the windows
shown on the endorsed plans must be provided through frosted glass or similarly
treated glass. Adhesive film or similar removable material must not be used.

All glazing must at all times be maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

18. Before the approved dwellings are occupied, all boundary walls in the development
must be constructed, cleaned and finished to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

19. This permit will expire if:-

19.1. The development or any stage of it does not start within two (2) years of
the date of this permit, or
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19.2. The development or any stage of it is not completed within four (4) years
of the date of this permit.

Before the permit expires or within six (6) months afterwards the owner or occupier
of the land may in writing request the Responsible Authority to extend the expiry
date.

The owner or occupier of the land may in writing request the Responsible Authority
to extend the expiry date to complete the development or a stage of the development
if:

a) the request for the extension is made within twelve (12) months after the
permit expires; and

b) the development or stage started lawfully before the permit expired.

Permit Notes:

A Building Approval is required prior to the commencement of the approved
development. This planning permit does not constitute any building approval.

Approval of any retention system within the property boundary is required by the relevant
building surveyor.

Before commencement of the development occurs, the applicant should contact the
City of Greater Dandenong’s Civil Development and Design Unit regarding legal point
of discharge, new crossings, building over easements, etc.

As this is an established site, the proposed internal drainage should be connected to
the existing legal point of discharge. The applicant may apply for local drainage
information, if available; otherwise on site verification should be undertaken by the
applicant.

A Vehicle Crossing Permit must be obtained from Council for all vehicular crossings
prior to construction of the crossings. You may be required to apply for a Asset
Protection Permit from Council’s engineering services. Queries regarding engineering
requirements can be directed to Council’s general phone number on 8571 1000.

No buildings or works shall be constructed over any easement without the written
consent of the relevant authorities.

This permit has been granted on the basis that consent to build over any easement will
be obtained from the relevant authority. If consent is not able to be obtained, the
development plan will be required to be amended.

20324



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

= An application must be made with Council’s Parks Department for any street tree
removal. Street trees must only be removed by or under the supervision of the Council.
Prior to removal of any street tree the replacement cost must be paid to Council.

CARRIED
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STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 1 THE GLADE, DANDENONG
(PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN19/0030)

ATTACHMENT 1

SUBMITTED PLANS

PAGES 11 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.

20326



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

burvvp)4 ymo)

e s im0
oS X

20327



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

20328

Buirvup)4 ymo)

ee aive va 4
Ly cho) 3 BaRGE BRS

01 id (s10AanInS) S9uIOH 1 189N ‘osEIN

gy s iy Oy
23 7% e 0
o g Bng
& e 1 o s
ey i s
TNV

wez sy cumuapung

e 3 ming Aioweing
waaIm

e Anmery ey
wisd Gy Somungon
wed RS B RIS
W e avi Py Ui

hoirvanas

3115 LOFrANS HYAN SIS

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES
(Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

|
At s bt .

i




City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

2
[

REscode grFexy

il
L e

)

3
jj::«mgu :
e 205370

‘) 1Arua 797m?
e

Town Planning

&

Design Response Plan

o
PO AR A oA A ik AT S

7
e

A
G
F s F

)
=~ ey
Lo

a0 RESCODE OFFSET

"Hlisson, Noel
S

& Holmes (Surveyors) Pty Lid
3

. Enoons 5.1 oun o
i
a iy

20329



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

23

oz e 1330m
B A B A A 0 o 1 B R W
r

o
v
N,

A KA Ak S ]

!
= /
i S
e e NSRS w
5 qgﬁg =N H‘-J? 714 = 205370
e | &
Z c S |Area 79 |

ZUURTT S
L 20.058 D

mkj—r—f‘g

it~
|

\J»\,,«\_,-kff' o

MHAA

; L .
|
: 3
& » i
H |~ = 5 £
: :
A b . :
| o RN
| \ 3
1 (1 & z
[ i sl i
! | ! N
I | | FEEIE S [ i
) I 1] 2
“; 1 e
- | 1 b
| ] 3 B S —
I 14 I
a i ] T B
\‘ I | & HERTEETEETEATTEL I
i o & !
If : 4 I T !
; 1 IREERANRNAT I IRNTN 1

AREA ANALYSIS

o e

SERVICES NEAR SUBJECT SITE

epucaTion
Gt lnstde of TAFE
St s b Sebos
Cangmong Prenary
Fandinnn | ey

]
L
5 iE 7 §EER

z
iE

238 170 document o o Qurpose sgacded avove
ane Pt oy shscamaton, dspten o copG

Town Planning

20330



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES
(Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

UE|d EBJY UBRIED Ui UGiiowaa
e e

4 e g

h,

-

noisaa e

I Uiy
E]
H
i

20331

3110395 NOILYAIOIA ONILSIT

e R

B i i i e il e

R T P SR S

A A A A A A A A A A A A AT




City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

‘\_‘_\_17.;..—.——_\_\_ - \‘T@\

Ground Flaor Pian First Floor Flan

i \IIIHH

[IHIRE =]
I =——=R,

Fron: View - The Glade Internal View - Unit 3

Town Pla;'mr'ng

20332



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

e T NN,
R EAAes s o eAunos

{ m:E:En_ umoL

siejoq EUduay jesigkl

T,
[TEITTITTETTITREMTTIm T ¢

Avies FoNE

FaEE WA

GRS T R

nnnnn

o P e

T v |
- FINCIHOS HNOTOD / HSINIE

20333



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES
(Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

Buravuy)d umolL

cvminm wosanens| | SRR

e et P s

= o i Jets el o) [—————
o Jrepeeeinmanaseofeoms| | SEERIEEERIEES
zo_mmnnﬁ- Proyoiand Lo auon o o ey
= Py o0 e T

€2 ideg we(} weibeig mopeys
taven anvi o <ra)

oz 3GVAS IHI

20334




MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

€ Woipagd 2 11N - BUNEONING

T - ] mssrma wormT.

i e s P T2

‘\—n% s  wrorm .

D T mAarmn wseriez

7 WODIpaE L 1IUM - BUNOOUIAD

\ i .
ﬁ 1 T e e

TeRE 2 W - BUNBOIan

T T T T eeTwEa wewEra

JESEN | 1N - BUReouan0

|
> \ﬁ« . -— s
|
|
|
|
|

T H A 4 WOOEEE S

N

10401 N wozEer s,

TR T WERETTE.

20335



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES
(Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

Ui Budespae

=

J

= {

b

i 1

it

||||||| : 8

3

b

E,

m.

{

7

g

1

i

L

¢ =

¢ ola

¢ e

i \

{ =0 1

¢ 9N (| I

3 / B 1

{ ol

m ol 3

s ¢ ol 1

i N R ¢ a3l <

& C x

¢ =

i e oty s 3 )

St ¢ al |

g 8l 3

( 3

— e e m b

¢ 1

w <

1

e ——— ¢ 1

¢ {

¢ 1

¢ i

" e Sava mun anm ; |

¢ 1

¢ {

P 5 R AR s 3 J

s ] ¢ )

v B 2 e s ’
I n e D, hm w »&-
e : { o4
e L

20336




City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 1 THE GLADE, DANDENONG
(PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN19/0030)

ATTACHMENT 2

LOCATION OF OBJECTORS

PAGES 2 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.

20337



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

O Subject Site ® Location of Objectors  Melways Map 90G9 AN

20338



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

TOWN PLANNING APPLICATION - NO. 1 THE GLADE, DANDENONG
(PLANNING APPLICATION NO. PLN19/0030)

ATTACHMENT 3

CLAUSE 22.09 ASSESSMENT

PAGES 11 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.

20339



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

'GEZS T/G8 U0 92UBLIBAO0D) 10BIU0D asea|d Jeajoun ale juawyoene ay) Jo s|re1ap ayl j|

‘Alepunoq JealJ uis}ses
2y} pue Azepunog apis uiayuou ‘Alepunoq Juoly uid)som
|1oA8] punolb ay) Buoje sealy Adoueo pue Bunueld usalos

Buipnjoul ‘Buidesspue| ays-uo Ayjenb ybiy ‘enueysgns
Buipinold jo ajqedes aq pjnom juswdojanap pasodoid ay

jaw sjdidound 4

'Saliepunod Jeal pue apis pue juolj [9A8] punolb Buoje
soa.4) Adoued pue Bupueld usaios Buipnjoul ‘Buidesspue| ayis-uo Ajjenb ybiy ‘|enuelsqns apinold

:pinoys juswdojensp [eluspisay

Buideospue

"abejuol) J981)S PUB SBOURIIUS WO
Keme ps}eoo| 81 SWOO0IYIR] SB YoNs SWO0J 8|ge}igey-uon

jJaw ajdidund 4

"abejuol) J981)S PUB SBOUBIIUS WO ABME ‘SWOO0IYIE] SB ONS SWO00J 8|qe}igey-uou 8)eoo]

"J9al}s 8y} Wolj a|qelnuapl
Alisea pue 8|qIsIA &g pjnom aouesus uiew s,Bbuljjemp yoeg

jaw sjdidund 4

"Jo8l}s 8y} Woly ajqeynuapl Ajises pue 8|qISIA 81e SBOUBIUS UIBW ||e Jey) 8insug

‘Aemssaooe
uowwod ay} buoje Bupybil piejjoq smoys sueid ay ]

jaw sjdidund 4

‘syybi|-iosuas
pajunow ybiy yym seale Buryied Jeo pue saoueljus ulew Buipnjoul seoeds jeunwiwod Jybi]

‘pasodoud si Buiousy Juoly oN
jaw sjdidound 4

‘abejuou) 19aJ)s 8y} 0} S9oU8) Jualedsuel)-lWas asn

‘seale Bupyed Jeod

pue sAemssaooe [euldjul ‘}9a4is ‘wieal oljqnd 8y} 300I8A0
PINOM UYDIYM S[OAS] [|B UO SMOPUIM W00 djgeliqey

4O Jaquinu a8y} sas|wixew juawdojarap pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidund 4

‘seale Bupiled 1eo pue sAem ssaooe |eulsiul ‘skemaue| ‘sjealis ‘wieal olignd 8y} Y00IBA0
Jeyy sbuip|ing [eluSpISal JO S[OAS] || U0 SMOPUIM WOOJ 8|ge}igey JO Jaquinu 8y} asIWIXep

*SMOPUIM WOOJ 8|qe}iqey Joojy punolb Buipnjoul
sabejuoly aAnoe ajelodioour pjnom sbuljamp (g) 8aiu |1V

jaw sjdidund 4

*'SMOPUIM WOO0J |qejqgey Jooly punolb Buipnjoul sebejuoly aAloe ajesodioou)

:Jey} subisap ybnouyy aoueljioAIns aaissed ajqeus
pinoys juawdojarap mau ‘spooyinoqybiau [enuapisal Jajes Jo uoisinoid ay) abeinoous o

Kojes

sjuswdojanap [eipuapisal ||e 10} sa|diduLd ubisaq |'g-60'2ZZ dsne|D

20340



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

'saoepns snojnladwi paonpal pue ubisap uegin

BAIISUSS Jajem YBnoJy} Jounl Jajem WIo)s pasealoul

0 10edwi 8y} siwiuiw pjnom yoiym Buideospue|
Buipinold jo ajqedes aq pjnom yuawdojanap pasodoid ay|

19w ojdiound 4

's90eHNS snojaladwi paonpal pue ubisep uegin
SAIJISUSS Jajem yBnouy) Jouns Jayem wiols pasealoul Jo Joedwi sy} asiwiuiw pinoys Buideospuen

‘Ajunyew o} ymmolb ainyny
119} S}EPOWILOIDE 0} JUBIDIYNS 8q pjnom jey} adeds uado
ajeAld/syoeqies pauoodoud jjam ul pajueld seal) Adoueo
Buipinold jo ajqedeo aq pjnom yuswdojaaap pasodoid ay|

jaw a|didund 4

‘Ayunjew o} YymolB ainny Jisy} 8}epowLIOIOE 0} JUSIoIYNS
aJe jey) aoeds uado ajeAld/syoeqias pauoilodoud |jom ul pajueld ag pinoys saal} Adoued

‘so|diould ubisaq Ayojes ay) sassalppe jey) buideospue|
Buipinold jo siqeded aq pjnom juswdojaaap pasodoid ay |

jaw ojdidund 4

‘so|dioulld ubisaq Alajes ay) sessalppe os|e buideospue| jey) ainsuj

‘sajuadoud Bujuiolpe

10 Ajluswe ay} 10adsal 0} PUE 1981)S BY} WO} POMBIA USYM
wJoj }ing 8y} jo aoueseadde ay) uajyos o} Buideospue|
Buisn jo ajqedeos aq pjnom juswdojanap pasodoid ay

jaw sjdidund 4

‘sajedoud Buluiolpe jo Ajiuswe sy} 10adsal
0} pue }93J)s 8y} WO} PAMBIA UBYM W0} }INg ay) Jo aouelteadde ay) usyos oy} buideospue| asn

"a)q1ssod Jansiaym seal) ainjew Bunsixe
1O [eAOWSI Y} ploAe pinom juswidojarap pasodoid ay |

jaw s|didund 4

‘uBlsap a)is sy} ojul uonuslal Jisy) Buiesodiooul Aq seal) ainjew Bunsixs Jo [BAOWSI B} PIOAY

‘eale 8y} Ul ||lom wiopad pue 0} UOWWOD dJe ey} Saal}
Bunueld jo ajqeded aq pjnom juswdojaasp pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidund £

"eale 8y} Ul ||om wiopad pue 0} uowwod aie jey} seal) bunueld

‘eale aoeds uado ajeaud

papn[oas [aA8] punoib yoes o} pue | Buljjem( jo 3oeqies
juouy 8y} o} aal} Adoued |enueisgns auo jsea) je jo Bupueld
ay} apnjoul 0} a|ge aq pjnom yuswdolansp pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidund 4

‘eale aoeds uado ajeAlld papn|oas |aAd]
punoJb pue 3oeqjes Juoly yoes 0} 9aJ} Adoued |ejueisgns auo jses| je jo Bunueld ayy apnjoul

‘Aemssaooe
Je|noiyan ay) buoje Buideospue) Ayjenb ybiy ‘jenuejsgns
Buipinold jo ajgedes aq pjnom jusawdojanap pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidound 4

‘sAemssaooe Jejnolyan Buoje Buideospue| Ajjenb ybiy ‘|enuejsqns apinold

20341



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

‘pasodoud si Buiouay Juoly oN

jaw sjdidund 4

‘Bunpue|d aaJ) 19a1)s pue susapieb
juouy ul Buideospue| usam}ag UOI}OBUUOD [ENSIA B MO||E O} SB0US} JUOl) 3|edS MO| Jo uado apinold

‘Ajunjew 0y saal} Jo ymmodb ainyny pue Bunueld ayj ajqeus
0} Aiepunog usaypou ay} Buoje papiaold aie syoeqies
apIs snotauab pue Bunue|d usalos ajgeus 0} sbuip|ing
usamiaq papiroid ag pjnom syoeqias apis ajelidoiddy

jJaw sjdidund 4

‘Ajunjew 0y saau} Jo ymodb ainyny
pue Buiue|d ay} Jo/pue s8a1} JO UOIIUSIDI B} S|qeUS 0} YOB]}SS SpIS SNoJauab auo jses| je pue
‘palinbai ataym Bunue|d usaios sjgeusd 0} sBulpjing usamiaq syoeqias apis ajeldoidde apinold

‘paulejuiew aq pjnom uiayed yipim abejuoly jussedde ay |

jaw sjdidund 4

‘uleped yipim abejuoly Jusiedde ayy uiejuiey

‘uleped
1994)s Jueujwopaid ayy yum Buidasy ul 8q pjnom yaiym
30Bq}os juol e apiroid pjnom yuswdolaasp pasodoid ay |

‘uieped
Uipim pue
jow a|didund 4 190438 Jueuiwopaid ayy yym Buideay ul jybiay pue ubisap aous) Yim ¥oeqies Juol) B apinoid AR 0,
:pInoys syuswdojonap [enuspliseay ‘syoeqies
‘pasodoud jou s Buppled Jeo Jusweseg
j9w ajdiound 4 *a|geoljdde aiaym sulaouod Buipooyy Japisuod pjnoys Buppied Jeo Juswaseq yym syjuswdojgraq
‘Alepunoq
a)Is 8y} pue Jodied Jo abeieb e usamiaq ajoIyaA e Buepowwodoe A|ny jo ajgede) e
")0Bq}as Juoly 8y} ulyym pasodoud si Buryied Jeo oN pue ‘Alepunoq a)is 8y} Ulyim pajeoo| Ain4 e
jow ajdidund 4 184 PINOYS }I ¥eq)as JUoJ) dU} UIUIM payeoo| sI Bunjied Jed aisypp
‘|9A9] punoJb je saunuoddo ‘lons| punoub je seunuoddo Buideaspue| os asiwixew
Buidesspue| Jos aSIWIXEW pue adeos)esls au) 0} pue adeos}oal}s 8y} ajeulwop Jou O} SE 0S d)IS dU} JO JBal JO 9pIS dy) O} PajedoT] e
SJeUlIOp JOU 0} SE OS 8}IS 8U} JO Jedl 10 3pIS 8} 0} pejea0] ‘A1essa00U a1oym pausalos Ajajedoidde 1o maiA woly uspply Ajjelauss) e
pue malA woly uapply Ajjesauab ‘sbuljjemp ayy jo ubisep
ayy ojul pajesbajul [|am aq pinom Bupsed Jed ays-uQ ‘Buiping ayy jo ubisep ayj ojul pejeibalul IS\ ©
jaw ajdidund 4 :9q pinoys Bupjed Jeod ays-up
“abejuoly apim
WGE G| B UO Jan0ss010 auo pasodoid Ajuo uoneoldde ay ] -So.j0W J | UBL) SSO] SUIPIM SBEIUOL LM SIUBLIO]E UO
j9w ojdiound 4 SJ9A0SS010 puodas Buipioae Ag paulejuiew aq pinoys Buised Jeo 19a.3s-uo Jo [aA8] Bunsixa ay | Buped sen

‘Buijamp yoea

10} Sy ue) Jajemulel Jo uoisiroid ayy ybnouyy pepoddns

9 os|e pjnom }| ‘saloads snouabipul spnjoul pue

Juels|o} Jybnolp ‘sjqeuleisns aq pjnom yoiym Buideospue)
Buipinold jo ajgedes aq pjnom jusawdojanap pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidound 4

‘syue} Jajemulel Jo uojsinoid ayy ybnolyy papoddns
aq pue salpads snouabipul apnjoul pue ‘uelslo} Jybnoup ‘ejgeureisns aq pjnoys Buideospue]

20342



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

“Bujemp
Bunsixa ay) uiejas o} asodoud jou saop uopeoldde ay |

jaw s|didund 4

“J9joRJRYD B4NJN} PalIUSPI B} WOl sjoenep Buljlemp Buiisixe ay) Jo uojuslel ayl e

1o ‘Buljjemp aininy Jo pasodoud sy} Jayye
10} 1n0Ae| B)IS 81n)ny 8|qeIdadoe Ue s|qeus Jou pjnom Buljjemp pauieial 8y jo Buiis sy e
EIETIY
pabelnoosip si sBuljjamp pauieial Bunsixa Jo Jeas 8y} o} sbuljjemp mau Jo Juswdojansp ay |

‘Juswdojanap sy} jo Jed se pasodoud aie sajuodjeq oN
jaw sjdidound 4

‘sapadoud
pue sbuljjomp bujuiolpe wouy Buiusaids 1oy paau ay} aonpalt 0} paubisap ag p|noys saluodjeq

"sBujuado Joop pue smopuim

0} 90eds ||em jo uoipodoud Jejiwis e Bujuiejuiew pue yosod
JuUOJ} puUB SJoop ‘smopuim ‘swloy jool paddiy pauoipodoid
Auejwis Buisn Aq adeosiaals ayy jo uiajed apedey
jueuiwop ay} yoadsal pjnom sbuljjemp pasodolid ay |

‘sBujuado Joop pue smopuim o0} adeds ||em jo uopuodoud ayy Buluieuieyy e

pue {SyepuelaA pue SIo0p ‘SMOPUIM ‘ Swio} Jood pauoflodold Apejwis Buisn e

wio4
jaw sjdidund 4 :Aq adeosyeanis ay) jo uieyped apedey Jueujwop ayj }oadsal pinoys sjuawdolaAsp |enuapisal ||y jing B ying
‘Buljlomp |oA8] Jamo) sjesedas
e aAoge pasodoud sbuljjemp |aAs] Jaddn ou ale aiay | .
Builemp |oA8| Jomo| 8y} Joj Ayjuswie pue SSa09e Jejos poob ainsus 0} Se 0S Bul|jomp [9AS] JOMO)
j9w ojdiound 4 ajeledas e jo aoeds uado ajeald papnjoas ay} Buiyoeoioud ploAe pjnoys sbuljjemp [aAs)] Jaddn
‘seale aoeds
uado ajeald papn|oas aAjoadsal Jiay} Jano Buiyoeosous
ploAe Ajjelauab pjnom Buljjemp yoea o siooyy Jaddn ay ] . .
pajoaye Ajasianpe jou si adeds ay} Jo Ajluswe pue A}jiqeasn ‘Ss800e Jejos Uy} 8INsud 0} seale
jow ajdidund 4 aoeds uado ajealld papn|oas Buiyoeosous pioAe pinoys Buljjemp awes sy} Jo s|aAs| Jooyy saddn
'$$9008
Jejos asiwixew o} pauopisod aq pjnom aoeds uado ajeAld
jaw ajdidund 4 'S$S9008 JB|0S as|wixew 0} pauolisod aq pjnoys aoeds uado ajeAlld
aoeds ay)
10 AJljIgeasn ay} asiWIXew 0} Se 0S aIn}uiny JoopiNo pue
$991AJ9S o)sawop ‘Buidesspue| Azepunod ajepowiwiodoe
0} 9|ge 8q pjnom seale adeds uado ajeAud [9A8] punols) .
aoeds ay} Jo A}jIgeasn sy} 8SIWIXeW 0} Se 0S aINjiuIN} JOOPINO pUE SBIIAISS D1ISBWIOP
jaw ojdidund 4 ‘Buideospue| Aiepunog a}epowwo29e 0} d|ge ag pjnoys seale aoeds uado ajeAlld [9A8] punols)
‘eale BUIAl| ulew 8y} Wolj 9|qISSad0e
ApoaJip aq pjnom yaiym Buijjamp yoes Joy aoeds uado
erenud sjqeasn “Ayenb poob apiroid pinom Buiiemp Loe3 ‘eale BulAl| ulew 8y} wouy a|qissacoe Ajjoalip Buljjamp aoeds

j9w ojdiound 4

yoea 1o} aoeds uado ajeald ajgqeasn ‘Ajijenb poob apiroid pjnoys syuswdojanap |eljuapisal ||y

uado ajeld

20343



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

:pInoys juswdojansp |enuspisay 9 s|eLsje
‘a)Is J0algns
Y} WoJj pue 0} 8040 pue Y|em 0} 8|ge 8q P|NOM SJUBPISSY
"a)is J08(qns ay} Jo 1sem-yinos w9z Ajerewixoidde
198.1)G 2.1\ Buoje uni €68 pUe 18 ‘gZ8 SaINol sng
jow sjdiound 4 ‘Bupjiem pue buljoAo ‘esn podsuedy olignd abeinooua o} sap|Ioe} 8|geyns payedo) Ajeyeldolddy
‘Buljlemp yoes Joj umoys a.e suiq Buljokoas pue ysiqany
jow ajdidund 4 a)sem |euoljelado jo Juswabeuew ay} Joy suoisiroid a6eIOlS 8|qelns apInoid
'S99} MAU JO YmoJB ainjn} 8y} 8}epowLIOdd. 0} SHOEqIaS
JusNs opiroud pinom juswdoerep pesodoud oy L 'S99} MAU JO ymolB aininy ay) 8yepowiwodde o) pue saal} Bunsixa
jow ajdiound 4 JO UOUB}al 8y} 8INSUB 0} (SJUBWASE( JO UOIIED0| 8y} Buipn|oul) SYOBGISS JUSIOINS BPIAOIH
‘Buiusaios o) pasu
8y} saonpal pue adeos}ealls puUE SHOBQ}ES ‘SEOUE}SWNDIID
a)Is ‘saoepalul [eluapisal Buisixe 0} AjoAlisuss
spuodsal uonejnoie pue buissew ‘yybiay Buiping
18y} ainsua Ajjesauab pjnom juswdojaaap pasodoid ay | . . .
Buiuesios 10j paau sy} seonpal pue adeos}esl)s pue SYOBGISS ‘SIOUBISWNDIID YIS ‘SOOBLS)UI
j8w ajdiound 4 |lenuapisal Bunsixa 0y AjoAllisuas spuodsas uonenamue Buissew ‘ybiay Buipjing yey) ainsug
‘uBisap anissed pue uolejuslio Buissaippe
Aq wuoy }Inq 8y} jo Aousoiye ABieus pue souewlopad
Jewuay} asiwixew pjnom juswdojaasp pasodoid ay | oouewopad ouqe) pue uBisep anssed
j9w ajdiound » | ‘uonejusuo Buissalppe Agq wuoy }ing ay} jo Aouaiolye ABisus pue souewlopad [EWwISY} SSIWIXE|
‘saadoud Bujuiolpe jo yoopno
pue ssaooe Je|os ‘AoeAld ay} siapisuod jeyy ubisap
a)Is anisuodsal e ybnouy) sbuljjamp Buluiofpe jo Ayuswe
o) oniesad Ajleioush pinom juswdojansp pesodoud oy *saladoud Bujuiolpe jo yoopno pue ssaooe Jejos ‘Aoeaud
jow ajdidund 4 8y} sJapIsuod Jeyy ubisep ajis aAlsuodsal ybnodyy sbuijjemp Buluiolpe jo Ajuswe ay) aAlesaid
:pInoys juswdojanap [epuapisey ubisaq oS

1pIing
abejuay paynuapl Aue o} Jusoelpe jou si a)s 8y |

jaw sjdidound 4

"abejuoy 9y} Wolj WooJ auo Jo yydap ayj 1ses)| Je yoeq suoioss Jaybly Buies e

pue ‘Buip|ing mau a8y} Jo suopoas Jaybiy jo Ay IA 8y} Buls|

IN e
‘Buip|ing Jueoubis Buunoqybiau ay} jo ybiay ay) Buipaaoxa JoN e

:Aq abejuay
Buluiolpe ayj 10adsaui pjnoys juswdojaaap |jyul ‘sbuipjing abejlay paniuapl o} Jusdelpe says uQ

20344



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

‘seale 9oeds uado ajeAlld papn|oas pue swool ajgelgey
Buuiofpe uo syoedwi asiou aney Aew Aay} aloym

pue seale aoeds uado ajeAld papnjoas UIYIM S9DIAISS
Buip|ing pue d13sawWop JO UoI}e0| 8U) ploAe Ajjetauab

0} paubisap usaq sey Juswdolanap pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidund 4

‘seale aoeds uado
ajeAud papnjoas pue swood a|qeygey Buluiolpe uo sjoedwi asiou aney Aew Aay) aJayp e

pue saluoojeq Buipnjour ‘seale eoeds uado ajeAld papnjoas UIYIAN  ©

:$801AJ9S BUIp|INg pUB D}SBWOP JO UOIEDO| B} PIOAE 0} paubisep ag

‘so|adoud Bujuiolpe 1o 19a.}s 8y} wouy
U9aSs 9( JOU SEe 0S Pausalos 1o pauolisod Ajgjendoidde

pue juawdojanap ay} Jo ubisap ayy ojul pajesbajul X S9OIAIS
Ajlensia aq p|noo saoiaIas Bulpjing pue osawoq sapedo.d Buiuolpe Buipjing
10 }981)S 9y} WO} UBSS 8 JouU 0} SB 0S Paudalds Jo pauolyisod Ajejersdosdde pue Buipjing Builo
jaw s|didund 4 ay} Jo ubisep ay) ojul pajelbajul A|[ENSIA a1e s82IAI9S Bulp|ing pue d13sawop |[e jey} ainsug v“mE _”_m_h\wm
:pInoys juswdojansp [elUBPISAI MBU ‘S)uapIsal aininy Jo Ajuswe pue wieal olgnd ‘sejadold S90IAISS
Juaoelpe ‘adeos)joalls ay) Uo saolAIBs Buip|ing pue dl3sawop Jo Joedwi 8y} asiwiulW O} JOpIo U] olsawoq
‘Buip|ing 8y} Jo 8} 8y} Jo} ainpus 0} pajoadxs s|qeuoseal
4 UeDd Jey} saysiuly pue sjelsiew jusiole ABisus
pue 90In0sal ‘eduBUSIUIBW MO| JO UORDB|8S YbBnoly}
sjuawdojanap |enuapisal Jo Ajljiqeuleisns pue Alljigepioye
w:_omco_ mcﬂﬂ_w_&_xwe u_wo\sVEmEmh_gmw vmmoaﬂ._u mw_. “Buiping ay1 Jo ay &y} Joj ainpus 0} pajoadxa Ajgeuosesl
: o a0 UBDd Jey) Saysiul pue sjelsjew Juaiole ABious pue 80InN0sal ‘@duBUSIUIBW MO| JO UOIIOS|9S
jaw sjdidund 4 ay} ybnouy) syuswdojanap |eruapisal jo AJjigeurelsns pue Ayjigeploye Bujobuo ay) asiwixep
‘Buyjielap
|eanjos)Iyoe pue saysiul Jnojod ‘sjelsjew jo aysjed
a|dwis Jua)sisuod e asn pjnom juawdojaaap pasodoid ay |
jow aydidund 4 ‘Buljiejap |elnjos}iyole pue saysiul SIN0j0 ‘s|elsiew Jo apsjed a|dwis JUSISISUOD B asn
‘s|elis}ew Jo asn aA}edal dAISS9IXS
10 s9oBJNS paje|ndileun ‘Buasys Jusawad pasapual
Aue apnjoul jou pjnom juswdojaasp pasodoud ay | s{eLe1ew Jo asn sAnyedas
jow a|didund 4 BAISSB0XD pue S$80BLNS paje|noeun ‘Bunesys Juswad palspual Se Yyons sjeusiew Buisn ploay
‘saysiuy
1o sjeusjew Buip|ing ajA1s [elISNpuUl 10 |BI10JSWWOD
Aue apnjoul jou pjnom juswdojaasp pasodoud ay |
jow ajdiound 4 'saysiuly pue sjeuayew Buip|ing 8}A}s [el}snpul JO [B12JaWIWOD JO 8Sh 8U} PIOAY
‘|lona) Jooy} 3s4ij Je Buippejo [sued
pue pajopual JO UOIeUIqUOD B PUE [9A3] J0Of} punoJb je
301q 80e} Jo asudwod pjnom juswdojaaap pasodoid ay ]
jaw sjdidund 4 ‘sasodind |enuapisal 1oy paubisap ale Jey} saysiuly pue sjeusjew buiping ajqenp ‘Ajijenb asn saysiul4

20345



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

‘pasodoud
ale seale BulAl| ulew [9A8] punoub Jnoyym sbuljjemp oN

jJaw sjdidund 4

'SR ¥ €-G0°SS ‘LB 9 'L-¥0'SS ‘G-€0°'GS
SOSNE|D JO SpJepuels ay) jJeaw seale BuiAl ulew [9A8] punolb noypm sBuijjemp jey) ainsug

‘Bulu®8I0S BAISSBOXD
10} paau 8y} 8onpal 0} Pajedo| pue paubisep aq pjnom
SMOPUIM WO0J 8|qejiqeH "pasodoid aie sajuoojeq oN

j9w ojdiound 4

‘BuIuS8I0S BAISSBOX® 0}
pasu sy} @onpal 0} Pajedo| pue paubisep 8ie SMOPUIM WOOJ B|GE}IGEY PUB S8IUOJJEe] Jey} 84nsu]

*Swoou a|qeliqey o} 1ybl| PaMoLIOg Uo Soue|al
ploAe 0} paubisep usaq sey juswdolaaap pasodoid sy

jow a|didund 4

'swool a|qe}iqey o} 3ybi| pamo.iog uo souelal PIOAE 0} paubisep ag

‘9oeds uado ajeald pue
eale BUIAl| ulew 8y} usamiaq AJAIJOBUUOD dABY SINOAR|
Buljlemp ey ainsus pinom juswdojaasp pasodoud ay |

jaw ojdidund 4

‘aoeds
uado ajeAld pue eale BulAl| ulew By} Usamiaq ANAIOBUUOD dABY SINOAE| Buljjomp jey) ainsug

:pInoys juswdojonsp [enuspisay

Auawy
Jeusaju|

20346



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

“a)Is 10algns
8y} Jo Jeals ay} je aoeds uado jo auids e aq pjnom alay |

jaw sjdidund 4

‘ooeds uado papn|oss ajeAld jos8j01d
pue saniunyoddo Buideospue| asiwixew o) saadold jo Jeas ay) je aoeds uado Jo sauids uiejay

‘[oA9)
Jaddn ayj je pajeledas aq 0} pasodoud a.e sbuljjemp ay L

jaw sjdidund 4

‘{[oA9] Jaddn ay} je sbuljjemp usamiaq uoneledas apinocld

"S9OUEB)SWNDIIO 8)IS 0}
puodsal pjnom pue Jajoeleyd wloy }ing Buljieasaid Bupsixa
10 9[e9s ay) Joadsal pjnom juswdojanap pasodoid ay |

j9w ajdiound 4

‘odeos}esl}s pue SeoUBISWNDIID B)iS 0} Spuodsal
pue Jsjoeseyd wuoy }jing Buljieasld Bunsixe Jo |eos oy} sjoadsal Wwloy JiNg 8y} Jey) ainsus

wiog
:pINoys jJusido|ansp [enuapisey Hing @ Jing

‘Buiousy

juoly ybiy Jo Bujussids BAISS9IXd 10} padu ay} pPIoAe

0} Buljjlemp yoes jo Jeal 1o apis 8y} je aoeds uado sjeaud
papn|oas apiroid pjnom yuswdolaaap pasodold ay | ‘Buiouay Juody ybiy Jo Bujusalos BAISSSIXS 10} paau 8y ploAe 0} Buljjomp ooeds

jaw ojdidund 4

yoea Jo Jeal Jo apis ay} je 8oeds uado ajealld papn|oas apiaoid pinoys Juswdo|aAsp |eluapisay

uado ajeAld

"Joal)s ay) ul sebeseb pue spodied Jo 8oUBUILOP JOAO Y}
juanald pue Buideospue| Jos Joy Ajuniioddo ay) asiwixew
pInom yaiym Aemssaooe a|buls e 0} pajiwi| 8q pjnom
3OBQ}OS U0} BY} UIyHIM ssad2e Jeo pue Buined ‘Bupied

jaw sjdidund 4

"198.1s 9y} u| sebeleb
pue spodied Jo 8ouBUIWOP JAAO 8y} Judaaald pue Buideospue| Jos 1o} Ajunuoddo ay) asiwixew
0} JBpJO Ul pajiwl| 89 PINOYs }oeqas Alepunog juoly 8y} Ulyiim ssadoe Jed pue Buined ‘Bursed

YipIm pue
Kiepunoq

juouy
‘s)oeq)as

‘suapieb Jeal pue juouy Ul seal) Adoued
Alenoiued ‘isjoeleyo adeospue| e ajealo o} Buideospue|
Buisn jo ajqedeo aq pjnom juswdojaaap pasodoid ay|

jaw sjdidund 4

saladoud Bujuiolpe Jo oono ayj J0a3j0.4d 0} pue ‘suapieb Jeal pue juody Ul seal} Adoued
AlJenaied ‘Jsjoereyd padeospue| e 8jeald 0y buideospue| asn pinoys juawdol|anap |eluapisay

Buideospue]

‘[@A8] punoub Buipnioul ybiay ul sAaioys
OM} JO wnwixew e aq pjnom juswdojanap pasodoid ay |

jaw sjdidound 4

‘[oA8] punoub Buipnjoul
‘skai0}s z 0} dn S| gzZHO pue |LZYO ay) ulyum pue| oy Jybiay Buip|ing wnwixew pasjaid ay |

pUIET]
Bulp|ing

Juaswdojansp
Ayisuap wnipaw e ag pjnom juswdojansp pasodoud ay |

j9w ojdiound 4

‘Ajisuap wnipaw s| ealy abuey) [ejuswalou| ay} Joy 8dA) Buisnoy pasayeld ayl

adAy Buisnoy
paliajaid

(Z49) auoz |enpuapisay |eiauan — sealy abuey) jejuawaiouj Joj sajdiound ubisaq £'¢-60°2Z @sne|

20347



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

‘salpadoud Bujuiolpe usalos

pinom siy} pue papiroid aq pjnom Buideospue| Alepunoq
Jeal pue apIs Jualdyns ‘Yyons sy "¢ Bulemq Jeau Buipnjoul
SalepuUNo( JeaJ uld)ses pue Alepunog apls uiayuou buoje
soa1) Adoued Jo ymolb ainny sy} Bujepowwoode pue
Bunueld jo sjqedeo aq pjnom yuswdojarap pasodoid ay|

‘wdg pue weq} je ¢ Buliamq

pasodold ay} wouiy Bumopeysiano awos Aq pajosje

8q p|nom dpe|9 dY L € Je Yinos ayj 0} ajis au} AluQ

‘¢ Buljeam pasodoud ay) woly Buimopeysiano Aq pajoaye
87 Jou PINOM }93.1)S 9BPS\ 91/9 PUE 9t/G e Ised au}

0} sayis ay] "¢ Buijjemq pasodoud ayy wouy Buimopeysiano
Aq pajoaye ag jou pjnom }ses-ypou ayj o0} }oa1S

abpap\ v 1e auis ay) ‘Buimopeysiano o} spiebal Y

‘pajuelb y ‘pwiad

JO UOIIIPUOD B BIA PaN1}0aJ 87 UED SIY| “AHusWE JIdy}
Buiuiwispun ‘}Jeans abpap 9/9 PUe 91/G e saipadoid
Bunsixe ayy Jo seale aoeds uado sjeald papn|oss sy}
3OO0BA0 Aj}08JIp PINOM pue Juswalinbas wy" | wnwiuiw
oy} yum A|dwod Jou pjnom asay "[9A3] JOO[} paysiul
aA0ge WGG | JO SYBIBY |IS WNWIUIW YIM SMOPUIM
1UBIYBIY 89 Y10g PINOM SMOPUIM WOO0IPaq |9A8] Jaddn
Buioey yses s,g Builemq ‘Buioolsano oy Joadsal Y

‘aoeds
uado ajeAld papnijoss Bujuiolpe josj01d pue sapjunyoddo
Buideospue| asiwixew pjnom ji se pajoadsal si saadoid

Buiuiolpe Jo Ayuswe sy} pue eale 8y} Jo JojoeIEYD BININy
pauuap! 8y} Jey) ainsus o} paubisap usaq Sey JI Jonemoy
‘Buljjemp Aa10}s s|gnop e aq 0} pasodoud si ¢ Buljlemg

*suol}puod o} joalgns ‘yow ajdiduLd 4

*S90BUB)UI BAlISUSS Bululofpe wou passaoal |am ale sjusuodwoo Aaioys saddn e

‘sanadoud
Buluiolpe uaaios 0} papiroid aq ued Buideospue| Alepunog Jeal pue apis JusldPNg e

‘Ajinjew o} seal}
Adoued jo ymoub ainyny pue Bupueld ay) 108)e Ajosiaape jou saop ying Buipingayy e

‘senadoud Buunoqybiau
Jo Ajuswe ay) 10aye A|9sSIanpe Jou Saop BuIMOopeySISAO Jojpue BujooaA) e

‘eale ay} Jo Jajoeleyd
ain)ny paluapl 8y} Joaye AjasiaApe Jou saop Yng Buipjing auj jo 1oedwi [ensia 8y e
:2JayMm palapIsuod aq Aew 10| e Jo Jeas ay} 0} sbuljjomp Asio)som] e
‘aoeds uado papnjoas ayeAld Buluiolpe Buioasjosd pue saniunyoddo

Buideoaspue| Buisiwixew Aq payoadsal si saiuadoud Buluiolpe jo Ajluswe ay) pue eale ayy
10 J8j0BIBYD 84NN} palyjUSpPI 8y} 8nsus 0} Aalo}s 8|buls 8q pINoys 10| & uo Buljjemp Jsowesl ay |

10| 8y}

10 Jeal 8y} spJemo) sjuaws|d Aa10s 8|BUIS 0} SUOHISUEI}
YoIym wioy Jjing e ui Buynsal ‘sjusuodwod [aAs| punolb
8y} syoeq)es JajealB yum papiroid ale sjusuodwon [9As)
J1addn sy} ‘1onemoy ‘Aa10)s B|gnop g 0S|e pinom Jeas sy}
0} ¢ Bullemq “Aa10}s 8|gnNOp 87 PNOM B)IS BY} JO B1USD
au} ut z Buljjem@ pue sjis ay) Jo Juoyy ayy Je | Buljjemg

jaw sjdidound 4

'JO| @Y} JO Jeal 8y} 0} sjuawa|e Aaiols a|buls 0} Bujuolisuesy
‘9)IS B JO 84)UD pUB JUOJ) BY} SPJEMO} WO} }|ING JO SjUBWa|e Jaybiy pue asusjul 810w UOHISOd

20348



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)

(Cont.)

'$IN0J02 pue s|elsjew
‘SWJO0J Ul UOIJBLIBA ‘8INjX8} ‘JSBIU0D JO asn oy ybnoiyy
paje|noie ||am aq pjnom juswdojeasp pasodoid ay )

19w ojdiound 4

'SIN0J0D pue S|elsjew ‘swioy Ul
UOIJBLIEA ‘BIN)X8) JSEIUO0D JO 8SN By} YBnouy) paje|ndile [|am aq pinoys JuswdojeAsp [eiuaplisey

‘Alepunoq

UJBYMOU 8U} WOl WgQ'Z YOeqIds aq pinom ¢ Buljlemg

JO ||lem |aAs] Jaddn ulaypou 8y} pue Alepunoq uidynos
BU} WO WYL ¢ 3OBqISS 89 pInom ¢ Buljjemq Jo ||em

|oAs| Jaddn uiayinos 8y} ‘Alepunoq ulelses sy} Wolj W9's
3oeqies aq pjnom ¢ Buijiemq 4o [jem [aAs] Jaddn ui)ses
8y "eale 8y} JO JoJoBIBYD SININ} PaLIUSPI BU) Jodle
Al@slanpe jou pjnom ynq Buipjing ayy jo 1oedwi [ensia ay |

20349



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.2.3 Town Planning Application - No. 1 The Glade, Dandenong (Planning Application No. PLN19/0030)
(Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3 FINANCE AND BUDGET

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements

File Id:
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: Annual Financial Statements
Performance Statement
Report Summary

The preliminary audit of Council’s Annual Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the
year ended 30 June 2019 has been completed by the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office (VAGO) and
reviewed by Council’'s Audit Advisory Committee.

The 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of Council
and the Dandenong Market Pty Ltd. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-entity
balances and transactions have been eliminated in full.

Prior to final certification by VAGO, Council is required to adopt-in-principle the 2018-19 Annual
Financial Statements and submit them for certification. As part of the certification process, VAGO
may require further minor amendments to the Statements and Council authorisation for the Principal
Accounting Officer to make these required changes is sought.

Council is also required to authorise two Councillors to certify these documents in accordance with
the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. The signed statements will be
incorporated in Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council adopts-in-principle the Annual Financial Statements and
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019 and authorise Council’s Principal Accounting
Officer to make minor amendments to the Statements as agreed between Council and VAGO. Further
that Council nominate Councillor Youhorn Chea and Audit Advisory Committee member Councillor
Kirwan to sign the 2018-19 Financial Statements and Performance Statement once agreed changes
have been implemented.
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2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

Background
Signing of Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019

The agents of the Victorian Auditor-General, DMG Financial, have completed the audit of the Annual
Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019. An Audit Closing
Report was presented to the Audit Advisory Committee on 30 August 2019. The statements remain
interim until signed by the Auditor-General. Consequently, Council has not received audit clearance
for the attached draft Financial Statements and Performance Statement.

The Audit Advisory Committee is satisfied with the statements and recommends to Council that the
statements be adopted in principle and referred to VAGO for final certification.

For the audit to proceed, Council now needs to resolve to (subject to any minor amendments noted
under “Consultation” in this report):

e  Approve “in principle” the draft Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

e Authorise two Councillors to sign the 30 June 2019 Financial Statements and Performance
Statement once any changes recommended or agreed to with the Auditor-General have been
made.

The Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019 will then be
incorporated into Council’s Annual Report, which is due for lodging with the Minister by 30 September
2019. The Annual Report will then be formally presented to Council as soon as possible after this
lodgement for formal adoption.

Proposal

That Council adopt-in-principle the Financial Statements and Performance Statement for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’
Opportunity

e  [eadershipby the Council — The leading Council
Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:
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Opportunity

e  An open and effective Council

The strategies and plans that contribute to these outcomes are as follows:
° Financial Management Policy

Financial Implications

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows,
Statement of Capital Works and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose
financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989,
and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The draft Financial Statements are consolidated accounts of Council and the Dandenong Market Pty
Ltd. These statements indicate the financial performance for the year and the financial position at 30
June 2019. Whilst the audit has not yet been finalised, it is not expected that there will be any major
changes as a result.

The Comprehensive Income Statement highlights that Greater Dandenong City Council’s operating
surplus for the year is a consolidated accounting surplus result of $31.28 million in 2018-19. To reach
the total comprehensive income result, Council has recorded a net revaluation decrement in fixed
asset values of $48.73 million resulting in a consolidated Comprehensive Income deficit of $17.45
million in total. Council is reminded that these outcomes are accounting based and do not represent
the actual ‘cash’ outcome of Council for the financial year.

Detailed analysis of operational financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2019 is included
in the June 2019 Financial Report and illustrates all significant variations between final outcomes
and forecast results and provides a reconciliation to the cash result.

The Performance Statement reports Council’s performance in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. It contains the
results of the prescribed indicators and measures for service performance, financial performance
and sustainable capacity indicators. The Performance Statement is required to be audited and is to
be published in the Annual Report 2018-19.

Consultation

The agents of the Auditor-General, DMG Financial, have completed the audit of the Annual Financial
Statements and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019. The Audit Advisory
Committee met on 30 August 2019 to review in detail the draft Financial Statements and Performance
Statement. The meeting was attended by DMG Financial who presented the audit outcomes. No
material issues were raised. The Audit Advisory Committee recommends to Council that the statements
be adopted-in-principle.
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Conclusion

It is recommended that Council adopt in principle the Financial Statements and Performance Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and advance these statements to VAGO for final certification.

Recommendation

That Council:

1. adopts-in-principle the Financial Statements and the Performance Statement for the
year ended 30 June 2019;

2. authorises the Principal Accounting Officer to make changes to the Financial and
Performance Statements, as agreed with the Auditor-General and that the Audit
Advisory Committee be consulted prior to making any material amendment and that
material amendments be communicated to Council as soon as practical; and

3. Nominates Councillor Youhorn Chea and Councillor Kirwan to sign the 30 June 2019
Financial and Performance Statements once any changes agreed with the auditor
have been made.

MINUTE 1171

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That Council:

1. adopts-in-principle the Financial Statements and the Performance Statement for the
year ended 30 June 2019;

2. authorises the Principal Accounting Officer to make changes to the Financial and
Performance Statements, as agreed with the Auditor-General and that the Audit
Advisory Committee be consulted prior to making any material amendment and that
material amendments be communicated to Council as soon as practical; and

3. Nominates Councillor Youhorn Chea and Councillor Kirwan to sign the 30 June 2019
Financial and Performance Statements once any changes agreed with the auditor
have been made.

CARRIED
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City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,
Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Michelle Hansen CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Date : 9 September 2019

In our opinion the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly the financial transactions of
the City of Greater Dandenong for the year ended 30 June 2019 and the financial position of the
Council as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any
particulars in the Financial Statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulation 2014 on 9 September 2019 to certify the Financial Statements in their final form.

Youhorn Chea
Councillor

Date : 9 September 2019

Matthew Kirwan
Councillor

Date : 9 September 2019

John Bennie PSM
Chief Executive Officer

Date : 9 September 2019
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Independent Auditor's Report
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Income

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contributions - monetary

Contributions - non-monetary

Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

Fair value adjustments for investment property
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee costs

Materials and services

Depreciation and amortisation

Bad and doubtful debts

Borrowing costs

Fair value adjustments for investment property
Other expenses

Total expenses

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future
periods

Net asset revaluation decrement

Impairment (loss) reversal

Total comprehensive result

Note

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.4
3.5
3.5

3.6
6.4
3.7

4.1
4.2
43
4.4
4.5
6.4
4.6

9.1(a)
9.1(a)

Consolidated

Consolidated

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
140,943 132,808
9,471 9,359
8,199 8,026
34,309 33,029
4,068 4,281
5,269 3,375
7,735 19,169
457 141

- 1,025

15,683 15,481
226,134 226,694
(75,756) (72,378)
(70,130) (65,557)
(29,064) (28,202)
26 (1,649)
(3,131) (3,419)
(907) -
(15,893) (8,555)
(194,855) (179,760)
31,279 46,934
(48,728) (17,132)
- 47
(17,449) 29,849

The above Comprehensive Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

- Page 3 -
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2019

Consolidated Consolidated

Note 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1(a) 163,607 154,591
Trade and other receivables 5.1(c) 22,929 19,454
Other assets 5.2 4,473 3,742
Total current assets 191,009 177,787
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 5.1(c) 325 325
Other financial assets 5.1(b) 230 230
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.2 2,136,629 2,160,766
Investment property 6.4 12,827 11,330
Total non-current assets 2,150,011 2,172,651
Total assets 2,341,020 2,350,438
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5.3(a) 26,740 21,301
Trust funds and deposits 5.3(b) 35,311 40,218
Provisions 5.5(c) 17,351 16,412
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 5.4 8,634 3,301
Total current liabilities 88,036 81,232
Non-current liabilities
Trust funds and deposits 5.3(b) 900 1,287
Provisions 5.5(c) 1,599 1,351
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 5.4 49,891 48,525
Total non-current liabilities 52,390 51,163
Total liabilities 140,426 132,395
Net assets 2,200,594 2,218,043
Equity
Accumulated surplus 876,273 857,413
Reserves 9.1(c) 1,324,321 1,360,630
Total equity 2,200,594 2,218,043

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated

Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2019 Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,218,043 857,413 1,290,865 69,765
Surplus for the year 31,279 31,279 - -
Net asset revaluation decrement 9.1(a) (48,728) - (48,728) -
Revaluation reversal - disposed assets 9.1(a) - 330 (330) -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1(b) - (21,942) - 21,942
Transfers from other reserves 9.1(b) - 9,193 - (9,193)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,200,594 876,273 1,241,807 82,514
Consolidated
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2018 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,188,194 823,671 1,308,037 56,486
Surplus for the year 46,934 46,934 - -
Net asset revaluation decrement 9.1(a) (17,132) - (17,132) -
Revaluation reversal - disposed assets 9.1(a) - 87 (87) -
Impairment (loss)/reversal in revaluation
reserve 9.1(a) 47 - 47 -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1(b) - (15,849) - 15,849
Transfers from other reserves 9.1(b) - 2,570 - (2,570)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,218,043 857,413 1,290,865 69,765

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contributions - monetary

Interest received

Trust funds and deposits taken

Other receipts

Net GST refund

Employee costs

Materials and services

Trust funds and deposits repaid

Other payments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Repayment of other interest-bearing liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

Financing arrangements

Restrictions on cash assets

Consolidated

Consolidated

2019 2018

Inflows/ Inflows/

(Outflows) (Outflows)

Note $'000 $'000

140,317 132,752

6,739 7,259

8,409 9,247

34,394 33,085

3,941 6,449

5,025 3,353

3,714 2,916

31,955 39,180

13,468 12,566

10,376 8,156

(74,515) (74,073)

(82,796) (69,014)

(36,439) (32,540)

(8,446) (5,420)

9.2 56,142 73,916

(51,528) (38,231)

857 648

(50,671) (37,583)

(3,154) (3,445)

10,000 -

(3,301) (3,086)

- (1,255)

3,545 (7,786)

9,016 28,547

154,591 126,044

5.1(a) 163,607 154,591
5.6
5.1

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Property
Land 1,118 -
Total land 1,118 -
Buildings 22,453 13,780
Leasehold improvements 41 33
Total buildings 22,494 13,813
Investment property 2,337 -
Total investment property 2,337 -
Total property 25,949 13,813
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 2,942 1,692
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 179 28
Computers and telecommunications 178 139
Library books 842 980
Total plant and equipment 4,141 2,839
Infrastructure
Roads 6,873 9,742
Bridges 60 191
Footpaths and cycleways 1,999 1,143
Drainage 3,095 1,123
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 1,860 2,861
Parks, open space and streetscapes 7,220 4,173
Off street car parks 2,377 1,256
Total infrastructure 23,484 20,489
Total capital works expenditure 53,574 37,141
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 22,771 12,052
Asset renewal expenditure 21,025 18,614
Asset upgrade expenditure 9,778 6,475
Asset expansion expenditure - -
Total capital works expenditure 53,574 37,141

The above Statement of Capital Works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Report

Overview

The City of Greater Dandenong was established in December 1994 with the amalgamation of the former
City of Springvale and former City of Dandenong, and is a body corporate. The Council’'s main office is
located at 225 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong, 3175.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement
of Capital Works and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report
complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 comprise the results of
operations for both Council and its wholly owned subsidiary, namely the Dandenong Market Pty Ltd.

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are
based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in
future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in
the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings and infrastructure (refer to note 6.2 and 8.4).
- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to note 6.2).

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to note 5.5 (a)).
- the determination of landfill provisions (refer to note 5.5 (b)).
- other area requiring judgements.

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where
appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure
has been made of any material changes to comparatives.

(b) Change in accounting policies and restatement of items in the financial statement due to

The following financial statements and accompanying notes have been amended to reflect reclassification.
- Comprehensive income statement and notes 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 and 4.2

- Statement of Cash Flows

- Commitments - note 5.7(b)

- People and relationships - note 7

Provision for doubtful debts - change in methodology from an aged basis to an expected credit loss model

in compliance with changes in Australian Accounting Standard AASB 9 Financial Instruments which results
a change in accounting policy (note 4.4).

- Page 8 -
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Notes to the Financial Report

Note 1 Performance against budget

1.

-

The budget comparison notes compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual
performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any
material variances. Council has adopted a materiality threshold of greater than 10 per cent and greater than $1
million or where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the
materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 12 June 2018. The Budget was based on
assumptions that were relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for
income and expense targets in this budget in order to meet Council’s planning and financial performance targets
for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity resulting from asset
revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

Income and expenditure

Consolidated Council Council Council
Actual Actual Budget Variance
2019 2019 2019 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Ref
(note 6.3) Fav (Unfav)
Income
Rates and charges 140,943 141,036 139,575 1,461
Statutory fees and fines 9,471 9,471 7,950 1,521 111
User fees 8,199 8,199 9,628 (1,429) 112
Grants - operating 34,309 34,309 28,148 6,161 113
Grants - capital 4,068 4,068 1,256 2,812 114
Contributions - monetary 5,269 5,269 2,398 2,871 115
Contributions - non-monetary 7,735 7,735 15,000 (7,265) 1.1.6
Net gain on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment 457 457 661 (204) 117
Other income 15,683 11,368 10,350 1,018 118
Total income 226,134 221,912 214,966 6,946
Expenses
Employee costs (75,756) (74,820) (76,894) 2,074 119
Materials and services (70,130) (66,957) (63,726) (3,231) 1.1.10
Bad and doubtful debts 26 72 (1,097) 1,169 1111
Depreciation and amortisation (29,064) (29,054) (29,945) 891 1.1.12
Borrowing costs (3,131) (3,131) (3,171) 40
Fair value adjustments for investment
property (907) (907) - (907) 1.1.13
Other expenses (15,893) (15,732) (4,767) (10,965) 1.1.14
Total expenses (194,855) (190,529) (179,600) (10,929)
Surplus for the year 31,279 31,383 35,366 (3,983)
-Page 9-
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Notes to the Financial Report
1.1 Income and expenditure (continued)
Explanation of material variations

Ref Item Explanation

1.1.1 Statutory fees and fines Statutory fees and fines are $1.52 million higher than the Original Budget
due mainly to:
- higher than anticipated parking fine income and Infringement Court cost
recoveries ($1.26 million).
- reclassification of subdivision, plan checking and stormwater fees from
User Fees to Statutory Fees to reflect the statutory nature of these fees
($333,000).

1.1.2 User fees User fee income was $1.43 million lower than the Original Budget due to:
- reclassification of subdivision, plan checking and stormwater fees from
User Fees to Statutory Fees to reflect the statutory nature of these fees
($333,000).

- lower Commercial Home and Community Care fee income due to a
reduction in the number of clients following the transition of the former
Home Care Package clients to Mecwacare, the effect of which was not
known at the time of adopting the Original Budget, but it was adjusted
through the Mid Year Budget Review ($384,000).

- lower parking ticket machine income caused by a reduction in the
number of parking bays requiring payment and lower rates charged within
localities across Dandenong Central Activity District ($426,000).

1.1.3 Grants - operating Operating grant income was $6.16 million higher than the Original Budget
due to:
- higher Community Services program grant funding than expected in the
Original Budget for Family Day Care, New Directions - Mothers and
Babies, Child First, Playgroups Initiative, Child First, Right@Home,
Enhanced Maternal and Child Health, Refugee Immunisation, Drug
Strategy and Market Street Occasional Care Centre Community and
Sustainability Support. This was due to a number of factors - grant
funding relating to 2019-20 programs being received early, growth funding
received or grant funding not known at the time of adopting the 2018-19
Original Budget ($2.47 million).
- higher than anticipated Community Care grant income due to the
recognition of all grant funding received, however, the Original Budget
was based on the grant funding expected to be recognised from
estimated target achievement levels ($1.86 million).
- the early distribution of 50% of the 2018-19 and 2019-20 Financial
Assistance Grant funding allocation in June of the preceding financial
years. The 2018-19 actuals reflect 50% of the 2018-19 allocation and
50% of the 2019-20 allocation. Whilst 100% has effectively been
received in 2018-19, both of the allocations were higher than expected in
the Original Budget representing a favourable variance of $791,000.

1.1.4 Grants - capital Capital grant income was $2.81 million higher than the Original Budget
due to:
- grant funding not known at the time of adopting the Original Budget for
capital projects including Ross Reserve Upgrade ($1.22 million), two
Black Spot projects ($416,000) and Safe System Road Infrastructure
Program ($443,000).

- Page 10 -

20391



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

1.1 Income and expenditure (continued)
Explanation of material variations (continued)

Ref Item Explanation

1.1.5 Contributions - monetary The $2.87 million favourable variance in monetary contributions is due to:
- the requirement to recognise Community Infrastructure Levies as
income ($1.54 million). These levies were previously accounted for in the
Balance Sheet. The $1.54 million income recognised in 2018-19 has
been transferred to reserves.

- a greater level of economic activity than anticipated, resulting in Council
receiving higher than budgeted open space contributions from developers
($793,000). These contributions are restricted in their use and are
transferred to reserves at the end of the financial year which are set aside
for open space projects. The timing of receipt and amount of open space
contributions are difficult to predict.

- Developer Contribution Plan (DCP) funding of $343,000 in relation to the
Keysborough South Industrial Buffer capital project which carried over
from 2017-18, so was not included in the Original Budget.

1.1.6 Contributions - These contributions represent assets that are transferred to Council’'s
non-monetary ownership from developers upon completion of subdivisions. Refer to
note 3.5 and 6.2 for further details about contributed assets. In 2018-19,
they related mainly to land under roads, bridges and footpaths. The
number of subdivisions that are completed vary from year to year and the
timing of these asset transfers is outside of Council’s control and difficult
to predict. This item is a non-cash accounting entry.

1.1.7 Net gain/(loss) on disposal ~ The disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment was
of property, infrastructure, $204,000 unfavourable to the Original Budget mainly due to higher than

plant and equipment expected cost of fleet sold ($214,000). This is a non-cash accounting
entry.
1.1.8 Other income The favourable variance of $1.02 million in other income is mainly

attributable to a higher than anticipated income for:

- interest return on investments ($1.86 million).

- unbudgeted contributions from developers for Council to undertake
corrective works at open space sites which did not meet the required
standard at the time of hand-over to Council ($277,000).

- recoveries for the Team 11 project driven by higher project costs
($208,000).

- asset protection reinstatement recoveries ($193,000).

The above favourable income variances are mostly offset by lower
recoveries from member councils in relation to a delay in Spring Valley
landfill works ($2.06 million).

1.1.9 Employee costs Employee costs were favourable to the 2018-19 Original Budget by $2.08
million due mainly to lower than anticipated salaries, overtime and
associated oncosts as a result of vacant positions, a delay in recruitment
and a number of grant funded programs that have been carried over to
the 2019-20 financial year. In addition, Fringe Benefits Tax was lower
than anticipated. These favourable variances were mostly offset by
higher temporary agency staff costs ($3.13 million).
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1.1 Income and expenditure (continued)

Explanation of material variations (continued)

Ref

Item

Explanation

1.1.10

Materials and services

The $3.23 million unfavourable variance is due to a number of factors:

- $5.16 million in expenditure in the capital program that was not able to
be capitalised to the asset register because it was not capital in nature, it
did not meet the capitalisation threshold or it related to non-Council
owned assets ($1.68 million relating to prior year and $3.48 million
relating to the current year).

- higher payments to educators in the Family Day Care program due to
unbudgeted growth funding not known at the time of adopting the Original
Budget ($985,000),

- partly offset by lower costs relating to a delay in Spring Valley landfill
works ($2.57 million).

1.1.11

Bad and doubtful debts

The favourable variance of $1.17 million in bad and doubtful debts is due
to a change in the provision for doubtful debts methodology from an aged
basis to an expected credit loss model in compliance with changes in
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 9 Financial Instruments (which
represents a change in accounting policy).

1.1.12

Depreciation and
amortisation

Depreciation expense was lower than the Original Budget due mainly to
finalisation of the 2017-18 year end fixed asset balances which occurred
after the adoption of the Original Budget. Depreciation expense was
revised down during the Mid Year Budget Review to $29.16 million which
is in line with the actual result of $29.06 million.

1.1.13

Fair value adjustments for
investment property

The fair value valuation of investment property is determined annually by
independent valuers. Changes to fair value are recorded in the Income
Statement each year. Council's investment properties decreased by
$907,000 in 2018-19, which is mainly due to the impact of a commercial
shop damaged by fire in 2019. This item is difficult to predict and is not
included in the Original Budget. It is a non-cash accounting entry.

1.1.14

Other expenses

The unfavourable variance of $10.97 million to the 2018-19 Original
Budget is due to:

- $4.85 million for Home and Community Care funding received in 2017-
18 and 2018-19 where Council is unable to achieve the required target
level. Council received advice in January 2019 from the Australian
Department of Health that $3.04 million relating to the funding period 1
July 2017 - 30 June 2018 is required to be returned (to be funded from
reserves). It is expected that further amounts will also be required to be
returned in relation to the current 2018-19 financial year ($1.81 million).

- $3.01 million in asset write offs which are not budgeted for as they are
difficult to predict and represent a non-cash accounting entry. The asset
write offs mainly relate to the renewal and replacement of roads, buildings
and footpaths.

- $1.64 million in capital program expenditure relating to non-Council
owned assets mainly for undergrounding of power lines in the Bangholme
Road and Afghan Precinct projects (represents contribution expenditure).
- $1.27 miillion relating to a developer reimbursement for expenditure in
excess of the mandated amounts on public open space improvements in
the Keysborough South Stages 2 and 3 areas. This amount is not
covered by the Development Contribution Plan (DCP).
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1.2 Capital works

Consolidated Council Council Council
Actual Actual Budget Variance
2019 2019 2019 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 Ref
Fav (Unfav)
Property
Land 1,118 1,118 3,000 1,882 121
Total land 1,118 1,118 3,000 1,882
Buildings 22,453 22,453 27,446 4,993 122
Leasehold improvements 41 41 100 59
Total buildings 22,494 22,494 27,546 5,052
Investment property 2,337 2,337 - (2,337) 1.23
Total investment property 2,337 2,337 - (2,337)
Total property 25,949 25,949 30,546 4,597
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 2,942 2,942 2,378 (564) 1.2.4
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 179 179 152 27)
Computers and telecommunications 178 178 130 (48)
Library books 842 842 1,161 319
Total plant and equipment 4,141 4,141 3,821 (320)
Infrastructure
Roads 6,873 6,873 7,793 920 1.25
Bridges 60 60 687 627 1.2.6
Footpaths and cycleways 1,999 1,999 1,795 (204)
Drainage 3,095 3,095 3,245 150
Recreational, leisure and community
facilities 1,860 1,860 2,226 366
Parks, open space and streetscapes 7,220 7,220 8,712 1,492 127
Off street car parks 2,377 2,377 1,087 (1,290) 1.2.8
Total infrastructure 23,484 23,484 25,545 2,061
Total capital works expenditure 53,574 53,574 59,912 6,338
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 22,771 22,771 27,811 5,040 1.29
Asset renewal expenditure 21,025 21,025 21,301 276
Asset upgrade expenditure 9,778 9,778 10,800 1,022 1.2.10
Total capital works expenditure 53,574 53,574 59,912 6,338
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1.2 Capital works (continued)

Explanation of material variations

Ref Item

Explanation

1.2.1 Land

Acquisitions of land were lower than the 2018-19 Original Budget by
$1.88 million due to a delay in the purchase of a land site for the
Keysborough South Community Hub ($3 million) partly offset by an
unbudgeted strategic land acquisition in Lonsdale Street, Dandenong
($1.12 million).

1.2.2 Buildings

Capital expenditure on buildings was lower than the 2018-19 Original
Budget by $4.99 million due to:

- Springvale Community Precinct project ($5.26 million, caused by a
delay in the multi-year project).

- Thomas Carroll Pavilion project ($1.95 million, due to redesign).

- Keysborough South Community Hub Building Design project ($1.00
million, due to the delay in acquiring a land site).

Partly offset by Alex Nelson Reserve Pavilion project ($1.38 million,
which was carried over from the prior financial year).

1.2.3 Investment property

The unfavourable variance of $2.34 million to the 2018-19 Original
Budget is due to an strategic property acquisition in Lonsdale Street,
Dandenong which was included in the 2019-20 Mid Year Budget
Review.

1.2.4 Plant, machinery and
equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment experienced an unfavourable variance
of $564,000 to the 2018-19 Original Budget due mainly to the purchase
of a specialised jet truck for Council's drainage network ($590,000)
which was carried over from the prior financial year, so wasn't included
in the 2018-19 Original Budget.

1.2.5 Roads

Capital expenditure on roads was lower than the 2018-19 Original
Budget by $920,000 due to:

- a total favourable variance of $1.52 million in the Local Road
Surface/Rehabilitation Program and Bangholme Road multi-year project
due to $1.80 million that was transferred to operating expenditure as it
could not be capitalised to the asset register, mainly caused by the
undergrounding of power lines and lighting (works on non-Council
assets).

- a combination of savings and a delay in the reserve funded
Development Contribution Plan (DCP) Perry Road South Upgrade
Design project ($620,000) with $244,000 to be carried over to the 2019-
20 financial year.

These favourable variances were partly offset by the Safe System Road
Infrastructure Program project which was grant funded and included in
the 2018-19 Mid Year Budget Review ($420,000) and $842,000 of major
road works transferred from operating expenditure as it was considered
capital in nature.

1.2.6 Bridges

The favourable variance of $627,000 to the Original Budget is due to a
delay in the DCP Lyndhurst Bridge and Bridge Rectification projects
($468,000 - both projects to be carried over to the 2019-20 financial
year) and lower than anticipated expenditure in relation to the municipal-
wide bridges renewal program ($159,000 program savings).
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1.2 Capital works (continued)

Explanation of material variations

Ref Item

Explanation

1.2.7 Parks, open space and
streetscapes

Capital expenditure on parks, open space and streetscapes was $1.49
million lower than the 2018-19 Original Budget due mainly to delays in
the following projects (to be carried over to the 2019-20 financial year):

- Springvale Road Boulevard ($2.09 million)

- Douglas Street, Noble Park - Streetscape Upgrade ($300,000)

- Robert Booth Reserve - Baseball Lighting ($177,000)

1.2.8 Off street car parks

Off street car parks experienced an unfavourable variance of $1.29
million to the 2018-19 Original Budget due mainly to the Tatterson Park
Car Park and Access Road ($1.01 million) and Metro 3175 ($232,000)
projects which were carried over from the 2017-18 financial year.

1.2.9 New asset expenditure

Lower than anticipated capital expenditure on new assets of $7.38
million relates to a delay in two substantial projects which are expected
to be carried over to 2019-20 (Springvale Community Precinct $5.26
million and Keysborough South Community Hub (land acquisition and
building design $4.00 million), partly offset by the Yarraman Oaks Early
Learning Facility project not included in the 2018-19 Original Budget as
it was carried over from the 2017-18 financial year ($833,000) and the
unbudgeted strategic land acquisition at 275 Lonsdale Street,
Dandenong ($1.12 million).

1.2.10 Asset upgrade expenditure

Asset upgrade expenditure was $1.02 million lower than anticipated due
to:

- Bangholme Road ($906,000) where a significant amount was
transferred to operating expenditure because it could not be capitalised
to the asset register.

- a delay in a number of projects which are expected to be carried over
to 2019-20 (Springvale Road Boulevard $644,000, Thomas Carroll
Pavilion $400,000, DCP Lyndhurst B1 Bridge $398,000).

- a combination of savings and a delay in the reserve funded
Development Contribution Plan (DCP) Perry Road South Upgrade
Design project ($620,000) with $244,000 to be carried over to the 2019-
20 financial year.

These favourable variances are partly offset by projects not included in
the 2018-19 Original Budget as they were carried over from the 2017-18
financial year (Alex Nelson Reserve $1.37 million and Robert Booth
Reserve Pavilion $705,000).
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Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its functions and activities through the following programs.

Chief Executive Office

The Office of the Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the operations of the organisation, and
carriage of the Strategic Risk Register. Each member of the executive management team reports to
the CEO.

Corporate Services

The Corporate Services directorate is responsible for a broad range of organisational functions
including financial planning, marketing and communications, governance, information and
telecommunications, organisational development and corporate planning. The departments which
make up this directorate include Financial Services, Information Technology, Governance, Customer
Service and Civic Facilities, Media and Communications; and People and Procurement.

Greater Dandenong Business

Greater Dandenong Business is responsible for Council’s major activity centres, economic
development, investment attraction and future growth. Attracting investment and showcasing business
are key roles in establishing Greater Dandenong as a regional capital. The departments which make
up Greater Dandenong Business include Economic Development, Activity Centres Revitalisation, and
South East Business Networks (SEBN).

City Planning Design and Amenity

The City Planning, Design and Amenity directorate is focused on the development of our built and
natural environments and ensuring that Council’s activities match the community’s future needs for
facilities, housing, and sustainability. It oversees the functions of Building Services, Planning and
Design, and Regulatory Services.

Engineering Services

Engineering Services is primarily focused on roads and footpaths, transport, parks and gardens, waste
services, recreational and sporting facilities and Council’s capital works program. It includes the
departments of City Projects and Asset Improvement, Infrastructure Services and Planning and
Transport and Civil Development.

Community Services

Community Services provides direct services to the community across a wide range of programs such
as sport and recreation, libraries, youth and families, children’s services, festivals and events, support
for older people and community advocacy. This directorate manages Community Care, Community
Arts, Culture and Libraries, Community Wellbeing and Community Development, Sport and
Recreation.

Non-attributable
The items that cannot be reliably attributable to a directorate. For example furniture, fixtures and

fittings that cannot be identified by a location or work in progress that cannot be easily allocated across
directorate.
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Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by program

2.1(b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

Surplus/ Grants Total

Income Expenses . . included in
(Deficit) X assets

income
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2019

CEO Services - (679) (679) - 12
City Planning, Design & Amenity 19,348 (16,861) 2,487 441 78,437
Community Services 24,741 (55,982) (31,241) 20,991 614,662
Corporate Services 141,591 (27,565) 114,026 12,246 306,167
Engineering Services 35,544 (83,545) (48,001) 4,434 1,339,849
Greater Dandenong Business 688 (3,932) (3,244) 265 125
Non-attributable* - (1,965) (1,965) - 617
Total for Council 221,912 (190,529) 31,383 38,377 2,339,869
Dandenong Market Pty Ltd** 4,222 (4,326) (104) - 1,151
Consolidated Total 226,134 (194,855) 31,279 38,377 2,341,020

Grants
Income Expenses Surpllu.sl included in Total
(Deficit) X assets

income
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2018

CEO Services 1 (613) (612) - 12
City Planning, Design & Amenity 17,199 (16,349) 850 404 74,921
Community Services 23,359 (47,402) (24,043) 19,333 647,548
Corporate Services 136,863 (26,228) 110,635 11,981 289,632
Engineering Services 43,341 (77,978) (34,637) 4,619 1,335,282
Greater Dandenong Business 1,675 (3,676) (2,001) 973 192
Non-attributable* - (3,290) (3,290) - 1,665
Total for Council 222,438 (175,536) 46,902 37,310 2,349,252
Dandenong Market Pty Ltd** 4,256 (4,224) 32 - 1,186
Consolidated Total 226,694 (179,760) 46,934 37,310 2,350,438

* Non-attributable represents income, expense, grant or asset items that are not specifically attributable to one of
the directorates.

** Dandenong Market Pty Ltd (DMPL) income, expense, grant and asset items are adjusted for consolidation
adjustment between Council and DMPL - refer note 6.3
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.1 Rates and charges

C lidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Council uses the Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the
municipal district. The CIV of a property is the value of the land and all improvements on it, and is
determined by independent valuers and certified by the Valuer General Victoria. The valuation base

used to calculate general rates for 2018-19 was $48.37 billion ($38.96 billion in 2017-18).

Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Farm

Cultural and recreational

Waste management charge - residential
Supplementary rates and rates adjustment
Maintenance levy

Interest on rates and charges

Total rates and charges

54,657 52,762
12,428 12,241
49,219 47,103
434 337
505 438
19,234 16,342
2,291 1,547
1,497 1,381
678 657
140,943 132,808

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1
January 2018 and the valuation is first applied to the rating period commencing 1 July 2018.

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices.
Supplementary rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a

supplementary rates notice issued.
3.2 Statutory fees and fines

Infringements and costs

Court recoveries

Building and town planning fees *
Subdivision *

Land information certificates
Election fines

Permits

Total statutory fees and fines

4,730 4,270
1,916 1,734
2,162 2,405
144 430
89 11

13 140
417 269
9,471 9,359

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service
has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first

occurs.

* Prior year comparative figures have been amended to reflect the reclassification of subdivision, plan
checking and storm water fees from user fees to statutory fees to reflect the statutory nature of these

fees.
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C lidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

3.3 User fees

Aged and health services 1,073 1,331
Child care/children's programs 999 950
Parking 3,360 3,250
Registration and other permits 1,789 1,458
Asset protection fees 364 348
Other fees and charges 614 689
Total user fees 8,199 8,026

User fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or Council has otherwise
earned the income.

Prior year comparative figures have been amended to reflect the reclassification of subdivision, plan
checking and storm water fees from user fees to statutory fees to reflect the statutory nature of these
fees.

3.4 Funding from other levels of government

Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants 25,102 26,342
State funded grants 13,275 10,968
Total grants received 38,377 37,310

a) Operating grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Financial Assistance Grants (via Victoria Grants Commission)* 12,206 11,941
Family day care 4,193 3,152
Family & Children 330 325
General home care 7,287 6,951
Libraries 152 110
Maternal and child health* 62 82
Volunteer - 16

Recurrent - State Government

Aged care 2,633 2,763
Maternal and child health* 2,573 2,206
Family and children services 1,698 1,763
Libraries 1,032 1,008
Community development 107 206
School crossing supervisors 417 306
Other 22 19
Right @ Home 225 427
Community wellbeing* 213 198
Community education 57 57
Emergency management 40 40
Total recurrent operating grants 33,247 31,570

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Community development 15 20
Community wellbeing 120 -
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Non-recurrent - State Government
Environmental planning

Family and children

Maternal and child health

Community development

Sports and recreation

Waste management

Total non-recurrent operating grants
Total operating grants

lidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
234 295
61 -

71 -
430 993

- 27

131 124
1,062 1,459
34,309 33,029

* Payments for Financial Assistance Grants received via the Victorian Grants Commission can vary
year on year. Whilst 2017-18 and 2018 - 19 financial years reflect 100% of funding received - 50% of
the fundings for both year relates to early distribution of the funding in June for the following year.

* Comparative figure for 2017-18 have been amended to reflect the correct classification of funding
source from State to Federal for community wellbeing and maternal and child health.

b) Capital grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery

Recurrent - State Government
Sports and recreation
Total recurrent capital grants

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Sports and recreation - Tatterson Park
Community safety

Roads

Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads

Libraries - Springvale Community Hub
Sports and recreation

Community education

Community safety

Total non-recurrent capital grants
Total capital grants

Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a

specific manner

Balance at start of the year

Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance

date

Received in prior years and spent during the financial year

Balance at end of the year *

- 1,348
47 -

47 1,348

311 1,703

9 167

417 527
397 36
257 205
2,630 185
- 97

- 13

4,021 2,933
4,068 4,281
10,689 8,947
11,006 9,636
(9,921) (7,894)
11,774 10,689

Grant income is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution. Control is normally
obtained upon receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured.

* - The increase in unspent grants at the end of the year in 2019 and 2018 relates to the early
distribution by the Victoria Grants Commission of approximately 50% of the Financial Assistance
Grants funding for the following financial year (2018-19: $6.25 million, 2017-18: $5.92 million).
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3.5 Contributions

Monetary

Community contributions (for capital works)
Other contributions

Total non-developer contributions

Open space contributions (for future capital works) *

Development infrastructure levies (for capital works completed)

Community infrastructure levies **
Total developer contributions
Total monetary contributions

Non-monetary
Total contributions

C lidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

140 23
313 20
453 43
2,793 2,922
483 410
1,540 -
4,816 3,332
5,269 3,375
7,735 19,169
13,004 22,544

* Public open space contributions received during the financial year are transferred to the Open Space

Reserve. Refer note 9.1(b).

** During the 2018-19 financial year there was a change in the interpretation assessment for

Community Infrastructure Levies which were previously recognised in the balance sheet.

Contributions of non-monetary assets were received in relation to the

following asset classes:

Land

Buildings

Infrastructure

Total non-monetary contributions

4,506 9,179

- 225
3,229 9,765
7,735 19,169

Monetary and non-monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control

over the contributed asset.

3.6 Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Net gain on sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Proceeds of sale
Less carrying amount of assets sold

Total net gain (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant

and equipment

857 648
(400) (507)
457 141
457 141

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
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C lidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

3.7 Other income

Interest on investments 3,661 2,922
Interest - other 3 2
Dandenong Market revenue from operations 5,755 5,738
Property rental 1,844 1,665
Other rent 1,102 1,060
Recoveries 2,044 2,960
Other 1,274 1,134
Total other income 15,683 15,481

Interest is recognised as it is earned.

Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when Council gains control over the right to receive the income.

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.1 a) Employee costs

Wages and salaries 59,230 57,195
WorkCover 1,547 1,694
Casual staff 788 940
Superannuation 5,650 5,416
Long service leave oncost 2,184 1,343
Fringe benefits tax 359 435
Other 5,998 5,355
Total employee costs 75,756 72,378

b) Superannuation

Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund

Employer contribution to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund

(Vision Super) 397 473
397 473

Employer contributions payable at reporting date. - -

Accumulation funds
Employer contribution to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund

(Vision Super) 3,412 3,353
Employer contribution - other funds 1,852 1,631
5,264 4,984

Employer contributions payable at reporting date (Dandenong Market
Pty Ltd) 1 4

Refer note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligation.

- Page 22 -

20403



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

[of lidated Consolidated

2019 2018

$'000 $'000

4.2 Materials and services

Waste management service 14,831 13,702
Cleaning services 3,010 2,923
Park maintenance service 5,104 3,848
Educator services 4,226 3,170
Leisure centre maintenance 1,707 1,426
Building maintenance service 3,503 4,107
Security services 1,246 1,037
Meals for delivery 496 571
Library resources 498 305
Property valuation services 194 371
Other contract payments 10,865 10,310
General maintenance 2,895 2,008
Works in progress (unable to be capitalised) 1,683 3,006
Utilities 4,450 4,017
Office administration 5,775 5,585
Information technology 2,433 2,425
Insurance 1,144 850
Consultants and professional services 6,070 5,896
Total materials and services 70,130 65,557

In order to comply with the Local Government Model Financial Report (LGMFR) prior year
comparatives have been amended to further breakdown contract payments by major services.

4.3 Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation

Property 5,957 5,516
Plant and equipment 3,858 3,886
Infrastructure 19,249 18,800
Total depreciation and amortisation 29,064 28,202

Refer to 6.2 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges.

4.4 Bad and doubtful debts

Parking fine debtors (14) 786
Other debtors (12) 863
Total bad and doubtful debts (26) 1,649

Movement in provisions for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,643 1,768
Reversal of previously recognised provisions AASB 9 adjustment* (1,114) -
New provisions recognised during the year 1,042 1,652
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible (888) (777)
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year - -
Balance at end of year 1,683 2,643

* In accordance with changes to the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 9 Financial Instruments,
provision for doubtful debts is recognised on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both
historic and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment.
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4.5 Borrowing costs

Interest - borrowings
Interest - other
Total borrowing costs

Consolidated ~ Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
3,131 3,345

- 74
3,131 3,419

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where
they are capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council. Borrowing costs include

interest on bank overdrafts and interest on borrowings.

4.6 Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements,
performance statement and grant acquittals

Auditors' remuneration - internal

Audit - other

Councillors' allowances

Council election

Operating lease / rentals

Assets written-off

Landfill provisions

Impairment loss (reversal)

Commonwealth Home Care Support Program - return of unexpended
grant funds

Developer reimbursement

Other expenses

Community grants and contributions

Contributions - non Council assets

Total other expenses

- Page 24 -

88 86
147 100

1 1

443 434
35 -
1,047 1,042
3,167 2,828
16 895

- (238)
4,853 -
1,269 -
783 876
2,404 2,246
1,640 285
15,893 8,555
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Notes to the Financial Report

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Note 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 3,492 4,189
Cash at bank 8,818 16,885
Term deposits 151,297 133,517
Total cash and cash equivalents 163,607 154,591
(b) Other financial assets
Non-current
Financial assets held for sale
Unlisted shares - Regional Kitchen Pty Ltd - at fair value 230 230
Total non-current other financial assets 230 230
Total other financial assets 230 230

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available
for discretionary use. These include:

- Trust funds and deposits (note 5.3(b)) 36,211 41,505
Total restricted funds 36,211 41,505
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 127,396 113,086

Intended allocations *
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future
purposes by Council:

Employee provisions (note 5.5 (a)) 18,039 16,868
Statutory and other reserves (note 9.1(b)) 82,514 69,765
Cash held to fund carried forward operational projects 10,286 9,597
Cash held to fund carried forward capital works (net) 16,190 16,659
Total funds subject to intended allocations 127,029 112,889

* Users of the financial report should refer to note 9.1(b) for details of funds held in reserve and note
5.7 for details of existing Council commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments
with original maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, being market value, at balance date. Term deposits

are measured at amortised cost. Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are
recognised as either a revenue or expense.
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Notes to the Financial Report

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
(c) Trade and other receivables
Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors 7,753 7,132
Infringement debtors 8,798 7,119
Provision for doubtful debts - infringements (968) (1,897)
Other statutory debtors 2,673 2,738
Provision for doubtful debts - other statutory debtors (99) (149)
Net GST receivable 2,296 1,998
Non statutory receivables
Other debtors 3,092 3,110
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors (616) (597)
Total current trade and other receivables 22,929 19,454
Non-current
Non statutory receivables
Narre Warren landfill - financial contribution 252 252
Other debtors - refundable deposit 73 73
Total non-current trade and other receivables 325 325
Total trade and other receivables 23,254 19,779

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised on
an expected credit loss model per AASB 9 Financial Instruments. This model considers both historic
and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment. Long term receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

i) Ageing of receivables
The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not

impaired was:

Current (not yet due) 669 1,247
Past due by up to 30 days 524 302
Past due between 31 and 180 days 534 512
Past due between 181 and 365 days 157 85
Past due by more than 1 year * 917 692
Total trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) 2,801 2,838

* Prior year comparative figures have been amended to reflect the exclusion of the value of debt that
was impaired for Dandenong Market Pty Ltd.

- Page 26 -

20407



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018

$'000 $'000
ii) Ageing of individually impaired receivables

At balance date, trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) representing financial
assets with a nominal value of $549,000 (2018 $556,000) were impaired. The amount of the
provision raised against these debtors was $549,000 (2018 $556,000). They have been individually
impaired as a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have
been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment arrangements.

Ageing of all impaired trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables)

Current (not yet due) 16 -
Past due by up to 30 days 20 4
Past due between 31 and 180 days 21 342
Past due between 181 and 365 days 4 211
Past due by more than 1 year 555 40
Total trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) 616 597

5.2 Other assets

Prepayments 3,060 2,768

Accrued income 1,257 754

Other 156 220

Total other assets 4,473 3,742
- Page 27 -
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Notes to the Financial Report

Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
5.3 Payables

(a) Trade and other payables

Trade payables 15,973 16,095

Accrued expenses 10,767 5,206

Total trade and other payables 26,740 21,301

(b) Trust funds and deposits

Current

Fire services property levy 738 1,194

Road deposits 2,609 402

Landscape deposits 836 1,042

Open space contributions 1,873 2,683

Development contribution plans (DCP) 26,635 32,510

Other refundable deposits 2,620 2,387

Total current trust funds and deposits 35,311 40,218

Non-current

Other refundable deposits 900 1,287

Total non-current trust funds and deposits 900 1,287

Total trust funds and deposits 36,211 41,505

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they
are returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited,
resulting in council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.

Purpose and nature of items

Fire Services Property Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State
Government. Council remits amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to
the State Government in line with that process.

Roads and landscape deposits - are taken by Council as a form of surety during the maintenance period of a
development or held due to outstanding works identified after the maintenance period which have not been
addressed by the contracted builder or developer.

Development contribution plans (DCP) - amounts received from developers relating to the DCP are held as
deposits and are a surety for the construction of DCP infrastructure. Upon completion of the infrastructure,
Council will refund the developer the deposit. Due to the uncertainty of when the developer may submit a claim for
refund, the monies held are treated as a current liability.

Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances,
including in relation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.
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Notes to the Financial Report

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
5.4 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Current
Borrowings - secured 8,634 3,301
8,634 3,301
Non-current
Borrowings - secured 49,891 48,525
49,891 48,525
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 58,525 51,826
Borrowings are secured over the general rates of Council as
per section 141 of the Local Government Act 1989.
a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:
Not later than one year 8,634 3,301
Later than one year and not later than five years 16,725 13,643
Later than five years 33,166 34,882
58,525 51,826

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction
costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised
its interest-bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or
financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption
value is recognised in the net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest-bearing liabilities. The Council determines
the classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.
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5.5 Provisions Consolidated
Employee Landfill Total
restoration

$'000 $'000 $'000

2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year 16,868 895 17,763
Additional provisions 8,002 16 8,018
Amounts used (7,214) - (7,214)

Change in the discounted amount arising
because of time and the effect of any change in

the discount rate 383 - 383
Balance at the end of the financial year 18,039 911 18,950
2018

Balance at beginning of the financial year 17,081 - 17,081
Additional provisions 6,970 895 7,865
Amounts used (7,137) - (7,137)

Change in the discounted amount arising
because of time and the effect of any change in

the discount rate (46) - (46)
Balance at the end of the financial year 16,868 895 17,763
Consolidated Consolidated
(a) Employee provisions 2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 5,935 5,715
Long service leave 869 881
Other 473 407
7,277 7,003
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 117 109
Long service leave 9,365 9,204
9,482 9,313
Total current employee provisions 16,759 16,316

Non-current
Long service leave 1,280 552
Total non-current employee provisions 1,280 552

Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:

Current 16,759 16,316
Non-current 1,280 552
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 18,039 16,868

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at
reporting date.

Wages, salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave expected to be wholly settled
within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of
employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the
provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at present value of the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
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Notes to the Financial Report
Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at
present value. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where

an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non - current liability.

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018
Key assumptions:

- discount rate 1.13% 2.33%
- index rate 3.00% 2.50%

- settlement rate long service leave (years)
long service leave (years) 7 7
annual leave (days) 260 260
(b) Landfill restoration $'000 $'000
Current 592 96
Non-current 319 799
911 895

The former Springvalley landfill has been closed to the receipt of refuse since December 1998. The former landfill
is located between Clarke Road and Springvale Road and the premises was used as a landfill for disposal of
waste from 1993 to 1999 under a licence issued by the Environmental Protection Authority (EPA). The landfill is
owned by the City of Greater Dandenong and is used as recreational open space. Under the terms of a licence
agreement with the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) and Pollution Abatement notices, Council is required
to monitor, progressively rehabilitate and conduct rectification works.

The provision for landfill rehabilitation has been calculated based on the present value of the expected cost of
works to be undertaken including site aftercare and monitoring costs. The expected cost of works has been
estimated based on current understanding of work required to progressively rehabilitate the sites to a suitable
standard. Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing
of the work. work required and related costs.

The City of Greater Dandenong shares the commitment for rehabilitation and aftercare management of the landfill
with other stakeholder Council's. Council's interest or share of the costs is 19.88%. In the financial report for 30
June 2019, Council has an amount of $911,000 (30 June 2018 $895,000) as a provision for the restoration of the
Springvalley Road landfill site which includes aftercare costs to meet EPA obligations.

Key assumptions:

- discount rate 1.23% 2.44%
- index rate 2.50% 2.00%
- settlement rate 15 years 15 years

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018

(c) Total provisions summary $'000 $'000
Current 17,351 16,412
Non-current 1,599 1,351
Total provisions 18,950 17,763

5.6 Financing arrangements

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - secured 58,525 51,826
Credit card facilities 200 200
Bank overdraft 2,500 2,500
Total facilities 61,225 54,526
Used facilities 58,571 51,828
Unused facilities 2,654 2,698

- Page 31 -

20412



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

5.7 (a) Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value by way of note
and presented inclusive of the GST payable. All contract commitments are disclosed excluding schedule of rate contracts
which vary from year to year depending on the volume of services required.

Consolidated

Later than Later than
1 year and 2 years and
Not later not later not later Later than
than 1year than2years than 5 years 5 years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2019
Operating
Building maintenance services 2,950 2,730 8,522 2,955 17,157
Cleaning services 2,138 1,732 185 - 4,055
Consultancies 123 38 - - 161
Garbage collection 7,367 7,634 1,954 - 16,955
Hard waste collection 1,691 1,738 4,589 - 8,018
Leisure centres management services 2,913 2,983 - - 5,896
Meals for delivery 550 - - - 550
Open space management 1,701 276 - - 1,977
Other contracts 4,789 726 664 - 6,179
Parking management 231 145 - - 376
Recycling 3,773 3,878 1,006 - 8,657
Works (roads and drains) services 553 32 - - 585
Dandenong Market Pty Ltd commitments 1,711 1,752 249 - 3,712
Total 2019 Operating 30,490 23,664 17,169 2,955 74,278
Capital
Buildings 21,488 5,339 - - 26,827
Roads 5,286 - - - 5,286
Drainage 404 - - - 404
Parks, open space and streetscapes 850 - - - 850
Total 2019 Capital 28,028 5,339 - - 33,367
2018
Operating
Building maintenance services 3,421 2,730 8,355 2,897 17,403
Cleaning services 1,635 1,488 - - 3,123
Consultancies 205 - - - 205
Garbage collection 6,539 6,735 8,724 - 21,998
Hard waste collection 463 - - - 463
Leisure centres management services 1,314 - - - 1,314
Meals for delivery 495 454 - - 949
Open space management 1,536 1,015 110 - 2,661
Other contracts 4,868 823 1,411 360 7,462
Parking management 246 251 784 272 1,653
Recycling 4,016 4,097 5,244 - 13,357
Works (roads and drains) services 507 204 - - 711
Dandenong Market Pty Ltd commitments 1,222 1,224 1,457 - 3,903
Total 2018 Operating 26,467 19,021 26,085 3,529 75,102
Capital
Buildings 6,188 250 160 - 6,598
Roads 3,305 - - - 3,305
Drainage 4,113 - - - 4,113
Parks, open space and streetscapes 1,671 - - - 1,671
Total 2018 Capital 15,277 250 160 - 15,687
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Notes to the Financial Report

Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
5.7 (b) Operating lease commitments

At the reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the
lease of equipment, fleet and properties for use within Council's activities. These obligations are not
recognised as liabilities.

Not later than one year 900 834
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,179 1,408
Later than five years - 13

2,079 2,255

Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a straight
line basis, rather than expensed in the years in which they are incurred.

Prior year comparative figures have been restated on a consistent basis with the current year commitments.
Note 6 Assets we manage

Note content:

6.1 Non-current assets classified as held for sale
6.2  Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Summary of Property, Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment
Summary of Work in Progress (WIP)
Details of Property Category

Details of Plant and Equipment Category
Details of Infrastructure Category
Recognition

Depreciation and Amortisation
Revaluation

Valuation of Property

Valuation of Infrastructure

Reconciliation of Specialised Land

SIOCIOCO

==

=S Z=Z5a@

8.4* Fair value measurement
* This note includes additional details about the fair value hierarchy and impairment of assets.

6.

-

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal
groups and related liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to
be completed within 12 months from the date of classification. At 30 June 2019, there were no non-current
assets classified as held for sale.
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

(f) Recognition

Acquisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets
provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour,
borrowing costs incurred during construction and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and
fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits detailed in note 6.2 have been applied when
recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior
year.

Recognition thresholds

Council has set a threshold limit for all classes of assets (refer section (g) of this note), which means that all
assets with a value equal or greater than this threshold are recognised in these financial statements.

Land under roads

In accordance with options available under Australian Accounting Standards, Council has opted to recognise
all land under roads acquired after 30 June 2008 using the cost basis. Council does not recognise land under
roads that it controlled prior to that period in its financial report.

Finance leases

Council does not have any financial leases.

Repairs and maintenance

Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the
capitalisation threshold, the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is
expensed.

Leasehold improvements

Leasehold improvements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or
the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is the shorter. At balance date, leasehold
improvements are amortised over a 5 to 21 year period.

(g) Depreciation and amortisation

All asset classes except land, land under roads and art works, having limited useful lives are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service
potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives are made on a regular basis with
major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these
components are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is
determined for each component.

Road earthworks are depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as having a limited useful life.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
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City of Greater Dandenong

2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

(g) Depreciation and amortisation (continued)

Depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless marked with an *.

Depreciation

Property
Land
Land
Land under roads
Buildings
Buildings
Leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment
Heavy plant and equipment
Buses, quads and trailers
Light plant and equipment, passenger and light commercial vehicles
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Fixtures, fittings, furniture and equipment
Musical instruments
Art works
Computers and telecommunications
Software, hand held devices / mobile phones
Hardware and equipment
Library books
Infrastructure
Roads
Seal
Substructure
Kerb and channel
Existing local area traffic management (LATM) devices
New local area traffic management (LATM) devices
On-street car parks
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
New pipes and pits
Existing pipes and pits
Gross pollutant traps
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Recreational equipment and facilities, electronic screens, scoreboards.
Sportsgrounds, grass (turf), courts, hardstand, other ground surfaces.
Minor structures (sporting, shade structures and retaining walls),
irrigation, sportsfield drainage, controllers, sensors, water tanks/pumps.
Playgrounds
Outdoor pools
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Open space furniture, fencing, bollards and gates.
Flood prevention - retarding/detention basins
Surface drainage - unformed open drains, water quality devices -
wetlands, rain gardens and biodetention swales.
Surface drainage - formed open drains. Public art.
Signs, parking meters, ticket machines and equipment.
Lighting, passive grass/surface, horticultural plantings and gardens,
natural bush and vegetation.
Off street car parks
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period
(years)

N/A
N/A

50-100
Lease term

12-20
100
15-80
5-30
5-30
20-100
20-100
10-50

100
100
50

10-20
15
50

10-50
20

10
50
10-20

10-20
20-100

Threshold
limit
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

(h) Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than land under roads,
leasehold improvements, recreational, leisure and community facilities, parks, open space and
streetscapes and plant and equipment are measured at their fair value, being the amount for which the
assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.
Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets (other than the asset classes
detailed directly above) are measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. At reporting date each year, Council reviews the carrying value of the individual
classes of assets to ensure that each asset class materially approximates its fair value. Where the
carrying value materially differs from the fair value, the class of assets is revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation
hierarchy will only occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in
changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. Further details of the fair value
hierarchy are included in Note 8.4 and are explained below for each asset class.

In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings and infrastructure assets on a
regular basis ranging from two to five years. The valuation is performed either by appropriately
experienced Council officers or independent experts.

Where assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation

reserve except to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that

had been recognised as an expense, in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the

amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior

increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the

decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of
assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Consolidated  Consolidated

2019 2018

$'000 $'000

Specialised land is valued using a market based direct comparison

technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the extent and impact

of restrictions of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The

extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction

to surrounding land values between 5% and 85%. The market value of

land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the

current market conditions. Currently, land values range between $14 and

$2,800 per square metre. 909,216 974,001

Note - Specialised land valued at fair value disclosed here, excludes land
under roads which are valued at cost.

- Page 40 -

20421



City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)
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Notes to the Financial Report

6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)

Consolidated  Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
(h) Revaluation (continued)

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost
technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the current
replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current
replacement costs are calculated on a square metre basis and range from
$320 to $52,000 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of
specialised buildings are determined on the basis of the current condition
of buildings and vary from 1 year to 100 years. Replacement cost is
sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease
in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of buildings are
sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either

shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.
253,087 248,290

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement

cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement

cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful

lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current

condition of the asset and vary from 1 year to 100 years. Replacement

cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or

decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of

infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or

requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of

infrastructure assets. 670,093 646,527

Note - Infrastructure assets at fair value disclosed here, excludes
'Recreational, leisure and community facilities', ‘Parks, open space and
streetscapes' and 'Work in progress' which are valued at cost.

(i) Valuation of Property

Valuation of land and buildings

The last formal valuation of land and buildings at 1 January 2018 was undertaken by qualified
independent valuers, Proval (Vic) Pty Ltd. The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being
market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions. Where land
use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This
adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the
Comprehensive Income Statement.

Since the last formal revaluation of land at 1 January 2018, the residential sector of the property market
has experienced an average 8% decrease, whilst commercial and industrial sectors have increased. The
majority of Council's land is in the residential sector. An indexed revaluation of all land at fair value was
performed at 1 January 2019 resulting in a decrement of $70.45 million (8.12%).

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or
unserviced) characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of
infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The
adjustment has no impact on the Comprehensive Income Statement.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land will have a significant impact on the fair
value of these assets.
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Notes to the Financial Report

6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)

(i) Valuation of Property (continued)

Details of the written down value of Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value
hierarchy** as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Non-specialised Specialised Date of last

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valuation

Land * - 174,164 909,216 01-Jan-19

Buildings * - - 253,087 01-Jan-18
Total written down value - 174,164 1,162,303

* Land at fair value excludes land under roads which are valued at cost and buildings at fair value excludes
leasehold improvements which are valued at cost.

** Additional details about the fair value hierarchy can be found in Note 8.4.

Land under roads

Land under roads is valued at cost based on Council valuation for acquisitions after 30 June 2008.
Deemed cost valuations have been undertaken using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped
and/or unserviced) characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitiements of
infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The
adjustment has no impact on the Comprehensive Income Statement. The acquisitions for the year include
new assets from subdivision activity.

(j) Valuation of Infrastructure

Valuation of infrastructure assets at fair value (except 'Parks, open space and streetscapes' and
'Recreational, leisure and community facilities' which are valued at cost, and bridges which are
independently valued) has been determined in accordance with a Council valuation. Four infrastructure
asset classes were revalued at 30 June 2019 which included roads, footpaths and cycleways, drainage
and off-street car parks resulting in a net increment of $21.72 million in 2018-19. The fair value of
infrastructure is valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost represents the
replacement cost of the asset after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Where condition
data was available for assets, remaining useful life was revised based on condition. Significant
unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure.
The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current condition of
the asset and vary from 1 year to 100 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market
conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of
infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or
extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.

The valuation of bridges at 31 March 2017 was undertaken by qualified independent valuers, Sterling
Group and WT Partnership. The methodology used depreciated replacement costs to quantify fair value
and remaining useful life was revised based on condition.

Details of the written down value of Council's infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Non-specialised Specialised Date of last

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 valuation

Roads - - 282,221 Jun-19

Bridges - - 46,558 Mar-17

Footpaths and cycleways - - 58,584 Jun-19

Drainage - - 270,485 Jun-19

Off street car parks - - 12,245 Jun-19
Total written down value - - 670,093

- Page 42 -




City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (continued)

Consolidated  Consolidated

2019 2018
(k) Reconciliation of specialised land at fair value * $'000 $'000
Parks and reserves 604,882 652,460
Floodway 9,528 9,410
Public use 21,637 23,320
Industrial 46,813 39,964
Other 226,356 248,847
Total specialised land 909,216 974,001

* Excludes land under roads which represents specialised land valued at cost.
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Note 6.3

Notes to the Financial Report

Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries

Committees of management

All entities controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets or liabilities, such as committees of
management, have been included in this financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Council have
been eliminated in full.

At balance date there were no committees of management that was controlled by the Council.

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which Council has control. Council controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Council. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Where dissimilar accounting policies are adopted by entities and their effect is considered material, adjustments are
made to ensure consistent policies are adopted in these financial statements.

In the process of preparing consolidated financial statements all material transactions and balances between
consolidated entities are eliminated.
Entities consolidated into Council include:

- Dandenong Market Pty Ltd

Reconciliation of Council, The Dandenong Market Pty Ltd (DMPL) and consolidated accounts

Dandenong Market Pty Ltd manages the Dandenong Market on the terms set out in a management service
agreement dated 30 November 2012 between Dandenong Market Pty Ltd and City of Greater Dandenong. The
management service agreement runs concurrently with the Lease Agreement (50 years) and provides for annual
agreement extensions at Council's discretion. An extension has been exercised by Council up to 30 June 2020. The
following Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows has been provided to
show the individual financial positions of the Council and The Dandenong Market Pty Ltd and consolidated accounts
for the 2018-19 financial year. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes in the financial report.
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Notes to the Financial Report

Comprehensive Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Consolidated
Consolidation Consolidated

Council DMPL Adjustment Accounts
2019 2019 2019 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 141,036 - (93) 140,943
Statutory fees and fines 9,471 - - 9,471
User fees 8,199 - - 8,199
Grants - operating 34,309 - - 34,309
Grants - capital 4,068 - - 4,068
Contributions - monetary 5,269 - - 5,269
Contributions - non-monetary 7,735 - - 7,735
Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment 457 - - 457
Fair value adjustments for investment property - - - -
Other income 11,368 5,905 (1,590) 15,683
Total income 221,912 5,905 (1,683) 226,134
Expenses
Employee costs (74,820) (984) 48 (75,756)
Materials and services (66,957) (3,361) 188 (70,130)
Bad and doubtful debts 72 (46) 26
Depreciation and amortisation (29,054) (10) (29,064)
Borrowing costs (3,131) - (3,131)
Fair value adjustments for investment property (907) (907)
Other expenses (15,732) (1,608) 1,447 (15,893)
Total expenses (190,529) (6,009) 1,683 (194,855)
Net surplus for the year 31,383 (104) - 31,279
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or
deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation decrement (48,728) - - (48,728)
Impairment (loss)/reversal - - -
Total comprehensive result (17,345) (104) - (17,449)
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2019
Consolidated
Consolidation Consolidated
Council DMPL Adjustment Accounts
2019 2019 2019 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 162,637 970 - 163,607
Trade and other receivables 22,791 138 - 22,929
Other assets 4,444 40 (11) 4,473
Total current assets 189,872 1,148 (11) 191,009
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 325 - - 325
Other financial assets 230 - - 230
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2,136,615 14 - 2,136,629
Investment property 12,827 - - 12,827
Total non-current assets 2,149,997 14 - 2,150,011
Total assets 2,339,869 1,162 (11) 2,341,020
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 26,299 452 (11) 26,740
Trust funds and deposits 35,069 242 35,311
Provisions 17,296 55 17,351
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 8,634 - 8,634
Total current liabilities 87,298 749 (11) 88,036
Non-current liabilities
Trust funds and deposits 900 - 900
Provisions 1,537 62 1,599
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 49,891 - 49,891
Total non-current liabilities 52,328 62 - 52,390
Total liabilities 139,626 811 (11) 140,426
Net assets 2,200,243 351 - 2,200,594
Equity
Accumulated surplus 875,922 351 876,273
Reserves 1,324,321 1,324,321
Total equity 2,200,243 351 - 2,200,594
- Page 46 -

20427



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong 2018-19 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Consolidated

Consolidation Consolidated

Council DMPL Adjustment Accounts
2019 2019 2019 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 140,410 (93) 140,317
Statutory fees and fines 6,739 6,739
User fees 8,409 8,409
Grants - operating 34,394 34,394
Grants - capital 3,941 3,941
Contributions - monetary 5,025 5,025
Interest received 3,707 7 3,714
Trust funds and deposits taken 31,902 53 31,955
Other receipts 8,826 6,526 (1,884) 13,468
Net GST refund/(payments) 10,506 (130) 10,376
Employee costs (73,607) (962) 54 (74,515)
Materials and services (79,205) (5,463) 1,872 (82,796)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (36,423) (16) (36,439)
Other payments (8,439) (58) 51 (8,446)
Net cash provided by operating activities 56,185 (43) - 56,142
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment (51,528) - - (51,528)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment 857 - - 857
Net cash used in investing activities (50,671) - - (50,671)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (3,154) - - (3,154)
Proceeds from borrowings 10,000 10,000
Repayment of borrowings (3,301) - - (3,301)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,545 - - 3,545
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,059 (43) - 9,016
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the financial year 153,578 1,013 154,591
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
financial year 162,637 970 - 163,607
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Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018
$'000 $'000

6.4 Investment property
Balance at beginning of financial year 11,330 10,305
Additions 2,404 -
Fair value adjustments (907) 1,025
Balance at end of financial year 12,827 11,330

Valuation of investment property

Valuation of investment property has been determined in accordance with an independent valuation by Proval
(Vic) Pty Ltd who have recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The valuation
is at fair value, based on the current market value for the property.

Investment property, comprising retail complexes, are held to generate long-term rental yields. Investment
property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition
are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefit in excess of the originally assessed performance
of the asset will flow to the Council. Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment property is carried at fair
value, determined annually by independent valuers. Changes to fair value are recorded in the Comprehensive
Income Statement in the period that they arise. Investment property are not subject to depreciation. Rental
income from the leasing of investment properties is recognised in the Comprehensive Income Statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

At 30 June 2019, one investment property building was impaired by fire damage. This has been reflected in the

fair value valuation at 30 June 2019 and an overall fair value decrement was recognised as an expense in the
Comprehensive Income Statement in 2018-19.
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Note 7 People and relationships
7.1 Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related parties

Parent entity
City of Greater Dandenong

Subsidiaries
Dandenong Market Pty Ltd - detailed in note 6.3

(b) Key Management Personnels

Details of persons holding the position of Councillors or other members of key management personnel at any time
during the year are:

Councillors 2019 2018
No. No.

From 9 January 2019 to Current

Councillor Sophie Tan

From 1 July 2018 to Current

Councillor Roz Blades AM (Mayor 16 November 2018 - Current)
Councillor Youhorn Chea (Mayor 17 November 2017 - 15 November 2018)
Councillor Jim Memeti

Councillor Matthew Kirwan

Councillor Angela Long

Councillor Sean O'Reilly

Councillor Maria Sampey

Councillor Loi Truong

Councillor Tim Dark

Councillor Zaynoun Melhem

From 1 July 2018 to 24 November 2018
Councillor Heang Tak

Total number of Councillors 12 11

Other Key Management Personnel

Mick Jaensch - Director Corporate Services

Jody Bosman - Director City Planning, Design and Amenity
Martin Fidler - Director Community Services

Julie Reid - Director Engineering Services

Paul Kearsley - Group Manager Greater Dandenong Business

Chief Executive Officer
John Bennie PSM 1 1
Total key management personnel 18 17

Dandenong Market Board Members
Ms Julie Busch - Director

Mr Franz Madlener - Director

Mr Tom Mollenkopf - Director

Mr Tim Cockayne - Director

Ms Donna McMaster - Director
General Manager

Total number of Dandenong Market Board Members 6 6
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(c) R ation of Key Mar it Personnel Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:

Short-term benefits* 2,518 2,453

Long-term benefits 57 49

Post employment benefit 160 152

Termination benefits - -

2,735 2,654

The numbers of key management personnel, whose total remuneration from 2019 2018
Council and any related entities fall within the following bands: No. No.
$10,000 - $19,999 2 _
$20,000 - $29,999 4 4
$30,000 - $39,999 9 10
$60,000 - $69,999 ' 1 1
$80,000 - $89,999 ' 1 4
$230,000 -  $239,999 1 1
$270,000 - $279,999 * - 2
$280,000 -  $289,999 * 3 2
$290,000 -  $299,999 * 1 1
$310,000 -  $319,999 1 -
$410,000 - $419,999 - 1
$430,000 -  $439,999 1 -

Total 24 23

"Total remuneration" comprises base salary, superannuation, annual leave entitements, long service leave
entitlements, allowances and fringe benefits tax paid by Council.

12017-18 comparative figures have been amended to include the car benefit provided to Mayor during their
mayoral term and the . This has resulted in change in income band.

*Comparative figures have been amended due to an allowance that was included twice in calculating the "Total
remuneration" and to include the accrued annual leave entitlements for the year in calculating the "Total
remuneration”. These amendments have resulted in net reduction of $38,000 and also change in income bands
for key management personnels.

(d) Senior Officers remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or

b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $148,000.

The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands:

Income range:

< $147,999 - -

$148,000 - $149,999 4 5
$150,000 - $159,999 7 5
$160,000 - $169,999 1" 9
$170,000 -  $179,999 2 2
$180,000 -  $189,999 2 4
$190,000 -  $199,999 6 7
$200,000 - $209,999 2 -
$210,000 -  $219,999 2 -
$220,000 -  $229,999 1 1
37 33

Total remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included $'000 $'000
above, amounted to:* 6,431 5,831

"Total remuneration” comprises base salary, superannuation, annual leave entitlements, long service leave
entitlements, allowances and fringe benefits tax paid by Council.

*Comparative figures have been amended due to an allowance that was duplicated in calculating the "Total
remuneration ". This has resulted in a reduction of income by $11,000 and a reduction in the number of senior
officers by one.
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7.2 Related party disclosure
(a) Transactions with related parties

(i) During 2018-19 Council entered into the following transactions with related party Dandenong Market Pty Ltd

(DMPL).
2019 2018
Excl GST Excl GST
$'000 $'000
Received from DMPL
Rent received 1,447 1,378
Refund of gift vouchers not redeemed by the Council 11 10
Total received 1,458 1,388
Paid to DMPL
Contributions for festival/events 82 81
Payment for Gift vouchers 48 50
Payment for other items 13 -
Total paid 143 131

Councillor Memeti has a financial interest in a stall at Dandenong Market. The financial arrangements are at arms
length based on commercial terms. A number of related parties have minority shareholdings in public companies,
which have dealings with the Council from time to time.

(ii) During the financial year ended 30 June 2019, John Bennie CEO was a non-executive board member of the
following organisations to which Council has paid the following amounts;

MAYV Insurance (which operates under the umbrella of Municipal Association of Victoria) a value of $2.15 million
(2017-18 $1.42 million), the transaction was for the provision of Workcare self-insurance scheme

Community Chef $517,000 (2017-18 $525,000) agreement for delivery of meals.

Chisholm institute $26,000 (2017-18 $13,000) for the provision of external training courses.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
The following transaction was outstanding at 30 June

Refund of gift vouchers not redeemed by the Council 1 10
1 10

(c) Loans to/from related parties

No loans were made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to related parties during 2018-19 (2017-18 $nil).

(d) Commitments to/from related parties
Under the Management Services Agreement with Dandenong Market Pty Ltd (DMPL) an extension has been
exercised up to 30 June 2020.

A commitment for rent of the Market premises is as follows 1,447 1,447
1,447 1,447
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties
8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of a
note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive
of GST receivable or payable respectively.

(a) Contingent assets

Consolidated Consolidated
2019 2018
Operating lease receivables $'000 $'000

The Council has entered into commercial property leases on selected properties. These properties are held
under operating leases and have remaining non-cancellable lease terms of between 1 and 50 years.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

Not later than one year 1,724 1,783
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,702 3,094
Later than five years 274 354

4,700 5,231

Developer contributions

Greater Dandenong acquires infrastructure assets, such as local roads, footpaths, kerb and channel and drains
etc, from developers, as subdivisional contributions. The amount and value of assets acquired depends on the
size of the development and the level of growth within the municipality. Developers construct infrastructure assets
which are vested with Council when Council issues a Statement of Compliance. These assets are brought to
account as revenue (Contributions — Non Monetary Assets) and capitalised. At reporting date, developers had
commenced construction of assets that will eventually be transferred to the Council subject to Council issuing a
Statement of Compliance. Council cannot reliably measure the value of the assets involved prior to completion
and the timing of recognition.

(b) Contingent liabilities

Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make
additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result
of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists. At this
point in time it is not known if additional contributions will be required, their timing or potential amount.

Future superannuation contributions
In addition to the disclosed contributions, Council has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super totalling Nil

during 2018-19 year (Nil for 2017-18). At 30 June 2019 the outstanding contribution of $1,000 relates to
Dandenong Market Pty Ltd and there were no loans issued from or to the above schemes.

The expected contributions to be paid to the defined benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June
2020 is estimated to be $409,120.
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Development Contribution Plans (DCP)

Council has three sites that are subject to formal development contribution plans, two are in Keysborough and
one in Lyndhurst. All three sites are covered by a DCP.

A DCP provides the framework for the provision and funding of infrastructure to facilitate the set development
area and the purpose of a DCP is to provide a “fair distribution of costs for works and services, including roads,
traffic management and community facilities to all the proper servicing in the area”.

New development in each of the areas is required to meet its share of the total cost of delivering the required
infrastructure works — as measured by its projected share of usage — through development contributions collected
under the DCP's. The balance of works not covered by development contributions has been agreed to be funded
by Council. The total value of these works is estimated to be around $14.7 million.

Landfills

The City of Greater Dandenong may be liable for the consequences of disposing refuse at a number of legacy
landfill sites. A legacy site refers to a landfill that has been decomissioned and is no longer receiving waste. At
balance date Council is unable to assess whether there are any financial implications.

(c) Guarantees for loans to other entities

Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the Balance Sheet unless the lender has
exercised their right to call on the guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that it is probable that right
will be exercised. Details of guarantees that Council has provided, that are not recognised in the Balance Sheet
are disclosed below.

The amount disclosed for financial guarantee in this note is the nominal amount of the underlying loan that is
guaranteed by the Council, not the fair value of the financial guarantee.

As at 30 June 2019, Council's maximum potential exposure is as follows:

Amount Amount Year loan
Entities outstanding outstanding commenced
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
$'000 $'000
Dandenong Basketball Association - 50 14 July 2004
Keysborough Bowls Club Inc. 110 123 18 May 2015
Total Guarantees for loans to other entities 110 173

(d) Legal actions

Council is presently involved in a number of confidential legal matters, which are being conducted through
Council's solicitors. The estimated potential financial effect of these matters may be up to $1.56 million ($856,000
as at 30 June 2018).
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Note 8.2 Change in accounting standards

The following new Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are not mandatory for
the 30 June 2019 reporting period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the
following potential impacts will flow from the application of these standards in future reporting periods.

Pronouncement AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Background The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach.
Recognition is determined based on what the customer expects to be entitled to (rights and
obligations), while measuring encompasses estimation by the entity of the amount
expected to be entitled for performing under the contract.

Impact/action The full impact of this standard is not known however it is most likely to impact where
contracts extend over time, where there are rights and obligations that may vary the timing
or amount of the consideration, or where there are multiple performance elements. This
has the potential to impact on the recognition of certain grant income.

Effective date Periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Pronouncement AASB 16 Leases

Background This standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating
leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases will be recognised in the Balance Sheet by
capturing the present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a 'right-of-use'
asset, while future lease payments will be recognised as a financial liability. The nature of
the expense recognised in the profit or loss will change. Rather than being shown as rent,
or as leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the right-of-use asset, and an
interest charge on the lease liability. The interest charge will be calculated using the
effective interest method, which will result in a gradual reduction of interest expense over
the lease term.

Impact/action Council has elected to adopt the modified retrospective approach to the transition to the
new lease standard. This will mean that only existing operating leases for non low value
assets, with remaining terms greater than 12 months, will be recognised on transition (1
July 2019). Based on our current lease commitments and an assumption of a continuation
of the current leasing arrangements. Council expects that the transition to the new
standard will see the initial recognition of $2.8 million lease related assets and an
equivalent liability.

Effective date Periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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Pronouncement AASB 1058 Income for Not-for-Profit Entities.

Background This standard is expected to apply to certain transactions currently accounted for under
AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue recognition principles for transactions
where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable a
not-for-profit entity to further its objectives.

Impact/action Impacts on the level and nature of the disclosures will be assessed based on the eventual
implications arising from the application of this standard.

Effective date Periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Rounding

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.
Figures in the financial statements may not equate due to rounding.
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8.3 Financial instruments

(a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory
receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting
policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument is disclosed in notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior management
under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to
Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Council's exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only
insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument
will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk arises primarily from long term loans and
borrowings at fixed rates which exposes us to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has
minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at floating rates.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989. We
manage interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product

- monitoring of return on investment

- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for
managing interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's
year end result.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause
us to make a financial loss. We have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet.
Particularly significant area of credit risk exists in relaton to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and
receivables from sporting clubs and associations. To help manage this risk:

- we have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities we deal with

- we may require collateral where appropriate and

- we only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our
investment policy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government
sectors. Credit risk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal. Rates debtors are secured by a charge
over the rateable property. Council has assessed that 11% of parking infringement debts owing to Council are
unlikely to be collected and has raised a provision for doubtful debts over those debts based on an assessment of
collectability. The collection of long overdue parking infringement debts is managed by Fines Victoria.

Refer note 5.1 for financial assets which are determined to be impaired.
Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when

Council provides a guarantee for another party. Details of Council's contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 8.1.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net
of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial
statements. Council does not hold any collateral (in respect to non-rate debtors).
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(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements we will not have sufficient
funds to settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable
to settle or recover a financial asset.

To help reduce these risks Council:
- has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained

- has readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place

- has a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid
instruments

- monitors budget to actual performance on a regular basis and

- sets limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments to rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the
face of the Balance Sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in note 8.1, and is deemed
insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.
Details of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at note 5.4.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amount of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are ‘reasonably possible' over the
next 12 months:

- A parallel shift of +1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1.15%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will
they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.
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8.4 Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy

Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's
financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian
Accounting Standards. AASB 13 'Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an
exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within a fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the
asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to
the Comprehensive Income Statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the
impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to
the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class
of asset.

8.5 Events occurring after balance date
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
8.6 Adjustments directly to equity

There were no adjustments to opening equity balances in the 2018-19 financial year.
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Note 9 Other matters

9.1 Reserves

Impairment
Reversal of loss (credited
Balance at previous against Balance at
beginning of revaluations previous end of
reporting Increment for assets increments)/ reporting
period (decrement) disposed reversal period
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(a) Asset revaluation reserves
2019
Property
Land 867,966 (70,452) - - 797,514
Buildings 25,102 - (330) - 24,772
893,068 (70,452) (330) - 822,286
Infrastructure
Roads 188,977 7,681 - - 196,658
Bridges 20,324 - - - 20,324
Footpaths and cycleways 15,101 188 - - 15,289
Drainage 170,324 13,122 - - 183,446
Off street car parks 3,071 733 - - 3,804
397,797 21,724 - - 419,521
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,290,865 (48,728) (330) - 1,241,807
2018
Property
Land 883,045 (15,027) (52) - 867,966
Buildings 27,195 (2,105) (35) 47 25,102
910,240 (17,132) (87) 47 893,068
Infrastructure
Roads 188,977 - - - 188,977
Bridges 20,324 - - - 20,324
Footpaths and cycleways 15,101 - - - 15,101
Drainage 170,324 - - - 170,324
Off street car parks 3,071 - - - 3,071
397,797 - - - 397,797
Total asset revaluation reserves 1,308,037 (17,132) (87) 47 1,290,865

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets, as

described in accounting policy note 6.2.
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Balance at Transfer Transfer Balance at
beginning of to from end of
reporting accumulated accumulated reporting
period surplus surplus period
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
9.1 Reserves (continued)
(b) Other reserves
2019
Insurance reserve 876 (35) 146 987
Re-vegetation reserves 334 (62) - 272
Open space - planning, development and
improvements 9,220 (2,843) 2,793 9,170
Open space - acquisitions 6,000 (82) - 5,918
Keysborough South maintenance levy 1,508 (1,392) 1,497 1,613
Major projects reserve 28,663 (200) 10,347 38,810
General reserve 3,880 (3,040) - 840
Council funded development contributions reserve 12,702 (259) 3,260 15,703
Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation 1,064 (140) - 924
Springvale Activity Precinct - parking and
development 166 (70) 139 235
Dandenong Activity Precinct - parking and
development 452 (1,070) 1,000 382
Local Government Funding Vehicle 4,900 - - 4,900
Grants in advance reserve - - 1,220 1,220
Keysborough South Community Infrastructure Levies _ _ 1,540 1,540
Total other reserves 69,765 (9,193) 21,942 82,514
2018
Insurance reserve 625 (54) 305 876
Re-vegetation reserves 371 37) - 334
Open space - planning, development and
improvements 6,642 (343) 2,921 9,220
Open space - acquisitions 6,000 - - 6,000
Keysborough South maintenance levy 1,178 (1,051) 1,381 1,508
Major projects reserve 21,952 (279) 6,990 28,663
General reserve 1,780 - 2,100 3,880
Council funded development contributions reserve 11,729 (27) 1,000 12,702
Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation 1,011 (29) 82 1,064
Springvale Activity Precinct - parking and
development 298 (202) 70 166
Dandenong Activity Precinct - parking and
development - (548) 1,000 452
Local Government Funding Vehicle 4,900 - - 4,900
Grants in advance reserve - - - -
Keysborough South Community Infrastructure Levies - - - -
Total other reserves 56,486 (2,570) 15,849 69,765

Nature and purpose of other reserves:
Insurance reserve
The insurance reserve has been created to meet large and unexpected policy excesses on multiple insurance claims.

Re-vegetation reserves
The purpose of this reserve fund is to meet native re-vegetation requirements on Council’s reserves.

Open space - planning, development and improvements
Funds set aside in this reserve will be utilised exclusively for allocation towards enhancing the City’s open space via
planning, development and improvements.

Open space - acquisitions
Funds set aside in this reserve will be utilised exclusively for open space land acquisitions.
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9.1 Reserves (continued)

(b) Other reserves (continued)

Keysborough South maintenance levy

This reserve has been established to ensure full accountability of the levies received for the Keysborough and Somerfield

Estates reflecting costs of maintaining an additional 15% open space beyond that of traditional estates.

Maijor projects reserve
The major projects reserve holds proceeds from the sale of Council’s property assets or surplus Council funds and will
be utilised for investing in other properties or funding future major projects.

General reserve
This reserve relates to financial impacts of future aged care sector reforms.

Council funded development contributions reserve

The reserve for Council funded development contribution plans holds funds in respect of Council's contribution to the two

major developments in Dandenong South (C87) and Keysborough (C36).

Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to rehabilitate the Spring Valley landfill site at Clarke Road, Springvale South.

Springvale Activity Precinct parking and development reserve
The purpose of the reserve is to fund development in the Springvale Activity Centre.

Dandenong Activity Precinct parking and development reserve
The purpose of the reserve is to fund development in the Dandenong Activity Centre.

Local Government Funding Vehicle
The purpose of this reserve is to provide for the $4.90 million principal repayment required on maturity of the interest-

only Local Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) in 2019-20 and to provide future borrowing capacity for major

infrastructure projects.

Grants in advance reserve

This reserve holds funds from capital grants received in advance of the project works.

Keysborough South Community Infrastructure Levies

These reserve funds relate to Community Infrastructure Levies received in relation to the Keysborough South

Development Contributions Plan.

Consolidated

Consolidated

2019 2018
(c) Total reserves summary Note $'000 $'000
Asset revaluation reserve 9.1(a) 1,241,807 1,290,865
Other reserves 9.2(b) 82,514 69,765
Total reserves 1,324,321 1,360,630

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus

Surplus for the year 31,279 46,934
Depreciation and amortisation 29,064 28,202
impairment loss (reversal) - (238)
Gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (457) (141)
Fair value adjustments 907 (1,025)
Contributions of non-monetary assets (7,735) (19,169)
Works in progress unable to be capitalised (expensed) 1,683 3,006
Assets written-off 3,167 2,828
Borrowing costs 3,131 3,419
Change in assets and liabilities
Increase (decrease) in trade and other receivables (3,475) 333
(Decrease) increase in trust funds and deposits (5,294) 6,057
Increase in other assets (731) (1,113)
Increase in trade and other payables 3,416 4,141
Increase in provisions 1,187 682
Net cash provided by operating activities 56,142 73,916
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9.3 Superannuation

The Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to
the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership,
accumulation and defined benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the
Fund are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive
basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year
ended 30 June 2019, this was 9.5% required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation).

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined
Benefit category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer
sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating
employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and
the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a
result, the level of participation of the Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared
with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities,
assets and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by
the Trustee on the advice of the Fund Actuary.

As at 30 June 2018, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in
the Defined Benefit category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which
Council is a contributing employer was 106.0%.

The financial assumptions used to calculate the VBIs were:

Net investment returns 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at quarter ended 30 June 2019 was 107.1%.

The VBl is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2018
interim actuarial investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial
position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from
prior years.

Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2018 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, the
Council makes employer contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the
Fund’s Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2019, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2017 -
18). This rate will increase in line with any increases in the SG contribution rate.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of
retrenchment above the funded resignation or retirement benefit.
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The 2018 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a
contributing employer. Generally, a full actuarial investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial
investigations are conducted for each intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June
2018 and a full actuarial investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2017.

The Fund'’s actuarial investigations identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a
contributing employer:

2018 2017

$ million $ million

A VBI surplus 131.9 69.8
A total service liability surplus 218.3 193.5
A discounted accrued benefits surplus 2491 228.8

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations
exceed the vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on
30 June 2018.

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit
category plus expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at
30 June 2018.

The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit
category exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2018.

The Council was notified of the 30 June 2018 VBI during August 2018 (2017: in August 2017)

2019 interim actuarial investigation

An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2019 as the Fund
provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category. It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be

completed by October 2019.

Superannuation contributions

Consolidated Consolidated

2019 2018

Scheme Type of scheme Rate $'000 $'000
Vision Super Defined benefits 9.50% 397 473
Vision Super Accumulation 9.50% 3,412 3,353
Other funds Accumulation 9.50% 1,852 1,631

There were no payments made to Vision Super unfunded liability during 2018-19 (2017-18 - $nil).

As at 30 June 2019 outstanding contribution payable of $1,000 relates to Dandenong Market Pty Ltd and no
loans issued from or to the above schemes.

The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30
June 2020 is $409,120.

- Page 63 -

20444



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

FINANCE AND BUDGET

2018-19 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ATTACHMENT 2

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

PAGES 17 (including cover)

20445



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

20446



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual Financial Statements (Cont.)

Performance Statement

Description of Municipality

The City of Greater Dandenong encompasses an area
of 129 kilometres in Melbourne’s south-east,
approximately 35 kilometres from the central business
district. Greater Dandenong has a population of

over 160,000 people and is the most multicultural
municipality in Australia, with residents from over

150 different birthplaces.

Sustainable Capacity Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Indicator/Measure
2016

Population

Expenses per head of municipal
population

[Total expenses/Municipal
population]

Infrastructure per head of
municipal population

[Value of infrastructure/
Municipal population]
Population density per length

of road

[Municipal population/Kilometres
of local roads]

$1,105.51

$6,033.37

219.77

This adds a wealth of diversity to the city through a
range of cultural experiences. The city has a vibrant
economy in both the retail and manufacturing sectors
and is renowned as the manufacturing hub of
Victoria. The wholesale trade, health care, and retail
trade sectors also provide a significant proportion of
employment opportunities.

Result ‘

2017 2018 | 2019

$1,053.75 | $1,069.38 | $1,147.12

$5,945.59 | $5,897.18 | $6,072.65

235.59 238.93 237.46

Material Variations

Own-source revenue
Own-source revenue per head of $947.90
municipal population
[Own-source revenue/Municipal
population]

$962.44 $990.47 $1,026.71

Recurrent grants
Recurrent grants per head of $174.51
municipal population
[Recurrent grants/Municipal
population]

$243.18 $199.76 $200.45

Disadvantage
Relative socio-economic 1

[Index of Relative Socio-economic
Disadvantage by decile]

Performance Statement
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“adjusted underlying revenue” means total income
other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital
expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from
sources other than those referred to above

“infrastructure” means non-current fixed assets
comprising a number of asset classes including roads,
drains, footpaths and cycleways, bridges, off-street car
parks, recreational leisure and community facilities
and parks, open space and streetscapes

“local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for
which the council is the responsible road authority
under the Road Management Act 2004

“population” means the resident population estimated
by council

“own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying
revenue other than revenue that is not under the
control of council (including government grants)

“relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation
to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic
disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant
financial year, of the area in which the municipality is
located according to the Index of Relative
Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number
2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA

“SEIFA” means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas
published from time to time by the Australian Bureau
of Statistics on its website.

“unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash
equivalents other than restricted cash.

Performance Statement
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Service Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Result $

Indicator/Measure -~ .- .- . Material Variations
2017

Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation 4.44 4.31 4.06 4.08
Utilisation of aquatic facilities

[Number of visits to aquatic
facilities/Municipal population]

Animal Management Council experienced a
24 per cent reduction in

Health and Safe 25 26 31 29 .

Afime] managemglnt combined dog attack/

prosecutions rushes in the 2018-19

. financial year compared

[Number of successfullanlmal with 2017—18. This

management prosecutions] represents a 22 per cent
reduction in offences
prosecuted through the
Magistrates Court.

Food Safety

Health and Safety 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Critical and major
non-compliance outcome
notifications

[Number of critical
non-compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance notifications
about a food premises
followed up/Number of critical
non-compliance outcome
notifications and major
non-compliance notifications
about food premises] x100

Governance
Satisfaction 61 63 63 61
Satisfaction with council
decisions

[Community satisfaction rating
out of 100 with how council
has performed in making
decisions in the interest of
the community]
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. Result $ . e
Indicator/Measure Material Variations
2016 2017 2018 2019

Home and Community Care

(HACC)

Participation

Participation in the HACC 13.55% N/A N/A Reporting on HACC

service ceased on 1 July 2016

[Number of people that due to the introduction

received a HACC service/ of the Comm’onwealth

Municipal target population Government's NDIS and

for HACC services] x100 CHSP programs.

Participation

Participation in the HACC 12.23% N/A N/A Reporting on HACC

service by CALD people ceased on 1 July 2016

[Number of CALD people due to the introduction

who receive a HACC service/ of the Commonwealth

Municipal target population in Government’s NDIS and

relation to CALD people for CHSP programs.

HACC services] x100

Libraries

Participation 33.06% 20.23% 19.22% 11.32% | Council’s active

Active library members member numbers have

[Number of active library declined this year due

members/Municipal to the rgmgval of PC

population] x100 users W}thln the )
calculation. In previous
years this data has been
unable to be extracted
however system
changes have enabled
their exclusion this year.

Maternal and Child Health

Participation 79.66% 79.15% 77.56% 75.11%

Participation in the MCH

service

[Number of children who

attend the MCH service at

least once (in the year)/

Number of children enrolled in

the MCH service] x100

Participation 56.60% 77.03% 75.15% 70.25%

Participation in the MCH

service by Aboriginal children

[Number of Aboriginal

children who attend the MCH

service at least once (in the

year)/Number of Aboriginal

children enrolled in the MCH

service] x100

Performance Statement
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Service Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Result

Indicator/Measure 2016 2017 2018 2019 Material Variations
Roads
Satisfaction 66 65 69 67
Satisfaction with sealed
local roads
[Community satisfaction
rating out of 100 with how
council has performed on
the condition of sealed
local roads]
Statutory Planning Since the gazettal _of
Decision making 4231% | 56.41% | 2353% | 3571% ""S“#mbe;ff P'Z““'“‘g
Council planning decisions cheme Amendments,
upheld at VCAT VCAT have given more

» weight to these policies,
[Number of VCAT decisions resulting in an increase
that did not set aside council’s in Council decisions
decision in relation to a being affirmed by VCAT.
planning application/Number Itis anticipated that
of VCAT decisions in relation going forward we will
to planning applications] x100 see more consistency in

decision making
between Council and
VCAT.

Waste Collection
Waste diversion 46.40% 47.36% 46.17% 46.40%
Kerbside collection waste
diverted from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and
green organics collected
from kerbside bins/Weight

of garbage, recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins] x100
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“Aboriginal child” means a child who is an Aboriginal
person

“Aboriginal person” has the same meaning as in the
Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

“active library member” means a member of a library
who has borrowed a book from the library

“annual report” means an annual report prepared by a
council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

“CALD” means culturally and linguistically diverse and
refers to persons born outside Australia in a country
whose national language is not English

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within
the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been
declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C
of that Act

“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within
the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been
declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C
of that Act

“Community Care Common Standards” means the
Community Care Common Standards for the delivery
of HACC services, published from time to time by
the Commonwealth

“critical non-compliance outcome notification” means
a notification received by council under section
19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to
council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a
deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to
public health

“food premises” has the same meaning as in the
Food Act 1984

“HACC program” means the Home and Community
Care program established under the Agreement
entered into for the purpose of the Home and
Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth

“HACC service” means home help, personal care or
community respite provided under the HACC program

“local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for
which the council is the responsible road authority
under the Road Management Act 2004

“major non-compliance outcome notification” means
a notification received by a council under section
19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to
council by an authorised officer under that Act, of a
deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious
threat to public health but may do so if no remedial
action is taken

“MCH” means the Maternal and Child Health Service
provided by a council to support the health and
development of children within the municipality from
birth until school age

“population” means the resident population estimated
by council

“target population” has the same meaning as in the
Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home
and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth

“WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident”
means an incident relating to a council aquatic

facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian
WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational
Health and Safety Act 2004.
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20452



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

| Statements (Cont.)

inancia

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual F

Performance Statement

%0070}

%000l | %000}

%000}

%066

%€8'6 %196

%16°L

001 X [1eak |eloueuly ay) Joy yeys
jusuewuad Jo Jaquinu abesany
/ suoljeujuwls} pue suonjeubisal

Jels Juauewuad jo Jaquinn]
Jyers abelane 0) paredwod
suopneulwla) pue suoneubisay
J2A0UIN] DDI0PIOM

16'688°C$

28'658°C$|LL0v8°CS

S0'8¥8'2$

¥€'688°2$

GG°1022$|26'179'CS

60'G.9°C$

[sjuswissasse Auadoid
Jo Jaquinp / sesuadxa |ejo] |

JusWISSasse
Auadoud Jad sasuadxy

|1oA8] ainnpuadx3

sjuawwon
pue suoljeliep [euajey

9eCLY'L$

€202

6€96€'L$(€9°8L€°LS

(44114 X411

¢ }sedalo4

16719€°L$

0202

0z°L2e'L$

6102

€6'8G2'1$ | eV ¥ETLS

8102 102
$ 3Insay

GE'Z6LL$

9102

[syuawissasse
Auadoud renuapisal Jo JaquinN
/enuanal arel [enuapisay]

Juawssasse Auadoud [epuspisal
Jad arel [enuapisal abelany

|oA8] @nuanay
Kouaroyyg

ainseaw / Joyeaipul / uoisuswig

610¢ aunr Qg pspus Jeak 8y} Jo4

SJ03}eDIpU] 9JUBWLIOMD |eloueul

Performance Statement

20453



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

| Statements (Cont.)

inancia

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual F

(1ouroaud Aunwwio)
oleabunds)
aln)ipuadxa josfoid
Jolew pauueld o} anp
02-610¢ ul eseasdul
ayl -syoeloid

001X [uoneroaidap
jossy/osuadxa [emaual Jossy]
uoneroaldap

0} pasedwod [eMaual 19SSy

Jolew o Bujwiy %C8VL | %lEL8 | %YV V8 | %l666 | %LETL | %E099 | %EEBY | %EOEL
pue sjebpnq [emausi [EMOESS
josse uo paseg suonebilqo
‘sjuelb juadsun
10 sAejap anypuadxa 001X [seniqel
feydeo yosfoud Ja.ND/UseD pajoLsaiun]
Jou op sieak ﬂwmow‘_om S TS
% o or oroduigo | %8TLL| hOVOL | %6LVI | %9ITVO | %BILE | %L'OS | %ZO'LS | %SELS | O paredwiod yses papalssaln
jou ale sieak ainjng yseod pajousaiun
‘siealk |enjoe
Joud ay) ul pajos|el
se sjuawAed j09(oid
lendes pue sweiboid
papuny jueib
ul sAejap 108loud jou
Op S]SE09.10} PJEMIOS 001X [samiqey
'S|9Ad)| [BWIOU 0} JuaLIND/s}esse Jualn))]
uinjas sbuipjoy yseo SamjIgel| JUBLIND
Buisolo Se 95ea109p | o 7509} | %Z9'GLL | %SP'8OL | %L ESL | %0S'LLZ | %OS6LZ | %IETOT | %L6'BLL 0} paredwiod s}asse JuaLINg

0} pajoadxas ale
Jeydes Bupyiom Joy
sleak }seoalo} ay |

sjusWwo) pue
suonele) [eudje

€20e

(44114 34114

¢ Jseoauoy

0zoe

(11114

11114 102
$ Hnsay

11114

rendes Bupopm
Aypinbry

ainseaw / Joyesipul / uoisuswig

610z @unp Qg pepus Jeak ay) Jo4

SJlojedipul @0uewlollad |eldueul

Performance Statement

20454



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

| Statements (Cont.)

inancia

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual F

Performance Statement

"seoueleq
ueo| Buipuejsino

8y} 8onpal o}
S8NUIUOD [I2UNOY) SE
syuawAedal |edpund
pue s}so0 aoueul
JBMO]| pue (suolenjea
Areyjuswaiddns
a|qeJnoney

snid deo ajeu

%G'Z) @NUaAal d)el
1ayBiy Jo uoleuIquwiod
B 0] anp s| sileak
pJemio} ul sinsesw
SIY} Ul 9SEBI08P

8yl '0¢-6L0C

ur |iny ui predal aq

0} pasodo.d si yoiym
(uoliw 6'¥$ dloIUBA
Buipun4 Juswuiano
[e007) 1g0p Bunsixe
Bunal [1ouno0)

0} 8np os|e pue
sJeaA yjoq ui uoljiw
01$ Jo sBuimouioq
UEO| S}08}§al

pue Apeajs s| sieak
02-610C pue 61-8L0C
Q) Jono ynsai ay |

sjuawiwo) pue
suopjeleA [eLdje

%c0'2e

€202

%91°G€

(44114

%0¥'8¢

X411

¢ Jsedalo4

%89 LY

0202

%G1y

6102

%09'6€

8102

%9’y

102

$ }Insay

%CS '8y

9102

001X [enuanai ayey / sbuimo.loq
pue sueo| bulieaq jsaiayu|]

sajel 0}
patedwod sbuimoliog pue sueo

sBuimolioq pue sueoT

ainseaw / J0yedipul / uoisuswig

610¢ aunr Qg pspus Jeak 8y} Jo4

SJ03}eDIpU] 9JUBWLIOMD |eloueul

Performance Statement

20455



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

| Statements (Cont.)

inancia

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual F

‘sBuimolioq
Bunsixa s,|1oun0)
uo [ediound jo
juswAedas pauueld
pue pajnpayos

ul uononpal

ay} Bunoayyal

001X [enuanal 80inos
UMQ /SaNligel] JUSLINI-UON]
3aNnuaAal 82JN0S UMO 0}

oseaioop oy 1seo0l0y | BOVOT|  %98'8T  %LGLE  %rEEE  %690E  %SYLE  %LGTE  %66'6E PILdWIOD SARIGE JUSHNO-UON

a.e sieak piemiod ssaupsigapu|
“Jeyealay) seoueleq
ueo| Buipueisino
80Npal 0} SENUNUOD

|oUN0Y "0Z-610¢C 001X [enuaAal

ur (Iny ut predau aq ajey/sBuIMOLIOg pUE SUEo]

0} pasodoud si yoiym) Bulieaq jsalajul uo syuswAedal

uol|jiw 6" SJIUSA Jediound pue jsaisjul]

Buipung EmEMBBO sajel 0] paredwod sjuawAedal

[BOODIGIDOUNSIE | g0y | qiazy | wory | wize | %se | %6y | %S | %02 SBUMOLI0q pue Sueo]

Buunes [1ouno)
sjo8|y8l 02-610C
ul aseaJoul ay |

sjuswwo) pue
suopeleA [eLRJe|N

€202

(44174

X411

¢ ysegaloy

0202

6102

8102

(panunuog)
sBuimouioq pue sueo

L1102 9l02 7

¢ jnsay TSmme / loreoipul / uojsuawiq

610z dunr Qg papus Jeak ayy Jo4
SJlojedipul @0uewlollad |eldueul

Performance Statement

20456



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

| Statements (Cont.)

inancia

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual F

Performance Statem

‘ue|d uonnguuon
juswdojanaq ayy Aq
PaJ4aA09 Jou sjuswanoidul
aoeds uado ojgnd

UO sjunowe pajepueul ay}
10 SS90X8 U] ain)ipuadxa
104 JuswiasINquial
Jadojensp uoljiw /Z°1$

e s| Bunquyuod osy
'spuny anJasal paufuelenb
woJj papuny Wed ase pue
pauinial 8q 0} paiinbai

QJe sjunowe asay] ‘|oAs|
1o6.e) paJinbal ay) ansiyoe
0} 8|geun S| [IoUN0Y dJaym
(uolw 1.8"L$) 61-8102
pue (uoljiw $0°€$) 81
-/10Z Jo} weiboid poddng
SWOH Y}lESamuowwo) auyy
0} Buneal sjuesb yuadsun
10 A1anodal ay} Joy (uol|jiw
§8'7$) inypuadxae ul
asealoul ue 0} anp Ajuiew
sI sn|dins BulAluepun

pajsnipe uj aseai08p 8y

sjuswwo)

%98'6

€202

%196

(44114

%V6'8

(34114

¢ }sedalo4

%¥2'8

0202

%S1°L

6102

%680l | %c8¢Cl

8102 Lioe
$ 3Insay

%L18°L

00LX [enuanal

Buikpapun  paisnipy/(yoyep)
sn|dins Buikpapun pajsnipy]
(uoyap J0)

snjdins BuiAliapun paisnipy
1nsai BuiAjlapun paisnipy
uonisod Bunesado

ainseaw / Jojedipul / uoisuawiq

81.0Z dunf Og pepus Jeak ay} 104

SJ03}eDIpU] 9JUBWLIOMD |eloueul

Performance Statement

Performance Statement

20457



MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

| Statements (Cont.)

inancia

2.3.1 2018-19 Annual F

Performance Statement

‘suonen|ea
Aieyuswaiddns

10 J08y9

ay snid %5z'z Jo ded
ajel ay) Aq Buisealoul
Ajuo anuanai

ajel 0} pasedwod
sanjeA Auadoud
61-810¢ ul @seasoul
%€EL ¥ e anp

S| }INSal JoMO| 8y |

%820

%620

%620

%0€°0

%8¢°0

%EE0

%€ 0

%1€0

001X [Anjedidiunw ayy

ul sajuadoud ajqeajel Jo anjea
panoidwi [eyden/enuanal ajey]
sanfea

Auadoud 0) pasedwod sarey

HoJjo saley

SsjuswWwoy pue
suoneleA [eLIBJel

%6Y'CL

%E6’LL

(44114

%9V 1L

¥4 114

¢ Jsesaloy

%LE°0L

%1929

6lL0C

%99

:11114

%l L'v9

Loz

$ 3nsay

%6569

9loC

001X [enuanal Buikjiepun
pajsnipy / anuanal ajey]

anuanal buiAispun
paisnipe 01 paredwod sarey
uoneHUSDUOD Sarey

Angers

ainsesaw / Joyedipul / uoisuswig

61.0Z dUnf Og papus Jeak ay} 104

SJ03}eDIpU] 9JUBWLIOMD |eloueul

Performance Statement

20458



City of Greater Dandenong
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Definitions

“adjusted underlying revenue” means total income
other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital
expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from
sources other than those referred to above

“adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)” means
adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

“asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on
an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset
that returns the service capability of the asset to its
original capability

“current assets” has the same meaning as in the
AAS “current liabilities” has the same meaning as in
the AAS

“non-current assets” means all assets other than
current assets

“non-current liabilities” means all liabilities other than
current liabilities

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the
condition that it be expended in a specified manner
and is not expected to be received again during the
period covered by a council’s Strategic Resource Plan

“own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying
revenue other than revenue that is not under the
control of council (including government grants

“population” means the resident population estimated
by council

“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates,
municipal charges, service rates and service charges

“recurrent grant” means a grant other than a
non-recurrent grant

“residential rates” means revenue from general rates,
municipal charges, service rates and service charges
levied on residential properties

“restricted cash” means cash and cash equivalents,
within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available
for use other than for a purpose for which it is
restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund
capital works expenditure from the previous financial
year

“unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash
equivalents other than restricted cash.

Performance Statement
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Performance Statement

Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance
statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial
performance indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation
of material variations in the results. This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent
with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on information drawn from council
information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial
performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s strategic resource plan. The Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the
results contained in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each
indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in its strategic resource
plan on 12 June 2018 and which forms part of the council plan. The strategic resource plan includes estimates
based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving
sustainability over the long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General
Purpose Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting Council.

Performance Statement
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Performance Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Michelle Hansen CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Date: 9 September 2019

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the City of Greater Dandenong for the year
ended 30 June 2018 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in
relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the
performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Youhorn Chea
Councillor

Date: 9 September 2019

Matthew Kirwan
Councillor

Date: 9 September 2019

John Bennie PSM
Chief Executive Officer

Date: 9 September 2019

20461
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2.3.2 June 2019 Financial Report (interim results)

File 1d:
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: Financial Report — 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019
(interim results)
Report Summary

The purpose of this report is to present to Council the June 2019 Financial Report. This report is
designed to provide financial performance reporting against the Mid-Year Budget adopted by Council
on 10 December 2018.

Status of financial information

The information in this report has been audited by Council’s audit agent however it has not yet been
endorsed by the Victorian Auditor General (VAGO) and may be subject to further change. At the time
of preparation, this report is presented as an interim result prior to the final Annual Report which will
be available on 30 September in accordance with Section 131 of the Local Government Act 1989.
The report has been presented in the quarterly financial report format that provides greater detail to
Council on the respective variations between the actual outcomes compared to the Original Budget
and the Mid-Year Budget amounts.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019 be noted by Council
including the proposed capital and operating carry forwards from the 2018-19 financial year listed in
(Appendix 4) of the financial report will form the basis of an 2019-20 Amended Budget for management
reporting purposes.
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Background

The attached financial report is designed to inform Councillors of the results of Council operations
for the year ended 30 June 2019 including financial performance against the Mid-Year Budget adopted
by Council on 10 December 2018.

At the time of preparation, this report is presented as an interim result. The information in this report
has not been signed off by VAGO.

The financial report incorporates a set of financial statements and a Directorate analysis of financial
performance by Business Unit. The following are contained in the Attachment:

° Income Statement

° Balance Sheet

e  Cash Flow Statement

° Capital Expenditure Statement

e  Capital Expenditure report

° Investment Report

° Directorate Analysis

e  Capital and Operating Carry Over’s from 2018-19 to 2019-20

Whilst the financial statements are prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,
they contain several items which are “non-cash” in nature such as depreciation on assets and the
written down (book) value of assets sold. They also exclude capital expenditure, new borrowings and
loan repayments and as such, these Statements do not provide an accurate indication of the
surplus/deficit cash position within a financial year.

The table on the following page provides a management accounting summary of the financial
performance for the year ended 30 June 2019 which removes non-cash items and adds back cash
items.
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Management Accounting Summary as at 30 June 2019

FULL ANNUAL
YEAR MID YEAR VARIANCE

FULL
YEAR VARIANCE

ACTUAL BUDGET Fav (unfav)
Description £'000 $'000 $'000

FORECAST Fav (unfav)
$°000 $000

Income Statement

Income 221,912 217,860 4 352 217507 B3)
Expenditure 190,529 185598 (4,931) 185,130 468
Net surplus - ongoing operations 31,383 31,962 (579) 32377 415

Management Accounting reconciliation
Add back less] non cash items

Depreciation 29,054 201548 (108) 28188 -
Sprng WV alley landfill provision adustment 16 - 16 - -
Fairvalue adjustments - irvestmenrt

property a07 - o7 = =
Contributions nor-monetary assets (7, 735) (15,000 7,265 (15,000) -
Assets written off 3167 - 167 - -
Prior yvear capital expenditure unable to be

E-'EIICIitEI"SEIj 1,683 5 1,683 = =
Written downvalue of assets soldidisposed 400 186 214 246 ]
Sub total 27,492 14,345 13147 14,405 i)
Net operating surplus 58,875 46,307 12,568 46,782 475
Addfless non operaiing cash iteimns

Capital expenditure 53,574 Trd29 23855 78079 (1,650}
Mettransfers to (from) resemves 12748 3797 (8,952) 1,803 1,994
Loanrepayments 3301 3,301 - 33M -
Loanproceeds (10,000} (10,000) - (10,000 -
Sub total 50,624 74,527 14,903 74183 344
Cash surplus (deficit) {749) {28,220) 27 AT {27, 401) 819
Accumulated surplus brought forward 28220 28,220 - 28220 -
Capital project carry overs (net) (16,190} - (16,190} -

Dperating camy avers (net) (4,035) - (4,035) -

Financial Assistance Grants funding _ ,

distributed in advance (6,251) - (6,251) -

Surplus {deficit) position 995 = 995 819 B
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Results of the year ended 30 June 2019

The overall management accounting result for the period ended 30 June 2019 shows a positive
financial outcome for Council with an accumulated cash surplus result of $995,000 after consideration
of expenditure budgeted in 2018-19 which was unspent but required to be carried forward to the
2019-20 financial year. A full list of operating and capital carry overs is included in Appendix 4 of
this financial report.

The favourable cash surplus result is mainly due to the following variations:

° Employee cost savings across the organisation due to position vacancies and a delay in
recruitment. $2.23 million relates to unspent grant funded programs to be carried forward.

e  Favourable interest returns on investments due to higher cash and investment balances due to
a delay in capital and operating cash outflows.

Offset partly by
° Higher than anticipated net transfers to reserves.
Mid-Year Budget cash surplus allocation

In terms of the accumulated outcome as at the end of 2018-19, the accumulated cash surplus result
is $995,000 after consideration of capital and operating carry overs. The allocation of this surplus will
be considered by Council as part of the Mid-Year Budget review in December 2019.

2018-19 Result (net surplus — ongoing operations)

The full year surplus for 2018-19 is $31.38 million, which is $579,000 unfavourable to the Mid-Year
Budget.

The net operating surplus excluding non-cash items is a favourable variance of $12.57 million, which
is mainly due to:

° Higher operating grants - Financial Assistance Grants for 2019-20 paid in advance of $6.25
million.

e Lower employee costs — across all Directorates $6.06 million ($2.23 million of this relates to
unspent grant funded programs to be carried forward).

Partly offset by $4.85 million relating to Council’s obligation to return unexpended grant funds to the
Commonwealth Government relating to targets not achieved for Home Support Programs.

Detailed comments about some of the significant variances contributing to the financial year outcomes
are included below.
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Income

Income for the period ended 30 June 2019 is favourable against budget. This is primarily due to the
following:

Grants — operating ($8.96 million favourable) — The favourable variance relates to:

e Early receipt of $6.25 million (50%) of the 2019-20 Financial Assistance Grant via the Victorian
Grants Commission in June 2019 (Corporate Services).

e Higher than anticipated funding received (Family Day Care $940,000, Home and Community
Care (HACC) $653,000, National Respite for Carers $289,000 and Planned Activity Group
$117,000).

e Receipt of unbudgeted grant (Refugee Immunisation Project $189,000).

Contributions - monetary ($2.17 million favourable) — Better than anticipated income from public
open space contributions (Planning and Design $2.33 million). This favourable variance is partly
offset by the delay in recognition of contributions from the Developer Contributions Plan (DCP) for
the Keysborough South Industrial Buffer project and Lyndhurst B1 Bridge due to a delay in project
completion, and a contribution of $50,000 that is no longer going to be received for the roundabout
at Chapel and Homeleigh Roads (Capital Works Program $336,000).

Rates and waste charges ($949,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is mainly due to higher
than anticipated supplementary rates (Corporate Services $870,000) and supplementary and additional
waste rates (Waste Services $80,000).

Statutory fees and fines ($818,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to greater than anticipated
parking fine revenue, including fees added for unpaid penalty follow up (Parking Management
$820,000).

Other income ($815,000 favourable) — Favourable variance is due to better than anticipated interest
(Non Directorate $1.86 million), recovery and rental income for Council properties and facilities,
Microsoft licensing, higher income from Mayoral event (Corporate Services $182,000), extension of
Level Crossing Removal Project (City Planning, Design and Amenities $114,000) and recovery income
relating to Monash Drive wetland works and annual valuation implementation (Corporate Accounting
$102,000). This is partly offset by lower recovery income from member councils due to a delay in
scheduled restoration works for Spring Valley Landfill (Engineering Services $1.46 million).

These favourable variances are partly offset by unfavourable variances in:

Contributions — non-monetary ($7.27 million unfavourable) — Lower than anticipated income from
gifted assets. The nature of these receipts makes timing difficult to predict. This is a non-cash
accounting entry.
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Grants — capital ($974,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to delay in receipt of grant
funding for Ross Reserve ($763,000), Thomas Carroll Pavilion ($225,000), Springvale Community
Precinct ($51,000) and Yarraman Oaks Primary Early Years Learning Facility ($33,000), combined
with lower funding matched to lower project spending for Safe System Road Infrastructure Program
($57,000).

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by the early receipt of grant funding for Springvale Reserve
Cricket Net Replacement ($90,000) combined with unbudgeted ‘Book a Court’ grant income for Lois
Twohig Reserve Tennis Club ($20,000), Springvale North Tennis Club ($20,000), Springvale South
Tennis Club ($20,000) and Burden Park Tennis Club ($20,000).

User fees ($911,000 unfavourable) — Due to reclassification of sub-division fee income to ‘Statutory
fees and fines’ (Engineering Services $375,000), lower than expected income from client based
services such as Family Day Care and Food Services (Community Services $297,000), as well as
lower income from parking ticket machines and meters (City Planning, Design and Amenity $247,000).

Expenditure

The actual expenditure at 30 June 2019 is unfavourable to the Mid-Year Budget by $4.93 million.
The major variances contributing to this result are other expenses, asset write offs (non-cash), prior
year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) and fair value adjustment (non-cash),
partly offset by lower employee costs, bad and doubtful debts and materials and services.

Other expenses ($7.59 million unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance mainly due to the estimated
amount of Government grants to be returned due to not achieving targets in 2017-18 and 2018-19
for the Commonwealth Home and Support Program (CHSP), National Respite for Carers, HACC —
Home Maintenance and Planned Activity Group (Community Care $4.79 million) (refer to Note 24 i
for further details), works on non-Council assets which cannot be capitalised to the asset register but
were budgeted in the Capital Program (Capital Works Program $1.64 million) and reimbursement to
a developer for expenditure in excess of the mandated amounts on public open space improvements
(Non Directorate $1.25 million).

Asset write offs (non-cash) ($3.17 million unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance mainly due to
the renewal and replacement of roads, buildings and footpaths (Non Directorate). This is a non-cash
accounting entry.

Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) ($1.68 million unfavourable)
— This unfavourable variance is due to works in progress (prior year capital expenditure) that is not
able to be capitalised to the asset register because it is not capital in nature, does not meet the
capitalisation threshold or relates to non-Council assets (Corporate Accounting $1.68 million). This
is a non-cash accounting entry that does not impact on Council’s cash position.

Fair value adjustments for investment property ($907,000 unfavourable) — Represents the
adjustment to fair value of investment property assets in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards as these assets are not subject to depreciation. This year’s adjustment mainly relates to
fire damage of a commercial shop building. This is a non-cash accounting entry (Non Directorate).
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These unfavourable variances are partly offset by favourable variances in:

Employee costs ($6.06 million favourable) — This favourable variance is due to leave patterns,
vacant positions and recruitment occurring later than planned across all directorates (Community
Services $3.76 million, Engineering Services $691,000, Corporate Services $623,000, City Planning,
Design and Amenity $560,000 and Greater Dandenong Business $328,000) and year-end adjustments
to employee entitlement provisions (Non-Directorate $132,000).

Bad and doubtful debts ($1.31 million favourable) — The favourable variance of $1.31 million in
bad and doubtful debts mainly due to a change in the provision for doubtful debts methodology from
an aged basis to an expected credit loss model in compliance with changes in Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 9 Financial Instruments. This model considers both historic and forward-looking
information in determining the level of impairment

Materials and services ($899,000 favourable)
— The major items contributing to this variance are:

e  Contract services — lower expenditure than anticipated due to delays in restoration works at
Spring Valley Landfill, lower expenditure for road and drain works due to a $1.20 million transfer
to the Capital Program for works assessed as capital in nature, lower demand for garden and
hard waste (Engineering Services $4.28 million), which is partly offset by higher payments to
educators in Family Day Care matched by higher grant income (Community Services $1.33
million).

° Utilities — lower expenditure for street lighting (due to lower than anticipated public lighting
operation, maintenance and repair (OMR) costs and savings in the street lighting light-emitting
diode (LED) replacement program), gas and telephone costs (Engineering Services $278,000,
Community Services $120,000 and Corporate Services $92,000).

e  Consultants, professional services — lower than anticipated expenditure due to delay in
commencement of projects and reduced use of legal services (City Planning, Design and Amenity
$237,000, Greater Dandenong Business $198,000 and Corporate Services $113,000).

These favourable variances are partly offset by current year expenses incurred in the Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) that were unable to be capitalised to the asset register as they do not
satisfy the asset recognition criteria because they were under the capitalisation threshold, not capital
in nature or related to non-Council assets (Capital Works Program $3.48 million).

Capital expenditure

Full year capital works gross expenditure achieved is $53.57 million, which is $23.86 million favourable
against Mid-Year Budget. Capital project carry over’s totalling $16.19 million (net) are included in
Appendix 4 — ‘Capital and Operating Carry Over’s from 2018-19 to 2019-20. The full year capital
works expenditure also includes $2.34 million of operating expenditure as it meets the asset recognition
criteria.
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Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’
Opportunity

e Leadership by the Council — The leading Council
Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

Opportunity
e  An open and effective Council
Financial Implications

The City of Greater Dandenong completed the 2018-19 financial year in a sound financial position.
This will now allow Council to further consider the allocation of surplus funds through the Mid-Year
Budget review process in the 2019-20 financial year.
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Conclusion

The financial operation of Council is a significant business with Council overseeing operational
expenditures of around $190 million combined with capital works and debt repayments of another
$57 million. Council actively manages the financial performance of Council over the course of the
financial year and it is pleasing on these significant dollar amounts, that Council has delivered a result
that is within budget with a resulting surplus that is equivalent to 0.52% of our total spend.

Recommendation

That Council notes the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019 including the proposed
capital and operating carry over’s from the 2018-19 financial year listed in Appendix 4 of the
financial report which will form the basis of the 2019-20 amended budget for management
reporting purposes.

MINUTE 1172

Moved by: Cr Matthew Kirwan
Seconded by: Cr Zaynoun Melhem

That Council notes the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019 including the proposed
capital and operating carry over’s from the 2018-19 financial year listed in Appendix 4 of the
financial report which will form the basis of the 2019-20 amended budget for management
reporting purposes.

CARRIED
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FINANCE AND BUDGET

JUNE 2019 FINANCIAL REPORT (INTERIM RESULTS)

ATTACHMENT 1

FINANCIAL REPORT
1 JULY 2018-30 JUNE 2019 (INTERIM
RESULTS)

PAGES 56 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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(GREATER
DANDENON(3
City of Opportunity
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‘ GREATER

/ DANDENON(G
City of Opportunity Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

CGD - Operating Result

For the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income B1
Rates and charges 141,036 140,087 949 140,786 250 139,575
Statutory fees and fines 9,471 8,653 818 9,022 449 7,950
User fees 8,199 9,110 911) 8,229 (30) 9,628
Grants - operating 34,309 25,352 8,957 24,912 9,397 28,148
Grants - capital 4,068 5,042 (974) 4319 (251) 1,256
Contributions - monetary 5,269 3,102 2,167 3,530 1,739 2,398
Contributions - non-monetary 7,735 15,000 (7,265) 15,000 (7,265) 15,000
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, (164)
infrastructure, plant and equipment 457 661 (204) 621 661
Other income 11,368 10,553 815 10,325 1,043 10,350
Total income 221,912 217,560 4,352 216,744 5,168 214,966
Expenses B2
Employee costs 74,820 80,884 6,064 79,067 4,247 76,894
Materials and services 65,273 66,172 899 64,406 (867) 63,726
Prior year capital expenditure unable to (1,684)
be capitalised (non-cash) 1,684 - (1,684) o ! -
Bad and doubtful debts (72) 1,239 1,311 1,239 1,311 1,097
Depreciation and amortisation 29,054 29,159 105 29,159 105 29,945
Borrowing costs 3,131 3,171 40 3,171 40 3,171
Fair value adjustments expense 907 - (907) - (907) -
Asset write offs 3,167 - (3,167) = (3,167) =
Other expenses 12,565 4,973 (7,592) 8,088 (4,477) 4,767
Total ex 190,529 185,598 (4,931) 185,130 (5,399) 179,600
Net surplus (deficit) 31,383 31,962 (579) 31,614 (231) 35,366
Overview

Council achieved a net surplus result of $31.38 million at 30 June 2019, which represents an
unfavourable variance to the Mid-Year Budget or $579,000.

Four of the larger unfavourable variances relate to non-cash accounting entries for fixed asset/capital
items that total $13.02 million:

e  Contributions — monetary ($7.27 million unfavourable).

e Asset write offs ($3.17 million unfavourable).

e  Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised ($1.68 million unfavourable).

e  Fair value adjustments for investment ($907,000 unfavourable).

The net surplus result, excluding these non-cash items is a favourable variance of $12.44 million, which

is mainly due to:

e Higher operating grants - Financial Assistance Grants for 2019-20 paid in advance $6.2 million

e Lower employee costs — across all Directorates $6.06 million ($2.23 million of this relates to unspent
grant funded programs to be carried forward).

Partly offset by $4.85 million relating to Council's obligation to return unspent grants to the
Commonwealth Government relating to targets not achieved for Home Support Programs.

For detailed variance explanations, refer to section B1 for income items and B2 for expenditure items.
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2019

2018-19 2017-18 2018-19
ACTUAL ACTUAL MID YEAR
30 Jun 2019 30 Jun 2018 BUDGET
$°000 $°000 $°000
ASSETS
Current assets C1
Cash and cash equivalents 162,637 153,578 132,572 108,026
Trade and other receivables 22,791 19,324 19,350 18,498
Other assets 4,444 3,723 2,274 2,194
Total current assets 189,872 176,625 154,196 128,718
Non-current assets Cc2
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2,136,615 2,160,742 2,223,826 2,245,138
Investment property 12,827 11,330 11,330 10,305
Other financial assets 230 230 230 230
Trade and other receivables 325 325 325 334
Total non-current assets 2,149,997 2,172,627 2,235,711 2,256,007
Total assets 2,339,869 2,349,252 2,389,907 2,384,725
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities Cc3
Trade and other payables 26,299 20,864 20,822 19,658
Trust funds and deposits ' 35,069 40,013 42,013 34,768
Provisions 17,296 16,361 16,397 17,414
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 8,634 3,301 8,496 8,496
Total current liabilities 87,298 80,539 87,728 80,336
Non-current liabilities Cc4
Provisions 1,537 1,313 1,313 657
Trust funds and deposits 900 1,287 1,287 1,103
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 49,891 48,525 50,029 50,029
Total non-current liabilities 52,328 51,125 52,629 51,789
Total liabilities 139,626 131,664 140,357 132,125
NET ASSETS C5 2,200,243 2,217,588 2,249,550 2,252,600
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 875,922 856,958 885,123 889,438
Asset revaluation reserve 1,241,807 1,290,865 1,290,865 1,308,037
Reserves 82,514 69,765 73,562 55,125
TOTAL EQUITY 2,200,243 2,217,588 2,249,550 2,252,600

1. Trust funds and deposits include fire services property levies collected by Council on behalf of the State Government.

These monies are remitted to the State Revenue Office 28 days after each quarterly rate instalment date. The majority of
the trust funds and deposits balance relates to Development Contribution Plan levies totalling $26.64 million at 30 June
2019.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

2018-19 2018-19
ANNUAL ANNUAL
MID YEAR ORIGINAL
30 Jun 2019 BUDGET BUDGET
Inflows/ Inflows/ Inflows/
(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)
$'000 $°000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 140,410 140,061 139,183
Statutory fees and fines 6,739 7414 6,594
User fees 8,409 10,021 10,448
Grants - operating 34,394 27,292 29,821
Grants - capital 3,941 5,042 1,256
Contributions 5,025 3,102 2,398
Interest 3,707 1,792 1,787
Trust funds and deposits taken 31,902 34,000 30,500
Other receipts 8,826 9,722 9,499
Net GST refund 10,506 11,045 9,264
Employee costs (73,607) (80,848) (76,179)
Materials and services (79,205) (79,125) (74,719)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (36,423) (32,000) (30,000)
Other payments (8,439) (5,470) (5,244)
Net cash provided by operating activities 56,185 52,048 54,608
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (51,528) (77,429) (59,912)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 857 847 847
Net cash used in investing activities (50,671) (76,582) (59,065)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (3,154) (3,171) (3,171)
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans 10,000 10,000 10,000
Repayment of interest-bearing loans (3,301) (3,301) (3,301)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3,545 3,528 3,528
Net increase (decrease) in cash 9,059 (21,006) (929)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 153,578 153,578 108,955
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 162,637 132,572 108,026
Represented by:
Operating cash 26,232 (1,105) (1,041)
Restricted cash 136,405 133,677 109,067
Total 162,637 132,572 108,026
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Capital Expenditure Statement
For the period 1 July 2018 - 30 June 2019

The detailed program under each of the capital groups is contained in Appendix 1 — Capital

Expenditure.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A. Accounting Policy Notes

The financial report is prepared on the principles of accrual accounting. Accrual accounting recognises
income when earned and expenditure when incurred, regardless of whether cash settlement has taken
place. The basis of recognition of major income and expenditure in these statements are defined below.

1.

Rate revenue: Rate revenue (excluding supplementary rates) is accrued evenly over the year,
although cash is received in quarterly instalments or a lump sum, depending on how the ratepayer
chooses to pay. Rate revenue in the Income Statement is a monthly accrual of the rates determined
for the year in July.

Grants revenue: Council receives two types of grants, namely a General Purpose Grant (Financial
Assistance Grant Funding allocation from the Victoria Grants Commission) which is not tied to any
programs and Special Purpose Grants for various programs. All grants are recognised as income
when cash is received. Grants comprise of operating and capital (recurrent and non-recurrent in
nature).

Fees and charges: Most fees and charges are recognised when cash is received. Where Council
raises a debtor’s invoice, income is recognised at the point of the invoice and not when cash is
received.

Contributions - cash: Cash contributions are essentially from developers towards open space
works. These monies are treated as income when received. Council is obligated to spend these
monies for the purpose for which they are given by the developers. Council also receives external
contributions for other capital projects. Cash contributions received are held in reserves and treated
as “restricted cash” until they are spent (see note 9 below).

Employee costs: Salaries expenditure is based on fortnightly salaries paid and accruals for salary
on-costs such as leave entitlements, superannuation and workcover.

Capital expenditure: The two broad areas of capital are the capital improvement program (CIP)
(which includes infrastructure and major projects) and ‘other’ which includes fleet, computers, plant
and furniture. Expenditure is recognised as capital if it exceeds the capitalisation threshold and
results in assets which have a useful life in excess of one year.

Budget information: The Original Budget information contained in the report is the budget approved
by Council on 12 June 2018. The budget in this report reflects the Mid Year Budget as adopted by
Council on 10 December 2018. The Mid Year Budget represents the adopted budget incorporating
net carry forward capital and operating amounts from 2017-18 and any adjustments identified since
the 2018-19 Original Budget was approved in June 2018. The Mid Year Budget represents the latest
financial position for Council.

Cash Flow Statement: Reflects the actual cash movements during the year.

Restricted cash: These are monies set aside for specific purposes and are not readily available for
day to day operations or general capital works. They include funds set aside towards meeting long
service leave commitments (required by government regulations), statutory reserves (eg. open space
contributions) and other funds that are committed towards specific purposes.
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B1. Operating Income

The chart below shows the categories of operating income against their respective budgets (excludes
non-monetary contributions or gifted assets and fair value adjustments for investment property which
represent non-cash accounting entries).

Income from operating activities
for 1 July 2018 - 30 June 2019

160,000 .
\.\\‘
140,000
120,000 ||
o 100,000
o
S 80,000
60,000 | |
40,000 -~ |
DS e = P L
0 -
Grants -
Statutory — R capital Net gain on
R:'::f ae';d fees and User fees g?::::::':" oGLar:tisn (recurrent & | disposal of |Other Income
9 fines Y P 9 non- PIPE
recurrent)
‘ @YTD actual 141,036 9,471 8,199 5,269 34,309 4,068 457 11,368
‘ mYTD budget 140,087 8,653 9,110 3,102 25,352 5,042 661 10,553

Income for the period ended 30 June 2019 is favourable against budget. This is primarily due to the
following:

Grants — operating ($8.96 million favourable) — The favourable variance relates to:

e Early receipt of $6.25 million (50%) of the 2019-20 Financial Assistance Grant via the Victorian
Grants Commission in June 2019 (Corporate Services).

e Receipt of unbudgeted grant (Refugee Immunisation Project $189,000).

e Higher than anticipated funding received (Family Day Care $940,000, Home and Community Care
(HACC) $653,000, National Respite for Carers $289,000 and Planned Activity Group $117,000).

Contributions - monetary ($2.17 million favourable) — Better than anticipated income from public open
space contributions (Planning and Design $2.33 million). This favourable variance is partly offset by the
delay in recognition of contributions from the Developer Contributions Plan (DCP) for the Keysborough
South Industrial Buffer project and Lyndhurst B1 Bridge due to a delay in project completion, and a
contribution of $50,000 that is no longer going to be received for the roundabout at Chapel and Homeleigh
Roads (Capital Works Program $336,000).

Rates and waste charges ($949,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is mainly due to higher
than anticipated supplementary rates (Corporate Services $870,000) and supplementary and additional
waste rates (Waste Services $80,000).
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Statutory fees and fines ($818,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to greater than anticipated
parking fine revenue, including fees added for unpaid penalty follow up (Parking Management $820,000).

Other income ($815,000 favourable) — Favourable variance is due to better than anticipated interest
(Non Directorate $1.86 million), recovery and rental income for Council properties and facilities, Microsoft
licensing, higher income from Mayoral event (Corporate Services $182,000), extension of Level Crossing
Removal Project (City Planning, Design and Amenities $114,000) and recovery income relating to
Monash Drive wetland works and annual valuation implementation (Corporate Accounting $102,000).
This is partly offset by lower recovery income from member councils due to a delay in scheduled
restoration works for Spring Valley Landfill (Engineering Services $1.46 million).

These favourable variances are partly offset by unfavourable variances in:

Contributions — non-monetary ($7.27 million unfavourable) — Lower than anticipated income from
gifted assets. The nature of these receipts makes timing difficult to predict. This is a non-cash accounting
entry.

Grants — capital ($974,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to delay in receipt of grant
funding for Ross Reserve ($763,000), Thomas Carroll Pavilion ($225,000), Springvale Community
Precinct ($51,000) and Yarraman Oaks Primary Early Years Learning Facility ($33,000), combined with
lower funding matched to lower project spending for Safe System Road Infrastructure Program ($57,000).

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by the early receipt of grant funding for Springvale Reserve
Cricket Net Replacement ($90,000) combined with unbudgeted ‘Book a Court’ grant income for Lois
Twohig Reserve Tennis Club ($20,000), Springvale North Tennis Club ($20,000), Springvale South
Tennis Club ($20,000) and Burden Park Tennis Club ($20,000).

User fees ($911,000 unfavourable) — Due to reclassification of sub-division fee income to ‘Statutory
fees and fines’ (Engineering Services $375,000), lower than expected income from client based services
such as Family Day Care and Food Services (Community Services $297,000), as well as lower income
from parking ticket machines and meters (City Planning, Design and Amenity $247,000).
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The chart below shows the categories of operating expenditure against their respective budget (excluding
depreciation, prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised and asset write offs which are non-
cash accounting entries).

Expenditure from operating activities
for 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019
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The actual expenditure at 30 June 2019 is unfavourable to the Mid Year Budget by $4.93 million. The
major variances contributing to this result are other expenses, asset write offs (non-cash), prior year
capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) and fair value adjustment (non-cash), partly offset
by lower employee costs, bad and doubtful debts and materials and services.

Other expenses ($7.59 million unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance mainly due to the estimated
amount of Government grants to be returned due to not achieving targets in 2017-18 and 2018-19 for
the Commonwealth Home and Support Program (CHSP), National Respite for Carers, HACC — Home
Maintenance and Planned Activity Group (Community Care $4.79 million) (refer to Notes 24 ii for further
details), works on non-Council assets which cannot be capitalised to the asset register but were budgeted
in the Capital Program (Capital Works Program $1.64 million) and reimbursement to a developer for
expenditure in excess of the mandated amounts on public open space improvements (Non Directorate
$1.25 million).

Asset write offs (non-cash) ($3.17 million unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance mainly due to the
renewal and replacement of roads, buildings and footpaths (Non Directorate). This is a non-cash
accounting entry.
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Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised (non-cash) ($1.68 million unfavourable) —
This unfavourable variance is due to works in progress (prior year capital expenditure) that is not able to
be capitalised to the asset register because it is not capital in nature, does not meet the capitalisation
threshold or relates to non-Council assets (Corporate Accounting $1.68 million). This is a non-cash
accounting entry that does not impact on Council’s cash position.

Fair value adjustments for investment property ($907,000 unfavourable) — Represents the
adjustment to fair value of investment property assets in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards as these assets are not subject to depreciation. This year’s adjustment mainly relates to fire
damage of a commercial shop building. This is a non-cash accounting entry (Non Directorate).

These unfavourable variances are partly offset by favourable variances in:

Employee costs ($6.06 million favourable) — This favourable variance is due to leave patterns, vacant
positions and recruitment occurring later than planned across all directorates (Community Services $3.76
million, Engineering Services $691,000, Corporate Services $623,000, City Planning, Design and
Amenity $560,000 and Greater Dandenong Business $328,000) and year end adjustments to employee
entitlement provisions (Non-Directorate $132,000).

Bad and doubtful debts ($1.31 million favourable) — The favourable variance of $1.31 million in bad
and doubtful debts mainly due to a change in the provision for doubtful debts methodology from an aged
basis to an expected credit loss model in compliance with changes in Australian Accounting Standard
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (which represents a change in accounting policy).

Materials and services ($899,000 favourable) — The major items contributing to this variance are:

e Contract services — lower expenditure than anticipated due to delays in restoration works at Spring
Valley Landfill, lower expenditure for road and drain works due to a $1.20 million transfer to the
Capital Program for works assessed as capital in nature, lower demand for garden and hard waste
(Engineering Services $4.28 million), which is partly offset by higher payments to educators in Family
Day Care matched by higher grant income (Community Services $1.33 million).

e  Utilities — lower expenditure for street lighting (due to lower than anticipated public lighting operation,
maintenance and repair (OMR) costs and savings in the street lighting light-emitting diode (LED)
replacement program), gas and telephone costs (Engineering Services $278,000, Community
Services $120,000 and Corporate Services $92,000).

e Consultants, professional services — lower than anticipated expenditure due to delay in
commencement of projects and reduced use of legal services (City Planning, Design and Amenity
$237,000, Greater Dandenong Business $198,000 and Corporate Services $113,000).

These favourable variances are partly offset by current year expenses incurred in the Capital
Improvement Program (CIP) that were unable to be capitalised to the asset register as they do not satisfy
the asset recognition criteria because they were under the capitalisation threshold, not capital in nature
or related to non-Council assets (Capital Works Program $3.48 million).
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C. Balance Sheet

Council's net assets are valued at $2.20 billion at the end of June 2019.

C1. Current assets (cash and other assets that can be readily converted to cash)

Cash and cash equivalents ($162.64 million) — This represents the amount held by Council in cash or
term deposits. Please note that this amount includes $136.41 million of funds “restricted” for various
purposes. These are detailed in the notes to the cash flows that follow in section D and a graphical
presentation in Appendix 2.

Funds are invested in accordance with Council’s Investment Policy. The policy requires Council to invest
with prudence, consideration of acceptable risks and relevant legislation.

The details of Council’'s investments are contained in Appendix 2. In selecting investment products,
Council has paid due consideration to risk by investing in products that have a minimum Standard and
Poor’s (S&P) rating of “A”.

Trade and other receivables ($22.79 million) — This balance includes:

e Rate debtors $7.75 million

e General debtors $7.21 million (net of provision for doubtful debts).

e Infringement debtors of $7.83 million (net of provision for doubtful debts).

Other assets ($4.44 million) — This balance includes:

e Accrued income $1.24 million — income earned but cash not yet received at 30 June 2019.

e  Prepayments $3.05 million - expenses prepaid at 30 June 2019.

e Other deposits $157,000 — represents $82,000 deposit paid for purchase of property at 77 Herbert
Street, Dandenong and $75,000 deposit for Metropolitan Resource Recovery organic waste
processing contract.

C2. Non-current assets

Non-current assets ($2.15 billion) — Includes $2.14 billion of Council roads, drains, buildings, plant and
other fixed assets. These values are reflected after recognising the depreciation allowed against each
asset.

Investment property ($12.83 million) is separately classified from ‘Property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment’ in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Any adjustment to the fair value of
these assets is recorded in the Comprehensive Income Statement and these assets are not depreciated.

Other non-current debtors include:

e Other financial assets - $230,000 shares relating to Regional Kitchen Pty Ltd.

e Trade and other receivables - $252,000 for Council’s share of funds held in trust by Whitehorse City
Council relating to the former Narre Warren landfill site and $73,000 refundable deposit paid to
Community Chef for the supply of meals to Council's Meals on Wheels operation.
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C3. Current liabilities (debts due to be repaid within 12 months)

Trade and other payables ($26.30 million) - Comprises trade creditors arising from operations and
capital works.

Trust funds and deposits ($35.07 million) — Trust funds and deposits includes other refundable monies
in respect of:

. Development Contribution Plans (DCP) ($26.63 million).

Road deposits ($2.61 million).

Other deposits ($2.38 million).

Open space contributions ($1.87 million).

Landscape deposits ($836,000).

Fire services property levy funds collected but not yet paid on to the State Revenue Office
($738,000). These amounts are due to be remitted to the State Revenue Office in accordance with
legislative timeframes.

Provisions ($17.30 million) — This balance represents the provision for employee entitlements and
landfill restoration works.
e Long service leave entitlements - $10.23 million.
e Annual leave entitlements - $6.00 million.
e Rostered days off (RDO) - $473,000.
e Landfill provision - $592,000 - provision for the restoration and aftercare management of the
former Spring Valley landfill site (closed). The former closed landfill is owned by the Council and
is used as recreational open space.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ($8.63 million) — $3.70 million relates to outstanding amount
to be repaid on long term borrowings during 2019-20 and $4.90 million relates to repayment of the Local
Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) due in November 2019.

C4. Non-current liabilities (debts due to be repaid in future years)

Provisions ($1.54 million) — Represents the provisions estimated to be paid beyond the 2018-19
financial year and comprises long service leave entitlements for employees ($1.22 million) and landfill
provision for restoration of Spring Valley landfill site ($319,000).

Trust funds and deposits ($900,000) — Represents deposits that are payable beyond the 2018-19
financial year and comprises landscape deposits of $796,000 and contractor deposits of $104,000.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ($49.89 million) — Comprises the amount of outstanding
borrowings to be repaid beyond the next 12 months.

C5. Net assets and equity

Net assets - Represents the difference between total assets and total liabilities. It is the Council’s net
worth to the City’s ratepayers.

Reserves — Includes both statutory reserves (S) and discretionary reserves (D). The statutory reserves
apply where funds are gained from the application of legislative requirements to contribute — and where
expenditure of the funds is not entirely discretionary (i.e. the funds need to be used for certain expenditure
only). The reserves listed below are explained in the notes to the cash flows that follow.
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The discretionary reserves are:

Major projects reserve (D)

Insurance fund reserve (D)

Council funded — Development Contribution Plans reserve (D)
Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation reserve (D)

Local Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) — sinking fund (D)
Native re-vegetation reserves (D)

Keysborough South Maintenance Levy reserve (D)

General reserve (Aged Care) (D)

Dandenong Activity Precinct — Parking and Development reserve (D)
Springvale Activity Precinct — Parking and Development reserve (D)
Grants in Advance Reserve (D)

Keysborough South Community Infrastructure Levies (D)

The statutory reserves are:
e Open space — planning, development and improvements (S)
e  Open space — land acquisitions (S)

D. Cash Flow Statement

Cash and investment holdings total $162.64 million as at 30 June 2019 which has increased by $9.06
million since 30 June 2018. Total cash and investment holdings are made up of operating cash ($26.23
million) and restricted cash ($136.41 million).

Please refer to the next page for a detailed listing of Restricted Cash which is set aside for specific
purposes.

Cash flows from operating activities — net inflow of $56.19 million. The major inflows are rates $140.41
million, grants $38.34 million, trust funds and deposits taken $31.90 million, other income $8.83 million,
user fees $8.41 million and statutory fees and fines $6.74 million. The major outflows are employee
costs $73.61 million, materials and services $79.21 million and trust funds and deposits repaid $36.42
million.

Trust funds and deposits taken and repaid mainly relate to developer contribution funds and fire services
property levies. The remittance of the fire services property levy (FSPL) and FSPL levy interest amounts
are made to the State Revenue Office (SRO) in four payments in accordance with Section 41(1) of the
FSPL Act. An instalment is due and payable to the Commissioner of State Revenue 28 days after the
due date of rates instalments. Council collects FSPL on behalf of the State Government.

Cash flows from investing activities — are a net outflow of $50.67 million and include:

e $51.53 million for capital works expenditure. The detailed capital works schedule is included in this
report as Appendix 1. Please note the difference between the two capital expenditure amounts is
due to the movement in capital trade creditors at the start and end of the reporting period. Appendix
1 is on an accrual basis.

e $857,000 proceeds on asset sales mainly relating to the fleet replacement program.

Cash flows from financing activities — is an inflow of $3.55 million. Council incurred $3.15 million in
finance costs on its borrowings and repaid $3.30 million on existing loans. Proceeds from new loan
borrowings of $10.00 million were drawn down for the purpose of completing the Springvale Community
Precinct project.
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Restricted cash - Restricted cash represents funds that are set aside for specific purposes, as detailed

in the following tables.

Tyoe 30 June 2019 Notes
e $'000

Reserve funds

Council funded Development 15,703 | Reserved for specific expenditure in

Contribution Plans (DCP) reserve accordance with the published DCP.

Open space — planning, 9,170 | Reserved for enhancing the City’s open

development and improvements space by planning, development and
improvements.

Open space — acquisitions 5,918 | To fund acquisitions of new open space land.

Major projects reserve 38,810 | Holds funds realised from the sale of
Council’s property assets and will be utilised
for investing in other properties.

Keysborough South Maintenance 1,613 | Reserve for specific maintenance

Levy expenditure relating to this area.

Keysborough South Community 1,540 | This reserve fund relates to Community

Infrastructure Levies Infrastructure Levies received in relation to
the Keysborough South Development
Contributions Plan.

Spring Valley landfill rehabilitation 924 | This reserve is for the rehabilitation of the
Spring Valley landfill site.

Re-vegetation reserves 272 | These funds are to meet native re-vegetation
requirements on Council’s reserves.

Insurance fund reserve 987 | This fund has been created to meet large and
unexpected policy excesses on multiple
insurance claims.

Local Government Funding 4,900 | The purpose of this reserve is to provide for

Vehicle (LGFV) — sinking fund the $4.90 million principal repayment required
on maturity of the interest-only Local
Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) in 2019-
20 and to provide future borrowing capacity for
major infrastructure projects.

Springvale Activity Precinct 235 | This reserve is to fund development in the

Parking and Development reserve Springvale Activity Centre.

Dandenong Activity Precinct 382 | This reserve is to fund development in the

Parking and Development reserve Dandenong Activity Centre.

General reserve (Aged Care) 840 | Funds set aside for the aged care reforms.

Grants in Advance reserve 1,220 | Funds set aside for capital grants received in
advance of the financial year to which the
project works will occur.

Total reserve funds 82,514
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30 June 2019

Type $°000 Notes

Employee provisions

Long service leave 11,452 | Funds set aside to meet long service leave
commitments.

Annual leave and other 6,470 | Funds set aside to meet annual leave and
rostered days off (RDO) commitments.

Employee provisions 17,922

Trust funds and deposits

Development Contribution Plans 26,635 | Pending completion of works.

Fire services property levy 738 | Payable to State Revenue Office — legislative

collected and due requirement.

Open space contributions 1,873 | Pending completion of works.

Landscape deposits 1,632 | Pending completion of works.

Road deposits 2,609 | Pending completion of works.

Other trust funds and deposits 2,482 | Refundable upon finalisation of programs.

Total trust funds and deposits 35,969

Total restricted cash 136,405
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E. Statement of Capital Works

Total capital expenditure at 30 June 2019 was $53.57 million. Appendix 1 contains the expenditure
status of each of the approved capital projects.

The timing of cash outflows and project completion can differ for capital projects. Commentary on the
status of each project with major variances is provided below (i.e. variances greater than $300,000).
Please note that the variances detailed below are the total of all asset classes by capital project whereas
the Capital Expenditure report details the variances separately by asset class and capital project.

A number of capital projects listed below are proposed to be carried over to the 2019-20 financial year.
A total of $16.19 million (net) in capital works has been identified as proposed carry forward commitments
to 2019-20. These projects are listed in Appendix 4 — Capital and Operating Carry Over’s from 2018-19
to 2019-20.

Property

e 3043 Springvale Community Precinct ($4.55 million favourable) — Asbestos remediation
has delayed the overall Springvale Community Precinct project. The Springvale Library project
remains on track, however on a tight schedule due to the Southern facade material being taken off
the market and procurement required. The ground floor and level one slabs have been completed
and structural steel has been erected in the Western grid. Works in the Northern landscape are on
track, with all underground services in and the concrete pour of the bandstand complete. A carry
over to 2019-20 of $4.20 million has been proposed.

o 3548 Keysborough South Community Hub Development ($3.13 million favourable) —
Pending land acquisition/location. This favourable variance will be carried over to 2019-20, mostly
funded by a $3.00 million transfer from the Major Projects Reserve.

e 3219 Thomas Carroll Pavilion ($2.38 million favourable) —Tender documentation is currently
being completed and available for tender by mid July 2019. Evaluation and approval target is by
end of August 2019.

e 3069 Property Acquisition ($1.12 million unfavourable) — Relates to a strategic property
purchase at 275 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong.

e 3792 Dandenong Market Back of House — Cool room ($411,000 favourable) — Works have
been delayed due to challenging coordination with stakeholders and the impact of works on their
business trade. A combined Dandenong Market carry over to 2019-20 of $359,000 is proposed.

e 3875 Building Renewal Program — Public Toilet ($354,000 favourable) — Program work
deferred pending review and update of Public Toilet Strategy.

Infrastructure

e 3490 Springvale Road Boulevard ($3.19 million favourable) — Tender for stage one
construction has been advertised and now closed. There was only one submission however the
tenderer did not have VicRoads pre-qualification, a requirement VicRoads has indicated may be
enforced. Stage two design has been submitted and reviewed by Council. Work is now well
underway on the next iteration of the design, which is expected to be received by end of June. A
carry over to 2019-20 of $3.18 million has been proposed, partly funded by $1.03 million from
reserves.
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e 3756 Local Road Rehabilitation Program — Bangholme Road ($1.16 million favourable) —
Works have reached practical completion for this project. The favourable variance relates to $1.29
million that was transferred to operating expenditure because it could not be capitalised to the asset
register. Relates mainly to works on non-Council assets (undergrounding of power lines and public

lighting).

o 3141 Thomas Street Precinct Entrance (Afghan) ($654,000 favourable) — Contract has been
awarded. There is a 10 week procurement period for street furniture and specialist pavers and kerb
stone. This project is a proposed carry over to 2019-20 in the amount of $244,000 (funded from the
DCP Reserve). The remaining $375,000 represents project savings offset by a reduction in the
required transfer from the DCP reserve.

e 3992 DCP — Perry Road South Upgrade ($619,000 favourable) — Detailed designs for the
first stage of Perry Road Upgrade are nearing completion. Stages two and three will follow in the
new financial year. Detailed designs for stage two and three are expected to be complete in October
and December 2019 respectively. This project is a proposed carry over to 2019-20 in the amount of
$244,000 (funded from Council's DCP reserve). The remaining $375,000 represents lower than
anticipated project expenditure offset by a reduction in the required transfer from the DCP reserve
(nil cash impact).

e 3753 Local Road Surface/Rehabilitation Program ($616,000 favourable) — Committed
works have been completed. The favourable variance is due to $510,000 transferred to operating
expenditure because it was not capital in nature.

e 3498 Walker Street Dandenong — Streetscape ($544,000 favourable) — Project completed.
As this project was funded by reserves, the favourable variance means that a greater balance can
remain in reserves.

e 3129 Drainage Program ($529,000 favourable) — The construction contract for catchment 11
has been awarded to contractor. The first three stages are complete. The final stage (stage four) has
been brought forward from 2019-20 and is currently underway. This early start of stage four works
will allow us to take advantage of the June school holidays when working around schools in the area.
It is anticipated that the final stage is to be completed in July 2019. Design of catchment 9 and 16
has been awarded and modelling work has commenced. This design package will address a series
of flooding issues identified within these catchments. The flood modelling work is complete with the
design of the mitigation measures currently underway. This design work will continue in 2019-20. A
carry over to 2019-20 of $529,000 is proposed.

o 3631 Dandenong Park Master Plan ($517,000 favourable) — The toilet block has been
completed. Stage 2 works including the Stan Prior stage, seating, ball play area and paths have
reached practical completion with some outstanding issues requiring resolution. The recent wet and
cold weather has delayed the surface treatment for the multi-purpose playing court. A carry over to
2019-20 of $517,000 has been proposed.

e 3887 Silverleaf Ward Capital Contingency Fund ($505,000 favourable) — Funding will be
carried forward to the 2019-20 financial year and will be combined with the Wal Turner Reserve
Master Plan Implementation project.

o 3794 Tatterson Park Master Plan ($451,000 favourable) — Stage two has been completed.
The favourable variance relates to $344,000 transferred to operating expenditure because it wasn’t
capital in nature and $108,000 proposed to be carried over to 2019-20.
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e 3993 DCP - Lyndhurst B1 Bridge ($398,000 favourable) — Melbourne Water is waiting on
the plan from the design consultant. This project is a proposed carry over to 2019-20 (fully funded
from reserves).

e 3019 Major Drainage Renewal Program ($387,000 favourable) — Relates to Princes Highway
and Elonera Road (stage two). Re-tendering closed 4 July 2019 and report to be presented to
Council by the end of July 2019. This project is a proposed carry over to 2019-20.

e 3174 Active Transport Infrastructure Priority Program ($305,000 favourable) — Practical
completion inspection has been completed for Heatherton Road, however work for the tactile ground
surface indicators installation is still outstanding. Construction for Hammond Road shared user path
has commenced and will continue into 2019-20 financial year. The $305,000 favourable variance
relates to $120,000 transferred to operating expenditure because it was not capital in nature and a
proposed carry over to 2019-20 of $185,000.

o 3231 Local Road Upgrade and Reconstruction ($383,000 favourable) — Construction of
Bangholme Road is complete and partial completion issued. Design for Abbotts Road widening is
underway with functional layout plans already approved. There will be considerable work in the
detailed design phase of this project with overhead electrical asset relocations and traffic signals to
be detailed. Designs for Chandler Road will not proceed due to lack of support from the traffic
engineering department and VicRoads. Pillars Road feasibility study is complete. This project is a
proposed carry over to 2019-20.

o 3747 Streetscapes — Activity Centres ($300,000 favourable), and

e 3886 Douglas Street Noble Park Streetscape Upgrade ($300,000 favourable)
These two projects are considered together. Redesign of Douglas Street, Noble Park is underway
with lighting plan, traffic signal plans, civil plans and landscape plans completed and under final
review. Awaiting VicRoads and United Energy approvals. Stages three and four will be reversed
due to the outstanding authority approvals. These projects have been significantly delayed as the
design is reconciled against the new Level Crossing Removal Authority (LXRA) assets in the area.
These projects are proposed to be carried over to 2019-20.

General

e 0000 Not Applicable ($2.34 million unfavourable) — Relates to items that have been
transferred from operating because they meet the asset capitalisation criteria. For instance, building
and road works allocated to operating but assessed as being capital in nature. Offset by favourable
variance in operating expenditure in these areas.
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CIP Expenditure

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL
BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$ $ $ $
[PROPERTY |
Buildings
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capite 464,656 - (464,656) - (464,656) -
3015. Robert Booth Reserve Pavillion 705,252 615,933 (89,319) 644,147 (61,105) s
3037. Jan Wilson CCtr 47,193 50,000 2,807 50,000 2,807 =
3043. Springvale Community Precinct 13,264,140 17,814,011 4,549,871 17,814,011 4,549,871 18,528,799
3100. Pilot Renewable Energy Program - 77,239 77,239 77,239 77,239 -
3177. Dandenong Civic Ctr-HVAC Gas Boiler 250,212 - (250,212) 280,000 29,788 -
3178. OHS Priority Projects 31,802 - (31,802) 23,000 (8,802) -
3179. Shepley Regional Multipurpose Ctre 123,456 - (123,456) 89,146 (34,310) -
3199. IT System - Tom Houlahan Centre - 31,386 31,386 31,386 31,386 -
3200. Masonic Hall 178,006 200,000 21,994 200,000 21,994 200,000
3219. Thomas Carroll Pavilion 45,528 2,425,000 2,379,472 2,425,000 2,379,472 2,000,000
3235. Alex Nelson Reserve 1,379,967 1,339,509 (40,458) 1,339,509 (40,458) -
3251. Building Large Renewal-Alex Wilkie 363,523 400,000 36,477 400,000 36,477 -
3255. Yarraman Oaks Primary NEYLF 833,211 720,087 (113,124) 1,024,910 191,699 -
3257. 144 Thomas Street Car Park 406,084 330,000 (76,084) 330,000 (76,084) 330,000
3304. Operations Centre-Security Improve. 74,782 50,000 (24,782) 50,000 (24,782) 50,000
3315. D'nong Indoor Sports Stad MPIn Imp - 108,500 108,500 108,500 108,500 -
3512. Menzies Ave Res Hall - Kitchen 36,310 50,000 13,690 50,000 13,690 50,000
3548. Keysborough South Community Hub Dev - - - - - 1,000,000
3617. Tom Houlahan Ctre - Improv. Works 254,019 175,005 (79,014) 254,636 617 100,000
3772. Dandenong Market car park 12,498 40,000 27,502 40,000 27,502 -
3783. Dandenong Market Alfresco 204,293 31,034 (173,259) 204,210 (83) -
3792. Dandenong Mkt Back of House-Coolrm 371,324 782,112 410,788 571,451 200,127 350,000
3793. Dandenong Market Utility Srv Infra 43,080 175,682 132,602 175,682 132,602 100,000
3801. Dandenong Civic Ctre Impl.Solar Pan 145,815 120,000 (25,815) 120,000 (25,815) 120,000
3802. Building Energy Efficiency Program 215,404 510,922 295,518 310,922 95,518 510,922
3803. Building Capital Program Minor Work 10,919 215,000 204,081 215,000 204,081 215,000
3804. CCTV/Security Capital Program 125,356 170,000 44,644 170,000 44,644 170,000
3805. Municipal Early Years Infrast. Plan 58,911 80,000 21,089 80,000 21,089 80,000
3806. Drum Theatre - Motorise Light Bars - 176,000 176,000 176,000 176,000 176,000
3807. Drum Theatre - Auditorium Chairs 576 200,000 199,424 200,000 199,424 200,000
3808. Drum Theatre - Design Lighting Upgr - 26,608 26,608 26,608 26,608 26,608
3809. Dandenong Mkt Convert Analogue CCTV 85,712 50,000 (35,712) 87,485 1,773 50,000
3810. D'nong Nth Senior Citizen Ctr Hall 266,253 200,000 (66,253) 200,000 (66,253) 200,000
3811. Walker St Multi-deck Car Pk Roof 194,831 175,000 (19,831) 175,000 (19,831) 175,000
3812. The Castle Armytage Hall 16,237 15,000 (1,237) 15,000 (1,237) 15,000
3813. Shalimar Kindergarten MCH - 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
3814. D'nong Nth Senior Citizen Ctr Latha 27,719 40,000 12,281 40,000 12,281 40,000
3815. Frederick Wachter Res.Tennis Club 8,376 20,000 11,624 20,000 11,624 20,000
3816. Springvale Town Hall Stage 31,590 26,000 (5,590) 31,590 - 26,000
3817. Civic Archive Extension of Building 9,900 40,000 30,100 40,000 30,100 40,000
3818. Rowley Allan Res Football Pavilion 7,610 116,000 108,390 116,000 108,390 116,000
3872. Building Renewal Prg.-Reactive Work 138,181 200,000 61,819 200,000 61,819 200,000
3873. Building Renewal Prg.- DDA 210,024 200,000 (10,024) 200,000 (10,024) 200,000
3874. Building Renewal Prg.- HVAC 137,506 174,900 37,394 174,900 37,394 174,900
3875. Building Renewal Prg.-Public Toilet 125,707 480,000 354,293 95,257 (30,450) 480,000
3876. Building Renewal Prg.- Bathroom 203,393 233,600 30,207 233,600 30,207 233,600
3877. Building Renewal Prg.- Flooring 146,883 236,500 89,617 236,500 89,617 236,500
3878. Building Renewal Prg.- Lift Refurb. 99,358 85,000 (14,358) 85,000 (14,358) 85,000
3879. Building Renewal Prg.- Minor Works 495,798 354,450 (141,348) 354,450 (141,348) 354,450
3880. Building Renewal Prg.- Roof 86,196 145,000 58,804 145,000 58,804 145,000
3881. Building Renewal Prg.- Structure 226,088 102,965 (123,123) 102,965 (123,123) 102,965
3882. Building Renewal Prg.- Disposal 34,228 50,000 15,772 50,000 15,772 50,000
3883. Building Renewal Prg.- Kitchen & Eq 105,458 200,000 94,542 200,000 94,542 200,000
3884. Building Renewal Prg.-Oasis Spa - 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
3885. Building Renewal Prg.-Oasis Sand 12,788 30,000 17,212 30,000 17,212 30,000
3897. Frederick Wachter Resv. Clubrooms 36,937 40,000 3,063 40,000 3,063 =
3899. Noble Park Aquatic Ctre-Sand Replm. 85,269 110,000 24,731 110,000 24,731 -
3902. Ross Reserve Pavilion 13,460 - (13,460) - (13,460) -

Note — “0000 Not applicable” projects relate to items that have been transferred from operating because they meet the asset capitalisation

criteria. These items have been budgeted for in the Income Statement.

Appendix 1 — Capital Expenditure
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CIP Expenditure

ACTUAL

MID YEAR
BUDGET

FULL YEAR

VARIANCE

FORECAST

FORECAST
vs ACTUAL

VARIANCE

Investment Property

$

$

$

$

$

3069. Property Acquisition ~ ** 2,336,810 2,336,810 - 2,336,810 - -
Leasehold Improvements
3165. Police Paddocks Pavilion 40,940 46,552 5,612 46,552 5,612 -
3819. Police Paddocks Res. Concept Plan - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Land
3069. Property Acquisition 1,118,445 - (1,118,445) 1,115,688 (2,757) =
3548. Keysborough South Community Hub Dev - 3,132,229 3,132,229 3,132,229 3,132,229 3,000,000
[Total property 25,948,013 35,919,034 9,971,021 37,260,383 11,312,370 30,546,744 |
[PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ]
Plant, machinery and equipment
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 7,050 - (7,050) - (7,050) -
1445. Fleet Purchases 2,874,518 2,962,900 88,382 2,962,900 88,382 2,262,900
3820. Noble Park Aquatic Ctr Mechan.&Pump 60,898 25,000 (35,898) 25,000 (35,898) 25,000
3821. Oasis Leisure Ctr Mechan. & Pump - 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
Library books
3104. Library Resources 841,931 975,712 133,781 975,712 133,781 1,160,712
C s and tel
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 111,365 - (111,365) - (111,365) -
3276. Council website redevelopment - 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
3826. Upgrade ADSL Locations to Radio 21,406 25,000 3,594 25,000 3,594 25,000
3827. Increase Wi-Fi Cover-Various Locatn 45,335 45,000 (335) 45,000 (335) 45,000
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 52,556 - (52,556) - (52,556) -
3314. Public hall equipment 34,225 50,000 15,775 50,000 15,775 50,000
3822. Australia Day Recipents Tribute 0 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
3823. Jan Wilson Community Ctr Furniture 28,180 30,000 1820.17 30,000 1,820 30,000
3824. Vaccine Fridge 8,955 11,000 2,045 11,000 2,045 11,000
3825. Living Treasures Tribute 11,070 46,200 35,130 46,200 35,130 46,200
3898. Robert Booth Alex Nelson&Thomas Pav 44,348 50,000 5,652 50,000 5,652 -
[Total plant and 4,141,838 4,385,812 243,974 4,385,812 243,974 3,820,812 |
[INFRASTRUCTURE ]
Parks, open space and streetscapes
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 213,969 - (213,969) - (213,969) -
3027. Fence renewal at sport & passive pk 183,348 200,000 16,652 200,000 16,652 200,000
3028. Park Furniture Renewal 50,112 50,000 (112) 50,000 (112) 50,000
3141. Thomas St Precinct Enhance(Afghan) 181,132 835,604 654,472 835,604 654,472 400,000
3192. Douglas st. s/scape improv.proj. 4,270 290,482 286,212 290,482 286,212 -
3208. Local Passive Res.(Park Land)-Var. 31,652 29,871 (1,781) 29,871 (1,781) -
3248. DCP Keysb. Sth Industrial Buffer 30,729 309,514 278,785 309,514 278,785 -
3256. Safer Community Fund Mobile CCTV 28,733 20,317 (8,416) 20,317 (8,416) -
3258. Robert Booth Reserve Baseball Light 637,838 815,000 177,162 815,000 177,162 815,000
3448. Passive Park Fence Renewal Program 41,230 50,000 8,770 50,000 8,770 50,000
3490. Springvale Road Boulevard 55,741 3,247,168 3,191,427 3,247,168 3,191,427 2,150,000
3498. Walker St D'nong-Streetscape 1,525,078 2,069,406 544,328 2,069,406 544,328 1,000,000
3603. Metro 3175 Open Space Stage 1 144,035 180,000 35,965 180,000 35,965 180,000
3631. Dandenong Park Master Plan 2,673,037 3,190,494 517,457 3,190,494 517,457 1,500,000
3649. Open Space Master plan 10,750 236,000 225,250 236,000 225,250 -

Notes —

* Relates to a strategic property purchase at 275 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong.

** Relates to the strategic purchase of a commercial shop at 266-270 Lonsdale Street, Dandenong.
“0000 Not applicable” projects relate to items that have been transferred from operating because they meet the asset capitalisation criteria.
These items have been budgeted for in the Income Statement.

Appendix 1 — Capital Expenditure
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MID YEAR vs ACTUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$ $ $ $ $
3747. Streetscapes - Activity Centres - 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 -
3835. Park Signage Renewal Program - 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
3847. Decorative Public Light. Renewal Pr 202,458 230,000 27,542 230,000 27,542 230,000
3848. N'hood Activity Ctre Framework Impl 7,560 50,000 42,440 50,000 42,440 50,000
3849. Frederick Watcher Res. Master Plan 60,906 150,000 89,094 150,000 89,094 150,000
3850. Vessels of Light Refurbish 5 Public 11,929 14,000 2,071 14,000 2,071 14,000
3851. Sport Ground Sub Surface Drainage 49,645 221,000 171,355 221,000 171,355 221,000
3852. Warner Res. Master Plan Impl. 20,627 100,000 79,373 100,000 79,373 100,000
3853. Parkfield Res. Master Plan Impl. 177,631 100,000 (77,631) 550,000 372,369 100,000
3854. Burden Park Res. Master Plan Imp. 70,675 100,000 29,325 550,000 479,325 100,000
3855. Park Renewal Program 184,100 210,000 25,900 210,000 25,900 210,000
3856. Warner Res. Tennis Club Replace Fen 94,618 100,000 5,383 100,000 5,383 100,000
3857. Tatterson Park Passive Park Renewal 51,121 50,000 (1,121) 50,000 (1,121) 50,000
3858. Coomoora Res. Floodlight Install. 8,830 10,000 1,170 10,000 1,170 10,000
3859. Police Paddocks S'ball Fencing - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
3860. Heritage Lights Refurb.& Restor. 14,670 40,000 25,330 40,000 25,330 40,000
3861. Dandenong Bike Trail Sign. & Infras 30,000 30,000 - 30,000 - 30,000
3862. Lonsdale St. Joint Use Poles 34,750 40,000 5,250 40,000 5,250 40,000
3863. Greaves Res. Wayfinding Signage - 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
3864. Dandenong Creek Trail Solar Powered 13,478 20,000 6,522 20,000 6,522 20,000
3865. Tatterson Park Light Upgrade Oval 1 26,358 30,000 3,643 30,000 3,643 30,000
3866. D'nong Indoor Sports Stad Showcrt - 40,000 40,000 - - 40,000
3867. Keysborough Bowls Club Floodlight 125,986 100,000 (25,986) 100,000 (25,986) 100,000
3868. Brady Rd. Shop Precint Furn. & CCTV 117,146 202,000 84,854 144,757 27,611 202,000
3869. Alan Corrigan Reserve Lights 62,477 60,000 (2,477) 60,000 (2,477) 60,000
3886. Douglas St.N'Park Streetscape Upgr - 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
3888. Dandenong Precinct Cultural Signs 21,445 26,993 5,548 26,993 5,548 -
3889. Warner Reserve New Coaches Boxes 17,426 20,000 2,574 20,771 3,345 -
3892. LXRA CCTV Works - 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
3896. Fotheringham Resv. Addition Interpr 4,545 5,000 455 5,000 455 -
R I, leisure and faciliti
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 318,459 - (318,459) - (318,459) -
3029. Playground Improvements 409,639 507,727 98,088 507,727 98,088 430,000
3420. Lois Twohig Res.Tennis Club BkaCrt 11,769 - (11,769) 20,000 8,231 -
3421. Springvale Nth Tennis Club BkaCrt 17,281 - (17,281) 20,000 2,719 =
3587. Irrigation Check Meters-Sportsgroun 81,149 71,200 (9,949) 71,200 (9,949) 71,200
3622. Rosswood Tennis Club 286,174 285,000 (1,174) 285,000 (1,174) -
3651. Springvale Activity Centre-Laneways 4,111 200,000 195,889 200,000 195,889 200,000
3837. Greaves Res.Tennis Court Resurf. 269,703 500,000 230,297 500,000 230,297 500,000
3838. Ross Res.Turf Wicket Tables - 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
3839. Warner Res.Turf Wicket Tables - 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
3840. Alex Nelson Res. Cricket Net Replac 169,232 175,000 5,768 175,000 5,768 175,000
3841. All Abilities Playground Concept 4,800 150,000 145,200 150,000 145,200 150,000
3842. Lois Twohig Res.Exercise & Fitness 103,048 110,000 6,952 110,000 6,952 110,000
3843. Police Paddocks S'ball Dug Out Shel - 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
3844. Tatterson Park Stage 1A Impl.P'grd 49,045 200,000 150,955 200,000 150,955 200,000
3845. Norman Luth Res. Shade Options 13,400 80,000 66,600 80,000 66,600 80,000
3846. George Andrews Res.TRY Build Contai 32,095 280,000 247,905 280,000 247,905 220,000
3894. Lois Twohig Resv.Electronic S'board 46,867 70,000 23,133 70,000 23,133 -
3895. Lois Twohig Resv. Shade Shelters 43,633 60,000 16,367 60,000 16,367 -
Roads
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 841,873 - (841,873) - (841,873) -
3161. Black Spot Prog.-Athol Rd/Noble St 4778 - (4,778) o (4,778) o
9410.3171. Roads - Thomas & Scott St Signalisation 7,560 - (7,560) - (7,560) -
3187. Black Spot Prog.-Ellen St, SVale 7,657 - (7,657) = (7,657) =
3188. Black Spot Prog.- Halton Rd, D/nong 5,045 - (5,045) - (5,045) -
3189. Black Spot Prog. Lightwood Rd,S/val 11,974 - (11,974) 11,974 (0) o
3190. Black Spot Prog.- Oakwood Ave,D/non 9,579 - (9,579) - (9,579) -
3231. Local Road Upgrade & Reconstruction 314,119 697,425 383,306 697,425 383,306 697,425
3246. Black Spot Prog-Birdwood & Wilma Av 4,653 165,062 160,410 153,088 148,436 -

Note — “0000 Not applicable” projects relate to items that have been transferred from operating because they meet the asset capitalisation
criteria. These items have been budgeted for in the Income Statement.
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CIP Expenditure

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$ $ $ $ $
3247. Black Spot Prog-River EndRd ~ * (16,870) 45,583 62,453 45,583 62,453 =
3373. Municipal wide, Kerb and Channel 106,966 350,000 243,034 350,000 243,034 350,000
3418. Municipal Wide,LATM post audit 1,048,938 1,268,090 219,152 1,268,090 219,152 850,000
3495. Safe System Road Infrastructure Prg 419,703 500,000 80,297 500,000 80,297 -
3753. Local Road Surf./Rehabit. Prg. 3,106,392 3,721,910 615,518 3,721,910 615,518 3,721,910
3756. Local Road Rehab.Program-Bangholme 243,757 1,400,656 1,156,899 1,524,750 1,280,993 1,150,000
3828. Activity Centre Proj. Mason St 20,580 242,000 221,420 242,000 221,420 25,000
3829. Active Transport Infra Priority Rd. 50,000 55,000 5,000 55,000 5,000 55,000
3830. Springvale Rd Warwick Ave Rd Link - 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
3831. Bakers Rd, D'nong Nth Alter.Cross 8,800 35,000 26,200 35,000 26,200 35,000
3890. Black Spot Prog-Thomas St/Scott St 191,459 309,250 117,791 309,250 17,791 -
3891. Black Spot Prog-Windsor/Regent Ave 158,330 107,350 (50,980) 107,350 (50,980) -
3991. DCP-Chapel Rd Btw Villiers &Donnici 88,408 - (88,408) 240,000 151,593 -
3992. DCP - Perry Road South Upgrade 239,399 858,751 619,352 858,751 619,352 858,751
Bridges
3185. Municipal Wide - Bridges 59,705 219,000 159,295 219,000 159,295 219,000
3832. Bridge Rectification Works Survey - 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000
3993. DCP - Lyndhurst B1 Bridge - 397,535 397,535 397,535 397,535 397,535
Footpath and cycleways
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 71,992 - (71,992) - (71,992) -
3174. Active Transport Infra.Priority Pat 260,109 565,155 305,046 565,155 305,046 295,000
3355. Municipal Wide-Footpath Renewal 1,604,306 1,400,000 (204,306) 1,400,000 (204,306) 1,400,000
3833. Dandenong Creek Shared Path Stage1B - 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
3834. Green Wedge Projects Design 62,545 70,000 7,455 70,000 7,455 70,000
Off street car parks
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capital 52,179 - (52,179) - (52,179) -
3303. Noble Park Community Centre - 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
3662. Metro 3175 231,821 130,127 (101,694) 130,127 (101,694) -
3794. Tatterson Park Masterplan 2,011,053 2,462,247 451,194 2,462,247 451,194 1,000,000
3870. Keysborough Sth & Meridian Estate 44,282 50,000 5,718 50,000 5,718 50,000
3871. Queens Ave. Additional Car Park 32,627 37,000 4,373 37,000 4,373 37,000
3901. Ross Reserve Access Road 5,234 - (5,234) - (5,234) -
Drainage
0000. Expendtiure transferred from operating to capite 210,568 - (210,568) - (210,568) -
3019. Major Drainage Renewal Prg. 12,941 400,000 387,059 400,000 387,059 400,000
3129. Drainage program 2,782,596 3,311,424 528,828 3,311,424 528,828 2,305,000
3558. Pit Cover Replacement Program - 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
3728. Minor S/water Renewal Works 70,804 185,000 114,196 185,000 114,196 185,000
3729. Major stormwater works 1,750 - (1,750) - (1,750)
3836. Water Quality Program 16,136 255,000 238,864 255,000 238,864 255,000
3887. Silverleaf Ward Cap ContingencyFund - 505,000 505,000 505,000 505,000 -
| Total infrastructure 23,484,181 37,125,341 13,641,160 38,332,963 14,848,782 25,544,821 |
[GRAND TOTAL 53,574,031 77,430,187 23,856,155 79,979,158 26,405,126 59,912,377|
Notes —

* Negative balance relates to a credit for a prior year invoice.
“0000 Not applicable” projects relate to items that have been transferred from operating because they meet the asset capitalisation criteria.
These items have been budgeted for in the Income Statement.
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Cash and Investments
For the period 1 July 2018 - 30 June 2019
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Cash and Investments
For the period 1 July 2018 - 30 June 2019

Investment Credit Rating
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H Restricted - trusts funds and deposits

@ Unrestricted funds
® Restricted - employee provisions
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Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

Benchmark Indicator - Cash at Call

3.00%
2.50%
2.00%
1.50%
1.00%
0.50%
0.00%
Sept Dec Mar Jun
14 RBA Average Cash Rate -0.10% 1.40% 1.40% 1.40% 1.15%
# Actual Return - cash at call 1.40% 1.40% 1.40% 1.15%
Benchmark Indicator - Term Deposits
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%
0.00%
Sept Dec Mar Jun
1 UBSA Warburg 1.87% 1.92% 2.02% 1.97%
# Actual Return - Term Deposits 2.48% 2.53% 2.53% 1.87%

Lower actual return most likely due to the extended period of low interest rates due to increased

uncertainty in the economy.
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City of Opportunity

Total Operating Results

For the period 1 July 2018 - 30 June 2019

CGD BY DIRECTORATE

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Chief Executive Office - - - - - -
Greater Dandenong Business 688 555 133 683 5 330
Corporate Services 4,232 4,054 178 4,196 36 4,054
Engineering Services 23,016 24,384 (1,368) 22,790 226 24173
City Planning Design and Amenity 15,014 14,500 514 14,368 646 13,859
Community Services 24,741 22,515 2,226 21,730 3,011 20,552
Non-Directorate @ 149,828 145,637 4,191 147,457 2,371 150,530
Capital Works Program 4,793 6,103 (1,310) 5,765 (972) 1,654
Total income 222,312 217,748 4,564 216,989 5,323 215,152
Expenses
Chief Executive Office 679 640 (39) 657 (22) 640
Greater Dandenong Business 3,924 4,807 883 4,788 864 3,644
Corporate Services 20,320 21,288 968 21,214 894 21,095
Engineering Services 56,108 61,380 5,272 57,961 1,853 61,173
City Planning Design and Amenity 14,752 16,696 1,944 16,540 1,788 16,263
Community Services 49,064 46,835 (2,229) 50,064 1,000 41,892
Non-Directorate @ 40,931 34,140 (6,791) 34,151 (6,780) 35,079
Capital Works Program 5,151 - (5,151) - (5,151) -
Total expenses 190,929 185,786 (5,143) 185,375 (5,554) 179,786
Net surplus (deficit) 31,383 31,962 (579) 31,614 (231) 35,366

@ Non Directorate includes non-attributable items such as rates income, developer's contributions, interest income, non-
monetary assets, finance costs and depreciation.

Note - Total income and expenditure differs to the operating result on page 1 due to the treatment of proceeds from asset
sales and associated written down value.
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City of Opportunity

CEO DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE BUDGET
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges - - - - - -
Statutory fees and fines - - - - - -
User fees - - - - - -

Grants - operating - - - = o -
Grants - capital - - - o = -
Contributions - monetary - - - = - -
Contributions - non-monetary - - - = o -
Asset sales - - - - S A
Other income - - - = S -
Total income - - - - = o

Expenses
Employee costs 573 542 (31) 553 (20) 542
Materials and services 99 92 (7) 98 (1) 92

Bad and doubtful debts - - - S > -
Depreciation and amortisation - - - = = -
Borrowing costs - - - = o -
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - o o -

Other expenses 7 6 (1) 6 (1) 6
Total expenses 679 640 (39) 657 (22) 640
Net surplus (deficit) (679) (640) (39) (657) (22) (640)

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE BUDGET
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
CEO - - - 5 -
Totalincome - - - - - -
Expenses
CEO 679 640 (39) 657 (22) 640
Total expenses 679 640 (39) 657 (22) 640
Net surplus (deficit) (679) (640) (39) (657) (22) (640)
Notes:

No comments required for this directorate.
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City of Opportunity

GREATER DANDENONG BUSINESS GROUP

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR
FORECAST

MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges - - - S o -
Statutory fees and fines - - - o = -

User fees 2 5 3) 5 3) 5
Grants - operating 265 223 42 250 15 133
Grants - capital - - - - - -
Contributions - monetary 8 - 8 8 - -
Contributions - non-monetary - - - - - -
Asset sales - - - - - -
Other income 1 413 327 86 420 (7) 192
Total income 688 555 133 683 5 330
Expenses

Employee costs 2 2,266 2,594 328 2,420 154 2,242
Materials and services 3 1,508 2,032 524 2,182 674 1,248

Bad and doubtful debts - - - o > -
Depreciation and amortisation - - - = = -
Borrowing costs - - - = o -
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - o - -

Other expenses 150 181 31 186 36 154
Total expenses 3,924 4,807 883 4,788 864 3,644
Net surplus (deficit) (3,236) (4,252) 1,016 (4,105) 869 (3,314)

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Greater Dandenong Business Executive 329 256 73 334 (5) 121
Business Networks 295 274 21 301 (6) 184
Activity Centres Revitalisation 38 5 33 41 3) 5
Economic Development 26 20 6 7 19 20
Total income 688 555 133 683 5 330
Expenses
Greater Dandenong Business Executive 779 691 (88) 789 10 518
Business Networks 1,027 1,315 288 1,307 280 763
Activity Centres Revitalisation 993 1,388 395 1,374 381 950
Economic Development 1,125 1,413 288 1,318 193 1,413
Total exp 3,924 4,807 883 4,788 864 3,644
Net surplus (deficit) (3,236) (4,252) 1,016 (4,105) 869 (3,314)
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Notes:
Income
Note 1 Other income ($86,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is primarily due to higher

than anticipated A-League recovery income driven by higher project costs (Team 11 Project $73,000)
and unbudgeted recovery of prior year legal costs (Activity Centres Revitalisation $28,000).

This favourable variance is offset by lower than anticipated income from attendance to seminars
(Business Networks $20,000).

Expenditure

Note 2 Employee costs ($328,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to lower salary
costs caused by vacant positions, extended leave taken by staff and lower than anticipated hours worked
(Community Revitalisation Project $205,000, Economic Development $88,000, Activity Centres
Revitalisation $30,000 and Business Networking $28,000). The favourable variance in the Community
Revitalisation Project at 30 June 2019 is a proposed carry over to the 2019-20 financial year.

Note 3 Materials and services ($524,000 favourable) — A delay in commencement of projects

has resulted in lower than anticipated costs in the following areas:

e Consultants, professional services ($198,000) — Indian Cultural Precinct ($187,000), Economic
Development ($52,000) and Business Networks ($32,000). Partly offset by higher expenditure in
legal costs (Team 11 Project $87,000).

e  Administration costs ($167,000) — in particular, lower expenditure for newsletters, publications and
events (Economic Development $108,000, Indian Cultural Precinct $45,000 and Community
Revitalisation Project $15,000).

e Materials, maintenance and services ($97,000) - Indian Cultural Precinct ($88,000).

e Contract services ($58,000) - in Activity Centres Revitalisation ($36,000) and Economic
Development ($23,000).
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Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

CORPORATE

OPERATING RESULT

RVIC

DIRECTORATE

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges - - - - - -
Statutory fees and fines 89 104 (15) 104 (15) 104
User fees 23 12 1 18 5 12
Grants - operating 40 41 (1) 40 - 41
Grants - capital - - - - - -
Contributions - monetary - - - - -
Asset sales - - - = = =
Other income 4 4,080 3,897 183 4,034 46 3,897
Total income 4,232 4,054 178 4,196 36 4,054
Expenses
Employee costs 5 12,529 13,153 624 12,988 459 13,004
Materials and services 6 6,192 6,585 393 6,646 454 6,541
Bad and doubtful debts - - - - - -
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - = - -
Other expenses 1,599 1,650 (49) 1,580 (19) 1,550
Total expenses 20,320 21,288 968 21,214 894 21,095
Net surplus (deficit) (16,088) (17,234) 1,146 (17,018) 930 (17,041)

BUSINESS UNITS

Notes

Income
Corporate Services Executive

ACTUAL

$'000

782

MID YEAR
BUDGET
$'000

704

FULL YEAR

VARIANCE
$'000

FORECAST
$'000

709

FORECAST
vs ACTUAL
VARIANCE

$'000

ORIGINAL

704

Communications and Customer Service 78 73
Governance 3,095 3,022 73 3,080 15 3,022
Information Technology 45 - 45 43 2 -
Financial Services 233 276 (43) 285 (52) 276
People and Procurement Services 77 52 25 79 2) 52
Total income 4,232 4,054 178 4,196 36 4,054
Expenses
Corporate Services Executive 546 571 25 554 8 571
Communications and Customer Service 5,393 5,839 446 5,686 293 5,839
Governance 2,936 3,021 85 3,066 130 3,021
Information Technology 4,208 4,480 272 4,491 283 4,392
Financial Services 2,560 2,697 137 2,700 140 2,651
People and Procurement Services 4,677 4,680 3 4,717 40 4,621
Total expenses 20,320 21,288 968 21,214 894 21,095
Net surplus (deficit) (16,088) (17,234) 1,146 (17,018) 930 (17,041)
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Notes:
Income
Note 4 Other income ($183,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is primarily due to higher

than anticipated rental and recoveries income (Senior Citizen Facilities $38,000, Property Management
Administration $38,000 and Jan Wilson Community Centre $36,000). In addition, higher income has
been received for the Annual Mayoral Event which is offset by associated donation expenditure
(Members of Council $33,000), unbudgeted Microsoft licences recovery income (Information Technology
$45,000) which is offset by licence expenditure, and lower than anticipated rate debtor recoveries
(Property Revenue $28,000).

Expenditure

Note 5 Employee costs ($624,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is primarily due to
lower salary costs caused by vacant positions, a reduction in the use of casuals and changed working
conditions (Call and Service Centres $203,000, Civic Facilities $98,000, Financial Services $53,000, IT
Executive $51,000, Property Revenue $31,000, Governance $27,000, Corporate Services Executive
$17,000, and Records Management $16,000), lower than anticipated program (Occupational, Health and
Safety $157,000) and training expenditure (Members of Council $17,000).

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by higher temporary agency staff costs (Organisational
Development Executive $59,000).

Note 6 Materials and services ($393,000 favourable) — The main items contributing to the

favourable variance include:

¢ Information technology expenditure across directorate ($263,000) — lower than anticipated hardware
and software expenditure (Technical Services $113,000, Business Systems $79,000 and
Organisational Development Executive $47,000).

e Consultants, professional services ($113,000) — lower than anticipated legal costs (Property
Revenue $48,000, Risk Management $39,000, Organisational Development Executive $36,000,
Governance $17,000, Property Management Administration $15,000, Business Systems $15,000,
Civic Facilities $13,000 and Emergency Management $9,000). This variance is partly offset by
higher consultancy costs (Technical Services $36,000, Contracts $25,000, Jan Wilson Community
Centre $17,000 and Southern Screen $10,000).

e Administration costs ($96,000) — lower than anticipated costs for Council publications, postage,
community education, subscriptions and catering (Communications and Customer Service
Executive $90,000, Governance $15,000, Property Revenue $12,000 and Records Management
$9,000). Partly offset by unbudgeted advertising costs (Organisational Development Executive
$33,000).

o Utilities ($92,000) — lower than anticipated utilities, rates and land tax for community centres (Civic
Facilities $14,000, Paddy O’'Donoghue Centre $12,000 and Senior Citizens Facilities $10,000) and
telephone costs (Technical Services $20,000 and Members of Council $15,000).
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ENGINEERING SERVICES DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 7 19,431 19,352 79 19,458 (27) 19,352
Statutory fees and fines 8 333 162 171 441 (108) -
User fees 9 536 912 (376) 593 (57) 1,000
Grants - operating 10 365 280 85 280 85 143
Grants - capital - - - - - -
Contributions - monetary 1 140 - 140 - 140 -
Contributions - non-monetary - - - - - -
Asset sales 838 847 9) 847 9) 847
Other income 12 1,373 2,831 (1,458) 1,171 202 2,831
Total income 23,016 24,384 (1,368) 22,790 226 24173
Expenses
Employee costs 13 16,355 17,046 691 16,664 309 16,971
Materials and services 14 39,232 43,907 4,675 40,775 1,543 43,875
Bad and doubtful debts - 16 16 16 16 16
Depreciation and amortisation - - - - - -
Borrowing costs - - - - - -
Carrying amount of assets sold 15 400 186 (214) 246 (154) 186
Other expenses 16 121 225 104 260 139 125
Total expenses 56,108 61,380 5,272 57,961 1,853 61,173
Net surplus (deficit) (33,092) (36,996) 3,904 (35,171) 2,079 (37,000)

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Engineering Services Executive - - - - - -
Infrastructure Services 21,645 23,138 (1,493) 21,557 88 23,002
City Projects and Asset Improvement 24 18 6 18 6 18
Infrastructure Planning 1,347 1,228 119 1,215 132 1,153
Total i 23,016 24,384 (1,368) 22,790 226 24,173
Expenses
Engineering Services Executive 398 398 - 390 8) 398
Infrastructure Services 44,240 49,551 5,311 46,037 1,797 49,494
City Projects and Asset Improvement 9,583 9,299 (284) 9,476 (107) 9,289
Infrastructure Planning 1,887 2,132 245 2,058 171 1,992
Total expenses 56,108 61,380 5,272 57,961 1,853 61,173
Net surplus (deficit) (33,092) (36,996) 3,904 (35,171) 2,079 (37,000)
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Notes:
Income
Note 7 Rates and charges - waste ($79,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to

better than anticipated income for additional waste services and supplementary waste charges.

Note 8 Statutory fees and fines ($171,000 favourable) — The favourable variance is due to a
reclassification of sub-division fee income to ‘Statutory Fees’ previously recognised and budgeted in
‘User Fees’ (Civil Development and Design $144,000). The budget for sub-division fees is under ‘User
Fees’ but actuals have been moved to ‘Statutory Fees’. Actual sub-division fees for 2018-19 were
$134,000 lower than anticipated in the Mid Year Budget due to lower sub-division development activity
than forecast.

Note 9 User fees ($376,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to the reclassification
of sub-division fees to ‘Statutory Fees’ as per Note 8 above (Civil Development and Design $278,000)
and lower than anticipated drainage plan approval fee income (Civil Development and Design $18,000),
combined with lower than anticipated asset protection fee income and pre-commencement inspection
fee income (Asset Protection $89,000).

Note 10 Grants — operating ($85,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to receipt of
unbudgeted grant income for Caring for Our Local Environment (Parks Services $62,000), Corridors of
Green (Parks Services $20,000) and Sustainability Victoria E-Waste Education (Waste Management
$7,000).

Note 11 Contributions — monetary ($140,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to an
unbudgeted contribution in lieu of parking which has been transferred to the Springvale Activity Centre
parking and development reserve (Strategic Transport Planning $140,000).

Note 12 Other income ($1.46 million unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance mainly due to delay
in scheduled restoration works for Spring Valley Landfill and therefore recovery from stakeholder councils
is not yet required. These works are anticipated to commence during the 2019-20 year.

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by unbudgeted income for developer handover works (Parks
$383,000) which is offset by unbudgeted expenditure and higher than anticipated recovery of income for
asset protection reinstatements (Asset Protection $185,000).

Expenditure

Note 13 Employee costs ($691,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in
recruitment (Parks Services $255,000, Roads and Drains $218,000, Infrastructure Services and Planning
Executive $107,000, Asset Protection $101,000, Transport $68,000, Fleet Management $68,000, Civil
Development and Design $51,000 and Asset Management $22,000) and reduced hours as staff member
transitions to retirement (CIP Implementation $32,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated temporary agency staff costs (City
Projects and Asset Improvement Executive $143,000), unbudgeted costs for maternity leave payments
(Building Maintenance $42,000) and maternity leave payments unable to be transferred to the capital
program (CIP Major Projects $41,000).
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Note 14 Materials and services ($4.68 million favourable) - The favourable variance is due to:

e Environment Protection Authority (EPA) yet to confirm scope of works for Spring Valley Landfill
($2.47 million) delaying scheduled restoration works to 2019-20.

e  Lower contractor expenditure (Roads and Drains $1.08 million and Cleansing $364,000) due mainly
to $1.20 million in road and drain works that were assessed as being capital in nature and were
transferred to the Capital Program so that the works could be capitalised to the asset register.

e Lower demand for garden and hard waste, domestic recycling and tipping fees (Waste Services
$630,000).

e Lower than anticipated expenditure for street lighting due mainly to savings in public lighting
operation, maintenance and repair (OMR) costs and the street lighting light emitting diode (LED)
replacement program (Asset Management $464,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by unbudgeted developer handover works (offset by other
income) and higher than anticipated expenditure for park maintenance (Parks $312,000).

Note 15 Carrying amount of assets sold ($214,000 unfavourable) - Higher than anticipated
carrying amount of assets sold to date (Fleet Management). This is a non-cash accounting entry.

Note 16 Other expenses ($104,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to lower than
anticipated contributions for Spring Valley Landfill adjacent temple works due to a delay in the project
($77,000) and lower than anticipated other expenditure offset by higher expenditure in other areas such
as security and cleaning services (Building Maintenance $48,000).
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City of Opportunity

CITY PLANNING, DESIGN & AMENITY

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR

FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income

Rates and charges - - - - - -
Statutory fees and fines 17 9,036 8,387 649 8,473 563 7,846
User fees 18 5,265 5512 (247) 5172 93 5,632
Grants - operating 441 443 2) 443 2) 323

Grants - capital - B - o - -
Contributions - monetary - - - > - -

Asset sales - - - - - -
Other income 19 272 158 114 280 (8) 158
Total income 15,014 14,500 514 14,368 646 13,859
Expenses

Employee costs 20 11,686 12,245 559 11,869 183 12,190
Materials and services 21 3,067 3,150 83 3,359 292 2,895
Bad and doubtful debts 22 (102) 1,223 1,325 1,223 1,325 1,081
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - o - -
Other expenses 101 78 (23) 89 (12) 97
Total expenses 14,752 16,696 1,944 16,540 1,788 16,263
Net surplus (deficit) 262 (2,196) 2,458 (2,172) 2,434 (2,404)

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
City Planning, Design and Amenity Exec. 198 80 118 181 17 80
Building Services 748 640 108 751 3) 557
Planning and Design 1,787 2,122 (335) 1,918 (131) 2,112
Regulatory Services 12,281 11,658 623 11,518 763 11,110
Total income 15,014 14,500 514 14,368 646 13,859
Expenses
City Planning, Design and Amenity Exec. 586 535 (51) 630 44 535
Building Services 1,209 1,197 (12) 1,222 13 1,144
Planning and Design 4,856 5,600 744 5,224 368 5,344
Regulatory Services 8,101 9,364 1,263 9,464 1,363 9,240
Total expenses 14,752 16,696 1,944 16,540 1,788 16,263
Net surplus (deficit) 262 (2,196) 2,458 (2,172) 2,434 (2,404)
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Notes:
Income
Note 17 Statutory fees and fines ($649,000 favourable) — Favourable variance is due to better

than anticipated income from fines and recoveries (Parking Management $821,000 and Planning
Enforcement $116,000) and hoarding, lodgement and permit fees (Building Services $118,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by a reduction in planning application fee income due to lower
development activity matched by lower salary costs (Statutory Planning $271,000), lower than anticipated
health/food infringements as well as a change in the street traders’ registration process (Healthwise
$112,000) and lower statutory income (General Law Enforcement $65,000).

Note 18 User fees ($247,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to lower than
anticipated income from on street parking ticket machines/meters caused by a reduction in the number
of parking bays requiring payment and lower rates charged within localities across Dandenong Central
Activity District (Parking Management $426,000).

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by better than anticipated income from off street car park ticket
machines and permits (Car Parks $103,000), fee income (Healthwise $81,000) and animal registration
permit income (Animal Management $46,000).

Note 19 Other income ($114,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to income for extension
of Level Crossing Removal Project ($118,000), offset by higher project expenditure.

Expenditure

Note 20 Employee costs ($559,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in
recruitment (Statutory Planning $363,000, Regulatory Services Administration $69,000, Public Safety
and Security $63,000, Planning Enforcement $37,000, Parking Management $36,000, Strategic Design
and Sustainability Planning $28,000, General Law Enforcement $24,000 and Animal Management

$27,000).
This favourable variance is partly offset by changes in salary options (School Crossing Supervisors
$78,000).
Note 21 Materials and services ($83,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to delay in

commencement of projects (Strategic Design and Sustainability Planning $418,000) and lower than
anticipated electricity and community education (Public Safety and Security $27,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated statutory lodgement fees (Parking
Management $186,000 and Animal Management $67,000), legal costs (Statutory Planning $61,000 and
Healthwise $37,000) and extension of the Level Crossing Removal Project to 31 December 2018 which
is matched by funding ($42,000).

Note 22 Bad and doubtful debts ($1.33 million favourable) — Favourable variance due mainly
to lower than anticipated bad and doubtful debts expense due to a change in the provision for doubtful
debts methodology from an aged basis to an expected credit loss model in compliance with changes in
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 9 Financial Instruments (which represents a change in accounting
policy) (Parking Management $936,000, General Law Enforcement $189,000, Animal Management
$86,000, Healthwise $58,000, Planning Enforcement $36,000).
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City of Opportunity

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges - - - - - -
Statutory fees and fines - - - - - -
User fees 23 2,372 2,669 (297) 2,440 (68) 3,079
Grants - operating 24 20,991 18,411 2,580 17,943 3,048 16,094
Grants - capital - - - - - -
Contributions - monetary 63 41 22 76 (13) -
Asset sales - - - - - -
Other income 25 1,315 1,394 (79) 1,271 44 1,379
Total income 24,741 22,515 2,226 21,730 3,011 20,552
Expenses
Employee costs 26 30,577 34,337 3,760 33,579 3,002 30,806
Materials and services 27 11,193 9,913 (1,280) 10,834 (359) 8,684
Bad and doubtful debts 17) 1 18 - 17 1
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - - - -
Other expenses 28 7,311 2,584 (4,727) 5,651 (1,660) 2,501
Total expenses 49,064 46,835 (2,229) 50,064 1,000 41,892
Net surplus (deficit) (24,323) (24,320) (3) (28,334) 4,011 (21,340)

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Community Services Executive - - - - - -
Community Wellbeing 10,685 9,509 1,176 9,789 896 8,129
Community Care 11,013 9,966 1,047 9,077 1,936 9,659
Community Arts, Culture and Libraries 2,101 2,408 (307) 2,145 (44) 2,196
Community Development, Sports and
Recreation 942 632 310 719 223 568
Total income 24,741 22,515 2,226 21,730 3,011 20,552
Expenses
Community Services Executive 445 452 7 450 5 452
Community Wellbeing 13,994 16,411 2,417 16,554 2,560 12,836
Community Care 17,497 12,914 (4,583) 15,642 (1,855) 12,689
Community Arts, Culture and Libraries 10,058 10,264 206 10,326 268 9,691
Community Development, Sports and
Recreation 7,070 6,794 (276) 7,092 22 6,224
Total expenses 49,064 46,835 (2,229) 50,064 1,000 41,892
Net surplus (deficit) (24,323) (24,320) (3) (28,334) 4,011 (21,340)
Appendix 3 — Directorate Analysis Page 40

20513



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.2 June 2019 Financial Report (interim results) (Cont.)

‘ GREATER

/ 55 of Ot " Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019
Notes:
Income
Note 23 User fees ($297,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to lower than expected

fee income (Family Day Care $84,000 and Food Services $74,000 - the former matched by lower
program expenditure and the latter offset by higher grant income). Also, lower than anticipated theatre,
rental and sponsorship income contributed to this unfavourable variance (Drum Theatre $86,000).

Note 24 Grants — operating ($2.58 million favourable) — Favourable variance due to:

Grants higher than budget for variable client based services:

e Family Day Care $940,000 (mostly matched by higher payments to educators)
Home and Community Care (HACC) $653,000 (Netei)

National Respite for Carers $289,000 (Netei)

Planned Activity Group $117,000 (Notei)

Food Services $77,000 (Noteii)

Unbudgeted grant funding received for:

¢ Refugee Immunisation Project $188,000 (partly relates to early distribution of 2019-20 funding).

e Community Development $165,000 — relates to Metropolitan Partner Development fund (MPDF)
Social Isolation Project.

e Community Funding (Neighbourhood House Program) $54,000

e Immunisation $44,000 — relates mainly to early distribution of Noble Park English Language School
(NPELS) 2019-20 funding.

e  Children Support Service $31,000 — relates to unbudgeted 3 year old Kindergarten Planning grant.

e Market Street Occasional Care Centre - operational $12,000 (Council had temporary management
responsibilities of this Centre in June 2019).

Additional funding received:
e Child First $17,000
e Sports Planning $12,000

The favourable variance is partially offset by:

Lower than anticipated grant funding for:

e Maternal and Child Health (MCH) $30,000 — lower MCH program funding, partly offset by
unbudgeted grant funding for Family Violence and Graduate Placement Projects.

e Pre-school Field Officer $11,000

Note 24 - Additional notes:

i Unspent grant funding will be carried over to 2019-20 — see Appendix 4(A)

i.  Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP) unspent grant funding at 30 June 2019

Council has recognised all CHSP grant income received in 2018-19, however, the Mid Year
Budget only included estimated grant income based on anticipated target achievement. Given
the required targets were not able to be met, Council has also recognised accrued expenditure
in other expenses (Note 28) in various Community Care programs to extent that it expects to
refund grant funding.
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This is due mainly to the Aged Care Reform Agenda, which has seen the State and Federal
Governments undertaking separate responsibilities for In Home Support Programs depending on
the age of the client. This reform has moved from a predominantly integrated block funded
program to separate programs where funding is based almost solely on the achievement of
targets. During the 2016-17 and 2017-18 financial years, it was expected that grant funding would
be required to be returned/refunded, so estimated amounts were transferred to reserves.

Council received advice in January 2019 from the Australian Department of Health that $3.04
million relating to the 2017-18 funding period is required to be returned. Additionally, it is
estimated that $1.81 million will be required to be returned in relation to the 2018-19 financial
year. In total, $4.85 million has been accrued to recognise Council’s obligation to return unspent
grants to the Commonwealth Government relating to targets not achieved.

Note 25 Other income ($79,000 unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance mainly due to lower than
anticipated income from rental and salary recoveries (Drum Theatre $185,000 and Festival and Events
$31,000). This unfavourable variance is partly offset by better than anticipated rental income from
sporting clubs (Sports Planning $61,000) and recovery income and rent (Family Day Care $28,000,
Market Street Occasional Care Centre - Operational $22,000 and Youth Activity Service $16,000).

Expenses

Note 26 Employee costs ($3.76 million favourable) - Favourable variance due to delay in
recruitment (Maternal and Child Health $447,000, Cultural Development $218,000, Youth Engagement
$187,000, Access and Quality Systems $109,000, Children Support Services $127,000, Senior Citizens
Centres $102,000, Youth and Family Support $61,000, Community Property $47,000, Youth
Development $66,000, Community Development $51,000 and Food Services $54,000), staff on
extended leave (Library Services $176,000, Family Day Care $88,000, Planned Activity Group $106,000,
HACC — Assessment and Team Leaders $81,000, Preventative Health $42,000, Community Funding
$30,000 and Community Care Executive $33,000) and lower salary recovery expense (National Respite
for Carers $48,000).

This favourable variance is partly offset by higher than anticipated temporary agency staff costs (HACC
— Home Maintenance $129,000, Festivals and Events $82,000, Sports Planning $30,000 and Drum
Theatre $29,000), unbudgeted staff for a new program (Refugee Immunisation $55,000) which is offset
with unbudgeted grant income and higher than anticipated expenditure associated with new department
(Community Development, Sports and Recreation Executive $36,000).

Of the favourable employee cost variance of $3.76 million, $2.02 million relates to grant funded programs
in Community Services which require an acquittal (Child First $727,000, Playgroups Initiative $340,000,
Right@Home $284,000, Enhanced MCH Program $280,000, New Directions — Mothers and Babies
$161,000, Preschool Field Officer $98,000, Drug Strategy $89,000 and Best Start $35,000). Any unspent
grant funds relating to these programs will be carried forward to the 2019-20 financial year.
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Note 27 Materials and services ($1.28 million unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance due to:

Contract services ($1.33 million) — mainly relates to higher payments to educators (Family Day Care
$985,000) due to higher grant income received.

IT costs ($83,000) — due to higher than anticipated expenditure for software maintenance (Library
Services $46,000, Home and Community Care $32,000 and Community Funding $14,000).
Administration costs ($64,000) — higher than anticipated expenditure for advertising, promotions,
events and community education (Preventative Health $51,000, Festivals and Events $50,000,
Library and Information Service $32,000, Maternal and Child Health $12,000, New Directions —
Mothers and Babies $7,000 and Family Day Care $7,000), which is partly offset by lower than
anticipated expenditure for community education, printing, bus hire, promotions and events
(Community Development $45,000, Youth Activity Service $27,000, Market Street Occasional Child
Care Centre $22,000 and Drug Strategy $22,000).

This unfavourable variance is offset by the following favourable variances:

Utilities ($120,000) — lower expenditure for Drum Theatre ($35,000), Mills Reserve ($15,000), HACC
($12,000), Cultural Venues ($12,000), Maternal and Child Health ($9,000), Planned Activity Group
($8,000), 39A Clow Street ($8,000), Immunisation ($7,000) and Family Day Care ($5,000).
Materials and maintenance ($38,000) — lower than anticipated expenditure (Food Services
$100,000, Library and Information Service $56,000, New Directions — Mothers and Babies $32,000,
Family Day Care $21,000, Drum Theatre $16,000, Playgroups Initiative $14,000, Market Street
Occasional Child Care Centre $14,000), which is partly offset by higher than anticipated expenditure
(HACC $157,000 and HACC — Home Maintenance $61,000).

Note 28 Other expenses ($4.73 million unfavourable) - Unfavourable variance due to the
estimated Government grant funding to be returned due to not achieving all agreed targets (Home and
Community Care $3.96 million, National Respite for Carers $637,000, HACC — Home Maintenance
$338,000 and Planned Activity Group $177,000). Refer to Note 24 ii for further details.
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DIRECTORATE

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 29 121,605 120,736 869 121,328 277 120,223
Statutory fees and fines 13 - 13 4 9 -
Grants - operating 30 12,206 5,955 6,251 5,955 6,251 11,415
Contributions - monetary 31 4,333 2,000 2,333 2,000 2,333 2,000
Contributions - non-monetary 32 7,735 15,000 (7,265) 15,000 (7,265) 15,000
Asset sales 20 - 20 20 - -
Other income 33 3,916 1,946 1,970 3,150 766 1,892
Total income 149,828 145,637 4,191 147,457 2,371 150,530
Expenses
Employee costs 34 836 968 132 995 159 1,140
Materials and services 502 492 (10) 510 8 492
Prior ye.ear.capital expenditure unable to (1,684)
be capitalised (non-cash) 35 1,684 - (1,684) - : -
Bad and doubtful debts 47 - (47) - 47) -
Depreciation and amortisation 36 29,054 29,159 105 29,159 105 29,945
Borrowing costs 3,131 3,171 40 3,171 40 3,171
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - = - -
Fair value adjustments expense 37 907 - (907) = (907) -
Asset write offs 38 3,167 - (3,167) = (3,167) 2
Other expenses 39 1,603 350 (1,253) 316 (1,287) 331
Total expenses 40,931 34,140 (6,791) 34,151 (6,780) 35,079
Net surplus (deficit) 108,897 111,497 (2,600) 113,306 (4,409) 115,451

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Governance 20 - 20 19 1 -
Corporate Accounting 145,475 143,637 1,838 145,438 37 148,530
Planning and Design 4,333 2,000 2,333 2,000 2,333 2,000
Total income 149,828 145,637 4,191 147,457 2,371 150,530
Expenses
Governance 8 30 22 30 22 30
Corporate Accounting 39,634 34,110 (5,524) 34,103 (5,531) 35,049
Planning and Design 1,289 - (1,289) 18 (1,271) -
Total expenses 40,931 34,140 (6,791) 34,151 (6,780) 35,079
Net surplus (deficit) 108,897 111,497 (2,600) 113,306 (4,409) 115,451

Non Directorate includes non-attributable items such as rates income, fire services levy payable on Council properties,
developer’s contributions, interest income, gifted assets, carrying amount of assets disposed/written off and finance costs.
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Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

Income

Note 29 Rates and charges ($869,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due mainly to greater
than anticipated supplementary valuations as a result of a more buoyant property market than expected.

Note 30 Grants — operating ($6.25 million favourable) — The favourable variance is due to the
early receipt of $6.25 million (50%) of the 2019-20 Financial Assistance Grant via the Victorian Grants
Commission in June 2019 (Corporate Services).

Note 31 Contributions — monetary ($2.33 million favourable) — Mainly better than anticipated
income from public open space contributions. The nature of these receipts makes timing difficult to
predict. These funds are transferred to reserves.

Note 32 Contributions — non-monetary ($7.27 million unfavourable) — Lower than anticipated
income from gifted assets, which is subject to the level of sub-division development activity. The nature
of these receipts makes timing difficult to predict. This is a non-cash accounting entry.

Note 33 Other income ($1.97 million favourable) — Due primarily to the favourable variance in
interest revenue as a result of higher cash balances during the financial year, caused by the timing and
delay of operating and capital cash outflows.

Expenses

Note 34 Employee costs ($132,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to lower than
anticipated year-end adjustments to provision for employee entitlements as at 30 June 2019.

Note 35 Prior year capital expenditure unable to be capitalised ($1.68 million unfavourable)
— This unfavourable variance is due to works in progress (prior year capital expenditure) that is not able
to be capitalised to the asset register because it is not capital in nature, does not meet the capitalisation
threshold or relates to non-Council controlled assets (Corporate Accounting $1.68 million). This is a non-
cash accounting entry that does not impact on Council’s cash position.

Note 36 Depreciation and amortisation ($105,000 favourable) — Favourable variance due to the
finalisation of fixed asset capitalisations and revaluations for the 2018-19 financial year. This is a non-
cash accounting entry (Corporate Accounting).

Note 37 Fair value adjustments for investment property ($907,000 unfavourable) —
Represents the adjustment to fair value of investment property assets in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards as these assets are not subject to depreciation. This is a non-cash accounting
entry. The fair value adjustment expense of $907,000 relates mainly to a commercial shop damaged by
fire.

Note 38 Asset write offs ($3.17 million unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance mainly due to
the renewal and replacement of roads, buildings and footpaths. These are non-cash accounting entries.

Note 39 Other expenses ($1.25 million unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance relates to a
developer reimbursement for expenditure in excess of the mandated amounts on public open space
improvements in the Keysborough South Stages 2 and 3 areas. This amount is not covered by the
Development Contribution Plan. This is a non-cash accounting entry.

Appendix 3 — Directorate Analysis Page 45
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City of Opportunity

WORKS PROGRAM

OPERATING RESULT

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges - - - - - -
Statutory fees and fines - - - - - -
User fees - - - - - -
Grants - operating - - - - - -
Grants - capital 40 4,068 5,042 (974) 4,319 (251) 1,256
Contributions - monetary 41 725 1,061 (336) 1,446 (721) 398
Contributions - non-monetary - - - - - =
Asset sales - - - - - -
Other income - - - - - -
Total income 4,793 6,103 (1,310) 5,765 (972) 1,654
Expenses
Employee costs 1 - (1) - 1) -
Materials and services 42 3,480 - (3,480) - (3,480) -
Bad and doubtful debts - - - - - -
Depreciation and amortisation - - - - - -
Borrowing costs - - - - - -
Carrying amount of assets sold - - - o - -
Other expenses 43 1,670 - (1,670) - (1,670) -
Total expenses 5,151 - (5,151) - (5,151) -
Net surplus (deficit) (358) 6,103 (6,461) 5,765 (6,123) 1,654

BUSINESS UNITS

FULL YEAR
FORECAST
MID YEAR vs ACTUAL ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE FORECAST VARIANCE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Capital Works Program 4,793 6,103 (1,310) 5765 (972) 1,654
Totalincome 4,793 6,103 (1,310) 5,765 (972) 1,654
Expenses
Capital Works Program 5,151 - (5,151) - (5,151) -
Total expenses 5,151 - (5,151) - (5,151) -
Net surplus (deficit) (358) 6,103 (6,461) 5,765 (6,123) 1,654
Appendix 3 — Directorate Analysis Page 46
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Notes:
Income
Note 40 Grants — capital ($974,000 unfavourable) — Unfavourable variance due to delay in

receipt of grant funding for Ross Reserve ($763,000), Thomas Carroll Pavilion ($225,000), Springvale
Community Precinct ($51,000) and Yarraman Oaks Primary Early Years Learning Facility ($33,000).
Additionally, lower Safe System Road Infrastructure Program funding was caused by lower than
anticipated program expenditure ($57,000).

This unfavourable variance is partly offset by the early receipt of grant funding for Springvale Reserve
Cricket Net Replacement ($90,000) and unbudgeted grant funding for ‘Book a Court’ projects at Lois
Twohig Reserve Tennis Club ($20,000), Springvale North Tennis Club ($20,000), Springvale South
Tennis Club ($20,000) and Burden Park Tennis Club ($20,000).

Note 41 Contributions - monetary ($336,000 unfavourable) — Lower than anticipated monetary
contributions relate mainly to delays in the following DCP projects for Lyndhurst B1 Bridge ($398,000)
and Keysborough South Industrial Buffer ($153,000). As a result, the DCP contribution income cannot
be recognised yet. Additionally, a contribution for Roundabout Chapel and Homeleigh Roads is no longer
expected to be received ($50,000).

This variance is partly offset by unbudgeted contribution for Dandenong Civic Centre HVAC Gas Boiler
($242,000) and unbudgeted external contribution funding for the DCP Keysborough South Industrial
Buffer project ($22,000).

Expenses

Note 42 Materials and services ($3.48 million unfavourable) — Comprises expenditure in the
CIP program that is not able to be capitalised to the asset register because it was not capital in nature or
it did not meet the relevant capitalisation threshold.

Note 43 Other expenses ($1.67 million unfavourable) — Represents Council’s contributions to
assets that are not Council controlled and therefore cannot be capitalised to the asset register, but were
budgeted in the Capital program.
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Appendix 4

Capital and Operating
Carry Over’s
from 2018-19

to 2019-20
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City of Greater Dandenong
A - OPERATING CARRY OVERS TO 2019-20

NO. DESCRIPTION SUB INCOME RESERVES EXPEND- NET
ACT'Y ITURE TOTAL
$ $ $ $
[COMMUNITY SERVICES
Community Development, Facilities and Recreation
A1 _[Sports Planning (Sport and Recreation Strategy) 2218 (3,000) 0 10,253 7,253
A2 |Community Funding (Neighbourhood House) 2982 0| 0 29,020 29,020
A3 |Community Development (Metropolitan Partner Development | 3503 0 0 165,000 165,000
Fund (MPDF) Social Isolation)
A4 [Community Development (Aboriginal Trainee) 3503 0 0 15,923 15,923
A5 |Community Development (Free from Family Violence) 3503 0 0 21,397 21,397
(3,000) 0 241,593 238,593
Community Wellbeing
A6 |Childrens Support Services (Essential Enrolment) 2906 0 0 13,426 13,426
A7 _|Childrens Support Services (3 year old Kindergarten Planning)| 2906 0| 0 30,700 30,700
A8 [Playgroups Initiative 2915 0 0 357,355 357,355
A9 |Child First 2917 0 0 949,832 949,832
A10 |Pre-school Field Officer 2920 0 0 107,924/ 107,924
A11 |Market Street Occasional Care Centre (Community and 2951 0 0 78,720 78,720
Sustainability Support)
A12 |Enhanced Maternal and Child Health 2958 0 0 302,207 302,207
A13 [Best Start 2959 0) 0 28,809 28,809
A14 |Drug Strategy 2960 0 0 169,619 169,619,
A15 |Community Hub Early Years 2977 0 0 84,632 84,632
A16 [Maternal and Child Health (Family Violence) 3401 0 0 15,568 15,568
A17 [Maternal and Child Health (Graduate Placement) 3401 0 0 10,000 10,000
A18 |Right@Home 3404 0 0 318,402 318,402
A19 |New Directions - Mothers and Babies 3406 0 0 197,407 197,407
A20 |Immunisation - Noble Park English Language School (NPELS)| 3489 0 0 83,235 83,235
A21 |Immunisation - South Eastern Melbourne Primary Health 3489 0 0 11,837 11,837
Network (SEMPHN)
A22 [Refugee Immunisation 3490 0 0 130,786 130,786
0 0 2,890,459 2,890,459
[CITY PLANNING, DESIGN AND AMENITY
Planning and Design
[A23 [Living Rivers [ 2645 T (10,000)] of 34,834 24,834
(10,000) 0 34,834 24,834
[GREATER DANDENONG BUSINESS
Activity Centres Revitalisation
[ A24 Jindian Cultural Precinct [ 2251 ] of o] 347211 347,211]
(1] 0 347,211 347,211
Business Networks
[ A25 [Community Revitalisation (incl. Career Education) [ 0902 | o] 0] 199,703] 199,703
[ A26 |Launchvic [ 0903 | of of 41,305 41,305
(1] 0 241,008 241,008
[ENGINEERING SERVICES
Infrastructure Services
A27 |Parks Services (Peri Urban Weed Management) 2643 0 0 43,241 43,241
A28 [Parks Services (Corridors of Green) 2643 0 0 20,000 20,000
A29 |Parks Services (Caring for our Local Environment) 2643 0 0 62,000 62,000
(1] 0 125,241 125,241
Sub-total operating carry overs (grants) (13,000) 0 3,880,346
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City of Greater Dandenong
A - OPERATING CARRY OVERS TO 2019-20

NO. DESCRIPTION SUB INCOME RESERVES EXPEND- NET
ACT'Y ITURE TOTAL
$ $ $ $
GRANTS BUDGETED IN 2019-20, BUT RECEIVED EARLY IN 2018-19
[ A30 [Financial Assistance Grant allocation (50% of 2019-20) [ 1302 | 6,250,803] 0] o] 6,250,803]

Sub-total grant adjustment for early receipts

OTHER INITIATIVES & PROJECTS

|COMMUNITY SERVICES

Community Development, Facilities and Recreation

[A31]Sports Planning - Leisure Facility Management Models [ 2218 ] of 0] 17,850] 17,850]
0 0 17,850 17,850

|CITY PLANNING, DESIGN AND AMENITY

Planning and Design

[A32]JC Mills Reserve Master Plan - Oasis [ 2645 of [ 50,000] 50,000]

[ A33 |Spring Valley Landfill Master Plan [ 2645 | of | 100,000 100,000
0 150,000 150,000

[ENGINEERING SERVICES

Infrastructure Services

[A34 [Spring Valley Landfill - Temple Works (reserve funded) [ 2643 | o (77,287)] 77,287] 0|
0 (77,287) 77,287 0

Sub-total operating carry overs (other initiatives/projects) (77,287) 245,137

GRAND TOTAL 6,237,803 (77,287) 4,125,483
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DANDENONG
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Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

City of Greater Dandenong
B - CAPITAL CARRY OVERS TO 2019-20

FUNDING SOURCE

. PROJECT DESCRIPTION RESERVE INCOME EXPEND-
$ $ ITURE
$
B1 |Keysborough South Community Hub Land 3548 (3,000,000) 0 3,129,077 129,077
Purchase (Stage 1)
B2 |Dandenong Market projects: Net of 0 0 358,798 358,798
- Car Park 3772
- Alfresco 3783
- Deli - Back of House Upgrade (Stage 3) 3792
- Utility Services Infrastructure 3793
- Convert Analogue CCTV 3809
* Net carry over allocated to Deli - Back of to
House Upgrade (3792) 3792
B3 |Springvale Road Boulevard - Design (Stage 2)| 3490 | (1,027,196) 0| 3,177,196 2,150,000
and Implementation (Stage 1)
B4 |Open Space Master Plan 3649 0 0 205,155 205,155
* Carry over reallocation to Ross Reserve 3901
Access Road (3901) 3902
to
3901
B5 |Activity Centre streetscape enhancement 3747 0 0 300,000 300,000
(council wide) to
* Carry over reallocation to Douglas Street 3192
Noble Park - Streetscape Upgrade (3192)
B6 |Activity Centres Projects (Transport) - Mason | 3828 0 0 221,420 221,420
Street Realignment (Design)
B7 |Silverleaf Ward Capital Contingency Fund 3887 0 0 505,000 505,000
* Carry over reallocation to Wal Turner to
Reserve Master Plan (1796) 1796
B8 [Black Spot Program (various projects): Net of 0 0 158,396 158,396
- Athol Road / Noble Street 3161
- Ellen Street, Springvale 3187
- Halton Road, Dandenong 3188
- Lightwood Road, Springvale 3189
- Oakwood Avenue, Dandenong 3190
- Birdwood and Wilma Avenue 3246
- River End Road 3247
- Thomas Street / Scott Street 3890
- Windsor / Regent Avenue 3891
* Carry over reallocation to new Black Spot to
Works Program project (3942) 3942
B9 |Douglas Street Noble Park - Streetscape 3192 0 0 286,212 286,212
B10 [Building Energy Efficiency Program 3802 0 0 46,129 46,129
B11 [Drainage Capital Program 3129 0 0 528,828 528,828
B12 |Springvale Library/Community Hub - Stage 2 3043 0 (50,902)| 4,201,424| 4,150,522
(Construction)
B13 |Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe Pavilion - 3219 0 (225,000) 2,368,572 2,143,572
Construction/Refurbishment
Appendix 4 — Carry Overs to 2019-20 Page 51

20524



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.3.2 June 2019 Financial Report (interim results) (Cont.)

‘ (GREATER

/ DANDENONG Financial Report for the period 1 July 2018 — 30 June 2019

City of Opportunity

City of Greater Dandenong
B - CAPITAL CARRY OVERS TO 2019-20

FUNDING SOURCE

. PROJECT DESCRIPTION RESERVE INCOME EXPEND- NET
ACCT $ $ ITURE TOTAL
$ $

B14 |Police Paddocks Reserve - Concept Planand | 3819 0 0 100,000 100,000
Construct

B15 |George Andrews Reserve - TRY Build 3846 0 0 247,905 247,905
Container Opposite Grandstand

B16 |Australia Day Recipients Tribute 3822 0 0 15,000 15,000

B17 |Living Treasures Tribute 3825 0 0 35,130 35,130

B18 |Noble Park Civic Space - Optic Fibre Wi-Fi 3892 0 0 60,000 60,000
Connection (Stage 1)

B19 |Afghan Bazaar - Streetscape Enhancement 3141 0 0 359,805 359,805
Project (Stage 4)

B20 |Robert Booth Reserve - Floodlighting 3258 0 (10,000) 177,162 167,162

B21 [Local Area Traffic Management Program 3418 0 0 210,448 210,448

B22 |Lois Twohig Reserve - Tennis Book a Court 3420 0 0 8,231 8,231
Infrastructure (Grant Funded)

B23 |Springvale North Tennis Club - Tennis Book a | 3421 0 0 2,719 2,719
Court Infrastructure (Grant Funded)

B24 |Walker Street - Streetscape Upgrade 3498 0 0 100,000 100,000
(Stage 2)

B25 |Dandenong Park - Master Plan 3631 0 0 517,457 517,457
Implementation (Stage 3)

B26 |Springvale Activity Centre - Laneway Project - | 3651 0 0 195,889 195,889
Canopy Implementation

B27 | Tatterson Park - Master Plan Implementation 3794 0 0 107,583 107,583
(Stage 2)

B28 |Bakers Road, Dandenong North - Alternative 3831 0 0 26,200 26,200
Crossing Point

B29 |Ross Reserve All Abilities Playground - 3841 0 0 69,652 69,652
Concept and Detailed Design

B30 |Police Paddocks (Softball) - Dug Out Shelter | 3843 0 0 20,000 20,000
on Diamonds 1 and 2

B31 |Tatterson Park - Stage 1A Implementation 3844 (150,955) 0 150,955 0
Playground Upgrade

B32 |Neighbourhood Activity Centre Framework 3848 0 0 42,440 42,440
Implementation

B33 |Frederick Wachter Reserve - Master Plan 3849 0 0 89,094 89,094
Implementation

B34 |Warner Reserve - Master Plan 3852 0 0 79,373 79,373

B35 |Parkfield Reserve - Master Plan 3853 (272,369) 0 372,369 100,000

B36 |Burden Park Reserve - Master Plan 3854 (374,789) 0 474,789 100,000
Implementation

B37 |Douglas Street, Noble Park - Streetscape 3886 0 0 300,000 300,000
Upgrade (Leonard Avenue Precinct) to
* Carry over reallocation to Douglas Street 3192
Noble Park - Streetscape Upgrade (3192)

B38 [DCP - Perry Road South Upgrade (Design) 3992 (244,399) 0 244,399 0
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City of Greater Dandenong
B - CAPITAL CARRY OVERS TO 2019-20

FUNDING SOURCE

. PROJECT DESCRIPTION RESERVE INCOME EXPEND-
$ $ ITURE
$
B39 |DCP - Lyndhurst B1 Bridge (Design) 3993 0 (397,535) 397,535 0
B40 [DCP - Keysborough South Industrial Buffer 3248 0 0 87,758 87,758
B41 |Springvale South - Tennis Book a Court 3430 0 0 20,000 20,000
Infrastructure (Grant Funded)
B42 |Burden Park - Tennis Book a Court 3433 0 0 20,000 20,000
Infrastructure (Grant Funded)
B43 |Active Transport Infrastructure Priority 3174 0 0 185,456 185,456
Program (ATIPP) - Paths
B44 [Bridge Rectification Works - Survey and 3832 0 0 69,050 69,050
B45 [Drum Theatre - Motorise Lighting Bars 3806 0 0 176,000 176,000
B46 |Drum Theatre - Auditorium Chairs 3807 0 0 199,424 199,424
B47 |Rowley Allan Reserve Football Pavilion - 3818 0 0 108,390 108,390
External Access
B48 |Major Drainage Renewal - Princes Highway 3019 0 0 387,059 387,059
and Elonera Road (Stage 2)
* Note this is a renewal project, but is
recommended by the Steering and Assets
Committee to be carried over.
B49 |Greaves Reserve - Tennis Court Resurfacing | 3837 0 0 230,297 230,297
B50 |Chapel Road Footpath & Kerb Upgrade - 3991 0 (82,794) 151,592 68,798
Between Donnici Drive and Villiers Road
B51 |Yarraman Oaks Primary NEYLF 3255 0 (32,500) 0 (32,500)
* Project finished in 2018-19 - final grant
acquittal and grant payment outstanding at 30
June 2019
B52 [Springvale Reserve Cricket Net Replacement | 3399 0 90,000 0 90,000
* Grant funding budgeted in 2019-20 but
received early in 2018-19
B53 |Local Road Design, Upgrade and 3231 0 0 383,306 383,306
Reconstruction Program (Abbotts Road
Design - additional lanes).
B54 |Shalimar Kindergarten Maternal and Child 3813 0 0 30,000 30,000
Health (MCH) - Community and Waiting Room
Design
B55 |Civic Archive - Extension of Building 3817 0 0 30,100 30,100
(Feasibility and Design)

Total capital carry overs

(5,069,708)

(708,731)

21,968,775

16,190,336
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.4 POLICY AND STRATEGY
2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition

File Id:
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: Medical Centres — Town Planning Policy
Medical Centres — Town Planning Code of
Practice
Active Ageing Policy
Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund Policy
Report Summary

Council policies and codes of practice are in place to ensure accordance with relevant legislation,
regulations and best practices. They provide a consistent approach to Council’s operational
requirements and promote accountability and transparency of Council decisions and actions.

A recent review of Council’s Policies and Codes of Practice has identified a number of policies and
codes of practices that are superfluous to Council’s needs due to them being superseded by updated
policies or strategies.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the following policies and codes of practice be abolished as they have
been superseded by updated policies, legislation or strategies:

e  Medical Centres — Town Planning Policy

e  Medical Centres — Town Planning Code of Practice
e  Active Ageing Policy

e  Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund Policy
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2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition (Cont.)

Background

Essentially, policies developed by Council are aimed at ensuring good governance and decision-making
processes, as well as the effective and efficient management of community resources and the
day-to-day business of Council. They help govern how Council operates and provide a clear set of
principles that provide a definite direction for Council.

Existing council policies are subject to an ongoing review process to ensure they remain up-to-date
and comply with current legislation From time to time these policies maybe superseded or superfluous
to Council’'s needs and require formal abolition by Council.

In a recent review of Council’s policies and codes of practice, four (4) policies and two (2) codes of
practice were found to be superfluous to Council’s needs and this report recommends that they be
abolished.

Proposal

It is proposed that the following policies and codes of practice be abolished:

Medical Centres Town Planning Policy This policy has been superseded by the Local
Planning Policy Clause 21.04 (Land Use) and
clause 21.05 (Built Form).

Medical Centres Town Planning Code of Practice | This code of practice has been superseded by
the Local Planning Policy Clause 21.04 (Land
Use) and clause 21.05 (Built Form).

Active Aging Policy This policy has been superseded by Council’s
Positive Ageing Strategy.

Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund Policy This policy has been superseded by Council’s
Community Partnership Funding Policy.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-21 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘imagine
2030'’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’
Opportunity

e [ eadershipby the Council — The leading Council
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2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition (Cont.)

Council Plan 2017-21

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

Opportunity

e An open and effective Council
Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
No financial resources are impacted by this report.
Consultation

Prior to reporting to Council the policies and codes of practice attached to this report were referred
to the Executive Management Team.

Conclusions

Following a recent review of Council’s policies and codes of practice the policies and codes of practice
attached to this report are presented to Council for abolition.

The principal objective of the review was to identify policies and codes of practice that were either
superfluous to Council’s needs or superseded by other policies, strategies and or legislation.

Recommendation
That the policies and codes of practice provided in Attachments 1-4 to this report be abolished.
MINUTE 1173

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Tim Dark

That the policies and codes of practice provided in Attachments 1-4 to this report be abolished.

CARRIED
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2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition (Cont.)

POLICY AND STRATEGY

REVIEW OF COUNCIL POLICIES — FOR ABOLITION

ATTACHMENT 1

POLICY - MEDICAL CENTRES TOWN
PLANNING

PAGES 2 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition (Cont.)

ﬂ POLICY

MEDICAL CENTRES
GREATER TOWN PLANNING

[ MIERONE;

Council Position

To ensure medical centres within the City are developed and/or located in a
manner so as to benefit the community and protect existing amenity

Objectives

e To ensure that near housing, building design must be consistent with the
overall scale and character of the residential area and must prevent loss of
privacy and amenity to neighbours.

e To ensure that in both residential and commercial areas, matters such as
setbacks, height and privacy, car parking and access, and signage and
advertising may be set by the Code of Practice.

Key Linkages

Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme.

Planning and Environment Act.

Advertising - Code of Practice.

Original Date adopted by Council: 30 July 1998

Last endorsed by Council: 14 May 2007

Responsible Group: Development Services

Review Cycle: Annually

Next Review: May 2008
Page 1 of 1
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POLICY AND STRATEGY

REVIEW OF COUNCIL POLICIES — FOR ABOLITION

ATTACHMENT 2

CODE OF PRACTICE - MEDICAL CENTRES
TOWN PLANNING

PAGES 5 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition (Cont.)

CODE OF PRACTICE

/ MEDICAL CENTRES

TOWN PLANNING

1. Building Design

Performance Measure

e Near housing, building design must be consistent with the overall scale and
character of the residential area and must prevent loss of privacy and amenity to

the neighbourhood.

¢ In commercial areas, it must be attractive and integrate with adjacent
developments aesthetically as well as practically.

Appearance

Buildings must be designed to harmonise with neighbouring buildings’ appearance
and be consistent with building scale and character in the neighbourhood, including:

e Roof type/pitch.

e Window placement/style.

e Building materials.

e Setbacks.

Height

Buildings must be designed to reflect their neighbours’ residential scale and minimise
overshadowing of any adjoining residential properties. Adjacent to housing, they will
generally be limited to one storey.

Privacy

Buildings must be designed and located to avoid overlooking of any adjoining
residential properties.

Page 1 of 4
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2. Setbacks from Residential Zones

Performance Measure

Consistency of frontage set-backs must be maintained within a streetscape in order
to maintain and reinforce its character, to provide adequate space for landscaping
and to protect the amenity of any adjoining residential properties.

Building Setbacks

Frontage

e 6 metres from any residential street frontage or a distance generally consistent
with buildings on adjoining properties (with frontage to the same street).

e In commercial areas, front setbacks may be required over partial or whole
frontages to protect and enhance the character of the area.

Sideage and Rear Setbacks

e 1.8 meters from any street sideage and 3 meters from any other property
boundary in residential areas.

e |In commercial areas, no setback is required unless it is adjacent to housing or for
a site specific reason.

Parking Setback

For new buildings, generally car parking is encouraged within the frontage area and
where approved, it must be set back a minimum distance of 6 meters from the
frontage. A reduction to 3 meters may be considered where parking is still well
landscaped and where traffic hazards will not be created by congestion in the access
drive.

For existing buildings in Residential areas, car parking should be provided at the rear
of the building to ensure that the front streetscape is retained.

3. Car Parking and Access

The provisions of Clause 52.06 of the planning scheme and Council’s parking policy
apply.

Care should be taken in selecting existing dwellings, as the access lanes to car

parking areas at the rear of the building may not comply with the standards required
under the provisions of the Planning Scheme.

Page 2 of 4
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2.4.1 Review of Council Policies - Policies for Abolition (Cont.)

4. Advertising Signs

The provisions of Clause 52.05 of the planning scheme and Council’s advertising
policy apply.

5. Conversion of Existing Buildings

Performance Measure

Where an existing building is to be converted to medical consulting rooms, all policy
requirements and planning scheme provisions should be satisfied, especially in
relation to the provision of adequate car parking and landscape setbacks.

In converting existing buildings, the provisions of this policy will apply in full, except
those relating to building setbacks, which will not be applied to existing parts of the
buildings.

6. Opening Hours

The permitted hours of operation of a medical centre must be restricted to avoid
detriment to the amenity of the neighbourhood.

The hours Council will normally consider reasonable for a medical centre in a
residential area are:

Monday to Friday 8:00am to 7:00pm
Saturday 8:00am to 1:00pm

to be a standard condition, should no hours of operation be specified.

Council will consider extended hours if they will not cause detriment to the
neighbourhood.

7.  Preferred Locations
Preferred locations for Medical Centres are:
e Within commercial areas or abutting such areas (if in a Residential Zone).

e On corner allotments, which allows vehicular access off a side street to the car
park at the rear of the premises.

e On major or collector type roads.
Locations to be avoided are:

o Residential properties which could isolate other residential properties between
commercial or other non-residential uses.
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o Mid-block, where the use is proposed to establish between residential properties
and access is only available from the frontage.

e Minor roads in Residential areas, where the use could cause additional traffic to be
introduced into what are generally low trafficked streets.

Original Date adopted by Council: 30 July 1998

Last Endorsed by Council: 14 May 2007

Directorate: Development Services

Review Cycle Annually

Next Review: May 2008

File Reference: 98-00396-01
Page 4 of 4
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Active Ageing Policy

File Number: A1721302 Authority: Council
Directorate: Community Responsible Officer: | Manager,
Services Community Care

and Libraries
Version No: 001

Policy Type:

18t Adopted by
Council

24 September 2012
Minute No. 1379

Last Adopted by
Council:

24 Sept 2012
Minute No.1379

Review Period:

Every three years

Next Review:

August 2015

1. Purpose
This policy outlines the guiding principles for the City of Dandenong’s approach to
planning and developing communities that are tailored to meet the specific needs of
older people. This policy also outlines Council’'s commitment to delivering services for
the most frail older people in the community.

2. Background
This is a policy statement in relation to Council’s commitment to older people. Older
people are defined as people who have retired from the workforce. This includes fit and
active early retirees through to more frail residents who are living in supported
residential care.

3. Scope
This policy applies to all Councillors, Council staff, contract staff and volunteers.

This policy is to be read in conjunction with Ageing is About Living Strategy and Action
Plan 2012-2015.

4. Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter — Compatibility Statement
All matters relevant to the Victorian Human Rights Charter have been considered in the
preparation of this Policy and are consistent with the standards set by the Charter. In
particular, Council is committed to ensuring that older people have:

e Freedom of expression: Council is committed to ensuring that all residents have the
right to express their views within the context of the law and respect for the rights of
others;

e The right to vote and to participate in public life: Council is committed to ensuring
that older people have the same opportunities as others in the community to
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participate in community life. Council is aware that older people can become
increasingly socially isolated. Council has developed specific strategies and
approaches focused on increasing the opportunities for older people to participate in
public life;

e The right to a fair hearing;
e The right to be free from discrimination and to be equal before the law; and

e The right to privacy.

5. References
This is first time that Council has developed an Active Ageing Policy. The Policy is
related to the Disability Action Plan Edition 2 and City of Dandenong Health and
Wellbeing Plan 2010-2013.

6. Definitions
It is difficult to define ‘ageing”. Chronological age is becoming a less useful predictor of
patterns of living, with older people being increasingly diverse in their characteristics. In
general, people are remaining fitter and healthier for longer.

Council recognises that a range of factors impact on the health and wellbeing of older
people and that this is strongly influenced by socio-economic factors. The evidence
indicates that the most disadvantaged people in the community have a lower life
expectancy than the most advantaged. To support all people in the community as they
become older, this policy focuses primarily on people who have retired from full-time
work. It takes account of the needs of active people as well as the more frail and
vulnerable members of the community.

7. Council Policy

Statement of Commitment

Council is committed to developing and improving neighbourhoods and communities
across the municipality to encourage and promote the active engagement of older
people and support them to live independently in the community for as long as possible.
To achieve this, Council has developed strategies which are and will continue to be,
implemented across all areas of Council. These are outlined in Council’s Older Persons
Strategy, “Ageing is about Living: strategic directions to facilitate the health and
wellbeing of older people in Greater Dandenong, 2012-2015”.

Context

This policy and the supporting strategic plan are guided by the World Health
Organisation (WHO) “Age Friendly Cities” framework. The key directions of this
framework focus on:

e Mobility and Transport;
e Outdoor Spaces and Buildings;
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e Housing;

e Social Participation;

e Communication and Information;

e Respect and Social inclusion;

o Civic Participation and Employment; and

e Service Delivery.

Guiding Principles

Greater Dandenong believes that ageing is about living. The following principles will
guide Council actions over the next three years and assist in creating a City where all

older people can live their lives to the fullest. Council will know it has achieved the
vision when:

e Older people are respected and valued. Every older person has the right to be
treated with dignity and respect;

e Older people have opportunities to participate fully in all aspects of community life;
e Older people have opportunities to continue to learn and develop;

e Older people are provided with opportunities to communicate their opinions, to
influence decisions being made that affect them and their community, and have an
opportunity to shape their community and local services;

e The cultural and ethnic identity and diversity of our older residents are appreciated
and add to the social, environmental and economic well-being of the community;

e Older people know about the services that are available and know their rights and
responsibilities;

o Discrimination against residents because they are older is not tolerated, with Council
working in partnership with the community to eliminate such prejudice;

e Older people are empowered to make choices that enable them to live satisfying
lives and lead healthy lifestyles; and

e Older people are able to live with confidence and in safety.
Role of Council

Planning and service development

Council has a long-standing commitment to ensuring that older people are respected in
the community and have access to a range of services and activities that enable them
to live happy and fulfilling lives. Council’s role spans the four dimensions of the
environments of Health Framework:

e Built Environment;
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e Social Environment;

e Economic Environment; and

e Natural Environment.

Each area of Council with responsibility for these environments has developed

strategies and actions that are focussed on the needs of residents, including the specific
concerns of older people. These have been referenced in the Action Plan.

Specifically, by engaging with the community, local businesses and service providers,
Council can contribute to achieving a community that respects older people and
supports them to remain active members of the community through:

e Providing leadership;

e Planning, developing and advocating for community infrastructure and support
systems;

e Promoting and encouraging the positive contribution of older people through
volunteering;

e Advocating for, and modelling, the inclusion of older people in paid employment;

o Eradicating ageism and discrimination against older people; and

e Delivering responsive and innovative services, which promote the health and
wellbeing of older people and assists them to remain independent.

Service Delivery

Council is committed to providing an integrated service delivery model to older people
with a single point of entry to services.

Council’s is committed to continuing to provide direct care services for older people.
This includes providing a range of community based services, in the context of an
integrated model of care. The service components include:

e Home Care;

e Personal Care;

e Respite Care;

e Packaged care and case management;
e Home Maintenance;

e Food Services;

e Community Transport;

e Planned Activity Groups;
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e Volunteer services; and

e Support to a range of seniors’ groups.
Policy Implementation

1. Council will develop and implement actions in line with the principles outlined in this
policy.

2. Strategies to achieve the vision are outlined in the three-year strategy. The
accompanying Action Plan to the strategy brings together the actions across all
Council departments. This will ensure coordination and consistency in implementing
this policy.

3. Council will be accountable to the community for the implementation of this policy
through annual review of the strategy and seeking feedback from the community and
other stakeholders.

8. Related Documents

Council Plan 2009-2012;

City of Greater Dandenong Community Plan 2030;

City of Dandenong Health and Wellbeing Plan 2010-2013;
Older Persons Strategy;

Environmental and Sustainability Strategy 2009;

Economic Development Strategy;

Economic Development Policy;

Disability Action Plan Edition 2

Marketing and Communications Strategy 2006;

Multicultural Communications Strategy 2010;

Library 2020 Strategy;

Cultural Diversity Plan 2010-2015;

Neighbourhood Houses and Community Centres Future Directions Plan 2010-2015;
Ageing is About Living Strategy and Action Plan 2012-2015.
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Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund

Policy Endorsement: | Endorsement required by Council
Directorate: Community Services
Responsible Officer: | Manager, Community Development Facilities and
Recreation
Policy Type: Discretionary
File Number: [ Version No: | 001
18t Adopted by
Council
Last Adopted by 27 July 2015, Minute No: 1026
Council:
Policy Effective from:
Review Period: Every four (4) years Next July 2019
Review:
1. Purpose

This purpose of this policy is to provide a framework for the development, management
and operation of the Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund. Council will operate the Fund
in accordance with the guidelines and requirements of the Lord Mayor’s Charitable
Foundation (LMCF) and in response to local needs and best interests of the Greater
Dandenong community.

2. Background

Council recognises the significant role played by community groups in providing
essential and important charitable community services, activities and events. These
foster community participation or help address social disadvantage, social inclusion,
diversity and harmony within the municipality. Council will support the activities of
registered charitable organisations through the Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund.

A Charitable Fund seeks to build a permanent pool of investment funds from which the
investment income is used to support local communities through grants to suitable
entities with Deductible Gift Recipient (DGR) and/or Tax Concession Charity (TCC)
status.

In 2006 the LMCF introduced the Local Government Charitable Fund Account Scheme,
offering local governments the opportunity to establish a charitable fund account to
benefit people living in their municipalities and to encourage Victorian

metropolitan councils to foster corporate giving and philanthropy.
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3. Scope

This policy covers all grant related and fundraising activities provided by Council as part
of the work of the Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund. It could include but is not

limited to:

L]

e Corporate events
e Art Shows

e Race days

e Golf days

L]

Mayoral activities and events

Donations and Bequests

4. Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter — Compatibility Statement

This Policy does not directly affect people’s rights and responsibilities as specified in the
Victorian Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter. However, the aims of this Policy
support and uphold the intentions of the Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter.

5. Definitions

Charitable Fund Grant:

Charitable Organisation

A sum of money given for a specific purpose and
subject to conditions including that the money is
used for an agreed purpose.

The purpose may include improving the quality of
life of residents by increasing opportunities for
participation and social inclusion.

To be eligible to receive Charitable Fund Grants
recipients must have Deductible Gift Recipient
(DGR) status as covered by the Income tax
Assessment Act 1997 and be endorsed as a
taxation Concession Charity.
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6. Council Policy

Policy Statement

The Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund supports programs that work to improve the
quality of life of residents by increasing opportunities for participation and social
inclusion and addressing social disadvantage. This is achieved by providing funds for
registered charities to enhance their work and to achieve positive and tangible benefits
for residents of Greater Dandenong.

The Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund is established as a sub-fund of the Lord
Mayors Charitable Foundation under the Lord Mayors Local Government Charitable
Fund Scheme.

The goals of the Charitable Fund are consistent with the Greater Dandenong Imagine
20130 Community Plan, the Council Plan and the Community Wellbeing Plan.

Goals

The goals of the Charitable Fund are to:
e Enhance community strengthening through community and business
collaboration and partnerships
e Develop local solutions to local issues and to enhance community pride
e Respond to demonstrated need to create connected, inclusive and resilient
communities in Greater Dandenong.

Implementation Principles
The Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund will be implemented according to the
requirement of the Lord Mayors Charitable Foundation and the Fund Operating

Procedures as attached.

The Greater Dandenong Advisory Panel will be responsible for setting the grant levels
in accordance with the funds available from the Fund.
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Annual priority areas will be determined by the Advisory Panel and Council will be
advised.

The Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund Advisory Panel will be responsible for calling
for applications, assessing the applications against the criteria as per the Fund
Guidelines and making recommendations to the Lord Mayors Charitable Foundation.

Charitable Fund Grants will be limited to one-off grants for an activity or purpose.

The Greater Dandenong Advisory Panel in conjunction with the Lord Mayors Charitable
Foundation will determine the grant application process when sufficient funds are held
in the Charitable Fund.

Funded charities will be recognised annually through publicity and a recognition event.

Council will review and report on the Charitable Fund operations, management and
accountabilities on an annual basis.

7. Related Documents
7a. City of Greater Dandenong Plans

. Council Plan 2013-17

. Greater Dandenong Community Plan: Imagine 2030

. Community Wellbeing Plan 2013-17

° A Local Economic and Employment Development Strategy for our City

7b. Greater Dandenong Charitable Fund Documents

. Charitable Fund Operating Procedures
° Charitable Fund Guidelines
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Attachments: Draft Policy - Order of Precedence/Hosting of
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Report Summary

Council establishes a number of policies and codes of practice to guide the various operations of the
Greater Dandenong City Council.

Council has developed the attached policy to define the Order of Precedence at Council-sponsored
and Council-run events and functions, providing a consistent guide to the ceremonial status of
arrangements and the correct order in which dignitaries are to be introduced, acknowledged and
seated at such events.

The policy also provides guidelines to the community and other external groups when inviting the
Mayor and Councillors to attend external functions and events.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the Order of Precedence/Hosting of Dignitaries Policy provided in
Attachment 1 be adopted for a period of four (4) years.
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Background

The City of Greater Dandenong both sponsors and organises numerous meetings, ceremonies and
events each year that extend invitations to VIP’s, dignitaries and guests of honour. As there is no
official protocol on the Order of Precedence at a Local Government level, this policy has been
developed to define the Order of Precedence that should be followed at Council-sponsored and
Council-run events. In this context, an order of precedence is an order of hierarchy for speakers and
guests at these events.

The guidelines in the attached policy have been developed specifically for Greater Dandenong City
Council organised and sponsored events and should be used with a flexible approach to enhance
the efficiency and effectiveness of official proceedings at such events.

External events and functions organised by State and Federal Government departments are conducted
under their own orders of precedence and the guidelines set out in this policy may not be followed
in some instances.

Proposal

It is proposed that the Order of Precedence/Hosting of Dignitaries Policy provided in Attachment 1
to this report be adopted by Council for a period of four (4) years.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-21 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’
Leadershipby the Council — The leading Council
Council Plan 2017-21

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

Opportunity

e  An open and effective Council
Related Council Policies

Council’s Plaques, memorials and Interpretive Signage Policy
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Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Consultation

The Order of Precedence/Hosting of Dignitaries Policy was referred to the Executive Management
Team and Councillors for consideration prior to reporting to Council.

Conclusion

The Order of Precedence/Hosting of Dignitaries Policy attached to this report is consistent with
Council’s operational needs and is submitted to Council for adoption for a period of four (4) years.

Recommendation

That the Order of Precedence/Hosting of Dignitaries Policy provided in Attachment 1 to this
report be adopted.

MINUTE 1174

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Tim Dark

That the Order of Precedence/Hosting of Dignitaries Policy provided in Attachment 1 to this
report be adopted.

CARRIED
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Policy Endorsement: Endorsement required by Council
Policies superseded by this | Not applicable
policy:
Directorate: Corporate Services
Responsible Officer: Manager Governance
Policy Type: Discretionary
File Number: Version No: 001
1st Adopted by Council Last Adopted by Council: | Minute No.
Review Period: 4 years Next Review: 2023
1. Purpose

This policy has been developed to define the order of precedence at Council sponsored and
organised events and functions and enhances the efficiency and effectiveness of the official
proceedings at such events. It also provides guidelines for:

. acknowledging, addressing and seating Councillors, executive staff, dignitaries and guests
at Council-organised functions and events; and
. acknowledging, addressing and seating Councillors and executive staff at external events.

2. Background

Both Federal and State Governments in Australia generally have an Order of Precedence Protocol
to consistently guide the ceremonial status of arrangements and the correct order in which
introductions, acknowledgements and seating arrangements are to be made.

Greater Dandenong City Council sponsors and organises numerous meetings, ceremonies and
events each year and extends invitations to VIP’s, dignitaries and guests of honour. Given Greater
Dandenong Council's participation in, and organisation of, many varied events in and around the
municipality, it is prudent to provide a consistent approach to the acknowledgment of the Mayor and
Councillors, VIPs, dignitaries and guests in attendance at Council functions and events. It is also
prudent to consider the provision of guidelines to external groups when they are inviting the Mayor
Councillors to attend external functions and events.

As there is no official protocol on the order of precedence at a Local Government level, this policy
has been developed to define the order of precedence that should be followed at Council-
sponsored and Council-run events.

This policy identifies the Mayor of the City of Greater Dandenong as the official representative of
the municipality and as the host for all Council-organised events when in attendance. As a result,
the Mayor should be ranked highest in the order of precedence despite the order listed under the
protocols for both the State and Federal governments.
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The guidelines in this policy have been developed specifically for Council-organised events and
external events to which the Mayor and Councillors are invited and should be used with a flexible
approach.

3. Scope

This policy applies to:

. all Council organised events in which the Mayor and Councillors, VIPs, executive staff
and/or dignitaries may be in attendance;
. all Council sponsored events where Council contributions are greater than $5,000. (e.g. the

Springvale Lunar Festival, where the event is organised by an external organisation but
Council's contribution exceeds $5,000);
. external events at which the Mayor, Councillors or executive staff are attending.

Where the State or Federal Government are also a major sponsor of, or in attendance at, a
Council-organised event, Council officers must liaise directly with the relevant Minister’s office in
relation to the Order of Precedence, however this policy will serve as the overarching guideline.

During the period preceding either a State or Federal Government election the Department of Prime
Minister and Cabinet and the Department of Premier and Cabinet Caretaker Convention Guidelines
must be adhered to when considering public events either organised or sponsored by Council.
During such periods, Council officers should ensure that Council’s apolitical nature is upheld and
parliamentarians are not invited to speak on any matters other than those relating to the event. No
campaigning will be permitted at Council events during a Federal or State Election caretaker period.

4. Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter — Compatibility Statement

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this Policy but is not relevant to its contents.

5. References

. Table of Precedence for the Commonwealth of Australia as Gazetted in Special Gazette No.
S206 on Tuesday 5 October 1982.
. Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet Caretaker Convention Guidelines
. Department of Premier and Cabinet Caretaker Convention Guidelines
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6. Definitions

Order of Precedence

Principal Speaker

Guest of Honour

7. Council Policy

is a sequential hierarchy of perceived importance of people. It is most
often used in the context of people by many organisations and
governments for formal and state occasions and especially where
diplomats are present. Note that a person’s position in an order of
precedence is not necessarily an indication of functional importance but
rather an indication of ceremonial or historical relevance.

is usually a VIP or dignitary especially invited to the event, such as the
Premier or a Minister.

is usually someone who is being honoured for their achievements or
contributions to the event.

Order of Precedence at Greater Dandenong City Council-Organised Events

The Mayor is the official representative of the City of Greater Dandenong and, as such, should be
recognised as the official host of all Council-organised events, if attending the event.

The Mayor should be introduced first at Council-organised events if in attendance, even in the
presence of State and Federal elected Members of Parliament. In this instance the running sheet
should be provided to any Members of Parliament attending to ensure the Order of Precedence
proposed is acceptable to them. Common sense does need to prevail and at times the Order of
Precedence may need to be changed based on the person, purpose and events at hand.

Assuming that a Member

of the Royal Family is not present, the following order of precedence for

speakers would normally apply to those attending:

Introduction by the
Welcome by the M
Introduction of the

o, wNE

Conclusion by MC;

Master of Ceremonies (MC);
ayor;
principal speaker or guest of honour (by MC);

Main speech by principal speaker or guest of honour;
Speeches by other dignitaries;

Note that this may need to vary from time to time, for example when both State and Federal
politicians are in attendance and speaking.
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Seating, Welcomes and Introductions

The order of precedence outlined in this policy applies equally to welcoming guests, seating
arrangements and introductions of official parties at Council-organised events.

As a general rule for Council-organised functions and events, dignitaries should be recognised or
welcomed in the following order:

Mayor of the Municipality or Councillor representing the Mayor
Premier of Victoria

Ministers

Members of Parliament

Other Councillors

Guests of Honour

Council Executive

Other guests

Where a significant community event within the municipality has been organised by Council, all
Councillors present at the official ceremony should be seated prominently with any dignitaries, even
if they are not speaking as part of the official proceedings.

Community Grant Sponsored Events

Where Council has contributed $5,000 or above to a community event but Council is not the
organiser, the order of precedence outlined in this policy should equally apply to the event and
made part of the requirements of the grant.

External Community Events

Where the Mayor and Councillors or executive staff have been invited to an external community
event within the municipality, the order of precedence may be altered to firstly acknowledge the
officials within the organisation managing the event. The order of precedence for speakers may
then be as follows:

Introduction by the Master of Ceremonies (MC);

Welcome by the host's official representative/patron;

Introduction to/welcome by the Mayor;

Introduction of the principal speaker or guest of honour (by MC);
Main speech by principal speaker or guest of honour;

Speeches by other dignitaries;

Conclusion by MC;

Noo,rwhpE
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As a general rule for external events, dignitaries should be recognised or welcomed in the following
order:

. Host Organisation’s Officials

. Premier of Victoria

. Mayor of the Municipality or Councillor representing the Mayor
. Ministers

. Members of Parliament

. Other Councillors

. Guests of Honour

. Council Executive

The order of precedence at external community events will take the form that the host organisation
chooses, however, due honour and respect should be given to the Mayor as the first citizen of the
municipality.

It is important to understand that external events and functions organised by State and Federal
government departments are conducted under their own orders of precedence and in some
instances, these events may not acknowledge the requirements of this policy when inviting Greater
Dandenong City Council’s Mayor, Councillors or executive staff to these events.

Important Points to Note

Note that in all instances, if the Prime Minister is in attendance, then they must always be
welcomed or introduced first (before the Mayor).

Introductions or speeches by other dignitaries should take place in order of hierarchy (elected
officials followed by appointed officials). If there is no distinction in hierarchy, then
speeches/introductions should take place at the discretion of the event organiser in consultation
with a council representative from the Governance Business Unit.

Although not recommended, on occasions it may be necessary to reverse the order of precedence
so that the highest ranked officials/guests of honour are introduced last. This will depend on the
format of the event however and should not be done without the consent of those who will be
impacted or their representative.

A person acting on behalf of any of another dignitary shall enjoy the precedence of the person for
whom he/she is acting with the understanding that, if there is more than one person holding the
same level of stature as the person acting on behalf of another, then they will take precedence after
other persons with the same stature who are attending in their own right.

State or Federal representatives invited to local functions might insist on being accorded the same
degree of precedence they enjoy on a government list, so it is extremely important that questions of
precedence be determined prior to any event.

Attendance and correct names, titles and pronunciation should be confirmed in advance to avoid
offending participants.

If in doubt, please contact the Governance Business Unit on telephone 8571 5216 for advice.
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8. Related Documents

. CGD's Civic Event Guide
. CGD'’s Plaques, Memorials and Interpretive Signage Policy

. Appendix 1 (to this document) - CGD’s General Guide to the Order of Precedence at Local
Functions and Events (Handout)
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QUICK GUIDE TO THE ORDER OF PRECEDENCE AT
GREATER DANDENONG EVENTS

It is important that when conducting a function or event that due honour and respect is accorded to invited guests and dignitaries
when determining seating and introduction arrangements.

As first citizen of the municipality and the elected representative of the ratepayers of the Greater Dandenong City Council, the Mayor,
as a general rule, takes precedence at Council organised and sponsored local functions and events before any other person.

However, this order of precedence does notapply to official functions conducted by State or Federal Governmentdepartments. In this
instance the State or Federal Memberwould take precedence.

As a general rule for Council-organised functions and events, dignitaries should be recognised in the following order:

Mayor ofthe Municipality or Councillor representing the Mayor;
Premier of Victoria

Ministers;

Members of Parliament;

Other Councillors;

Guests of Honour

Council Executive

Other Guests

Introductions and seating arrangements should be made in order of hierarchy. If there is no distinction in hierarchy after the Mayor
then introductions, speeches and seating should take place at the discretion of the event organiser in consultation with a council
representative from the Governance Business Unit.

If the Prime Minister s in attendance the order of precedence mustbe changed and they mustbe welcomed and introduced first.

If you have invited the Prime Minister, Premier or a Minister to your function, there are several protocols thatmay need to observed
during the event. Further guidance is best soughtby contacting the relevantdignitaries office.

A person acting on behalf of any of another dignitary shall enjoy the precedence of the person for whom he/she is acting with the
understanding that, if there is more than one person holding the same level of stature as the person acting on behalf ofanother, then
they will take precedence after other persons with the same stature who are attending in their own right.

State or Federal representatives invited to local functions mightinsiston being accorded the same degree of precedence they enjoy
on agovernmentlist, so itis extremely important that questions of precedence be determined prior to any event.

Federal and State Election Caretaker periods mustbe considered when planning Council organised or sponsored events at which
Parliamentarians are invited to speak.

If you have any questions please contactthe Office of the Mayor on 85715230 or Council's Govemnance Uniton 8571 5347 or read
the entire policy at www.greaterdandenong.com. For a details regarding the Victorian Government's Order of Precedence protocols
go to: www.dpc.vic.gov.au/index.php/policies/protocolivictorian-table-of-precedence
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File Id: A5969139
Responsible Officer: Director Community Services
Attachments: Community Response Grants Policy — Marked
Up with changes.
Community Response Grants Policy — For
Re-adoption
Report Summary

The current Community Response Grants Program (CRGP) Policy was adopted 9 October 2017. A
further review has occurred in 2019 to strengthen alignment with program reviews across the entire
suite of grants within the Community Funding Program.

Community funding is a key role of local government in supporting and strengthening communities.
Council recognises that financial assistance through a fit-for-purpose grant program can support
individuals to achieve success in their chosen endeavour and enhance community support to groups
to provide genuine benefit to their members. Council also recognises the need for a responsive,
simple and small grant program aligned with the Council Plan.

The 2017 policy changes successfully improved grant timeliness, predictability for applicants, and
administrative efficiency for Council.

This current review identifies further opportunities to improve and clarify grant purpose and eligibility
criteria, strengthen pathways for supporting new and emerging community groups and improve
mechanisms for budget allocation.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council readopts the updated Community Response
Grants Policy.
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Background

Policies establish a framework by which Council conducts its business activities and ensures that the
decision-making process is consistent. Council has established a number of policies to guide its
responsibilities to the City of Greater Dandenong community and it is critical that these policies and
codes of practice reflect the principles outlined in the Council Plan.

Existing policies are subject to ongoing review and compliance. The current Community Response
Grants Policy was adopted on 9 October 2017 with a short-term review scheduled to follow. The 2017
policy changes successfully improved grant timeliness, predictability for applicants, and provided
better administrative efficiency for Council. This current policy review was completed in June 2019
to align with the broader grants program and strengthen outcomes.

The review evaluated key council plans, strategies and policies, analysed community feedback from
grant application forms and information sessions, benchmarked against six other local government
authorities and conducted internal consultation with relevant business units.

The current review has identified the following opportunities to strengthen the Community Response
Grants:

e clarification of grant purpose and eligibility criteria, including scope of grant project activities and

times;
° increased funding level caps to provide proportional support for larger community groups;
° limiting the lead time an applicant may submit an application prior to commencing the project

activity. This will improve funding availability for responsive needs;
e strengthening pathways for supporting new and emerging community group;

e  creating quarterly budget allocation to ensure availability of funds throughout the financial year;
and

e the creation of a formal review process for applications presenting a potential risk or being more
suited to an alternative grant program.

Proposal

Itis proposed that the Community Response Grants Policy be readopted by Council with the following
changes:

e  Section 5. References - dates for quoted policies and frameworks updated to read ‘current’.
e  Section 6. Definitions - Updated.

e  Section 7.2 Policy Principles - building on the Commonwealth Grant Guideline Principles (2013)
and adapting this to the City of Greater Dandenong context.

e  Section 7.4 Program Aims - adjustment to embody policy purpose statements.
e  Section 7.5 Implementation Principles - refined to support achievement of policy purpose.

The aims of the Community Response Grants Program are to:
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e  encourage individuals who are residents of the City of Greater Dandenong to develop their
talents and abilities and achieve their goals and ambitions;

e  support small not-for-profit community groups and clubs that receive minimal or no funding;

e create opportunities for new non-profit community groups, clubs and/or associations who have
recently established or have not previously accessed Council’s grants program, to support their
development and the running of activities; and

e  support not-for-profit groups to deliver small, responsive community led projects and initiatives
open to the wider Greater Dandenong community.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-21 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030'. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’
People

e  Pride — Best place best people

e  Cultural Diversity — Model multicultural community
Outdoor Activity and Sports — Recreation for everyone
Lifecycle and Social Support — The generations supported

Place

e  Sense of Place — One city many neighbourhoods
e  Safety in Streets and Places — Feeling and being safe
° Travel and Transport — Easy to get around

Opportunity

e  FEducation, Learning and Information — Knowledge
e Leadershipby the Council — The leading Council

Council Plan 2017-21

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

People

) A vibrant, connected and safe community
e A creative city that respects and embraces diversity
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Place

e A healthy, liveable and sustainable city

Opportunity

e An open and effective Council

The strategies and plans that contribute to these outcomes are as follows:

e  Council Plan 2017-21
e  Community Wellbeing Plan 2017-21

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
No financial resources are impacted by this report.
Consultation

Prior to presenting this report to Council for endorsement the Community Response Grants Policy
was reviewed and evaluated by:

e feedback provided by community organisations through the online application feedback section
of the CRGP application form;

e feedback provided at grants information sessions and general community correspondence;

e feedback and outcomes of Community Funding public consultation undertaken in November
2018;

e  benchmarking with other Councils and their small grants programs;
e  Council’s Executive Management Team; and
e  Council’s Staff Consultative Committee including representatives from:

o Community Development, Sport and Recreation, Community Care, Civic Facilities, Arts
and Cultural Development, Festivals and Events, Sustainability Planning, Maternal Child
Health and Youth Services.
Conclusions

A review of the Community Response Grants Policy was conducted and is now presented to

Council for readoption.
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The principal objective of the review was to ensure that the policy is current with legislative
requirements and aligns with grants program reviews across the whole Community Funding Program.

Recommendation
That the Community Response Grants Policy be readopted as per Attachment 1.
MINUTE 1175

Moved by: Cr Sean O'Reilly
Seconded by: Cr Zaynoun Melhem

That the Community Response Grants Policy be readopted as per Attachment 1.

CARRIED

For the Motion: Cr Youhorn Chea, Cr Tim Dark, Cr Zaynoun Melhem, Cr Sean O'Reilly, Cr Sophie
Tan, Cr Loi Truong

Against the Motion: Cr Matthew Kirwan (called for the division), Cr Maria Sampey
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POLICY AND STRATEGY

COMMUNITY RESPONSE GRANTS POLICY REVIEW

ATTACHMENT 1

COMMUNITY RESPONSE GRANTS POLICY —
MARKED UP WITH CHANGES

PAGES 9 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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Community Response Grants Policy

Endlorsement required by Couk2#89908A5350230 Autheritys: GCouncil
Co nmuﬂﬁitv Response Grants Policy
Community Services
Mahager Community Development, Sport and Recr|
Disgretignary
A5850280 Version No: 3]
22 September 2014 | Last Adopted by 9 Octyq
Minute No. 712 Coungil: Minutg
3 years Next Review: June 2
EDRMS-objective 103
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WellbeingDevelop
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Policy Endorsement: Endorsement required by Council
Policy Superseded by Community Response Grants Policy
this Policy
Directorate: Community Services
Responsible Officer: Manager Community Development, Sport and Recreation
Policy Type: Discretionary
File Number: A6025453 Version No: 3
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‘ Review Period: 3 years Next Review: June 2022

1. Purpose

The purpose of this Policy is to provide a framework for the operation and delivery of the
Community Response Grants Program.

2. Background

Council recognises that financial assistance through a Community Response Grant can
support individuals or community groups to achieve success in their chosen endeavour or
activity. Council also recognises the need for a responsive, simple and small grant program

that allgns with the Councn Plan Gemmuﬂtty—Respeﬂse—G#aﬂts—pFewde—a—sense—et

3. Scope

This Policy applies to monetary grants provided through the Community Response Grants
Program and applies to Council staff, Councillors, grant recipients and other parties that
may become involved in the grants process.

This policy strengthens Council’s position to deliver good practice grants administration and
meet requirements under the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government
Amendment Bill 2014 Section 195A — Prohibition of Councillors discretionary funds.

4. Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter — Compatibility Statement

The aims of this Policy support and uphold the intentions of the Human Rights and
Responsibilities Charter.

5. References
| e Endorsed at the Ordinary Council Meeting 28-August9 October 2017
e Council Plan 2017-21
e Community Development Framework November 2015
¢ Community Engagement Policy 20183
« Diversity, Access and Equity Policy 2015
e Electronic Gaming Policy 2018
e Disability Policy 2017
e Language and Communication Policy 2015
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6. Definitions

The following definitions apply in the reading of this Policy.

‘ Grant

‘ Individuals

‘ Community Groups

‘ Schools

‘ Legal Entity

7. Council Policy

7.1 Policy Statement

A payment of money by Council to an individual or community
group for an agreed purpose and subject to conditions

Residents of the City of Greater Dandenong (excluding
Council staff)

Not-for-profit or voluntary groups that receive minimal or no
funding to run group activities or programs that provide benefit
to members and/or the wider community. Includes groups
deemed to be providing services and activities that involve
and benefit residents of the City of Greater Dandenong, such
as sporting and hobby clubs, seniors groups, youth groups,
children’s and families groups, cultural groups, service clubs,
environmental groups, emergency services volunteer groups
and social support groups (e.g. disability support groups).

Primary and secondary schools in the City of Greater
Dandenong only in relation to grant applications for activities
that are not part of core school curriculum and include the
broader community.

An incorporated association, a co-operative, company limited
by guarantee or trust.

The Community Response Grants Program provides opportunities for individuals and
community groups, including schools, to apply for small grants through a simple and
convenient application process that is open throughout the year.

| 7.2 Policy Principles

The Policy upholds and reinforces the Commonwealth Grant Guideline principles (2013):
e Robust planning and design

Proportionality

Collaboration and partnerships

Outcomes orientation

Achieving value with public money
Governance and accountability
Probity and transparency.

Page 3 of 8

20567



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

2.4.3 Community Response Grants Policy Review (Cont.)

'J Greater Dandenong Policy

GREATER

DANDENONGG
City of Opporsunity

7.3 Program Principles (Community Development Framework)

Asset based - Bbuilding resilience by identifying the strengths that exist within a
community and helping harness these to address issues that affect them.(Asset
based)

Place based - Ffocusing on neighbourhoods and places where people meet to
identify community needs and understand opportunities for improvement-.{Place
bhased)

Needs and outcomes focused - finvolving residents in finding solutions to their needs
and helping community leaders to foster positive change in their communities.

Connecting people - Ssupporting residents’ active participation in their local
community and encouraging them to work together on common goals. {Cennecting
people)

Civic participation - Ssupporting and linking residents together to make a difference
in the civic life of their community and developing the skills, knowledge, values, and
motivation to make the difference through political and non-political processes.{(Civiec
Partnerships and relationships - Eestablishing partnerships and relationships with
community members and organisations to develop trust and collaboration with
council, {2arreshipsandreladanshins

Funding focus - Hhelping to secure community funding and resources that support
community initiatives. {(Funding-focus)

Access and equity - Bdelivering initiatives that are developed in a manner that is
respectful of diversity and promotes equity and equal access for all.{(Access-and
eguity)

7.4 Program aims-Aims and-categories

The aims of the Community Response Grants Program are to:

Encourage individuals who are residents of the City of Greater Dandenong to

develop their talents and abilities to achieve their goals and ambitions.
Support small not-for-profit community groups and clubs that receive minimal or no

funding.
Create opportunities for new not-for-profit community groups, clubs and/or

associations who have recently established or have not previously accessed
Council’s grants program, to support their development and running of activities.
Support not-for-profit groups to deliver small, responsive community led projects and

initiatives open to the wider Greater Dandenong community.
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5 Implementation Principles

* Budget
o —willbe-dDetermined by Council through the annual budget process.
0 Allocated on a quarterly basis-by-TFeam-Leader-of Community-Funding.
e Assessment and Decision making

o Officers will conduct an eligibility check on all applications received.

0 Officers will assess applications and make funding recommendations against
criteria.

0 _Where an application is deemed to not fit within the purpose or aims of the
Community Response Grants Program, or present a potential risk, officers
may:

= Seek additional information from the applicant — to be provided within
two weeks of contact; and/or,
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= Refer application to Team Leader of Community Funding for formal
review — who may approve or decline the application, and where
available refer applicant to an alternative suitable grant program.
o0 Decision making is under delegation from the Council to the Director
Community Services.
0 _Unless further information is requested by officers, applicants will receive

o Reporting to Council for noting of successful grants to be included with
Corporate Quarterly Reporting.
o Reporting to the public to be in the Annual Report.
e Program
o Funding amounts are set for individuals and community groups within this
policy via three-four categories.-
o Grants will be fully funded where all applicable criteria isare met.-
o Applications for grants can be made at any time of the year and applicants
will be notified of the outcome within four weeks of application.-
o0 Only one grant per group per annum perannadmunder the Community
Response Grants Program.
o Only one grant per individual in theirlifetime24 months.
o Will-close once budgethas been-fully expended-each year.
e Conditions
| o Grants will be subject to conditions which will be outlined in the notification
letter.-
o Grant recipients will be required to acquit grants, including reporting on
| expenditure of grant funds, and the results and benefits of funded activities.-
o Where grant recipients fail to comply with conditions Council shall take
appropriate action, such as designating the group as ineligible for further
grants or taking action to reclaim funds already paid, dependent on the
specific circumstances of the case.
¢ Promotion and Communications
6—The Community Response gGrant pProgram will be widely promoted to
ensure all residents of City of Greater Dandenong have access to this
program.-
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o
‘ 8. Related Documents

‘ e Community Response Grants Program Guidelines.
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* Community Response Grants Policy

Policy Endorsement: Endorsement required by Council

Policy Superseded by | Community Response Grants Policy

this Policy

Directorate: Community Services

Responsible Officer: Manager Community Development, Sport and Recreation

Policy Type: Discretionary

File Number: A5850280 Version No: 3

1st Adopted by Council | 22 September 2014 | Last Adopted by 9 October 2017
Minute No. 712 Council: Minute No. 406

Review Period: 3 years Next Review: June 2022

1. Purpose

The purpose of this Policy is to provide a framework for the operation and delivery of the
Community Response Grants Program.

2. Background

Council recognises that financial assistance through a Community Response Grant can
support individuals or community groups to achieve success in their chosen endeavour or
activity. Council also recognises the need for a responsive, simple and small grant program
that aligns with the Council Plan.

3. Scope

This Policy applies to monetary grants provided through the Community Response Grants
Program and applies to Council staff, Councillors, grant recipients and other parties that
may become involved in the grants process.

This policy strengthens Council’s position to deliver good practice grants administration and

meet requirements under the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government
Amendment Bill 2014 Section 195A — Prohibition of Councillors discretionary funds.

4. Human Rights and Responsibilities Charter — Compatibility Statement

The aims of this Policy support and uphold the intentions of the Human Rights and
Responsibilities Charter.
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o

References

6. Definitions

Endorsement at the Ordinary Council Meeting 9 October 2017
Council Plan (current)

Community Development Framework November (current)
Community Engagement Policy (current)

Diversity, Access and Equity Policy (current)

Electronic Gaming Policy (current)

Disability Policy (current)

Language and Communication Policy (current)

The following definitions apply in the reading of this Paolicy.

Grant

Individuals

Community Groups

Schools

Legal Entity

7. Council Policy

7.1 Policy Statement

A payment of money by Council to an individual or community
group for an agreed purpose and subject to conditions.

Residents of the City of Greater Dandenong (excluding
Council staff).

Not-for-profit or voluntary groups that receive minimal or no
funding to run group activities or programs that provide benefit
to members and/or the wider community. Includes groups
deemed to be providing services and activities that involve
and benefit residents of the City of Greater Dandenong, such
as sporting and hobby clubs, seniors’ groups, youth groups,
children’s and family’s groups, cultural groups, service clubs,
environmental groups, emergency services volunteer groups
and social support groups (e.g. disability support groups).

Primary and secondary schools in the City of Greater
Dandenong only in relation to grant applications for activities
that are not part of the core school curriculum and include the
broader community.

An incorporated association, a co-operative, company limited
by guarantee or trust.

The Community Response Grants Program provides opportunities for individuals and
community groups, including schools, to apply for small grants through a simple and
convenient application process that is open throughout the year.
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7.2 Policy Principles

The Policy upholds and reinforces the Commonwealth Grant Guideline principles (2013):

Robust planning and design
Collaboration and partnerships
Proportionality

Outcomes orientation

Achieving value with public money
Governance and accountability
Probity and transparency.

7.3 Program Principles (Community Development Framework)

Asset based - building resilience by identifying the strengths that exist within a
community and helping harness these to address issues that affect them.

Place based - focusing on neighbourhoods and places where people meet to identify
community needs and understand opportunities for improvement.

Needs and outcomes focused - involving residents in finding solutions to their needs
and helping community leaders to foster positive change in their communities.
Connecting people - supporting residents’ active participation in their local
community and encouraging them to work together on common goals.

Civic participation - supporting and linking residents together to make a difference in
the civic life of their community and developing the skills, knowledge, values, and
motivation to make the difference through political and non-political processes.
Partnerships and relationships - establishing partnerships and relationships with
community members and organisations to develop trust and collaboration with
council.

Funding focus - helping to secure community funding and resources that support
community initiatives.

Access and equity - delivering initiatives that are developed in a manner that is
respectful of diversity and promotes equity and equal access for all.

7.4 Program Aims

The aims of the Community Response Grants Program are to:

Encourage individuals who are residents of the City of Greater Dandenong to
develop their talents and abilities to achieve their goals and ambitions.

Support small not-for-profit community groups and clubs that receive minimal or no
funding.

Create opportunities for new not-for-profit community groups, clubs and/or
associations who have recently established or have not previously accessed
Council's grants program, to support their development and running of activities.
Support not-for-profit groups to deliver small, responsive community led projects and
initiatives open to the wider Greater Dandenong community.
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7.5 Implementation Principles

e Budget
o Determined by Council through the annual budget process.
o Allocated on a quarterly basis.

e Assessment and Decision making

o Officers will conduct an eligibility check on all applications received.

o Officers will assess applications and make funding recommendations against
criteria.

o Where an application is deemed to not fit within the purpose or aims of the
Community Response Grants Program, or present a potential risk, officers
may:

= Seek additional information from the applicant — to be provided within
two weeks of contact; and/or,

= Refer application to Team Leader of Community Funding for formal
review — who may approve or decline the application, and where
available refer applicant to an alternative suitable grant program.

o Decision making is under delegation from the Council to the Director
Community Services.

o Unless further information is requested by officers, applicants will receive
formal notification of outcomes within four weeks of submission.

o Reporting to Council for noting of successful grants to be included with
Corporate Quarterly Reporting.

0 Reporting to the public to be in the Annual Report.

e Program

o Funding amounts are set for individuals and community groups within this
policy via four categories.

o Grants will be fully funded where all applicable criteria are met.

o Applications for grants can be made at any time of the year and applicants
will be notified of the outcome within four weeks of application.

o Only one grant per group per annum under the Community Response Grants
Program.

0 Only one grant per individual in 24 months.

e Conditions

o Grants will be subject to conditions which will be outlined in the notification
letter.

o Grant recipients will be required to acquit grants, including reporting on
expenditure of grant funds, and the results and benefits of funded activities.

o Where grant recipients fail to comply with conditions Council shall take
appropriate action, such as designating the group as ineligible for further
grants or taking action to reclaim funds already paid, dependent on the
specific circumstances of the case.

e Promotion and Communications

o The Community Response Grant Program will be widely promoted to ensure

all residents of City of Greater Dandenong have access to this program.

Page 4 of 5
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2.4.3 Community Response Grants Policy Review (Cont.)

‘J Greater Dandenong Policy

GREATER
DANDENONG

City of Opportunity

8. Related Documents

e Community Response Grants Program Guidelines.

Page 5 of 5
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2.5 OTHER

2,51 Leave of Absence - Cr Roz Blades AM (Mayor)

File 1d:

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services

Report Summary

Councillor (Cr) Roz Blades AM (Mayor) requests a Leave of Absence from 9-23 September 2019
(inclusive). This Leave of Absence includes tonight’s Ordinary Council Meeting and the Ordinary
Council Meeting scheduled for 23 September 2019.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that this Leave of Absence be granted to Cr Blades for the period requested.
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2.5.1 Leave of Absence - Cr Roz Blades AM (Mayor) (Cont.)

Background
This Leave of Absence has been requested for personal reasons.

This report is submitted in conjunction with Council’s current Meeting Procedure Local Law and
section 66B of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act). Further, under section 69(2) of the Act,
Council must not unreasonably refuse to grant leave.

This Leave of Absence includes the Ordinary Meetings of Council scheduled for tonight and 23
September 2019 and will include an apology for the Councillor Briefing Session scheduled on 16
September 2019.

Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Conclusion

It is proposed that Cr Blades’ request for a Leave of Absence from 9-23 September 2019 (inclusive)
be granted. If granted, it will be inclusive of two Ordinary Meetings of Council dated 9 and 23 September
2019.

Recommendation

That Council grants a Leave of Absence to Councillor Roz Blades AM (Mayor) for the period
9-23 September (inclusive) which includes the Ordinary Meetings of Council dated 9 and 23
September 2019 and notes Councillor Blades’ apology within the Minutes for those meetings.

MINUTE 1176

Moved by: Cr Loi Truong
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

That Council grants a Leave of Absence to Councillor Roz Blades AM (Mayor) for the period
9-23 September (inclusive) which includes the Ordinary Meetings of Council dated 9 and 23
September 2019 and notes Councillor Blades’ apology within the Minutes for those meetings.

CARRIED
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2.5.2 Report on Matters Discussed at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings
-12 & 19 August 2019

File 1d: fA25545
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Report Summary

As part of Council’s ongoing efforts to improve transparency in Council processes, matters discussed
at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings (other than those matters designated to be
of a confidential nature) are reported on at ordinary Council meetings.

The matters listed in this report were presented to Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings
in August 2019.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the information contained within it be received and noted.
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2.5.2 Report on Matters Discussed at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings - 12 & 19
August 2019 (Cont.)

Matters Presented for Discussion

Item

Councillor Briefing
Session/Pre-Council
Meeting

General Discussion

Councillors and Council officers briefly discussed the following
topics:

a) Update on the progress of the strategic south-east advanced
waste processing business case timeline.

b) Recent incident involving local two local football (soccer) clubs.
c) Victorian Government’s Chain of Parks scheme.

d) Format of the proposed night market at Dandenong Market.
e) Possible rebate schemes for pensioners for solar power in
2019-2020.

f) Agenda items for the Council Meeting of 12 August 2019.

12 August 2019

VEC Preliminary Report

Council discussed the Victorian Electoral Commission’s (VEC)
Preliminary Report for the Electoral Representation Review
including the two options (A) and (B) that were presented by the
VEC. Council determined to lodge a submission to the VEC prior
to the 11 September 2019 closing date.

19 August 2019

Lyndale Pavilion Lease and Future Plans

Councillors were provided with future plans for the Lyndale Pavilion
along with future leasing arrangements between Council and
Lyndale Secondary College. A draft Masterplan will be presented
to Council for endorsement at a future Council Meeting.

19 August 2019

Aquatic Strategy

Councillors were presented with an overview of community
feedback received in response to the draft Aquatic Strategy
proposing a 25mx10 lane pool at the new Dandenong facility and
an alternate Strategy proposing a 50mx8 lane pool for
consideration. The final Aquatic Strategy, which includes a
municipal-wide approach to aquatics provision (including Noble
Park Aquatic Centre redevelopment), will be presented to a future
Council Meeting for adoption.

19 August 2019
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2.5.2 Report on Matters Discussed at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings - 12 & 19
August 2019 (Cont.)

5 2018-2019 Financial Year End 19 August 2019

Councillors were provided with information in respect to the cash
position of Council as at 30 June 2019. Capital works completed
and rolled over during the past financial year were discussed.

6 General Discussion 19 August 2019

Councillors and Council officers briefly discussed the following
topics:

Current performance of a Council contractor under dispute.
MAV State Council Meeting.
Operational matters needing follow-up.

)
)
)
) Agenda items for the Council Meeting of 26 August 2019.

a
b
c
d

7 CEO/Councillors Only Session 19 August 2019

CONFIDENTIAL

Apologies

e  Councillor Roz Blades AM, Councillor Angela Long and Councillor Jim Memeti submitted
apologies for the Pre-Council Meeting on 12 August 2019.

e  Councillor Roz Blades AM, Councillor Angela Long, Councillor Zaynoun Melhem and Councillor
Jim Memeti submitted apologies for the Councillor Briefing Session on 19 August 2019.

Recommendation

That:
1. the information contained in this report be received and noted; and
2. the information discussed at the above listed Councillor Briefing Sessions that was

declared confidential in Item 7 by the Chief Executive Officer under Sections 77 and
89 of the Local Government Act 1989 remain confidential until further advisement
unless that information forms the subject of a subsequent Council report.
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2.5.2 Report on Matters Discussed at Councillor Briefing Sessions & Pre-Council Meetings - 12 & 19
August 2019 (Cont.)

MINUTE 1177

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Sophie Tan

That:
1. the information contained in this report be received and noted; and
2, the information discussed at the above listed Councillor Briefing Sessions that was

declared confidential in Item 7 by the Chief Executive Officer under Sections 77 and
89 of the Local Government Act 1989 remain confidential until further advisement
unless that information forms the subject of a subsequent Council report.

CARRIED
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2.5.3 List of Registered Correspondence to Mayor and Councillors

File 1d: qA283304

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services

Attachments: Correspondence Received 19 — 30 August 2019
Report Summary

Subsequent to resolutions made by Council on 11 November 2013 and 25 February 2014 in relation
to a listing of incoming correspondence addressed to the Mayor and Councillors, Attachment 1
provides a list of this correspondence for the period 19 — 30 August 2019.

Recommendation

That the listed items provided in Attachment 1 for the period 19 — 30 August 2019 be received
and noted.

MINUTE 1178

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Zaynoun Melhem

That the listed items provided in Attachment 1 for the period 19 — 30 August 2019 be received
and noted.

CARRIED
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2.5.3 List of Registered Correspondence to Mayor and Councillors (Cont.)

OTHER

LIST OF REGISTERED CORRESPONDENCE TO
MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS

ATTACHMENT 1

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED
19 — 30 AUGUST 2019

PAGES 3 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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3 NOTICES OF MOTION
Nil.
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4 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS/DELEGATES AND COUNCILLORS'
QUESTIONS

Councillor Loi Truong left the Chamber at 7.59pm.

Comment
Cr Sean O’Reilly

Firstly my report on the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) Board. Last week after our board
meeting, we met with the Hon. Lily D'Ambrosio, Minister for Energy Environment and Climate Change.
We asked her some questions and put forward some views on the recycling situation in Victoria and
she has taken that on board. She seemed quite open to new ideas and receiving feedback and so
| think it was a useful exercise.

Question
Cr Sean O’Reilly

My question is on a topic that | really like or some might say love but it is about our Libraries. | am
a regular library user but | am willing to admit publicly that occasionally | return my books late and
occasionally my library card reaches its limit. So when | go to the machine to try and borrow books,
it says "Your fines have reached $10, you can no longer borrow any books'. | just look at the screen
in dismay. Thankfully | have not yet been escorted from the building but | have heard of a different
approach, a kinder approach. Perhaps some could say it is a more user-friendly approach but while
| am lucky to readily have the $10 to reset my library fine balance, some may not. Some of the less
advantaged may be discouraged from borrowing further due to a high library fine build up. Some
libraries are saying you can borrow and keep it as long as you like and we will not penalise you. |
am very interested in the Director for Community Services’ view on this type of approach and whether
we could implement it in the City of Greater Dandenong so | can put my $10 back in my pocket.

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Most libraries do experience significant late returns and unfortunately thefts. Itis a big cost to Councils.
Greater Dandenong Libraries currently charge library fines. Library users are charged 20 cents a
day for each overdue item to a maximum of $5 per item. The Libraries are pretty kind and pretty
flexible when people have a few dollars in their pocket and they want to pay it off. | think there is a
threshold of about $8 to be able to re-borrow again. Having said that, some libraries we know of in
the surrounding municipalities and also around the world as Councillor O’Reilly said, the practice is
to have things like a fine amnesty. A period of whether it is a couple of months or summer or winter
to give people the opportunity to return their books or DVDS or whatever it is because we really do
want people to use our libraries. At the moment, we are investigating that trend and what those costs
would be and for any potential implementation whether or not that is an amnesty but this report will
be brought back to Council for consideration. Obviously it has an impact on Council budget so | think
we would need to discuss it around Council budget time as well.
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4 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS/DELEGATES AND COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS (Cont.)

Comment
Cr Matthew Kirwan

First, | will give my Councillor report. The following are some of my activities over the last two weeks
and it has been quite a busy two weeks.

On Tuesday 27 August 2019, | attended a board meeting of SERGASCO on behalf of Council.
SERGASCO is the South East Region Landfill Gas Unit Trust and it is a company that Greater
Dandenong Council is part of. Landfill gas is collected on behalf of SERGASCO by a company called
EDL Pty Ltd and it is used to generate electricity. This year the royalty stream for SERGASCO
increased by some 130 percent as EDL Pty Ltd has been selling the electricity they have generated
on the open market. However SERGASCO's expenses were higher by up to 30 percent due to power
station rental increases. Still, taking that into account, the amount for distribution for this year is
$252,002 compared with $100,372 last year which is an increase of 152 percent. Now, Greater
Dandenong's component this year will be bigger than last year but it is still going to be small as we
only have one landfill in the SERGASCO collection of landfills and many of you would know it as a
park called the Spring Valley Reserve. That is still generating landfill gas and that is still being collected
to generate electricity. | will give a further update after the SERGASCO meeting that | will be going
to in a couple of weeks.

Later that night, | attended the Greater Dandenong Arts Advisory Board. The main topic of conversation
was the Drum Theatre performance report and that will be coming to a briefing session in early
December 2019.

On Thursday 29 August 2019, | attended the South East Councils Climate Change Alliance (SECCCA)
Regional Forum in Safety Beach. It was in Safety Beach because Mornington Peninsula is part of
SECCCA as well. Key topics of conversations were the region's advocacy priorities but also driving
change within Councils for internal action on climate change.

On Friday 30 August 2019, | attended the Greater Dandenong Audit Advisory Committee Meeting
where the earlier annual financial statements that were endorsed earlier tonight were presented at
the Audit Advisory Committee meeting and the Committee were very happy with them.

On Wednesday 4 September 2019, | attended the Greater Dandenong Sustainability Reference
Committee. Key topics of conversation were the draft Council Plastics Policy and the developing
Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan, including a discussion around the committee members'
views on Council and community zero net emissions targets.

On Thursday 5 September 2019, | attended the Cultural Heritage Advisory Committee. The key topic
of conversation was the first draft of the Greater Dandenong 25" Anniversary publication. It looks
promising but there are still gaps with what we have ended up with which in my opinion is not surprising
for a first draft. What | have certainly learned from it is, that writing a 25" year history of a complex
and diverse municipality like ours is a really difficult task so the fact that there are some gaps in this
first draft is not surprising.
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On Friday 6 September 2019, | attended part of the Culture 21 Lab at the Drum Theatre. Mr Fidler's
directorate Community Services, did a magnificent job organising this Culture 21 Lab and | wish |
was able to attend more of it but | was able to attend the wrap-up session at the Drum Theatre. The
Culture 21 Lab was an exciting event and the first one undertaken by any municipality in Australia.
It was attended by approximately 50 Greater Dandenong staff and community members. Greater
Dandenong has joined in the Cultural and Sustainable Cities Program which enables Greater
Dandenong to engage in capacity-building activities related to Culture 21. Part of the program’s
premise is to add culture as a fourth conceptual pillar of sustainable development in governance.
The three historical pillars being environment, social inclusion and economics. The lab involved
participants self-assessing the Greater Dandenong community against nine thematic areas relating
to Cultural 21 actions on the basis of whether we were at the emerging stage, developing stage or
advanced stage. The results of the Greater Dandenong Lab will be provided in a published report
and will inform the design of future local strategies and policies around culture. | would like to ask Mr
Fidler if he could thank his staff particularly Ms Tilla Buden, Manager Community Arts, Culture and
Libraries, for her leadership in getting this event to Greater Dandenong.

In other news, it is exciting that the Keysborough South Community Hub is progressing. | think anyone
who has listened to any of my reports and questions will know that | have talked about the Keysborough
South Community Hub even before | was elected. | used to ask public questions about the
Keysborough South Community Hub so | am very excited that the project is progressing. The
community is now being asked what their preferred location is in Tatterson Park with the consultations
already attracting a strong response. This community has been waiting for this facility a long time
and is excited now that we are almost about to start the detailed design.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

What is the status of the feasibility study into a library in the Keysborough area that was in this year's
budget and when will early community consultation occur?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

The brief to source a project consultant to assist with the feasibility study has now been finalised and
the study is scheduled to be completed by the end of the current financial year. Timelines for
community consultation will be provided once the project consultant has commenced which we hope
will be in the next couple of months.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Would it be fair to say that community consultation will be in the new calendar year?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

| would imagine that it is going to be in the first quarter of the new year.

20592



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

| was contacted by a Dandenong West resident regarding two homeless people that her and her
partner came across in the section of Clow Street between Robinson Street and Lonsdale Street in
Dandenong. The residents went to Target and bought the homeless person a cheap backpack and
filled it with toiletries which they appreciated. However, the homeless people were worried their gift
would get stolen during the day. The Dandenong West resident contacted me and wondered if some
sort of storage or locker system could be set up in Dandenong not necessarily by Council but Council
working together with agencies involved in this area. My questions are:

(a) In response to homelessness in Dandenong has this idea been discussed with agencies before
and is there an intended action?

(b) More broadly, the resident wanted to know if our Council had or was planning to have a
homelessness action plan like many other Councils and probably the most well-known one in the
sector is Port Phillip but there are a number of examples given the extent of the increasing
homelessness problem in Dandenong and if not, why not? It may not be widely known but Greater
Dandenong now has the worst homelessness problem of any municipality in Victoria and one of the
worst cases of street sleeping.

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

First of all, if Councillor Kirwan could thank the resident for their kindness, it is great to know we have
wonderful people in our community caring for others. Council does have homelessness protocol that
management of belongings of homeless people to ensure amenity and safety of public areas is not
compromised. Persons who are homeless are able to leave a bag of belongings during the day for
safekeeping at WAYSS Housing Support Services at 294 Thomas Street in Dandenong. We are
also having conversations with them about the idea of the lockers to see how feasible that

is.

In terms of the second question, based on a review of best practice a homelessness protocol that |
just mentioned has been developed for Greater Dandenong and it is very similar to what Port Phillip
Council has. A homeless working group has also been set up under the Community Safety Advisory
Committee with representative key stakeholders from most of our housing agencies. The working
group is considering a number of actions to address homelessness including the development of an
action plan.
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Councillor Loi Truong returned to the Chamber at 8.16pm.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Recently there has been quite a lot of media coverage in State media, the Herald Sun and The Age
regarding criminal incidents in the suburb of Dandenong. Some of the more well-known ones have
been the murder in Pickett Street, the stabbings at the David Street fish and chip shop and the alleged
early shutting of Afghan Traders in Thomas Street due to concerns about youth crime. There also
seem to be more incidents in and around this building of late. | am particularly interested in any insight
into the cause of this sudden surge of incidents.

(a) What are the local police doing about these incidents?

(b) Are they new offenders or a group of old offenders being released from Juvenile Justice that are
causing these incidents because that is one of the things that has been talked about youth crime
throughout Melbourne in the last two years, whether they are new people or are they people who go
into juvenile detention and then get released without adequate rehabilitation and then just recommit
crimes?

(c) Are there changes in social conditions in Dandenong that can be particularly pinpointed that are
causing these rising crimes? s it rising rents or cuts in services? We have talked obviously a lot in
this Chamber about the Status Resolution Support Services (SRSS) cuts but there are other cuts in
services that have occurred.

(d) While the incidents are happening in Dandenong, are the offenders predominantly from
Dandenong? If not, are there particular suburbs that a significant number of them hail from?
Sometimes you hear reports of Cranbourne, Hampton Park, Pakenham, people using the public
transport network to get to Dandenong. Is that where the majority of offenders are coming
from?

(e) Is this related or unrelated to the issues that | have been raising in the residential periphery of
Dandenong, the area that | call the inner west area that is between Potter Street and Robinson Street
or the Stud Park apartment area that has been talked about as having crimes committed near Hungry
Jack's in Dandenong?

(f) Going back to previous questions | have asked about issues in the inner west of Dandenong, |
have not heard anything more about the planned drop-in session in Hemmings Street. Did they occur
without me knowing or are they still to occur and, if so, when?
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Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

(a) What are the local police doing about these incidences? Council's Chief Executive Officer and
myself recently met with Victoria Police and meetings have also occurred with the Hon. Gabrielle
Williams MP and the Hon. Ben Carroll MP, who is the Minister for Crime Prevention, Minister for
Corrections, Minister for Youth Justice and Minister for Victim Support. We discussed concerns of
anti-social and criminal behaviour and asked for support. In the meeting with Victoria Police, they
advised us that data for the area shows a decrease in crime and some of the matters that Councillor
Kirwan has mentioned have significant media profile but they tend to be one-off events. Victoria
Police advised that they have put additional resources in Dandenong at present, including officers in
the Multicultural Liaison Working Unit who are working particularly with traders. A number of arrests
have recently been made through Victoria Police Operation ‘Tidal’ which has been publicised by the
Police through the media, social media, print and news media as well. With regards to the allegations
that traders in Thomas Street were shutting early, Council staff over the last month have been
discussing and following this up. We advise that no shops have been closed early as a result and
business seems to be operating as usual.

A meeting has also been arranged with Red Gum Ward Councillors and Victoria Police to discuss
initiatives in central Dandenong and the community safety night will occur in early October 2019 with
all Councillors and Victoria Police.

(b) Are they new offenders or a group of old offenders released from Juvenile Justice? We raised
this question with Victoria Police and they seem to think not but at that stage we did not have the
data from that. Obviously, people get released from Juvenile Justice or prison throughout the year
at various times.

(c) Are there changes in social conditions in Dandenong that can be particularly pinpointed? The
weight of evidence shows that lower socio-economic conditions in Greater Dandenong such as high
unemployment, low incomes and rising household, housing and rental costs do affect many. However,
none of these conditions provide a definitive explanation for criminal and/or anti-social behaviour.

(d) While the incidents are happening in Dandenong, are the offenders predominantly from
Dandenong? If not, are there particular suburbs that a significant number of them hail from? Based
on a number of recent arrests, | can say in conversations with Victoria Police that many of the offenders
are not from Greater Dandenong and they come from across the south east of Melbourne and also
sometimes the western suburbs of Melbourne. Victoria Police have also reported that offenders may
even come from interstate.

(e) Is this related to the issues that Councillor Kirwan has raised in the residential periphery of
Dandenong and the inner west? We do not believe that these incidents have been related. The high
profile incidents of late, we do not believe that they have been relating to the matters that Councillor
Kirwan raised on 23 May this year.
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(f) Going back to previous questions about the drop-in session at Hemmings Street, we have been
in conversation with Neighbourhood Watch, Victoria Police and Crime Stoppers to try and confirm a
date for this event, one that suits everyone and we are currently waiting to confirm a Saturday in
November 2019. Once | have that date | will let everybody know.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

Martin Fidler, Director Community Services mentioned the oft mentioned thing that crime is down in
Dandenong but | am guessing, he is talking about the 2018/19 financial year. Is that correct?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

| do not have those specific dates with me but this is the conversation that we had with the Victoria
Police who said overall crime at the moment is down. If Councillor Kirwan would like more detailed
data on that, | am happy to provide it.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

| would be particularly interested in the actual figures since July this year. Also, having looked at the
2018/19 figures in Dandenong myself and at the raw data that is available from the crime statistics
agency, it is actually not as pretty. While the overall crimes in Dandenong were down, the number
of violent crimes in Dandenong were up and residents are concerned about violent crimes, not petty
thefts and things like that so | think, we need to keep that in mind.

This question was noted for further action.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

On another question which is actually a much cheerier question in Dandenong West, what is the
timeframe for the art project in Hemmings Street and how will the Dandenong West and broader
Dandenong community be engaged and when?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

| believe this is part of a larger development or project in Hemmings Street and | have been advised
that the art project is currently being drafted where the artist will be engaged and local communities
will be invited into that creative project. The timelines for the community engagement will be confirmed
once the project artist has commenced and again we hope that this will all occur in the first quarter
of 2020.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

How are our attempts to preserve the Dalgety Street Reserve in South Dandenong going? In particular,
in terms of something | brought to the attention of the Director City Planning, Design and Amenity a
few months ago which was the decision of Melbourne Water to sell land parcels at public park and
recreation zone rates to Moreland and Darebin Councils in 2017? | am bringing this up now because
what Melbourne Water proposed to us late last year was selling to us as if the land as already zoned
residential which was like buying this land for $2m. What Melbourne Water agreed with Darebin and
Moreland Councils was to sell them land at public park and recreation zone rates which is much lower
and Dalgety Street Reserve is currently zoned public park and recreation zone. As well as wanting
an update on that, what is the possibility of having this land sold to us at public park and recreation
zone rates which would be a big saving to this Council?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

| think | have given pretty much the same feedback to Councillor Kirwan fairly recently but nonetheless,
approximately three weeks ago on 14 August 2019, in response to a letter from Mayor Blades AM,
Minister Lisa Neville MP wrote to the Council suggesting that we re-engage with Melbourne Water
on this matter. | have subsequently met with officers from Melbourne Water, once again putting to
them the advocacy of Council and have followed up with written communication. As soon as | have
details and a response from Melbourne Water, | will advise all Councillors. The options of peppercorn
leases, the options of all the permutations, gifting etc, have all been part of that advocacy from Day
1. Again, that part of the re-engagement that | took to Melbourne Water as | said about two weeks
ago when | met with the Melbourne Water officials, we are still awaiting the outcome of that meeting.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

So the option of purchasing the land at a reduced rate as if it was zoned public park and recreation
zone, has that been put forward to Melbourne Water and have we had any response?

Response
Jody Bosman. Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

| certainly did not suggest to Melbourne Water that we would be willing to pay for it. My advocacy
was that they had, in a sense, an obligation and | gave them the strategic reasons and looked at their
own legislation in terms of giving it to us at no rate or a minimal rate. Certainly around the issue of
a reduced rate on public park and recreation zone, of course | made it quite clear that we would not
forsake the public park and recreation zone so | suppose that the response to them in terms of looking
at getting it at either a gift or a peppercorn lease, the response to them of that is no, it is still not an
option from their point of view. We can then take it to the next step. However, if you show your hand
that you are willing to pay something for it, they are never going to say 'Okay, we are going to give
it to you for nothing’. 1 think it is part of that bargaining process which of course now that this publicly
has been said is completely lost.
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Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

My next question is last year the State Government did a review of allowed uses in the green wedge.
Earlier this year they were looking into what parts of the south east Green Wedge to put an agricultural
overlay on. Any updates on these reviews and has there been any action yet or indication of time
frames for action?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning., Design and Amenity

Over the last 12 months or so, the State Government has been active in the Green Wedge planning
space and in fact have two projects running concurrently. The first of these projects is the Planning
for Melbourne's Green Wedge and Agricultural Land Project. Between February 2019 and May 2019,
more than 800 people and organisations including Greater Dandenong City Council, participated in
the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) stakeholder and community
engagement process on defining, mapping and protecting agricultural land around Melbourne. DELWP
is currently developing a consultation paper outlining potential planning responses to protect and
support Melbourne's agricultural land and strengthen Green Wedge planning controls more broadly.
This paper will be presented to the community for a second round of engagement in early 2020.
DELWP are also developing urban design type guidelines for development in the Green Wedge and
held a preliminary workshop with Green Wedge Councils on 5 September 2019. Council
representatives from Greater Dandenong attended the workshop and this project is in its very early
stages and no definitive information has been provided regarding the future timing or direction of this
project.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

| understand the State Government is currently reviewing the Sandbelt Open Space Development
Plan and have asked Councils for feedback. The Sandbelt Open Space Development Plan is
particularly relevant to the proposed solar farm application because that is in the part of our Green
Wedge that was talked about in the Sandbelt Open Space Development Project. The submission
by the City of Kingston went to their Council meeting for endorsement at their last Council meeting.
Have we prepared a submission and will it be coming to a Council meeting for endorsement and, if
not, why not?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Council officers have not previously been advised of this project by the State Government. In fact,
subsequently we have today made enquiries at Department of Environment, Land, Water and
Planning (DELWP) and | can confirm that we in fact were not consulted on that. We have asked for
the reasons as to why we were not consulted but | do not think any reason was given. What we were
advised is that we will now be afforded an opportunity and something will be coming our way affording
us the opportunity to make a comment, albeit that it is a bit after the opportunity was given to Kingston.
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| think it was probably an oversight at the DELWP offices but once we have this response we will
consider what further actions are needed and then Council may need to take a decision then in this
regard but we are now waiting for a communication from DELWP.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

My final substantive question which | foreshadowed earlier, is a question that is related to the earlier
item "Town Planning Application No.1, The Glade, Dandenong' and is about that broader Glade
precinct. | think the underlying concern from when | spoke to residents was the unique nature of The
Glade area. While individual applications may continue to come into this Council and be compliant
with the planning scheme and then one by one approved either by this Council or by VCAT, the
collective impact is the concern. Now if you have never been to The Glade precinct, it is a set of 15
blocks of land, quite large with some over 1,000 square metres and the road that goes through it,
you would think the road was the sort of body corporate path. It is beautiful. It has got basically a
small narrow road that goes into it as if it is like a body corporate but it is a collection of houses. The
residents are concerned that because they are very big blocks that they may individually all become
townhouse developments over time. While this one individual application that we talked about earlier
may in itself not have much of a drastic impact, over time it could get worse because of that unique
nature. My question tonight is, in terms of a longer term solution, is rezoning this particular block
neighbourhood residential zone a possible solution, just this very small precinct or is establishing a
special parking overlay a possible solution?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

The Glades Road reservation is in fact 15.5 metres wide generally consistent with the reservation
widths in the surrounding area. It is true to say that the actual constructed carriageway in The Glade
is narrower than the surrounding streets by about 700 to 750 millimetres and that alone is not seen
as a strategic justification to propose a planning scheme amendment that would take in an area of
some 16 properties at most. Those properties range in size from around 532 square metres to one
of nearly 1,450 square metres and some have already been developed with more than one dwelling.
Given that the blocks to the north and west share similar characteristics with lot sizes generally around
660 square metres in extent, | see no strategic argument to single out these 16 lots that would see
them rezoned to neighbourhood residential zone or placing on them a parking overlay. That is my
response to the question.

Question

Cr Matthew Kirwan

In terms of the parking overlay option, why would there be no strategic justification for that because
that is not changing the zoning? That is just reflecting the unique nature of a particular neighbourhood.
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Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

A parking overlay is a form of zoning. Until we drill down to what it is that you would want to see out
of that parking overlay, to actually start applying overlays in different areas, almost on a patchwork
basis in any municipality, not just in ours, is not seen as a really good form of planning.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

| had a resident advise me that they submitted some enquiries to a Council meeting a couple of
months ago but had no response. | do recall the Chief Executive Officer did read a response out at
the time so if we can find out when those responses were made, that would be great. The resident
sent some letters for the Council meeting in January 2019, 10 April 2019 and in 24 September 2018.
If I can be copied into those responses to advise the resident that would be great.

This question was taken on notice.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

| received a letter from a long time resident of Dandenong North. They were driving past the old
ambulance station on the corner of Stud Road and David Street, Dandenong and noticed that it is
pretty sad looking and it has been left | believe abandoned for a couple of years now. The resident
wanted to know if there is any possibility of Council acquiring that building and potentially using it for
people who may need it such as some rough sleepers or something like that. | am sure we can take
that question on notice.

| also have a couple of other questions from the same resident that | will send to the relevant officer.

This question was taken on notice.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

Another question from one of our residents which | have previously asked about is with regards to
the Playgroup in Kriegel Way, Tirhatuan Park. Is that a Council-owned asset or is that a Parks Victoria
owned asset?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

| believe it is owned by Parks Victoria although we do provide support and maintenance to it.

Comment
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

| will also send some correspondence from the resident to the Director Community Services and if
we can get back to the resident with a response in the next week that would be fantastic.
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Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

The Director City Planning, Design and Amenity mentioned this evening that public consultations had
closed for Barry Powell and Wal Turner Reserves. Do we know what sort of feedback and responses
we have had from those two public consultations?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning., Design and Amenity

We are busy putting all of that together now. There is obviously a lot of work to be done in terms of
the various forums from which we gathered that information. That is currently underway. As soon
as we have a consolidated assessment on both reserves, we will be bringing those back to Councillors.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

Just to confirm, did Council end up meeting with the relevant parties for those consultations? | know
for Wal Turner it was quite important that we would meet and | want to confirm that we had met with
Silverton Primary School, with the cricket club and relevant residents around that oval.

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

| can confirm that officers from the Planning directorate as well as from Mr Fidler's Community Service
directorate met with the sporting club or the cricket club, the school, parents' associations and of
course we had drop-in days for the general public as well.

Question
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

With regards to those consultations, once we collate all the evidence, how long will it take to get back
to the people who enquired on those and put their feedback in during the consultations? Does Council
have a timeframe for this or is it just as we go?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

It will obviously be as quickly as possible. In some cases where we have an established connection
like the school, we will do that as quickly as possible but then more generally where we have just
had general submissions, obviously that will be part of our community feedback on the broader basis
of our media feedback to the community at large.
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Question
Cr Maria Sampey

| was unaware that the Turner Reserve and Barry Powell Reserve had a cut-off date with regards to
submissions. What happens if we still get submissions in the next two weeks or three weeks? Will
they be counted?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning., Design and Amenity

If those submissions come in relatively soon, they can still be counted. Obviously there has to be a
practical point at which we have to finalise and close that assessment. If there were still submissions
coming in six months from now, those cannot be entertained. If they are received in a couple of
weeks from now, certainly they can be entertained.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

| have been contacted by residents with regards to the fact that the consultations for Turner Reserve
were on Father's Day in the morning. Residents were saying that they would have preferred to have
it at 5 o'clock or later when they are home from work. | think | sent an email or | have mentioned that
previously to have another consultation especially for Turner Reserve. Now | find out tonight that
there is a cut-off date. What happens in a situation like that?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

The cut-off date or the date of community consultations was always part of the advertised material.
The fact that one of those dates was Father's Day in fact seemed to work in favour of the consultations.
There were many fathers out there watching kids playing sport or fathers playing sport themselves.
It was a very active day out in the reserve and the fact that Council officers from Planning and
Community directorates were out there, | think it was a very successful day albeit Father's Day. | do
not think that in any way it undermined either the community's needs for that day or what they would
have done otherwise on the day. | do not think that had we been there or not been there the sport
would not have gone ahead. | also think by being out there, we capitalised on what would have been
happening out there on Father's Day in any event. There is not going to be another drop-in session
but as | have said, if there are any enquiries or submissions that come forward in the next immediate
while, we are happy to entertain them. If there are people with specific questions and they want to
discuss those specific questions, we are happy to entertain those as well.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

With all due respect Mr Bosman, of course there were many fathers there on the day because they
were playing soccer. The maijority of residents were probably celebrating Father's Day but when you
have a sport to play, you have to go and play. My concern is those people who were playing sports
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that day do not necessarily live in the area. They are from elsewhere and so therefore, | think the
concern of the residents whose properties back onto Turner Reserve should be given a priority rather
than the residents who just come into our city to play sports.

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

The surrounding residents were letterbox dropped. They were made aware of and they were engaged
in the consultations so the local residents and many of those people who were in the park on the day
were local residents. They did not come in from the other suburbs. Having said that, | do not think
that there was anything wrong with the views and getting the views of the functionality of the park
from people who use it albeit that they might not live in the area. | am quite sure Councillor Sampey
will find that there are many residents within our municipality who use facilities that are outside of our
municipality. | really enjoy walking my dog in the neighbouring municipalities. | am just saying that
the views of all users are important in our understanding of what the best functions are and designs
for the park.

Comment
Cr Maria Sampey

Yes, | understand that Mr Bosman but when you do not live in the area, all you are concerned about
is having a nice new pavilion whereas the residents look at things such as the noise from the pavilion
and some of the anti-social activities that happen behind the pavilion. The outside residents do not
see any of that.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

| saw on the 60 Minutes program last night with regards to the effects of glyphosate and | am just
wondering what our Council is doing with regards to the use of glyphosate? | know that we have
stopped using glyphosate in the children's playgrounds but what are we doing with regards to its use
in other areas? Are we still using it or what is happening?

Response
Charles Taveira. Acting Director Engineering Services

Yes, we are still using glyphosate outside playground and soft fall areas. That is certainly common
practice throughout the industry. We are planning to come back to Councillors via the Councillors
Weekly Information Summary (Infosum) in the next two to three weeks with more information on that.

Comment
Cr Maria Sampey

| just think that in the years to come when there is going to be a lot of employers being sued because
of the effects of glyphosate, it will be too late then. These companies will never deny that they are a
danger anyway.
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Councillor Matthew Kirwan left the Chamber at 8.43pm.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

With regards to community transport, we have had two forums but this has been going on for six
years now with regards to the community buses so what are we going to do? We have an ageing
population where residents are getting older and we have buses that can only accommodate nine
people per bus. Basically once your name is listed for the bus, it stays there and no one else can
get on the bus until somebody on the list dies. That is what is happening. The City of Monash has
buses that accommodate more than nine people. We continually have these forums. We know we
need more buses so what is happening? We have had two public transport forums. Are we going to
get more buses? What is going to happen to these poor people that pay their rates and they are
isolated at home and cannot be transported anywhere because we do not have enough buses?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

| will take that question on notice. | would like to say though that the most recent forum with the
seniors’ clubs was very successful. It gave us a lot of very positive information. We will be coming
back to Council with a report on what the next steps will be in terms of community transport.

Question
Cr Maria Sampey

Yes. | was at that transport forum and basically what the decision was, we were giving it back to the
presidents of the clubs for them to decide who comes on and who gets off the bus. | think it is a real
tragedy in this day and age that we are allowing this sort of thing to happen. Council invests so many
millions in sporting facilities and really have a big thing about sports but we are not catering to the
needs of the elderly. They have paid their rates all their lives and we just keep putting them on the
back burner. We still have the same amount of buses that only hold nine people and nothing is
changing. It is really frustrating. | am hoping that something will happen within the next two weeks.
Are we getting more buses or are we just going to remain as we are? | submitted a Notice of Motion
four years ago to get more buses and the money was allocated but | have not seen any new buses.

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Buses were purchased and they are actively being used. Part of the forum was to look at the broader
mix of transport providers in the community as well. | will take the question on notice and we will
come back to Council with some recommendations for discussion.

Councillor Matthew Kirwan returned to the Chamber at 8.46pm.
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Comment
Cr Maria Sampey

| would like to let everyone know that on Friday, 20 September 2019, there will be a seniors’ dance
at the Springvale Town Hall. It was an absolute success last year so | would like everybody to come
and bring their partners and make it more of an outstanding success this year. It is $12 a ticket and
bring your own nibbles.

Comment
Cr Tim Dark

It has been a very, very busy fortnight particularly for the Paperbark Ward Councillors, particularly
with business in the City of Greater Dandenong.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

We have had some of the bigger business events being held in the City of Greater Dandenong. |
was fortunate enough to attend the South Eastern Melbourne Manufacturers Alliance (SEMMA)
Annual General Meeting, which was held at the National Centre for Synchrotron Science in the City
of Monash. All the businesses in Greater Dandenong attended the meeting. It was a milestone event
because we had a whole lot of businesses in the City of Greater Dandenong hitting milestones of 10,
15 and 20 years' worth of membership. If we could write some letters to the organisations and | will
provide the companies very quickly:

° APT Events Manufacturing,

Australian Rollforming,

) Britannia,

° Chisholm,

) Corex,

) Dormakaba,

° Hilton Manufacturing,

° Horizon Global,

° McPherson Kelly Lawyers,
e  Pump Technology,

° Sullair,
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Tycab Unique Bending,

° John Berends Implements,
) Jayco,

° Bainbridge Engineering and

° Laser 3D.

This question was noted for further action.

Comment
Cr Tim Dark

These are some of the biggest employers in the City of Greater Dandenong who have achieved
milestones of many years' worth of membership in SEMMA, with many years of promoting the City
of Greater Dandenong as a place to do business. When | spoke many people from these businesses
who were there, they were talking about the opportunities that they have had from this Council and
with EastLink. Especially with the rise in infrastructure that we are investing heavily in, particularly
with road infrastructure and many things to come such as the railway lines and the proposed inland
port.

HM Gem Engines and Managing Director, Bruce Walker has been a stalwart of manufacturing in the
City of Greater Dandenong and was inducted into the VACC Hall of Fame. This is the highest award
that can be conferred upon anybody in the automotive industry so it is very rare that you do get
admitted into it. They have won this award multiple times for Best Engine Reconditioner (large
business) and they are a big exporter. That is a phenomenal achievement for another business in
the City of Greater Dandenong.

Caps & Closures won the 2019 WorldStar Packaging Award held in Prague, Czech Republic so they
are one of the businesses in the City of Greater Dandenong. They achieved international recognition
for their work around the closures and caps of bottles with unique packaging designs.

John Kurta and the team at Kuga Electrical won an award on electro-technology industry at a state
and national level and were presented with their award by Master Electricians Australia at the 2019
Excellence Awards. Another phenomenal achievement for another business and seeing what they
are doing in Keysborough for the Paperbark Ward.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

My first question is regarding the Corrigan Road line marking. Residents are finding it very, very
difficult to be able to get out of their street onto Corrigan Road and also people leaving Moodemere
Street pulling onto Corrigan Road are still having extreme difficulties. When are we expecting the
results from the review?
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Response
Charles Taveira. Acting Director Engineering Services

Our traffic engineers are busily working on the assessment of Corrigan Road post works. We are
expecting that in the next month or so we will have the results back which is effectively a three month
implementation process. We usually wait until about six months to see the traffic patterns settle down
but we are coming up a little early obviously to address some of the anxiety in the community and
obviously amongst Councillors. We expect to come back around the end of this month or early October
with some results.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

The Victorian Small Business Commission has the Small Business Friendly Deals in the City of
Greater Dandenong and this is probably directed at the Group Manager Greater Dandenong Business.
They have a partnership agreement where Councils can sign up to promote business and have
business terms that are friendly in the City of Greater Dandenong. | note that the City of Kingston,
the City of Casey, the City of Frankston and 12 Councils are signatories to this charter which ensures
that there are things such as 30 day terms being paid to small businesses in the City of Greater
Dandenong, that they are aware of the tenders and processes that operate for businesses in the City
of Greater Dandenong. | was wondering if it was possible to:

(1) get a briefing on exactly what the terms are of this charter, and
(2) if the City of Greater Dandenong has potential to become a signatory of this charter?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Group Manager Greater Dandenong Business

Yes, we had a meeting with that organisation to understand a little bit further what the charter means
and | am happy to bring that back to either a further briefing or Infosum if that merits our participation
but at the moment we are just investigating not just what other Councils have done, but what benefits
it will add to our business community.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

A few months ago, we had a delegation from the Netherlands Foreign Investment Commission in
this Chamber to look at promoting the businesses in the City of Greater Dandenong to access the
Euro zone given that Brexit | would say is all but authority. What were the results of that and where
are we seeing the future whether or not we are going to the Netherlands? What feedback if any have
we received from the businesses so far?

Response
Paul Kearsley. Group Manager Greater Dandenong Business

That event was endorsed by us but it was essentially run by the Chamber of Commerce and also
South East Melbourne Manufacturers’ Alliance participated in that so | would have to ask those
organisations, whether or not there had been any further contact with regards to businesses
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endeavouring to use that opportunity back into the Netherlands. We normally find that these things
take businesses several years and further discussions and meetings so that is something | can
certainly put to Paul Broome in the next couple of weeks to see whether or not he has had any further
outcome or interest from businesses that attended.

Comment
Cr Tim Dark

That would be great if we could just source and see what the feedback has been so far.

| attended a couple of events in the last fortnight which | did forget to include. The first was the
Keysborough Auskick Juniors and the Junior Football Club awards with Councillor Tan. That was
very well attended. There were two sessions, the first being with the Auskick kids who were able to
come in and get their awards. The second round was with the juniors. The juniors a few years ago
were non-existent and AFL we know in the City of Greater Dandenong struggles very, very hard. It
is not a sport that is very well recognised or played with the multicultural communities of Greater
Dandenong.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

The Keysborough Junior Football Club being re-established has grown from strength to strength to
strength. They are now fielding a team in every single age year level and also looking at second and
third teams. That is a phenomenal achievement. | think if we could write a letter to their president
Steven Finkelde to congratulate him on the work that him and the committee have been doing in their
sport and particularly around the residents in the City of Greater Dandenong.

This question was noted for further action.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

Steven Finkelde has also been the recipient of a lifetime membership of the Keysborough Junior
Football Club so that is another achievement that has not actually been handed out for many, many,
many years. If we could also write a letter just thanking him for his achievements and congratulating
him on that matter.

This question was noted for further action.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

| also attended the Harrisfield Primary School Art Show. How remiss of me. The art show was very
well attended and these kids draw better than my figures with a crayon | can tell you. The artwork
there was amazing. They had kids that were all locals, many from Silverleaf Ward as well as from
Paperbark Ward. They were designing artworks based upon other actual artworks such as the Monet
pieces and Picasso pieces. The kids would get the picture and would then gravitate those onto a
canvas and onto a piece of paper. They had some displays and all kinds of things. It was raised with
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me whether it would be possible to have some sort of exhibition within the Council building, in the
Council Chamber or an art gallery just to showcase the students' work for the general public who
may want to come in. Do we have some sort of stand or something within the Level 2 concourse or
an area where we can promote some art work?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

If the group can send us an email with the details we are happy to follow that up.

Question
Cr Tim Dark

| want to also congratulate the Rowville Eagles, the soccer team that was playing in the Melbourne
Premier Leagues (MPL)4. The Rowville Eagles is one of the bigger clubs in the region. They absorbed
the former Dandenong Warriors Soccer Club and have done much work promoting sport in the City
of Greater Dandenong. Many of their players are from Greater Dandenong including the president
of the Rowville Eagles, Michael Goss, who lives in Noble Park in Paperbark Ward. They have been
fortunate enough to be promoted and narrowly beating Dandenong South so it is good to see that
the clubs within the south east are working their way up the ladder. If we could also write them a
letter thanking them for their efforts as well, that would be great.

This question was noted for further action.

Comment
Cr Tim Dark

| just have one more thing, the joke of the week which is something | usually do at work. The joke
of the week must go to Football Victoria in the City of Greater Dandenong, particularly with the outcome
of the actions that occurred between the Sandown Lions and also with Springvale City/KUD. Previously
there was an issue with a soccer club in the City of Greater Dandenong in Noble Park in Harold Road
where a coach had made some very, very minor remarks and the club was fined $5,000. Straightaway
penalties were issued. Football Victoria launches a campaign on creating a safe space and then
after all the issues we have seen reported in the media, the photos we have seen, players been
assaulted, Football Victoria issues Sandown Lions with a $1,000 fine, wholly suspended and then
the club officials from Football Victoria were coming to consult with them and educate them that what
they have done is wrong. It turns out that you can assault people on field and end up with a less
penalty than verbally saying something to a coach on the side. | think that is very, very disappointing
with sports in the City of Greater Dandenong. It affected the clubs who were playing against the
Sandown Lions in the following weeks with one club confirming to withdraw from that. It is very, very
disappointing but hopefully the four sports clubs that are playing in the other leagues will get promoted
in the City of Greater Dandenong and we can move on.

Comment
Cr Sophie Tan

| wanted to announce some exciting news for the City of Greater Dandenong.
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On Friday 6 September 2019, | attended the Sustainable Cities Awards presentation at the Kensington
Town Hall with two Council staff members. This award was for Council’s Living Rivers Education
project coordinated by Amy McLoughlin, Team Leader Public Safety and Security. Council has won
this award for the same project in 2015, 2017 and 2019.

Councillor Sophie Tan tabled an award presented to the City of Greater Dandenong at the
Sustainable Cities Awards 2019. Council was the winner for the Litter Prevention Category for
its Living Rivers Education project.

Question
Cr Sophie Tan

| want to ask a question to Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity. For the benefit
of those people in the Gallery and watching the live cast, residents have raised some concerns with
many people selling vegetables on the ground at Multicultural Place in Springvale Shopping Centre,
for occupational health and safety reasons and the local laws about these types of activities. Do we
have any updates on that yet?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Yes, we do. Itis almost a cat and mouse game with my officers. It has been a long ongoing issue
for some time, for a few months at least and what Councillor Tan is talking about is that there are
elderly Asian ladies who will put out their fruit or they will have them in a little cart or a jeep and selling
them on the roadside or on footpaths. As soon as our officers approach they disappear. They have
got a really good early warning system. Our local law officers have attended many times and in some
cases moved the ladies on. They have sometimes run off with their food when officers are seen
approaching. Sometimes they have even left their food behind and just moved away. When we have
managed to engage with them the local law officers have tried to talk with them however, they do not
speak English and usually just say nothing at all in response. We have had parking officers move
them on when they have seen them. We have also had a Vietnamese speaking local law officer
attend to see if he speaks the same language as them and to engage with them. They say that they
do not speak the same language or the same dialect. The local law team is now teaming up with the
health team. As Councillor Tan said, it is a potential health issue and we are undertaking increased
patrols over the next five days through the combined teams to see if we can do something. One of
the health officers is also Viethamese speaking so maybe we can get some traction there. This has
not previously worked with all of these strategies of trying to engage with them. As | said, over the
next five days we have a new plan and maybe we can find a way of engaging with them and letting
them know that what they are doing is illegal. Itis not in the public’s health interest. If we make a
concerted effort day after day after day, they see that it is a high incidence of public visitation by a
larger number of officials then maybe the presence will have a desired effect which | am sure will
only be in the short term. As soon as we are not there they will be back but we are still trying to follow
that one through.
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Question
Cr Sophie Tan

Would they get fined for that or part of the local law?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning., Design and Amenity

Initially no. | think once we are sure that they understand what it is that they are doing and we are
not sure that they do understand, but once we have managed to interact with them and communicate
and let them know and warn them, should then the behaviour persist then they could be subject to
infringement notices then.

Question
Cr Sophie Tan

On 27 August 2019, | represented the Mayor at the official opening of the Fine Food Holdings. They
have a new manufacturing facility which costs $10M on Fox Drive, Dandenong South. This company
has increased their operations massively in the last four years and now employ 250 staff. They export
all over the world and they now produce the best premium crackers in all retailers. They presented
me with some showbags. If the Mayor can write a letter to congratulate them on their new premises
and thank them for their work and providing employment for a lot of people in the City of Greater
Dandenong, that would be great.

This question was noted for further action.

Question
Cr Sophie Tan

On 30 August 2019, | attended the Keysborough Auskick and Junior Football Club presentation night
with Councillor Tim Dark at the Rowley Allen Reserve. The Keysborough Auskick and Junior Football
Clubs now have 220 members consisting of young players between the ages of 4 to 12 so it is great
to see that our young kids are active in sport. | do have a question for the Acting Director, Engineering
Services. The President of the Club mentioned to me that a few staff got locked in after 11 o'clock

at night. That is the problem with their club at the moment. Have we heard any concerns about that?

Response
Charles Taveira, Acting Director Engineering Services

I have not heard any more information but | would like to get some more information from Councillor
Tan so | can follow up.

Comment
Cr Sophie Tan

Yes, | will send that to Mr Taveira.
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On 5 September 2019, | attended the RST Consulting Annual Fundraiser for children in need of
education in rural areas in Cambodia with Councillor Jim Memeti.

On 6 September 2019, | represented the Mayor at the Dandenong District Maths Games Day at the
Keysborough Primary School. There were 20 different local schools with 53 different teams
participating. It was one of the biggest school events and it was great to see some young talent that
from Year 4 to Year 6 levels participating in the games. Later in the afternoon as | previously mentioned,
| attended the Substantial City awards with some Council staff.

Comment
Cr Zaynoun Melhem

| just quickly wanted to acknowledge the senior female football team at Lyndale Footy Club who won
the premiership over the weekend. In their second season of football they managed to win by defeating
Hallam by quite a significant amount. | ended up seeing many of these ladies at the Barry Powell
consultations. They love the club and they love being a part of that community. They are there with
their children every week. Their husbands play at that club and they play at that club and it is a real
beautiful environment. | was very proud to see them win that premiership and they were really happy.
They wanted me to tell everyone at the Council that they had won and that next year we should get
around them. They are very excited about their new facilities that Councillor Sampey and | are hoping
to implement over the next couple of years so congratulations.

Comment
Cr Youhorn Chea

When | attended the National Housing Conference 2019 in Darwin, | brought back a lot of information
so if any Councillor or anyone else wants to have a look at that information, | will leave it with the
Personal Assistant for the Mayor and Councillors in the Mayor’s office.

On 5 September 2019, | attended a business breakfast hosted by Japara Kingston Gardens Aged
Care Facility at Clarke Road, Springvale South. They have over 100 beds of very high standard in
the facility and perfect for retirement. However, the cost for one bedroom is nearly $500,000 and with
a bigger bedroom the cost is nearly $750,000. The information is here if someone wants to have a
look.

On 8 September 2019, | attended with the Mayor, Councillor Roz Blades the 25" Anniversary
celebrations of the Burden Park Adventure Playground Community BBQ. The Mayor, Councillor Roz
Blades during her term as the Mayor of the City of Springvale had an idea. She is one of the founders
of the playground. We had many pictures with former Councillor Eric Mitchell in 1994 during his term
as Mayor. Council has upgraded Burden Park so everything is new. Nearly 100 people attended the
celebrations.
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Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

Before the construction, Springvale Town Hall had three entrances: one entrance from Springvale
Road, another one from Maine Hey Crescent and the other one from Hillcrest Avenue. Atthe moment
there is no entrance from Springvale Road and Hillcrest Avenue. Did Council inform the people who
use the town hall to obtain access from Maine Hey Avenue?

Response
Charles Taveira. Acting Director Engineering Services

In response to that, | am sure there is a pretty comprehensive traffic management plan to guide
visitors into the town hall. | can certainly source that for Councillor Chea and circulate it amongst all
Councillors._

Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

Yes. | also observed that the carpark in Hillcrest Avenue is almost finished. When can they open that
carpark from Hillcrest Avenue?

Response
Charles Taveira. Acting Director Engineering Services

| will take that question on notice.

Question
Cr Youhorn Chea

My last question is about the Springvale Boulevard project. We have the funds for the first project
and also the second project but the project has not started yet. Could the relevant officer please make
it as soon as possible or do we need to wait until the last project?

Response
Paul Kearsley, Group Manager Greater Dandenong Business

The issue we have with that particular project is when we previously put it out to a public tender
process, we only received one company lodging any interest and that company was not registered
to undertake that work by VicRoads. What we have done is we have packaged up Stage 1 and Stage
2. The intention is to re-tender that project and | will provide Councillors with some dates by email
on the particulars of that. However, we are still facing difficulties in getting final VicRoads approval
to the extent that | have just written a fairly terse letter to the Regional Director of VicRoads seeking
them to approve it in a far speedier way than they have at the moment. That letter literally went last
Friday so | hope to be able to give Council an update on that but we will re-tender regardless of the
final VicRoads approval anyway because we understand that will come but it will come probably a
little bit later than we would have liked. | will endeavour to get some information to Councillors on
that. Our commencement dates that we are looking at now and we have advised on a recent bulletin
to the Springvale business community, is early 2020.
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John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer tabled a listing of responses to questions taken on
notice/requiring further action at the previous Council meeting. A copy of the responses is
provided as an attachment.
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MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019

City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4 REPORTS FROM COUNCILLORS/DELEGATES AND COUNCILLORS' QUESTIONS (Cont.)
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 09 SEPTEMBER 2019
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

5 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC

Question
Phillip Malone. Noble Park

Over the last 12 months, two motions relating to the Master Plan at Parkfield Reserve were frivolously
rescinded. Both revotes if | remember correctly, got less votes than the original votes they were
trying to change. ls it possible to determine the cost of these rescinded motions both directly and
indirectly in extra costs because of hold up of the project and loss of days to get aspects of the project
complete before the worst of the winter weather on the ratepayers of Greater Dandenong?

With the review of Council procedures, has there been any tightening of the rescind rules to force
Councillors wanting to move a rescind motion to prove that they have some basis for the rescinding
of the original vote and some proof that say that the rescind motion needs to be seconded by a
Councillor that voted with the original vote or was backed by a third of the Councillors as example
they can be successful in rescinding the original vote. It seems that the system as it stands to today
is open to abuse.

Response
John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer

In response, | can advise there are two key aspects there: One is the suggested impacts or cost of
a rescission motion, Council operates under a current Meeting Procedure Local Law that has very
clear aspects in relation to the moving of a rescission motion. These governance steps and procedures
are incorporated into the planning of any item that comes before Council so we need to give
consideration to the fact that a rescission may be moved in relation to any project. On that basis there
is no additional cost that we might not have planned for.

In relation to the Meeting Procedure Local Law review, it is expected that will come back before
Council on 16 October 2019.

Comment
John Bennie PSM, Chief Executive Officer

The next set of questions are all around a similar topic and it seems that regrettably the people in the
Gallery could not wait to hear the questions addressed.

Question
Vin Popovska, Dandenong

Since The Glade is not as wide as a normal street, would there be "No standing" signs in the whole
Glade so we can get out of our driveways?

Question
Nicole Liu, Dandenong

Will people be banned from parking on the nature strips in The Glade if the proposal goes ahead?
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5 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC (Cont.)

Question
Pat Slattery, Dandenong

How can we get The Glade reclassified to show it is not a street or road but a path into the area which
is environmentally significant on the banks of the creek?

Question
Nadia Popovska. Dandenong

What provision would be made for parking in The Glade since The Glade is only 3.5 metres wide?

Response
Charles Taveira, Acting Director Engineering Services

We will undertake an assessment of the parking arrangements in The Glade and consider the
appropriateness of the existing parking restrictions if any, and whether there is any need to implement
any other parking restrictions. In terms of the road status, we will investigate what options are available
to us to change the road status if in fact it will address the concerns of residents around the
environmental appropriateness of that site.
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6 URGENT BUSINESS
Nil.

The meeting closed at 9.18PM.

Confirmed: / /
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